

B 1800/B 1700 Systems Report Program Generator (RPG)

REFERENCE MANUAL

PRICED ITEM

August 1979

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Section</u>		Page No.
	INTRODUCTION	xxi
1	RPG OPERATION	1-1
	RPG Source Program Control Card Specifications File Description Specifications Extension Specifications Line Counter Specifications Telecommunications Card Specifications Input Specifications Calculation Specifications Output-Format Specifications Dollar Card Specifications RPG Source Program Deck	$ \begin{array}{c} 1-1\\ 1-1\\ 1-1\\ 1-2\\ 1-2\\ 1-2\\ 1-2\\ 1-2\\$
2	RPG LANGUAGE ELEMENTS	2 - 1
	Character Set Characters Used For Names Characters Used For Editing Definition of Names Filenames Vector Names Field Names Labels Definition of Literals Numeric Literal Alphanumeric Literal Definition of Reserved Words Special Words Operation Codes Common Field Definitions PAGE LINE FORM TYPE COMMENTS/DOLLAR CARD PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION	$\begin{array}{c} 2-1\\ 2-1\\ 2-2\\ 2-2\\ 2-2\\ 2-2\\ 2-2\\ 2-2\\$
3	CONTROL CARD SPECIFICATIONS	3-1
	Field Definitions	3-1 3-1 3-1

111

<u>Chapter</u>		Page No.
3	FORM TYPE	3-1
-	DEBUG	3-1
	B-INDEXED FILES	3-1
	SIGN POSITION	3-3
	SORT MEMORY SIZE	3-3
	INVERTED PRINT	3-3
	FORMS POSITIONING	3-4
	SOURCE INPUT DIALECT	3-4
	PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION	3-4
4	FILE DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS	4-1
	Field Definitions	4-1
	PAGE	4-1
	LINE	4-1
	FORM TYPE	4-1
	FILENAME	4-1
	FILE TYPE	4-3
	Input Files	4-3
	Output Files	4-3
	Update Files	4-3
	Complete Files	4-3
S		4-4
t,	FILE DESIGNATION	4-4
	Primary File	44
	Chained File	4-4
	Table File	4-5
	Demand File	4-5
	Record Address File	4-5
	END OF FILE	4-6
	SEQUENCE	4-7
	FILE FORMAT	4-7
	BLOCK AND RECORD LENGTH	4-8
	PROCESSING MODE	4-9
	RECORD ADDRESS FIELD LENGTH	4-9
	RECORD ADDRESS TYPE	4-10
	FILE ORGANIZATION TYPE	4-10
	File Organization	4-11
	Sequential Files	4-11
	Indexed Files	4-12
	Indexed	4-12
	B-Indexed	4-13
	Direct Files	4-13
	File Processing	4-14
	Consecutive	4-14
	Sequential By Key	4-14
	Sequential Within Limits	4-14
	Use Of A Limits File	4-15
	Limits File Requirements and Restrictions	4-15
	File Description Specifications - Indexed File	4-16
	File Description Specifications - Limits File	4-17
	Extension Specifications - Limits File	4-18
	USE OI SHILL UPERATION CODE	4-19

ver Ne prossibilities care of output contained to the terms

Section

5

.

Calculation Specifications - SETLL File Description Specifications - SETLL Record Processing Using SETLL Random Random Processing - Sequential and Direct Files Random Processing - Indexed Files Random Processing - Addrout Files Advantages of Using Addrout Files Creating Addrout Files	$\begin{array}{r} 4-19\\ 4-20\\ 4-21\\ 4-22\\ 4-22\\ 4-22\\ 4-22\\ 4-22\\ 4-23\\$
File Description Specifications - Data Files File Description Specifications - Addrout	4-23
File	$\begin{array}{r} 4-24\\ 4-25\\ 4-26\\ 4-26\\ 4-28\\ 4-29\\ 4-29\\ 4-29\\ 4-29\\ 4-31\\ 4-32\\ 4-32\\ 4-33\\ 4-33\\ 4-33\\ 4-33\\ 4-34\\ \end{array}$
FILE CONDITION	4-34
VECTORS AND EXTENSION SPECIFICATIONS	5-1
Field Definitions PAGE LINE LINE FORM TYPE FROM FILENAME TO FILENAME VECTOR NAME ENTRIES PER RECORD ENTRIES PER VECTOR LENGTH OF ENTRY PACKED DECIMAL POSITIONS SEQUENCE VECTOR NAME, LENGTH OF ENTRY, PACKED, DECIMAL POSITIONS, SEQUENCE COMMENTS PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION	5-1 5-1 5-1 5-1 5-1 5-3 5-4 5-4 5-4 5-4 5-5 5-6 5-6 5-7 5-7
Vectors General Table and Array Differences	5-7 5-7 5-7
TADIO AND ATTAY DITICICIUCS	57

<u>Section</u>

6

7

-

Types of Vectors	5-7
Required Entries for Extension Specifications	5-7
Compile-Time Vectors	5-9
Compile-Time Vector Load	5-9
Pre-Execution Time Vectors	5-10
Pre-Execution Time Vector Load	5-10
Dynamic/Execution Time Vectors	5-11
Dynamic/Execution Time Vector Load	5-11
Input Specifications Load	5-12
Calculation Specifications Load	5 - 13
Rules for Loading a Vector	5-14
Vector Output	5-14
Vectors in Alternating Format	5-14
LINE COUNTER SPECIFICATIONS	6-1
Line-Channel Equations	6-1
Channel	6-1
Line Number - Channel Number	6-1
Field Definitions	6-1
PAGE	6-1
LINE	6-1
FORM TYPE	6-1
FILENAME	6-3
LINE NUMBER. FL OR CHANNEL NUMBER	6-3
LINE NUMBER, OL OR CHANNEL NUMBER	6-3
RPG II Dialect Only	6-3
RDG I OF RDG I Dialect	6-4
I NE NIMER AND CHANNEL NIMERD	6-4
DECOAM IDEM AND CHANNEL NOMBER	6-1
PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION	6-5
Channel Skipping	6-5
Channel Skipping - RPG II	6-5
Channel Skipping - RPG I	6-5
Channel Skipping - RPG I and RPG II	6-5
Printer Backup	6-5
TELECOMMUNICATIONS CARD SPECIFICATIONS	7-1
Data Communications Files	7-1
REMOTE Files	7-1
Field Definitions - REMOTE Files	7-2
	7-2
TAUL	7-2
	7-9
FORM TIPE	7-9
FILENAME	7-2
NUMBER OF STATIONS	7-2
MAXIMUM MESSAGES	7-2
STATION NUMBER	7-2
MESSAGE LENGTH	7-3
DATACOM or BSCA Files	7-3
Field Definitions - DATACOM or BSCA Files	7-4
PAGE	7-4
LINE	7-4
FORM TYPE	7-4

n	<u>F</u>	Page No.
	FILENAME	7-4
	CONFIGURATION	7-4
	INPUT SPECIFICATIONS	8-1
	Field Definitions	8-1
	PAGE	8-1
	LINE	8-1
	FORM TYPE	8-1
	FILENAME	8-1
	AND/OR LINES	8-3
	AND Line	8-3
	OR Line	8-3
	SEQUENCE	8-3
	NUMBER	8-5
	OPTION	8-7
	Example Coding of Sequence, Number, and Option Fields	8-1 9-95
	RECORD IDENTIFYING INDICATOR	0-0E 0 0T
	Control Level Indicator 01-99	0-01 8_8F
	Last Pocord Indicator IP	8-8F
	Halt Indicator HO-HQ	8-8F
	Look-Abead Field $**$	8-8F
	Bules For Look-Abead Fields	8-9
	Use of the Look-Ahead Feature With Input Files	8-9
	Use of the Look-Ahead Feature With Undate and	00
	Combined Files	8-9
	Processing Two Input Files Using the Look-Ahead	
	Feature	8-10
	Processing An Update File and a Secondary File	
	Using Look-Ahead	8-11
	Spread Card Indicator TR	8-12
	Rules for Spread Cards	8-15
	Processing Spread Cards	8-15
	RECORD IDENTIFICATION CODES	8-16
	POSITION	8-16
	NOT	8-16
	C/Z/D	8-17
	CHARACTER	8-19
	Additional Record Identification Codes	8-19
	STACKER SELECT	8-20
	PACKED OR BINARY FIELD	8-20
	UNPACKED DECIMAL FORMAT	8-21
	PACKED DECIMAL FORMAT	8-22
	BINARI FORMAI	8-22
		8-24
	DECIMAL DOSITIONS	0 24 8-95
	FIFID NAME (VARIARIE NAME)	8-26
	OR Relationshin	8-26
	Snecial Words	8-26
	CONTROL LEVEL	8-28
	Split Control Fields	8-30
	MATCHING FIELDS	8-32
	Rules For Matching Fields	8-32

8

Page No.

	Multiple File Processing Using Matching Records Rules For Multiple File Processing Using	8-34
	Matching Records	8-34
	Sequence Checking	8-39
	FIELD RECORD RELATION	8-39
	Record Identifying Indicators	8-41
	Control Level Or Matching Record Indicator	8-41
	External Indicators	8-42
		8-43
	FIELD INDICATORS	8-43
		8-43
		0-43 9-43
		0 43 8-11
0	CALOR ATION SPECIFICATIONS AND ODERATION CODES	0-1
9	CALCULATION SPECIFICATIONS AND OPERATION CODES	9-1
	Field Definitions	9-1
	PAGE	9-1
	LINE	9-1
	FORM TYPE	9-3
	CONTROL LEVEL	9-3
		9-3
		9-4
	$\nabla \mathbf{r}$	9-5
		9-5
	Indicators 01-90	9-6
	Control Level Indicators $(LO-L9)$	9-7
	Last Record Indicator (LR)	9-7
	Matching Record Indicator (MR)	9-7
	Halt Indicators (H0-H9)	9-8
	External Indicators (III-II8)	9-8
	Overflow Indicators (OA-OG, OV)	9-8
	FACTOR 1	9-8
	OPERATION	9-9
	FACTOR 2	9-9
	RESULT FIELD	9-9
	FIELD LENGTH	9-10
	DECIMAL POSITIONS	9-10
	HALF ADJUST	9-10
	RESULTING INDICATORS	9-11
	COMMENTS	9-11
	PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION	9-11
	Operation Codes	9-11
	Arithmetic Operations	9-13
	ADD	9-13
	SUB	9-13
	MULT	9-13
	DIV	9-15
	MVR	9-15
	SQRT	9-17
		9-17
	Z-ADD	9-19
	Z-SUB	9-19

<u>Section</u>

<u>Section</u>

Move Operations	9-18
MOVE	9-20
MOVEL	9-20
MOVEA	9-22
Requirements for MOVEA Operation	9-23
Restrictions for MOVEA Overation	9-23
Coding Evamples for MOVEA Operation	0-23
Move Zone Operations	9 23
	9 41
	9 49
	9-29
	9-29
	9-30
Compare Operations	9-31
COMP	9-31
Comparison of Numeric Fields	9-31
Comparison of Alphanumeric Fields	9-31
TESTN	9-31
TESTZ	9-32A
Binary Field Operations	9-33
BITON	9-33
BITOF	9-34
TESTB	9-34
Columns 54-55	9-34
Columns 56-57	9-34
Columns 58-59	9-34
Setting Indicators	9-35
SETON	9-35
SETOF	9-35
Program Branching Operations	9-35
GOTO	9-35
TAG	9-35
Transfer Control Function	9-36
	9-36
Lockup Operations	9-36 9-36
	9-36
Soard Word	0-36
	9 30
Indicatory Acciercont	9-30
	9-38
	9-38
	9-39
	9-39
Referencing Unsubscripted Table Entries	9-40
Referencing Subscripted Table Entries	9-40
LOKUP With An Array	9-40
Subroutines	9-42
BEGSR	9-42
ENDSR	9-42
EXSR	9-43
Programmed Control of Input and Output	9-44
CHAIN	9-44
Chained Indexed Files	9-45
Input Files	9-45
Update Files	9-45
Output Files	9-45
•	

<u>Section</u>

Page No.

	Chained Direct Files	9-45
	Record Identification In Direct Files	9-45
	Input Files	9-45
	Update Files	9-46
	Output Files	9-46
	Chained Sequential Files	9-46
	Input Files	9-46
	Update Files	9-46
	DSPLY	9-46
	ЕХСРТ	9-47
	FORCE	9-47
	READ	9-48
	RECV	9-49
	Columns 54-55	9-49
	Columns 56-57	9-50
	Columns $58-59$	9-50
	SEND	9-51
	Columns 56-57	9-51
	Columns $58-59$	9-51
	SETLL	9-52
	DEBIG Operation	0-53
		9 55
	DEBUG Operation Output	9-53
		9 55
	11ML	9-00
10	OUTPUT-FORMAT SPECIFICATIONS	10-1
	Record Description Section	10-1
	Field Description Section	10-1
	Field Definitions	10 1
		10 2
	PAGE	10 2
	LINE	10-2
	FORM TIPE	10-2
	TLENAME	10 2
		10-4
		10-5
	STACKER SELECT/FEICH OVERFLOW	10-6
		10-6
	FEICH OVERFLOW	10-0
		10-8
	SPACE \dots $(Declared)$	10-9
	SKIP (RPG II DIAICCI)	10-10
	OUTPUT INDICATORS	10-11
	01-99	10-12
		10-12
		10 - 13
	MR	10 - 13
	НО-Н9	10 - 13
	U1-U8	10-13
	OA-OG, OV	10-13
	Control Level Indicators With Overflow Indicators	10-15
	1P	10-16
	AND/OR	10-17
	FIELD NAME (Variable Name)	10-17
	Special Words	10-17

11

Page No.

Page Fields	10-18
Date Fields (UDATE, UMONTH, UDAY, UYEAR, and JDATE)	10-18A
*PLACE Specification	10-19
*PRINT Specification	10-20
EDIT CODES	10-21
BLANK AFTER	10-25
END POSITION	10-26
PACKED OR BINARY	10-27
CONSTANT OR EDIT WORD	10-28
Constants	10-28
Edit Words	10-28
Edit Word Rules	10 - 29
Zero Suppression	10-31
Full Zero Suppression Coding	10-31
No Zero Suppression Coding	10-31
Limited Zero Suppression Coding	10-32
Editing With a Comma Decimal Point and Fixed	20 02
Dollar Sign	10 - 32
Editing With an Asterisk	10 - 33
Editing with a Floating Dollar Sign	10-33
Editing Negative Numbers	10 - 34
Editing With a Slach	10-34
Editing the Domous the Sign	$10 \ 34$
Amporend	$10 \ 33$
Editing and Constants	$10 \ 30$
	$10^{-}30$
From a of Edit (oddo and Edit Words - DC II Disloct	$10 \ 37$
Drinton File Handling	10^{-37}
	10^{-47}
Page formatifing	10^{-47}
RPG I Dialect	10^{-47}
RPG II DIALECT	10-48
One of law Indications	10^{-48}
Overitow Indicators	10-49
RPG I Dialect	10-49
RPG II Dialect	10-49
Overilow	10-50
Normal Overflow Output	10-54
Fetched Overflow Output	10-55
Multiple Output Lines	10-56
DOLLAR CARD SPECIFICATIONS	11-1
Field Definitions	11-1
PAGE	11-1
LINE	11-1
FORM TYPE	11-1
\$ OPTION	11-1
NOT	11-1
KEY WORD	11-3
File Identification Extensions	11-3
\$ PACKID	11-3
\$ FAMILY	11-3
\$ FILED	11-3
\$ DISKID	11-3
RPG Extensions	11-4
\$ ABEAS	11 - 4
ψ matrix \cdots	*

Sect	ion

\$ RPERA	11-5
\$ OPEN	11-5
\$ AAOPEN	11-5 11-5
\$ ONEPAK	11-5
\$ CYL	11-5
\$ DRIVE	11-5
\$ REFORM	11-5
\$ REORG	11-6
\$ RSIGN	11-6
\$ DNAME	11-6
\$ CHECK	11-6
\$ MERGE	11-6
\$ NEW	11-6A
\$ SEQ	11-6A
\$ DMSNAM	11-6A
\$ DIGITS	11-6A
\$ SECURE	11-6A
\$ TAPE \$ TAPE7 \$ TADE9	11-6A 11-6A
\$ CASSET	11-6A
\$ LIST	11-7 11-7 11-7
\$ MAP	11-7
\$ NAMES	11-7
\$ BAZBON	11-7
\$ ZBINIT	11-7
\$ STACK	11-8
\$ XREF	11-8
\$ PARMAP	11-8
\$ SUPR	11-8
\$ XMAP	11-8
\$ LIBR	11-8
\$ NEWID	11-8
\$ VOID	11-8
\$ PAGE	11-8A 11-8A
COMMENTSPROGRAM IDENTIFICATION	11-8A 11-8A
COMPILER OPERATION	12-1
Source Input	12-1 12-1
Vector File Input	12 - 3 12 - 3
Pre-Execution-Time Vector Files	12 - 3
Label Equation Card	12 - 3
DATA MANAGEMENT SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS	13-1
RPG Data Management Facility	13-1
RPG Data Management Files	13-1

12

13

Section		Page No
	Data Base Specification	13-3
	Field Definitions	13-4
	PAGE	13-4
	LINE	13-4
	FORM TYPE	13-4
	DATA BASE NAME	13-4
	LOGICAL DATA BASE	13-4
	ACCESS MODE	13-4
	PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION	13-4
	Data Management File Description Specifications	13-5
	Field Definitions	13-6
		13-6
		13 0
	LINE	13-0
		13-0
	FILE NAME	13-6
	FILE TYPE	13-6
	FILE DESIGNATION	13-6
	END OF FILE	13-6
	SEQUENCE	13-7
	FILE FORMAT	13-7
	DEVICE	13-7
	INDEX NAME	13-8
	FILE ADDITIONS/UNORDERED/DELETION	13-8
	PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION	13-9
	Data Management Extension Specifications	13-10
	Field Definition	13-10
	PAGE	13-10
	LINE	13-10
	FORM TYPE	13-10
	FROM AND TO FILENAMES	13-10
	PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION	13-10
	Data Management Input Specifications	13-11
	Field Definitions for Record Type Descriptions	13-11
	DAGE	13-11
		13-11
	FORM TYPE	12-11
	FORM TIPE	10 11
	FILE NAME	10-11
	DEQUENCE	13-11
	RECORD IDENTIFYING INDICATOR	13-11
	RECORD IDENTIFYING CODES	13-12
	POSITION	13-12
	C/Z/D/S	13-12
	CHARACTER	13-12
	STACKER SELECT	13-12
	PACKED	13-13
	FIELD LOCATION	13-13
	PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION	13-13
	Field Definitions for Field Descriptions	13-13
	PAGE	13-13
	LINE	13-13
	FORM TYPE	13-13
	FIELD LOCATION	13-13
	DECIMAL POSITIONS	13-14
	FIELD NAME	13-14
	CONTROL LEVEL	13-14

Page No.

13-14

13-14

13-15

13-15

13-18

13-18

13-18

13-18

13-18

MATCHING FIELDS	
FIELD RECORD RELATIONS	
FIELD INDICATORS	
PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION	
Data Management Calculation Specifications	
Field Definitions	
PAGE	
LINE	
FORM TYPE	
CONTROL LEVEL	
INDICATORS	
FACTOR 1	
OPERATION FIELD	

FORM TYPE	13-18
CONTROL LEVEL	13-18
INDICATORS	13-18
FACTOR 1	13-19
OPERATION FIELD	13-20
FACTOR 2	13-20
RESULT FIELD	13-20
FIELD LENGTH	13-21
DECIMAL POSITIONS	13-21
HALF ADJUST/ACCESS METHOD	13-21
RESULTING INDICATORS	13-22
PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION	13-22
Setting Indicators	13-22
Data Management Operation Codes	13-23
Programmed Control of Data Management Input and	
Output	13-23
DELET	13-23
DMKEY	13-24
FIND	13-26
FREE	13-28
INSRT	13-29
LOCK	13-30
REMOV	13-32
STORE	13-33
Data Management Exception Handling	13 - 35
Input Exceptions for Cycle-Driven Data Management	
Files	13-35
All Other Exception Conditions	13-36
Exception Handling Operation Codes	13-36
BEGUR	13-36
ENDUR	13-36
Data Management Output-Format Specifications	13-42
Record Description Section	13-42
PAGE	13-42
LINE	13-42
FORM TYPE	13-42
FILE NAME	13-42
	13-43
RECORD ADDITION/DELETION	13-43
OUTPUT INDICATORS	13-44
VARIABLE FORMAT RECORDS	13-44
PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION	13-46
Field Definitions for Field Description Lines	13-46
PAGE	13-46
L1NE	13-46
FORM TYPE	13-46

DMS OUTPUT LOCATION 13-46

Section

OUTPUT INDICATORS

VARIABLE NAME

EDIT CODES

END POSITION

PACKED

CONSTANT

PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

PAGE

LINE

FORM TYPE

DATA SET NAME

FILE TYPE

DEVICE

FILE ADDITION/UNORDERED/DELETION

PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Restart Data Set Input Specifications

Restart Data Set Calculation Specifications

Restart Data Set Output-Format Specifications

Data Management Audit/Recovery

Restart Data Set File Description Specification

Field Definitions

	DATA SET NAME TYPE DASDL Information and Suggestions Glossary of Commonly Used Data Management Terms	13-55 13-55 13-65 13-66
Appendix		
А	B 1800/B 1700 CARD CODES	A-1
В	HEXADECIMAL VALUES FOR THE B 1800/B 1700 CHARACTER SET	B-1
С	BURROUGHS INDICATOR SUMMARY FORM	C-1
E	EXECUTION-TIME ERROR MESSAGES	E-1
	<pre>Input Error Messages</pre>	E-1 E-1 E-1 E-2 E-2 E-2 E-2 E-3 E-3 E-3 E-3 E-3 E-3 E-3 E-3 E-3 E-3

13-46

13-47

13-47

13-47

13 - 47

13-47

13 - 49

13-51

13 - 52

13 - 52

13-52

13-52

13 - 52

13 - 53

13 - 53

13 - 53

13-53

13 - 53

13 - 53

13 - 53

13-54

13 - 54

13 - 55

Appendix		Page No.
\mathbf{F}	RPG/BTF PROGRAM	F-1
	RPG/BTF Rules RPG/BTF Input RPG/BTF Functions	F-1 F-1 F-2
G	TAGSORT WITH RPG	G-1
Н	RPG PROGRAM CYCLE	H-1
	INDEX I	ndex-1

LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS

Figure

Page No.

1-1	RPG Source Program Deck	1-3
2-1	Insertion of Coding Lines	2-5
2-2	Comment Line Coding	2-6
3-1	Control Card Specifications Summary Sheet	3-2
4-1	File Description Specifications Summary Sheet	4 - 2
4-2	Sequentially Organized Card and Disk Files	4 - 12
4-3	Direct File Organization	4-13
4-4	Example Program Illustrating the Use of Limits	4-18C
4-5	Core Index Selection of Data Keys	4-30
4-6	Example of File Description Entries for Indexed Disk	
	Files	4-36
4-7	Example of File Description Entries for Sequential Files.	4-37
4-8	Example of File Description Entries for Direct Files	4-38
4-9	Example of File Description Entries for Card Files	4-39
4-10	Example of File Description Entries for Tape Files	4-40
4-11	Example of File Description Entries for Console Files	4-41
4-12	Example of File Description Entries for Printer Files	4 - 42
4-13	Example of File Description Entries for Record Address	
	Processing	4-43
4-14	Indexed and Direct Files - File Update	4-44
4-15	Indexed and Direct Files - File Creation	4-45
5-1	Extension Specifications Summary Sheet	5-2
5-2	Entries Necessary to Describe a Vector	5-8
5-3	Setting Up a Data Deck for a Compile-Time Vector	5-9
5-4	Compile-Time Vector Load	5-10
5-5	Pre-Execution Time Vector Load	5-11
5-6	Dynamic Vector Loading	5 - 12
5-7	Dynamic Vector Load - Input Specifications	5-13
5-8	Dynamic Vector Load - Calculation Specifications	5-13
5-9	Vectors in Alternating Format	5-15
6-1	Line Counter Specifications Summary Sheet	6-2
6-2	Line Counter Specifications Code Example	6-3
7-1	Telecommunications Entries - REMOTE Files	7-3
7-2	Telecommunications Entries - DATACOM or BSCA	7-4
7-3	Example of an RPG Data Communications Program	7-5
8-1	Input Specifications Summary Sheet	8-2
8-2	AND/OR Relationships - Record Identification Codes	8-4
8-3	Input Sequence Checking	8-5

LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS (Cont)

Figure

8-4	Example of Alphabetic and Numeric Entries in SEQUENCE	8 6
0 11	FIELD	8-0
0-4A	Input Specifications for DISKIN (SEQI)	0-0
0-4D	Input Specifications for DISKIN (SEQ2)	
8-40	Input specifications for DISKIN (SEQ3)	8-80
8-5	Coding Look-Anead Fields	8-10
8-6	Records Available for Look-Ahead: Two Input Files	8-11
8-7	Records Available for Look-Ahead: One Update File, One Input File	8-12
8-8	Comparison of Regular and Spread Card Data Cecks	8-13
8-9	Coding for Spread Cards	8-14
8-10	C/Z/D Coding Example 1	8-18
8-11	C/Z/D Coding Example 2	8-18
8-12	C/Z/D Coding Example 3	8-19
8-13	Unpacked Format for Decimal Number 1976 (Left Signed)	8-21
8-14	Unpacked Format for Decimal Number 1976 (Right Signed)	8-21
8-15	Format of Two-Byte Binary Field	8-24
8-16	Binary Representation of the Decimal Number 1976	8 - 24
8-17	FIELD LOCATION Coding Example	8-25
8-18	OR Relationship - Identical Fields Within Different	0 20
0.10	Record Types	8-27
8-19	PAGE Field Coding	8-28
8-20	Control Fields in Two Record Types	8-30
8-21	Split Control Fields	8-31
8-22	Coding Matching Fields	8-36
8-23	Record Selection from Two Matching Files	8-37
8-24	Record Selection from Three Matching Files	8-38
8-25	Coding for Sequence Checking	8 - 40
8-26	Field Record Relations - Using the OR Relationship	8 - 42
9-1	Calculation Specifications Summary Sheet	9-2
9-2	LO Indicator Coding Example	9 - 4
9-3	AND/OR Relationship Coding Example	9-5
9-4	Resulting Indicators Coding Example	9-12
9-5	DIV and MVR Coding Example	9-17
9-6	Z-ADD and Z-SUB Coding Example	9-18
9–6a	Field to Array MOVE - No Indexing	9-24
9-6b	Array to Field MOVE - Array Indexed by Literal	9 - 24
9-6c	Array to Array MOVE - No Indexing	9-25
9-6d	Array to Array MOVE - FACTOR 2 Indexed	9-25
9-6e	Array to Array MOVE - RESULT FIELD Indexed	9-26
9-6f	Array to Array MOVE - No Indexing	9-26
9-7	MHHZO Move Zone Operations	9-29
9-8	MHLZO Move Zone Operations	9-29
9-9	MLHZO Move Zone Operations	9-30
9-10	MLLZO Move Zone Operations	9-30
9-11	Binary Field Operations Coding Examples	9-33
9-12	The ZIP Operation Using a Field Name	9-37
9-13	The ZIP Operation Using a Literal	9-37
9-14	Subroutine Coding Examples	9-43
9-15	DSPLY Operation Coding Examples	9-47
9-16	DEBUG Operation Output	9-54
10-1	Output-Format Specifications Summary Sheet	10-3
10-2	FETCH OVERFLOW Coding Example	10-7
10-3	Overflow Indicator with Skip Specified	10-8
10-4	FETCH OVERFLOW with Exception Output Coding Example	10-9

LIST OF ILLUSTRATIONS (Cont)

Figure

10-5	Output Indicators Coding Example	10-12
10-6	Using Control Level Indicators with Overflow Indicators	10-12 10-15
10 7	Coding for the Drinting of Contain Fields	10 - 15
10 - 8	1D Indianton Coding Example	10-15
10-8	DACE Specification Coding Example	10-10
10-9	ADIACE Specification Coding Example	10-10
10-10	*PLACE Specification Coding Example	10-19
10-11	*PRINT Specification Coding Example	10-21
10-12	Coding of Output Constants	10-29
10-13	Zero Suppression Coding Examples	10-32
10-14	Asterisk Fill Coding Examples	10-33
10-15	Dollar Sign Coding Examples	10 - 34
10-16	Negative Signs Coding Examples	10-35
10-17	Sign Removal Coding Examples	10-35
10 - 18	Ampersand Coding Examples (RPG II Dialect)	10-36
10-19	Ampersand Coding Examples (RPG I Dialect)	10-36
10-20	Examples of Constants in the Edit Word	10-36
10-21	Printer Overflow Operations	10-51
10-22	Bar Schematic of Printer Overflow Operations	10-56
10-23	Overflow Coding Example 1 - RPG II	10 - 57
10-24	Overflow Coding Example 2 - RPG I	10-58
11-1	Dollar Card Specifications Summary Sheet	11-2
11 - 2	Coding File Identification Extensions - Dollar Sign	
	Options	11-4
13-1	Data Base Specifications	13-4
13-2	Processing Methods for DMS Files	13-5
13-3	Input Specifications for DMS Files	13-23
13-4	One Method of Coding the DELET Operation	13-25
13-5	Two Coding Examples of the DMKEY Operation	13-26
13-6	Methods of Coding the FIND Operation	13-27
13-7	One Method of Coding the FREE Operation	13-28
13-8	One Method of Coding the INSET Operation	13-20
13-9	Methods of Coding the LOCK Operation	13-31
13-10	One Mathed of Coding the BEMOV Operation	10-00
13_11	One Method of Coding the STOPE Operation Code	10-04
13-12	Drogram Example of Petrying a Write offer Eviting	13-34
10-12	Fight Example of Reciping a write after Exting	13-38
10 10	Exception Routine with cycle-Driven Processing	10 00
13-13	Frogram Example of Retrying a write after Exiting	12-40
10 14	Exception Routine with Exception Output handling	13-40
13-14	Example of variable format Records Coding	13-46
13-15	Output-Format Specifications for DMS Files	13-50
13-16	Program Example of Restart with a Demand DMS File	13-57
13-17	Program Example of Restart with a Primary DMS File	13-62
A-1	Zone and Digit Portions of an 80-Column Card	A-1
A-2	Zone and Digit Portions of a 96-Column Card	A-2
C-1	Burroughs Indicator Summary Form	<u>C-1</u>
H-1	RPG Program Cycle	H-2

LIST OF TABLES

•

Table	•	Page No.
3-1 4-1	Inverted Print Specifications The Maximum and Minimum Values Allowed for Block and	3-4
	Record Sizes	4-8

LIST OF TABLES (Cont)

Table

4-2	Resulting Action of Block Length and Record Length	4-8
4-3	Default Block and Record Lengths	4-9
4-3a	File Description Specifications - Indexed File	4 - 17
4-3b	File Description Specifications - Limits File	4-18
4-3c	Extension Specifications - Limits File	4-18
4-3d	Contents of the File Named LIMITS	4-18A
4-3e	Contents of the File Named DATA	4 -1 8B
4-3f	Calculation Specifications - SETLL	4-19
4-3g	File Description Specifications - SETLL	4-20
4-3h	File Description Specifications - Data Files	4-23
4-3i	File Description Specifications - Addrout File	4 - 24
4-3j	Extension Specifications - Addrout File	4 - 24
4-3k	Valid Combinations of File Types and File Processing	4-25
4-4	Device Assignment for Files	4 - 27
4 - 4a	File Description Specifications - REMOTE	4 - 28
4 - 4b	File Description Specifications - DATACOM or BSCA	4-29
4-5	Columns 15 and 66 Coding Options	4-32
5-1	Guide for Determining Vector Type	5-4
8-1	SEQ1 Data File	8-8A
8-2	SEQ2 Data File	8-8C
8-3	SEQ3 Data File	8-8E
8-4	Packed Equivalents for Unpacked Fields	8-23
9-1	Summary of Operation Codes	9-14
9-2	RESULT FIELD Contents for Various Field Lengths and	
	Decimal Positions — MULT Operation	9-16
9-3	RESULT FIELD Contents for Various Field Lengths and	
	Decimal Positions — SQRT Operation	9-18
9-4	MOVE Operations	9-21
9-5	MOVEL Operations	9-22
9-6	Move Zone Operations	9-28
9-7	Results of the TESTN Operation Code	9-32A
9-8	LOKUP Algorithm	9-42
10-1	Edit Codes Table	10-24
10-2	Effect of Edit Codes on End Position	10 - 26
10 - 3	Effect of Printer Operations on Overflow Indicators	10 54
10 1	Destination	10-54
12-1	Files Used for Source Input and Compilaton Output	12-4
13-1	Complications of various DMS FIELD LOCATION and FIELD	12-10
12 0	NAME Fields on the input specifications	13-16
13-2	Fields on the Output Format Specifications	13-48
10 0	TPPEC and TPEND Operation Coding Options	13-55
13-3	Dunch Card Codes for the B 1800/B 1700 Character Set	4-3
	R 1800/B 1700 BDC Collating Sequence	A-J B∴1
B-2	Hey to Binary Conversion Table	B-1 R - 9
D-2 F-1	Internal and External Filonomes of the Tag Filo and	$D^- \Delta$
T – T	Dete Filo	F-9
БО	Data FILE File Names of PDC/PTF	ጉ-2 ፑ_ዓ
$r = \Delta$	Ruilding a Tag Filo	G_1
0-1	Durrurng a rag rife	0-1

LIST OF APPLICABLE B 1800/B 1700 PUBLICATIONS

The following is a list of publications relative to the B $1800/{\rm B}$ 1700 RPG System that are referenced in this manual:

Publication Title	Title Page Date	Form No.
B 1800/B 1700 System Software Operational Guide	8-78	1068731
B 1800/B 1700 Systems COBOL Reference Manua	1 8-78	1057197
B 1800/B 1700 Systems Network Definition Language (NDL) Reference Manual	9-78	1073715
B 1800/B 1700 Systems Data Management System II (DMS II) Reference Manual	1-76	1089794

INTRODUCTION

Burroughs RPG (Report Program Generator) is a machine-independent programming language suitable for implementation in a wide variety of data processing applications. B 1800/B 1700 RPG embraces RPG as implemented on IBM 360/20 Systems and RPG II as implemented on IBM S/3. In addition, Burroughs has taken advantage of the sophisticated operating system of the B 1800/B 1700 to allow optional extensions to the above-mentioned implementations.

Burroughs B 1800/B 1700 RPG defaults to that of IBM S/3. A simple control option signals the compiler to generate code as in 360/20 RPG. Throughout this manual, reference to 360/20 RPG will be denoted by "RPG 1".

Burroughs B 1800/B 1700 RPG offers the following advantages to the user:

- a. Simple, generative syntax for ease of program implementation.
- b. Accelerated programmer training and simplified retraining requirements.
- c. Ease of conversion through standard implementation.
- d. Ease of program modification.
- e. Standardized documentation.

This manual describes Burroughs B 1800/B 1700 RPG, and is a reference to the RPG Specification Forms together with each of their appropriate fields.

Columns not mentioned in the specifications sections are not used and must be left blank.

When left and right broken brackets $\langle < \rangle$ are used in syntax descriptions they denote that a metalinguistic variable of the language is to be placed at that point in the syntax.

SECTION

RPG OPERATION

A program written in Burroughs RPG, called a source program, is accepted as input by the RPG Compiler. The compiler first verifies that the source program is syntactically error-free, then converts this source into RPG S-Language, which is then ready for execution on the system. The S-Language generated by the compiler can be executed by using an Interpreter. The Interpreter causes the system hardware to perform the operations specified by the S-Language Program and, thus, by the programmer who wrote the source program.

For a more detailed description of the function of the S-Language as it relates to the Interpreter and the hardware, refer to B 1800/B 1700 System Software Operational Guide, Form No. 1068731.

RPG SOURCE PROGRAM

An RPG Source Program is divided into eight parts which must appear in the following order:

Control Card Specifications File Description Specifications Extension Specifications Line Counter Specifications Telecommunications Card Specifications Input Specifications Calculation Specifications Output-Format Specifications

A description of the above specifications is contained in the paragraphs that follow.

CONTROL CARD SPECIFICATIONS

These specifications provide certain information about the program to the B 1800/B 1700 RPG Compiler.

FILE DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS

These specifications provide information about the equipment being used, and associate files with the hardware devices that will be used. The file types (i.e., input, output, combined) and blocking factors are also given.

EXTENSION SPECIFICATIONS

These specifications are used to describe tables, arrays, and record address files that will be used with the program.

LINE COUNTER SPECIFICATIONS

These specifications provide information about the number of lines to be printed on each page of the output forms that are used. Also, line-channel equation can be given to associate a print line with a channel punch in a carriage control tape.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS CARD SPECIFICATION

The Telecommunications card is used to further define a file specified on the File Description Specifications as a REMOTE, DATACOM, or BSCA file. There is no special form for coding Telecommunications Specifications, but the format described in Section 7 must be used.

INPUT SPECIFICATIONS

These specifications are used to describe the record layouts of all input files used by the program.

CALCULATION SPECIFICATIONS

These specifications define the steps necessary to accomplish the desired task when operating on data described in the program.

OUTPUT-FORMAT SPECIFICATIONS

These specifications are used to specify the type and arrangement of data that will be written as output from the program.

DOLLAR CARD SPECIFICATIONS

The Dollar Card (\$ Card) Specifications sheet is also defined for Burroughs RPG. These specifications are used to accommodate machine- and systemdependent features, and may appear anywhere in a RPG Source Program, unless otherwise specified (see Chroter 11).

The above specifications are coded using the following Report Program Generator forms:

- a. Control Card Specifications/File Description Specifications (Form No. 1055837)
- b. Extension Specifications/Line Counter Specifications (Form No. 1055852)
- c. Input Specifications (Form No. 1107562)
- d. Calculation Specifications (Form No. 1055878)
- e. Output-Format Specifications (Form No. 1055886)
- f. Dollar Card Specifications (Form No. 1055845)

RPG SOURCE PROGRAM DECK

The coded information contained on the specification forms is recorded in punched cards which constitute the source program. The arrangement of these cards in the source deck is illustrated in figure 1-1.



G14003

Figure 1-1. RPG Source Program Deck

Should source corrections become necessary, appropriate changes can be made and the program recompiled. Thus, the source program deck always reflects the S-Language being operationally executed. See Section 12 for operating instructions.

RPG FORMAT

As mentioned in the introduction to this manual, Burroughs RPG accepts source statement input in the format of either RPG 1 or RPG II.

The following is a list of exceptions found in B 1700 RPG:

- a. The Control Card requires simplified recoding before compiling programs from systems other than B 1700.
- b. B 1700 RPG allows 511 characters for alpha fields and 31 for numeric.
- c. IBM's RPG uses standard right signed numeric fields, whereas Burroughs B 1700 RPG uses standard left sign. IBM's System 3 standard plus sign is 'F' right sign, the 360/20 standard plus sign is 'C' right sign, whereas the Burroughs standard plus sign is 'C' left sign. B 1700 RPG allows the right sign option for system compatibility. (Refer to \$RSIGN option in Chapter 11.)

- d. Numeric fields must be edited if the C zone punch is not wanted on output. Otherwise, a positive unedited numeric field will contain an alpha character in the left-most position of the field. For example, C1F0F1F3 would appear as A013 on the printed output. However, if this field is edited, it will assign a F to the left-most character, changing the output to appear as 1013.
- e. 96-column devices will not allow packed decimal format.
- f. The following features and language constructs are not provided for by Burroughs RPG:
 - 1. Variable length records
 - 2. Sterling data format.
 - 3. Alternate collating sequence.
 - 4. Inquiry programs.
 - 5. Printer keyboard output files.
 - 6. External assembler subroutines.
 - 7. Blank after literals.
 - 8. Redefined field lengths.
 - 9. Factor 1 and Factor 2 both literals.
 - 10. Card print feature of IBM's 360/20.
 - 11. File translation.

SECTION 2

Burroughs RPG is a programming language based upon a fixed series of events, called the RPG "program cycle", which takes place during program execution. Due to the strict limitations of the generated program, the source language must conform to rigid rules of syntax. The following paragraphs and sections define the rules for writing programs using the RPG language.

CHARACTER SET

The minimum RPG character set consists of the following characters:

0-9 A-Z

- blank or space
- & ampersand
- . period or decimal point
- minus sign
- \$ dollar sign
- * asterisk
- , comma
- ' apostrophe

The following RPG characters are optional and may be added to the above list:

- + plus sign
- < less than sign
- > greater than sign
- (left parenthesis
-) right parenthesis
- [left bracket
- | right bracket
- | logical OR
- logical NOT ! exclamation poi
- ! exclamation point
 ; semicolon
- ; semicoron
- / slash (virgule) % percent sign
- underscore
- ? question mark
- : colon
- # pound sign
- @ at sign
- = equal sign
- " quotation mark

CHARACTERS USED FOR NAMES

The character set used to form names consists of the 36 characters: 0 through 9 and A through Z.

CHARACTERS USED FOR EDITING

The character set used for special purposes within edit words in the Output-Format Specifications consists of the following nine characters:

- blank or space
- 0 zero
- \$ dollar sign
- . decimal point
- , comma
- CR credit symbol (two characters)
- * asterisk (check protect)
- & amperand
- minus sign

DEFINITION OF NAMES

A name must be left-justified in the field, must begin with an alphabetic character, and is ended by a space or the end of the field, whichever comes first. All characters in a name except the first may be any combination of alphabetic and numeric characters (special characters are not allowed). Blanks may not appear between the characters in a name.

RPG defines the following four types of names:

```
Filenames
Vector names (table or array names)
Field names (variable names)
Labels
```

FILENAMES

A filename is a collective name or word that designates a set of data items. The contents of a file are divided into logical records which are made up of any consecutive set of data items. Filenames cannot exceed eight characters and the first seven characters must be unique among filenames (e.g., DISKFILE and DISKFIL are considered by the compiler to be equal). The compiler truncates the eighth character.

VECTOR NAMES

A vector name is used to identify a data item which is actually a table or an array. The table will be loaded with a number of elementary data items which are accessed through use of the vector name that identifies the entire table. Vector names cannot exceed six characters and must be unique among vector and field names.

FIELD NAMES

A field name is used to identify an individual element of data. Field names cannot exceed six characters and must be unique among vector and field names. A separate memory area is reserved for each unique field name which is completely unrelated to any memory area reserved for any other field name.

LABELS

A label is used only to identify a point in the Calculation Specifications to which a GOTO operation will branch, or to identify the beginning of a subroutine. Labels cannot exceed six characters and must be unique among labels.

DEFINITION OF LITERALS

A literal is an item of data which contains a value identical to the characters being described. There are two classes of literals: numeric and alphanumeric.

NUMERIC LITERAL

A numeric literal is defined as an item composed of characters chosen from the digits 0 through 9, an optional plus sign (all numeric literals not signed minus (-) are assumed plus) or minus sign (-), and the decimal point or decimal comma (see item e below). The rules for the formation of a numeric literal are:

- a. There must be at least one digit in a numeric literal.
- b. The sign of a numeric literal must appear as the left-most character. If no sign is present, the literal is defined as a positive value.
- c. Only one sign character and/or one decimal point may be contained in a numeric literal.
- d. The maximum total length of a numeric literal is 10 characters, including sign and decimal point.
- e. Decimal commas must be used in place of decimal points if the Inverted Print Options I or J are used (Control Card, Column 21).
- f. Embedded blanks are not allowed.

The following are examples of numeric literals:

13427 .005 +1.808 = 1.808 -.0968 7894.54

ALPHANUMERIC LITERAL

An alphanumeric literal may be composed of any allowable character. The beginning and end of an alphanumeric literal is denoted by an apostrophe. Any character enclosed within apostrophes is part of the alphanumeric literal. Consequently, all spaces enclosed within the apostrophes are considered part of the literal. Two consecutive apostrophes within an alphanumeric literal cause a single apostrophe to be inserted into the literal string. An alphanumeric literal which consists only of four consecutive apostrophes results in a single apostrophe. The rules for the formation of an alphanumeric literal are:

- a. There must be at least one character in an alphanumeric literal.
- b. The maximum length of an alphanumeric literal used in the Calculation Specifications is eight characters, and in the Output-Format Specification is 24 characters.
- c. Alphanumeric literals may not be used for arithmetic operations.

The following are examples of alphanumeric literals:

Literal on Source Program Level

Literal Stored by Compiler

'ACTUAL' '-1234.56' 'WEEK''S' 'TODAY''S DATE'	ACTUAL -1234.56 WEEK'S TODAY'S DATE '
'A''B'	A'B
'A'''B'	A''B

DEFINITION OF RESERVED WORDS

Reserved words have a specific function in the RPG syntax and are of two types: special words and operation codes.

SPECIAL WORDS

Reserved words are used in the Input, Calculation, and Output-Format Specifications, and specify such things as page numbering, date fields, and card interpreting.

The following special words are reserved for use as variables:

JDATE PAGE PAGEn (where n=1-8) TIME UDATE UMONTH UDAY UYEAR *PRINT *PLACE

Their use is discussed fully in the sections where they are used.

OPERATION CODES

These reserved words are used in the Calculation Specifications, and specify operations to be performed upon data items. A complete description of the operation codes is presented in Section 9.

COMMON FIELD DEFINITIONS

The RPG specification forms have certain common fields which have consistent entries within a RPG Program. These fields and their respective entries are described below, so that they need not be repeated in subsequent sections.

1-2 PAGE

The PAGE entry in the upper left-hand corner of each specification form is used to number the coding forms sequentially for each source program. Normally, only numeric characters in the range 01-99 would be used; however, any EBCDIC characters (including blanks) are valid entries.

3-5 LINE

The LINE entry is used to number the individual lines on each specification form sequentially. Normally, only numeric characters in the range 000-999 would be used; however, any EBCDIC characters (including blanks) are valid entries.

Columns 3-4 are preprinted so that in most cases the entry is already made. For example, the File Description Specifications form contains line numbers for lines 02 through 07. If more than six lines are needed, additional entries may be made below line 07 and numbered 08, 09, etc. The units position (column 5) may be used to insert a line between two previously written lines (see figure 2-1).

3	6	5	6	7							14	15	16	17	18	19	20			23	24			27	28	29	30	31	32	33	34	35		38	39	40						46	47	7	
d	2	Γ	F	C	A	R	D	1	N			1	Ρ	E	A	F	Γ		8	0			8	0											Γ	R	E	A	D	E	R		\square	X	/
d	3		F	C	A	R	D	Ø	U	T	Γ	ø		Γ		Γ	Γ		8	0			8	0										Τ	Γ	P	U	N	c	H	Γ	Π		X	
d	4	Γ	F	M	A	S	T	E	R			U	C	Γ		Γ	Γ	5	4	0		1	8	0			4		1					T	T	D	I	S	K	T	Γ		Ø	X	
2	5	Ī	F	Γ	T	T	T	Γ	Γ		Γ	Γ	Γ		Γ	Γ	Γ																		T	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Π	Ø	X	
t	6	\uparrow	F	t	T	T	T	1	T	T	T	F		F	Γ	T	T			-										-	t-	-		+	t	T	T	F	T	T	F		Ŕ	X	
d	7	1	F	T	T	1	T	T	1	T	1	Γ		T	Γ	Γ	Γ													Γ	1			T	T	T	T	T	T	T	Γ	Π	Ŕ	X	
6	23	5	F	P	R	I	N	T	T	Γ	Γ	ø	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	1	3	2		1	3	2						ø	F		Π	Τ	L	P	R	r	N	F	E	R		X	
C	2	5	F	T	- 4	P	E	I	N	1-	ţ.	Ī	S	Ε	A	Γ	T	1	8	0		1	8	0							Γ	-		1	T	ħ	A	P	E	T	Γ	Π	Ŕ	Ż,	

G14004

Figure 2-1. Insertion of Coding Lines

The compiler sequence-checks all input cards on columns 1-5 so that all lines should be numbered in ascending numerical order. If a sequence number (page and line number) is encountered that is equal to or less than the preceding sequence number, a sequence error warning message (S) will be emitted by the compiler.

FORM TYPE

6

This entry identifies the type of specification for each line of code. This entry is preprinted for all but the Telecommunications Card Specifications. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
H F L T I C O	Header Card (Control Card Specification). File Description Specification. Extension Specification. Line Counter Specification. Telecommunications Card. Input Specification. Calculation Specification. Output-Format Specification.
Blank	Not allowed except for Comment Card or Dollar Card (depending upon entry in column 7).

COMMENTS/DOLLAR CARD

Since it is often necessary to write explanatory statements within the source program, the Comment Card allows the entire line to the right of column 7 (which contains an asterisk, "*") to be produced on the source program listing for documentation clarity. Comments are not instructions to the RPG Program or Compiler, but serve only as a means of including program documentation. Any valid EBCDIC characters may be used in a comment line. An asterisk in column 7 overrides column 6. An example of comment line coding is illustrated in figure 2-2.

3		5	6	7							14	15	16	17	18	19	20			23	24			27	28	29	30	31	32	33	34	35			38	39	40						46	4
0 2	2		F	*	Τ	F	H	I	S		I	s		A	N		Ε	X	A	M	P	L	E		ø	F		H	ø	W		С	Ø	M	M	E	N	Т		L	1	N	E	ľ
0	3		F	*	1	A	R	E		C	ø	D	E	D		Γ	A	L	L		1	I	N	E	5	Γ	N	I	T	Н		Α	N		A	5	T	E	R	I	S	K	T	ľ
0	\$		F	¥	·	I	N		C	ø	L	u	M	N	Γ	7	Γ	Δ	R	Ε	Γ	T	R	Ε	A	T	Ε	D		A	S		D	0	С	U	M	E	N	T	.4	R	Y	ľ
0	5		F	¥		Δ	N	D	Γ	A	R	E	Γ	I	G	N	ø	R	Ε	D	Γ	B	Y		Т	H	E	Γ	C	ø	M	Ρ	I	L	E	R		Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	
0	6		F	*	-	Γ	T	Ī	T	Γ	Γ		Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ		Γ			Γ	Γ			Γ		Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ						Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Ī
0	7		F	*	*	*	×	*	*	X	×	¥	×	×	¥	¥	¥	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	¥	*	*	*	¥	*	¥	*	¥	¥	*	¥	*	×	¥	*	¥	*	ŀ
			F	Γ			I			T	T	Γ			Γ																					Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Τ	T	Γ	Γ	F
			F	Γ	T	1	1	T	T	Ī	1	Γ	Γ	Γ		ľ	1	– –		1		Γ	Γ		Γ					Γ								Γ		Γ	T		T	ľ

G14005

7

Figure 2-2. Comment Line Coding

The \$ specification in column 7 designates the line to be a Dollar Card Specification which allows the RPG Compiler to accommodate machine- and system-dependent features. A dollar sign in column 7 overrides column 6. Dollar Cards may appear at any point in the RPG Source Program Deck. Section 11 describes the use of Dollar Card Specifications.

75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

The PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION entry in the upper right-hand corner of each specification form is ignored by the compiler, but will appear on the source program listing. Thus, it can be used for documentation to identify different portions of the program, if desired.

SECTION 3

CONTROL CARD SPECIFICATIONS

RPG can use a special card, called a Control Card, to provide certain information about the program to the RPG Compiler. The Control Card can transmit to the compiler such information as type of source input, whether debugging is to take place, sign positions, and so forth. If columns 7 through 74 are blank, the Control Card is not required. One line is provided on the Control Card Specifications and File Description Specifications form for coding of the Control Card information (see figure 3-1).

FIELD DEFINITIONS

The fields for the Control Card Specification form are defined in the paragraphs that follow.

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

This field must be coded with the letter H.

15 DEBUG

Column 15 specifies whether or not the DEBUG operation is to be significant during program compilation. To perform the DEBUG operation:

- a. Column 15 of the Control Card must be coded with a 1.
- b. The operation code for DEBUG must appear in the Calculation Specifications.

If this field is left blank, any DEBUG operations encountered in the Calculation Specifications will not be executed at run-time, but they will still be checked syntactically by the compiler.

16 B-INDEXED FILES

Column 16 can be used to specify whether B-Indexed Files are to be created or used by the program. Valid entries are as follows:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Indexed file.
В	B-Indexed file.



Burroughs

B 1700 RPG



æ~3.

17 SIGN POSITION

This field specifies the location of the sign in all numeric data items and may have the following entries:

Entry	Definition								
Blank or L	Sign in left-most (high-order) character position.								
R	Sign in right-most (low-order) character position.								

The sign position specified by this field may be overridden by the RSIGN Dollar Card Specification (refer to Section 11) if different sign positions are required within the program.

19-20 SORT MEMORY SIZE

This field is used to specify the amount of memory to be used for sorting. The number specified is used to allocate memory in thousands of bytes. An entry of 24 results in the allocation of 24K. bytes of memory for sorting. The default value of 8K. bytes is used when this field is blank or no header card is included in the source card deck.

21 INVERTED PRINT

This field is used to specify the type of punctuation to be used for numeric literals in the Calculation Specifications, the order of the system date field, and the edit codes used on output. The valid codes are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Domestic format.
I	International format.
J	International format (leading zeros not suppressed for zero balances).
D	United Kingdom format.

Table 3-1 shows inverted print specifications and their resulting formats.

Numeric Literal With a Comma or a Period as a Decimal Point	Edit Codes With a Comma or a Period as a Decimal Point	Zero Suppress to the Left or Right of the Decimal Point	UDATE With a Slash or a Period			
5678,90	7,654.32	.60	Mon/Day/Year			
5678.90	7,654.32	.60	Day/Mon/Year			
5678,90	7.654,32	,60	Day,Mon.Year			
5678,90	7.654,32	0,60	Day.Mon.Year			
	Numeric Literal With a Comma or a Period as a Decimal Point 5678.90 5678.90 5678,90 5678,90	Numeric Literal With a Comma or a Period as a Decimal PointEdit Codes With a Comma or a Period as a Decimal Point5678.907,654.325678.907,654.325678.907.654,325678.907.654,325678.907.654,32	Numeric Literal With a Comma or a Period as a Decimal PointEdit Codes With a Comma or a Period as a Decimal PointZero Suppress to the Left or Right of the Decimal Point5678.907,654.32.605678.907,654.32.605678,907.654,32,605678,907.654,320,60			

Table 3-1. Inverted Print Specifications

41 FORMS POSITIONING

Since it sometimes becomes necessary to align special forms in the line printer before beginning to print a report, a 1 in column 41 will cause all output lines conditioned by the 1P indicator to be printed more than once when the program is executed. Each time the lines are printed, the program is temporarily suspended to allow the operator to reposition the forms. Printing of the lines may be requested by the operator as many times as necessary to align the forms properly. If this field is left blank, 1P lines are printed only once.

51 SOURCE INPUT DIALECT

Burroughs RPG supports two dialects. RPG 1 dialect is compatible to IBM 360/20 RPG. RPG II dialect is compatible to IBM System/3 RPG II. Both dialects support Burroughs optional extensions. The RPG II dialect is assumed by default. If it is required to use RPG 1 features, a 1 must be entered in column 51 of the control card, otherwise this column should be blank. The source program is not checked against the syntax of the chosen dialect; this option is only used to resolve conflicts between the dialects. Providing there is no conflict, RPG II features can be used when RPG 1 dialect is specified and vice versa.

75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

FILE DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS

Every file to be used by an RPG program, except compile-time vector files, must be described to the RPG compiler through the File Description Specifications. These specifications are used to provide information about file types, file names, how the files are used, record and block lengths, and hardware devices. The information is used to associate files with hardware devices as well as for other purposes.

The B 1800/B 1700 system provides the facility for the object program to use the record and block lengths from the header record of existing disk files. This function can be inhibited by use of the dollar option REFORM.

The maximum number of files allowed in any RPG program is 31. An index file and its corresponding tag file count as one file.

The lower portion of the Control Card Specifications and File Description Specifications is used for coding the File Description information. Each file to be described requires one line on the form.

FIELD DEFINITIONS

Figure 4-1 can be used in conjunction with the following field definitions for the File Description Specifications.

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

This field must contain a F.

7-14 FILENAME

This field is used to assign a unique name to every file used by the program. The filename must begin in column 7. Filenames must be assigned in accordance with the rules outlined in Section 2 of this manual.


- A. Contains name unique in the first 7 characters for every file to be used.
- B. 15 Specifies how each file is to be used. Entries: 1, O, U, C, or D.
- C. 16 Describes the use of input, update, and combined files. Entries: Blank, P, S, C, T, or D.
- D. 17 Specifies which files are to be checked for End-of-File during multifile processing. Entries: Blank or E.
- E. 18 Specifies the order matching fields are to be checked. Entries: Blank or A, or D.
- F. 19 Specifies whether the file contains fixed- or variable-length records. Entries: Blank or F.
- G. 20-23 Specifies the block size. Entry is device dependent.
- H. 24-27 Specifies the record size. Entry is device dependent.
- I. 28 Specifies Record Address or Sequential Processing disk files only. Entries: Blank, L, or R.
- J. 29-30 Specifies the length of the key field. Entries: 1-99, right-justified.
- K. 31 Describes the format of the keys within the records. Entries: Blank, K or A, P, or N.

G14007

- L. 32 Identifies how a file is to be accessed or whether multiple buffers are required. Entries I, 1-9, or Blank. •
- M. 33-34 Specifies the overflow indicator used to condition records. Entries: OA-OG, OV or Blank.
- N. 35-38 Specifies the key field starting position in each record for indexed files. Entries: 1-4095, right-justified.
- 0. 39 Indicates whether an output table or array file will be further described on Extension or Line Counter Specifications. Entries: E, L, or Blank.
- P. 40-46 Identifies the input/output device to which each file is assigned. Entries: READER, MFCU1, MFCU2, PUNCH, PRINTER, PRINTR2, TAPE, DISK, CONSOLE, BSCA, DATACOM, REMOTE, QUEUE.
- Q. 53 Entries only meaningful to the B 1700. Entries: U (unlabelled file), F (special forms), or B (printer backup).
- R. 60-65 Specifies number of bytes of memory to be set aside for an index. Entries: 1-9999 right-justified.
- S. 66 For sequential or indexed disk files it specifies addition to existing file or unordered records to be loaded. Entries: A, U, or Blank.
- T. 70 Specifies action to be taken during close of the file (tape and disk files). Entries: P, U, N, R, or Blank.
- U. 71-72 Indicates whether file is to be conditioned by an external indicator. Entries: U1-U8 or Blank.

Figure 4-1. File Description Specifications Summary Sheet

• :

15 FILE TYPE

This field is used to identify the manner in which the program uses the file. Valid entries are:

Entry Definition	
I	Input file.
O	Output file.
U	Update file.
C	Combined file.
D	Display file.

I <u>Input Files</u>

Input files contain records that the program uses as a source of data. If a file is described as input, it indicates that records will be read from that file. Input files must be further described on the Input Specifications form with the exception of table files, which must be described on the Extension Specifications form.

0 <u>Output Files</u>

Output files contain records that are written, printed, or punched as output from the program. All output files should (not required) be further described on the Output-Format Specifications form, except for output table files. FILE DESIGNATION (column 16) must be blank for all output files except chained direct files.

U <u>Update Files</u>

Update files are disk files from which a program reads a record, changes fields in the record, and writes it back into the same location from which it was read. All update files must be further described on the Input Specifications and should (not required) be described on the Output-Format Specifications form. A chained file or a demand file may be updated at detail time, at total time, or at exception time. All other disk files can be updated only at detail time.

C Combined Files

Combined files are card files or remote files that can be used for both input or output. These files consist of:

- a. Cards that are read by the program and are subsequently punched and/or printed as output. The punching is into the same cards that have been read, and output may occur only once per cycle.
- b. Remote files that will be written to (SEND) and read from (RECV) during calculations.

Combined files must be further described on the Input Specifications and should (not required) be described on the Output-Format Specifications form.

D Display Files

Display files are used to print a field or record directly on the console printer. The DSPLY operation code must be used in the Calculation Specifications in order to perform the print operation. Display files are described only on the File Description Specifications form.

16 FILE DESIGNATION

This field is used to further describe the use of input, update, and combined files. It must be left blank for all output files (including display files), except for chained output files. Acceptable entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition		
Blank	Output file.		
P	Primary sequential file.		
S	Secondary sequential file.		
C	Chained (random) file.		
T	Input table file.		
D	Demand file.		
R	Record address file.		

P Primary File

A primary file is the principal file from which the program reads input records, and may be designated as input, update, or combined. Every RPG program must have one and only one primary file; all primary files described after the first one named are considered to be terminal errors. The primary file must be declared before any secondary files or a warning message is emitted.

If there is no P entry in the File Description Specifications, a warning message is emitted and the first S (secondary) file defined is assumed to be the primary file. When no primary or secondary files are present, a syntax error is emitted.

S <u>Secondary Files</u>

Secondary files are all files other than the primary file involved in record selection during multifile processing. Note that this excludes table, chained, and demand files. These files are processed in the same order in which they are written in the File Description Specifications. A secondary file must be an input, update, or combined file.

C Chained File

A chained file may be an input, output, or update file assigned to a disk that uses the CHAIN operation code to read or write records randomly. When the chained file is an input file, records are read from the file. When the chained file is an update file, records are read from the file and can be modified and rewritten to the same location in the file.

#

Chained indexed files may be input or update files only.

T <u>Table File</u>

A table file is a sequential input file that contains vector entries which can be read into the program during pre-executiontime. Only pre-execution-time vector files are described on the File Description Specifications form. Pre-execution-time vectors must be described on the Extension Specifications form.

Table files are only a means for supplying entries for tables used by the program and are not involved in record selection during processing at execution time. All records in table files read during program execution are read before any other data records.

Both compile-time and pre-execution-time vectors may be changed at execution time; however, vector entries read during compilation can be permanently altered only by recompiling the program.

A vector output file, written or punched at End-of-Job, is defined as a normal output file and does not require an entry in column 16.

D <u>Demand File</u>

A demand file may be an update, input, or combined file from which records are read through use of the READ or RECV operation codes in the Calculation Specifications. Demand files and indexed disk files which are read sequentially by key can only be read sequentially.

Remote devices are accessed on a demand basis through the data communications facilities of RPG. The RECV and SEND operation codes are used to cause records to be read from and exception records to be written to REMOTE files respectively.

Demand files are processed as follows:

- a. During input mode, the RPG program reads a record in calculations and does not depend on the RPG program cycle to make a record available.
- b. During output mode, the RPG program allows exception records to be written during calculations. The desired output operation is performed, and program execution continues with the next calculation statement. The demand file does not have to wait for the RPG cycle to write the exception record.

R Record Address File

A record address file must be an input file and must be described on the Extension Specifications. No entries are required on the Input Specifications for a record address file.

A record address file can be either:

- a. A limits file that contains records consisting of lower and upper bound record keys that are used to process indexed files sequentially within limits, or
- b. An addrout file that consists of 4-byte, relative-record numbers used to randomly process a disk file.

17 END OF FILE

This column specifies which files are to be checked for End-of-File during multifile processing in order to turn the last record indicator (LR) ON. It applies only to input, update, and combined files declared as primary or secondary files and also to record address file, and is used to indicate whether or not the program may end before all of the records from the file are processed. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	If this entry is blank for all files, all records must be read from all files before the program may end. If this entry is blank for only some files the program may end whether or not all records from the file have been read.
E	All records in the file must be read and processed before the program may end.

If all records from all input files must be read and processed before the LR indicator can be turned ON, this column must be blank (or contain E) for all files.

Specifying an E in column 17 of the File Description Sheet indicates that the job is to end after all records are processed from the file for which the E was specified. In most cases, the job will end at the time all records from that file are processed. However, under certain conditions, additional records may be processed after all records from the file with the E designation are processed. The exceptional situation is in matching records when an E is designated for the primary file and all records from that file have been processed. The job will end only after all secondary records that match the last primary record have been processed or the first secondary record without a match field has been encountered.

Technically, a data file never reaches end-of-file when processed by a record address file. The program can be forced to go to end-of-job when the record address file reaches end-of-file by making an entry in column 17 of the File Description Card for the record address file.

18 SEQUENCE

This field is used only by primary and secondary files to indicate whether or not the program is to check the sequence of the input records. The Input Specifications form (columns 61-62) must be used to specify the match fields within the input file records. This entry must be left blank for all files other than primary and secondary files. Acceptable entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
Blank or A	Records with matching fields are to be sequence-checked in ascending order.
D	Records with matching fields are to be sequence-checked in descending order.

Sequence checking is performed when matching fields have been specified for the records in a file. If a record from a matching input file is found to be out of sequence, the program halts. If the program halts, the operator may make one of the following entries:

Console Message	Definition
<program number=""> AXGO</program>	Ignore the record out of sequence and read the next record from the same file.
<program number=""> AXSTOP</program>	Ignore the record out of sequence, turn on the LR indicator, and per- form all final detail and total calculation procedures.
<program number=""> DS</program>	Discontinue the program.

All sequence checking is performed according to the EBCDIC collating sequence (see Appendix B). If any matching file specifies descending (D) sequence, all files must specify descending sequence.

19 FILE FORMAT

This field specifies whether the file contains fixed- or variable-length records. Variable-length records may not be specified.

Entry	Definition		
Blank or F	Fixed record length.		

20-27 BLOCK AND RECORD LENGTH

These fields are used to specify the block and record sizes for the file. The minimum and maximum record and block length allowed depend upon the device to which the file is assigned. This information is detailed for the B 1800/B 1700 in table 4-1.

	Block Length		Record Length	
Device	Minimum	Maximum	Minimum	Maximum
CARD (80 col)	Same as record length	Same as record length	1	80
CARD (96 col)	Same as record length	Same as record length	1	96
PRINTER	Same as record length	Same as record length	1	132
DISK Data files Addrout files	1 4	9999 180	1 4	$\begin{array}{c} 4095\\4\end{array}$
TAPE	8	9999	1	4095
CONSOLE	Same as record length	Same as record length	1	50

Table 4-1. The Maximum and Minimum Values Allowed For Block and Record Sizes

Block and record length entries may in certain cases be left blank. The treatment of the various cases is tabulated in table 4-2.

Table 4-2. Resulting Action of Block Length and Record Length

Block Length	Record Length	Result
Entry	Entry	The values entered are used.
Blank	Blank	Block and Record Length are defaulted to the same value.
Entry	Blank	Invalid.
Blank	Entry	Block length is defaulted to the value specified for Re- cord Length.

Entries in the BLOCK LENGTH (columns 20-23) and RECORD LENGTH (columns 24-27) fields must be right-justified, and leading zeros may be omitted. If the BLOCK LENGTH is left blank, it is assumed to be the same as the RECORD LENGTH. If both the RECORD LENGTH and BLOCK LENGTH entries are left blank, the default sizes given in table 4-3 are assumed.

4

瘤

Device	Block and Record Length
All Printers	132
DISK Data file Addrout file	180 4
DATA 96, MFCU1, MFCU2	96
All other devices	80

Table 4-3. Default Block and Record Lengths

The BLOCK LENGTH must be an integral multiple of the RECORD LENGTH. For unblocked files (note that card and printer files are unblocked), the BLOCK LENGTH will be equal to the RECORD LENGTH. For card and printer files, the RECORD LENGTH specified may be less than the maximum record length for the device, e.g., printer files may be specified as 96, 120, or 132 characters in length.

28 PROCESSING MODE

This field applies to disk files only. The acceptable entries are:

Entry	Processing Mode
Blank	Sequential by key. Consecutive.
L	Sequential within limits.
R	Addrout.

29-30 RECORD ADDRESS FIELD LENGTH

This field applies only to indexed files and record address files.

For a record address file, the entry in this field specifies either the length in bytes of each record in an addrout file or the length in bytes of each key in a limits file.

For an indexed file, the entry in this field specifies the length of the key field within the records of the file. All key fields of an indexed file must be the same length, and the maximum key length is as follows:

- a. Indexed files 29 characters.
- b. B-Indexed files 99 characters.

The maximum key length is the same for a limits file or an indexed file.

The entry in this field must be numeric and must be right-justified. Leading zeroes are not required. The numeric entry specifies the length in bytes of the key field.

31 RECORD ADDRESS TYPE

This field is used to provide additional information about the format of the keys and/or the processing mode of indexed disk files and record address files. The acceptable entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition		
К, А	Indexed or limits file with alphanumeric keys.		
Р	Indexed or limits file with packed keys.		
Ν	Indexed file with numeric keys in alphanumeric format.		
I	Addrout file or processed by an addrout file (refer to note below).		
Blank	Not an indexed file, a limits file, or an addrout file. Also, the file is not processed by an addrout file.		

NOTE

If column 31 contains the letter I and column 16 contains the letter R, the file is an addrout file. If column 16 does not contain the letter R, the file is processed by an addrout file.

A numeric key specified for a limits file may be of a different data format than the numeric key specified for the associated indexed file.

32 FILE ORGANIZATION TYPE

Column 32 identifies file organization or indicates whether multiple buffers are required. Valid entries are:

Entry	Definition	
I	Indexed file.	
Т	Addrout file.	
1-9	Sequential or direct file with 1–9 I/O areas.	
Blank	Sequential or direct file with a single I/O area.	

NOTE

B 1700 RPG organizational techniques are such that file accessing and file organization are independent of each other. This is not so for other RPG implementations. Indexed files are assigned to disk. Data keys are required when using indexed files. For additional information about indexed files, refer to the description of columns 29-30, RECORD ADDRESS FIELD LENGTH and columns 35-38, KEY FIELD STARTING LOCATION in this section.

An indexed file can be loaded in ascending key sequence or it may be loaded in unordered sequence. Refer to the description of column 66, FILE ADDITION/UNORDERED in this section for additional information.

Sequential and direct files can have multiple I/O areas assigned to them. Multiple I/O areas may increase the efficiency of execution of the RPG program, but their use also increases the size of the program. A good balance between the number of I/O areas and program size must be found in order to achieve the greatest throughput from the system when programs are multiprogrammed.

Multiple I/O areas cannot be used with table, combined, display, demand, indexed disk, or stacker selected files.

If column 32 contains the letter T specifying an addrout file, column 16 must contain the letter R and the file must be assigned to disk or magnetic tape.

A limits file is defined by entering a blank or a numeric (1-9) in column 32 and the letter R in column 16.

File Organization

The following types of file organization can be used with B 1700 RPG:

- a. Sequential.
- b. Indexed.
- c. Direct.

A detailed description of each type of file organization is presented in the following pages.

Sequential Files

The order in which records appear in a sequential file is determined by the order in which the records are placed in the file when the file is created.

Card files and magnetic tape files are sequential files. Disk files can be sequential, indexed, or direct.

Figure 4-2 shows a card file and the order in which the information from the cards is stored in a sequential disk file. The contents of cards A, B, C, D, E, F, G, and H are stored in disk segments 1 through 8 as entries A, B, C, D, E, F, G, and H respectively.



G14008

Figure 4-2. Sequentially Organized Card and Disk Files

Indexed Files

The following type of indexed files can be used with B 1700 RPG:

- a. Indexed.
- b. B-Indexed.

Only one of the two indexed file types can be used in a given program, and a file must always use the same indexing method.

A detailed description of both types of indexed files follows:

<u>Indexed</u>. Indexed files are data files on disk that have associated tag files. The records of the indexed file are in random sequence and are accessed by use of the tag file. The records of the indexed file contain record keys and data. The record keys are specified by the user. The file description for the indexed file contains information that describes the length, type, and starting position in the record of the record key. Each record contains one key whose size can range from one byte to a maximum of 29 bytes.

Indexed files can be created with the record keys in either ascending or random sequence. When an indexed file is loaded in a random (unordered) sequence, the tag file is sorted in order to properly sequence the record keys before the user's program goes to end-of-job. When an ordered load is specified, the records are checked for proper sequencing.

A tag file is a sequential file that contains the record keys of the associated indexed file and indices that reference the data records of the indexed file. A tag file record contains a key and a six-digit decimal address. The key is the same as the key in the record in the indexed file that the address points to. The tag file records are small, and are blocked under control of the RPG compiler so that as many records as possible are placed in 180 byte blocks, thereby contributing to efficient searching and sorting of the tag file. For example, when the key field requires seven bytes, the tag file record size is ten bytes, and the tag file contains 18 records per block.

<u>B-Indexed</u>. When the user enters a B in column 16 of the header card, a <u>B-Indexed</u> file type is specified. B-indexed files do not have associated tag files, so their records are normally ordered in ascending sequence according to the record key specified by the user. The file description entry for the B-indexed file contains information describing the length, type, and starting position in the record of the record key.

A B-indexed file can be created with the record keys in random sequence, in which case the file is sorted according to the specified key before the user's program goes to end-of-job. When an ordered load is specified, the records are checked for proper sequencing.

Direct Files

A direct file is a disk file whose records always occupy a specific position (disk address) in the file, regardless of the order in which the records are placed in the file. Therefore, direct files are classified as randomly organized files.

When a direct file is created or accessed, relative record numbers are used to identify the record locations within the file.

Figure 4-3 shows a card file and a direct file on disk that was created from the card file. The relative records number of each card is the relative record number within the disk file that the record occupies.



G14009

Figure 4-3. Direct File Organization

Note that the card file records do not have to be in sequence by relative record number when the direct disk file is created. Record areas in the direct disk file for which no records are assigned remain the same, but can be overlayed with new data at a later time.

File Processing

The manner in which files are processed is largely independent on the type of file organization used to create the file.

Files that were not created with the use of keys or relative record numbers cannot be read randomly by accessing them through an addrout file. The four major types of file processing that are described in the following pages are:

- a. Consecutive.
- b. Sequential by key.
- c. Sequential within limits.
- d. Random.

Consecutive

Consecutive file processing refers to the method of reading the records of a file in the order of their occurrence in the file. Sequential files are normally processed by consecutive file processing. Direct files and files designated as demand files can also be processed by use of consecutive file processing.

When consecutive file processing is used to read a direct file, all of the records are read from the file, so that embedded records that do not logically belong to the file must be handled by the user's program.

Sequential By Key

Sequential by key file processing is used for indexed disk files that are designated as primary, secondary, or demand files. Records are read from the file in ascending key sequence until all of the records in the file are processed or the program goes to end of job.

Sequential Within Limits

Sequential within limits file processing is used for processing indexed disk files by using either:

- a. A limits file.
- b. A SETLL operation code.

The use of a limits file and SETLL operation code for sequential within limits file processing are explained in the following pages.

Use Of A Limits File. Any indexed disk file that is designated a primary, secondary, or demand file can be processed sequentially within limits by utilizing a limits file. The purpose of the limits file is to specify the lower and upper limits (bounds) of the indexed file, so that only the records within those limits are processed. Each record in the limits file contains two record keys that describe the lower and upper bounds of the indexed file. The limits file can contain more than one record, but each record describes only one pair of lower and upper bounds.

For example, an indexed file that is alphabetically ordered by employee name can be accessed by using a limits file that has one or more records specifying the alphabetic range to be accessed. There are no restrictions on either the number of records or the bounds they specify. Therefore, the records in the limits file used to access such an indexed file could specify the following bounds:

> A and J D and J A and I F and Z A and Z

The limits file can be on cards, disk, magnetic tape, or can be entered from the console printer.

Limits File Requirements And Restrictions. The restrictions and format requirements for records of a limits file follow:

- a. Each limits file record can contain only one set of limits (lower and upper bounds).
- b. The same set of limits (lower and upper bounds) can appear in more than one record of a limits file.
- c. The lower bound key must begin in position one of the record. The upper bound key must immediately follow the lower bound key.
- d. The lower bound key and the upper bound key in a limits file record can be the same. The result is that only the one data record described by the keys is read.
- e. The length of limits file records must be twice the length of the record key specified in the index file. Therefore, the addition of leading zeroes or blanks may be necessary. If the key length specified in the indexed file is 10 bytes, the length of the limits file records is 20 bytes.
- f. When the limits file is on disk, either A or P (whichever is applicable) must be specified for the record address type in column 31 of the file description of the limits file. A further description of the use of A and P follows in item g. When the limits file is not on disk, column 31 must remain blank, and alphanumeric keys are assumed.

g. The keys of the limits file can have a different format than the keys of the indexed file that is to be processed within limits. For example, the indexed file can have packed keys and the associated limits file can have alphanumeric keys.

When the keys of the indexed file and limits file have different formats, the following limitations apply:

- 1. The length of alphanumeric key fields must be twice the length specified for packed key fields, minus 1 or 2.
- 2. At execution time of the RPG program, the format of the key in the limits file is changed to the same format as specified for the key in the associated indexed file.
- 3. Only the digit portion of alphanumeric keys is significant.
- h. The normal conventions for specifying the position of signs (left or right) within packed key fields applies to both indexed files and limits files. The files can have their signs in different positions within their key fields. The appropriate Dollar Card entries must be included in the file description specifications when necessary.
- i. When an indexed file is to be processed within limits with the use of a limits file and an external indicator is specified in columns 71 and 72 of the file description, the external indicator must be coded for the indexed file.
- j. When an indexed file is to be processed within limits with the use of a limits file and an end-of-file specification is desired, an E should be specified in column 17 of the file description specifications for the limits file.

File Description Specifications - Indexed File. The following fields must be coded in the File Description Specifications when the indexed file is to be processed sequentially within limits, except for the optional entries for columns 17 and 71-72.

Table 4-3a. File Description Specifications - Indexed File

Column Number	Field Name	Entry	Function or Description
15	File type	I	Input.
		U	Update.
16	File designation	Р	Primary.
		S	Secondary.
		D	Demand.
17	End of file	Е	End of file. This entry is optional.
28	Processing mode	${ m L}$	Processing within limits.
31	Record address type	А	Alphanumeric keys.
		Р	Packed keys.
40	Device	DISK	The indexed file is assigned to disk.
66	File addition/un- ordered	Blank	Additions to the indexed file are not allowed.
71-72	File condition	U1-U8	External indicator. This entry is optional.

<u>File Description Specifications - Limits File</u>. The following fields must be coded in the File Description Specifications for a limits file that is used in conjunction with an indexed file.

Column Number	Field Name	Entry	Function or Description
15	File type	I	Input.
16	File designation	R	Record address file.
17	End of file	Е	End of file. This entry is optional
19	File format	F	Fixed length records.
		Blank	Fixed length records.
20-23	Block length	Blank	Unblocked records.
		nnnn	A multiple of the record length.
24-27	Record length	nnnn	Record length must be at least twice key length.
29-30	Record address field	nn	Key length in bytes.
31	Record address type	A P	Alphanumeric keys. Packed keys.
32	File organization	Blank	One buffer.
		1-9	Number of buffers.
39	Extension code.	Е	A further description of the limits file is coded on the extension specifica- tions.
40-46	Device	CARD DISK TAPE CONSOLE	The limits file is assigned to the named device.

Table 4-3b. File Description Specifications - Limits File

<u>Extension Specifications - Limits File</u>. The following fields must be coded in the Extension Specifications when a limits file is used in conjunction with an indexed file.

Column Number	Field Name	Entry
11–18	From filename	The name of the limits file must be stated as it appears in the File

Table 4-3c. Extension Specifications - Limits File

11-10		stated as it appears in the File Description Specifications.
19-26	To filename	The name of the indexed file associated with this limits file must be stated as it appears in the File Description Specifications.

4

Figure 4-4 shows an example program which illustrates the use of limits file processing. The indexed file name DATA is processed by means of the limits file named LIMITS. The program reads a record in the limits file to obtain the first limits pair. A limits pair contains the range in which the file named DATA is to be processed. There are two values which make up a limits pair. The first value is the low key and the second value is the high key. Processing of the data file begins with the low key and ends with the high key. Once the high key is processed, the next record in the limits file is read to obtain the next limits pair. Processing of the data file continues until the high key of the last record in the limits file is processed.

The program in figure 4-4 updates records in the file named DATA, by moving the literal UPDATE to the field named VALUE.

Relative	Key Valı	les in Hex
Record Number	Low	High
1	OA	OB
2	2A	2D
3	ОН	OI
4	OD	OE
5	1C	1D

Table 4-3d. Contents of the File Named LIMITS

Table 4-3d lists the contents of the file named LIMITS.

NOTE

For reader convenience, the low and high keys are separated. The two keys are actually concatenated. For example, "OA" and "OB" actually appear as "OAOB".

Since the keys are alphanumeric, the zone portion of the right-most character contains the sign. Refer to Appendix B for the hexadecimal equivalents of B 1800/ B 1700 characters.

Table 4-3e lists the contents of the indexed file named DATA before and after the program in figure 4-4 is executed.

Relative	Contents Record	of Each in Hex
Number	Before	After
01	OA	OAUPDATE
02	0B	OBUPDATE
03	0C	0C
04	OD	ODUPDATE
05	OE	OEUPDATE
06	OF	OF
07	OG	OG
08	OH	OHUPDATE
09	OI	OIUPDATE
10	1? *	1? *
11	1A	1A
12	1B	1B
13	1C	1CUPDATE
14	1D	1DUPDATE
15	1 E	1 E
16	$1\mathrm{F}$	$1\mathrm{F}$
17	1G	1G
18	1H	1H
19	11	11
20	2? *	2? *
21	2A	2AUPDATE
22	2B	2BUPDATE
23	2C	2CUPDATE
24	2D	2DUPDATE
25	2E	2E
* The quest represent	ion mark char s positive ze	acter (?) ro (+0).

Table 4-3e. Contents of the File Named DATA

NOTE

Since the keys are alphanumeric, the zone portion of the right-most character contains the sign. Refer to Appendix B for the hexadecimal equivalents of B 1800/ B 1700 characters.

.



Figure 4-4. Example Program Illustrating the Use of Limits

.

*

 <u>Use of SETLL Operation Code</u>. Indexed files that are designated as demand files can be processed sequentially within limits by specifying SETLL in the Calculations Specifications. The indexed file can be designated as an input or update file, record additions are not allowed, and the record keys must be either alphanumeric or packed.

NOTE

Indexed files designated as demand files cannot be processed sequentially within limits by both a limits file and the SETLL operation code in the same program.

<u>Calculation Specifications - SETLL</u>. The following fields of the Calculation Specifications must be coded when the SETLL instruction is to be used.

Column	,	Entry	Function or
Number	Field Name		Description
18-27	Factor l	SETLL	Field name or literal.*
28-32	Operation		Operation code.
33-42	Factor 2		File name of indexed file.*
* This entry must be left-justified.			

Table 4-3f. Calculation Specifications - SETLL

The record keys can be either alphanumeric or packed. When the keys are alphanumeric, the field or literal length must be equal to the length of the key specified in the file description specifications for the indexed file. When the keys are packed, the field or literal must be numeric and the length should be less than or equal to the length of the key specified for the indexed file, or truncation occurs.

When SETLL is specified, the lower limit of the record key for the indexed file to be processed sequentially within limits is established by the absolute value contained in a field or literal. The field or literal is specified in columns 18-27 of the Calculation Specifications. The upper limit of the record key defaults to the highest record key that exists in the file.

At execution time of the RPG program, records of the indexed file are processed consecutively, starting with either the lowest record key in the file or with the record key specified by the SETLL operation.

File Description Specifications - SETLL. When an indexed disk file is to be processed sequentially within limits using the SETLL operation, the following entries are required in the File Description Specifications. All other fields are coded as they normally are for sequentially processed indexed files.

Table 4-3g. File Description Specifications - SETLL

Column Number	Field Name	Entry	Function or Description
15	File type	I	Input file.
		U	Update file.
16	File designation	D	Demand file.
17	End of file	Blank	
28	Processing mode	L	Limits processing.
31	Record address type	A P	Alphanumeric keys. Packed keys.
40	Device	DISK	The indexed file is assigned to disk.
66	File addition/ Unordered	Blank	Additions to the indexed file are not allowed.
71-72	File condition	U1-U8	External indicator. This entry is optional.

<u>Record Processing Using SETLL</u>. There is one exception to the normal convention of reading a demand file, as follows:

When a read is performed on a demand file that is to be processed sequentially within limits using SETLL, the entire file can be read as many times as desired even though end of file has been reached.

Read operations performed on a demand file prior to execution of a SETLL instruction are performed consecutively starting with the record having the lowest record key. When end of file is reached, the file can be read again starting with the record having the lowest record key.

Read operations performed on a demand file after a SETLL instruction has been executed are performed consecutively starting with the first record in the file whose key is equal to or greater than the low record key established by the SETLL instruction. When end of file is reached, the file can be processed consecutively starting with either:

- a. The record with the lowest record key if a new SETLL instruction is not executed.
- b. The first record in the file whose key is equal to or greater than the low record key established by a new SETLL instruction.

When a read operation is specified in the Calculation Specifications, an indicator should be specified in columns 58-59. The indicator is turned on when end of file is reached on the indexed file, and remains on until the program turns it off.

¢

When a read operation is specified in the Calculation Specifications and no indicator is specified, the following occurs during program execution:

> When an end-of-file condition occurs during reading of the indexed file, the following message is displayed on the console printer:

REOF

Following the display of REOF, the operator must enter either the GO or ST system control instruction on the console printer. Entry of GO causes the program to continue, and reading can be performed and the records processed consecutively starting with either:

- a. The record with the lowest record key if a new SETLL instruction is not executed.
- b. The first record in the file whose key is equal to or greater than the low record key established by a new SETLL instruction.

Random

Random file processing can be used for direct, indexed, and sequential files. Records are written to or read from the files only when chain statements are executed that identify the records. During program execution, records are read during the time that calculations are being performed, which allows the programmer to use data from the records for detail or total calculations. When a chained update file is processed randomly, records can be:

- a. Read and modified during the time in which detail or total calculations are being performed, and rewritten in the file during the detail or total output phase, or
- b. Rewritten during the time in which detail or total calculations are being performed by use of the EXCPT operation code.

<u>Random Processing - Sequential And Direct Files</u>. When sequential or direct files are processed randomly, records are selected by the use of relative record numbers. These relative record numbers identify the positions of the records in the file relative to the beginning of the file. For example, the relative record numbers for the first, third, seventh, and eighth records are 1, 3, 7, and 8 respectively.

<u>Random Processing - Indexed Files</u>. When indexed files are processed randomly, records are selected on the basis of record key values. An indexed file that is an input file can be processed randomly by the use of relative record numbers.

Random Processing - Addrout Files. Addrout files are created by the tagsort option of SORT, and can be used to randomly process a data file. The addrout file is comprised of 8-digit, 4-bit, decimal-encoded relative record numbers that indicate the relative position of the associated records in the data file.

Any sequential, indexed, or direct organized disk file that is designated as a primary or secondary file can be randomly processed by using an addrout file. During program execution, a record containing a relative record number is read from the addrout file, and the relative record number is then used to locate and read a record from the data file that is being randomly processed. Only the records of the data file whose relative record numbers are in the addrout file are processed. File processing continues until an end-of-file condition occurs for the addrout file.

<u>Advantages of Using Addrout Files</u>. The advantages of using addrout files for random processing of data files are as follows:

- a. A data file can be sorted in many different sequences by using various control fields from the records in the data file.
- b. Addrout files can be used in the processing of files that are organized sequential, indexed, or direct.
- c. Addrout files require less disk space than comparable tagfiles composed of both record key fields and relative record numbers.



d. More than one addrout file can be used with a program.

<u>Creating Addrout Files</u>. An addrout file can be created by sorting a file with the tagsort option of SORT. Specify the same blocking factor in the tagsort parameters as specified in the File Description Specifications for the addrout file. A blocking factor of 45 is preferred. If the file is not blocked, each 4-byte relative record number occupies one disk segment. For additional information about SORT and tagsort, refer to the B 1800/B 1700 Systems Software Operation Guide, Form No. 1068731.

File Description Specifications - Data Files. The following entries are required in the File Description Specifications for a disk file that is to be processed randomly by using an addrout file. All other fields are coded as they normally are for consecutively processed disk files.

Column Number	Field Name	Entry	Function or Description
15	File type	I	Input file.
		U	Update file.
16	File designation	Р	Primary file.
		S	Secondary file.
17	End of file	E	If an end-of-file test is desired, it should be coded for the addrout file. This entry is optional.
19	File format	F	Fixed length records.
		Blank	Fixed length records.
20-23	Block length	Blank	File is to be unblocked.
		nnnn	Must be a multiple of the record length.
2 8	Processing mode	R	Addrout processing.
31	Record address type	I	Addrout processing.
40	Device	DISK	The data file is assigned to disk.
66	File addition/ Unordered	Blank	Additions to the data file are not allowed.
71-72	File condition	U1-U8	External indicator. This entry is optional.

Table 4-3h. File Description Specifications - Data Files

File Description Specifications - Addrout File. The following entries are required in the File Description Specifications for an addrout file:

Column Number	Field Name	Entry	Function or Description
15	File type	I	Input file.
16	File designation	R	Record address file.
17	End of file	E	If an end-of-file test is desired, it should be coded for the addrout file. This entry is optional.
19	File format	F Blank	Fixed length records. Fixed length records.
20-23	Block length	Blank	Unblocked.
		nnnn	Block length in bytes. Must be a multiple of record length.
24-27	Record length	4	Record length in bytes.
29-30	Record address field	4	Record key length in bytes.
31	Record address type	I	Addrout file.
32	File organization	Т	Tag records.
39	Extension code	Е	Extension specifications.
40	Device	DISK	The addrout file is assigned to disk.
71-72	File condition	Blank	Not applicable.

Table 4-3i. File Description Specifications - Addrout File.

Extension Specifications - Addrout File. The following fields must be coded in the Extension Specifications when a data file is processed with the use of an addrout file.

Table 4-3j. Extension Specifications - Addrout File

Column Number	Field Name	Entry
11-18	From filename	The name of the addrout file must be stated as it appears in the File Description Specifications.
19-26	To filename	The name of the data file associated with this addrout file must be stated as it appears in the File Description Specifications.

Table 4-3k. shows which combinations of file processing methods and file organization types can be used with primary, secondary, demand, and chained files. Allowable combinations are indicated by an X.

File Processing Method	Primary, Secondary, and Demand Files Chained Files
Consecutive	X X X X
Sequential By key	x x
Sequential Within Limits	x x
Addrout	x x x x
Random by Relative Record Number	
Random By key	X X
	$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$
	File Organization Type

Table 4-3k. Valid Combinations of File Types and File Processing

33-34 OVERFLOW INDICATOR

This field applies only to files assigned to the printer, and is used to specify the overflow indicator used to condition records being printed in the file. Each printer file must have a unique overflow indicator assigned to it, if overflow printing (i.e., the printing of special lines when the overflow file is fetched) is desired for that file. Acceptable entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
OA-OG, OV	Specified indicator is used to condition records in the file.
Blank	Specifies automatic skip- ping. No default overflow indicator is assigned.

If this field is left blank, no overflow indicator is assigned to the printer file. Overflow is then handled automatically by the RPG program.

If this field contains an overflow indicator but no output is conditioned on that indicator, a continuous printer listing is produced.

For additional information concerning overflow, refer to the subsection of this manual titled Printer File Handling in Section 10.

35-38 KEY FIELD STARTING LOCATION

This field applies only to indexed files and specifies the character position within each record where the key field begins. All key fields in the file must occupy the same position in each record. The entry must be numeric, and right-justified. Leading zeroes may be omitted.

39 EXTENSION CODE

This field applies to printer output files, table or array files that are to be read during program execution, and record address files. The contents of this field indicates whether the file is further described on the Extension Specifications (table and array files, or record address files) or the Line Counter Specifications (printer files) form. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
E	An Extension Specification must further describe the file. This entry is only allowed for input table files and record address files
L	A Line Counter Specification must further describe the file. This entry is only allowed for printer files.
Blank	No Line Counter or Extension Speci- fications are required for this file; however, they may still occur.

40-46 DEVICE

This field is used to identify the input/output device to which the file is assigned, or the data communication entry that indicates that the file is a Telecommunications file. All entries must be left-justified. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition	
READER	80-column card reader.	
MFCU1	96-column MFCU - primary hopper.	
MFCU2	96-column MFCU - secondary hopper	
PUNCH	80-column card punch.	
PRINTER or PRINTR2	Line printer. (A maximum of 5 printer files may be specified).	
TAPE	Magnetic tape.	
DISK	Disk file.	
CONSOLE*	Console printer,	
BSCA	Telecommunications file.	
REMOTE	Telecommunications file.	
DATACOM	Telecommunications file,	
*Only one CONSOLE file may be specified and must be specified as a display file (see DSPLY in Section 9),		

Any card device name (i.e., READER, PUNCH, MFCU1, etc.) is considered only to denote a card file. The actual type (input, output, combined) is determined by the entry in column 15 of the File Specifications. Table 4-4 lists the devices available for each of the file types.

Limits files can be assigned to any input device. Addrout files can only be assigned to an input device that can also be used by the systems SORT utility for output. Only disk files can be processed sequentially within limits or by addrout files.

File	Туре	Devices
Primary or Secondary	Card	MFCU1 or MFCU2 READER
Input Files	Disk	DISK
	Tape	TAPE
Demand Files	Card	MFCU1 or MFCU2 READER
	Data Com- munications	REMOTE
	Disk	DISK
	Tape	TAPE
Table Files	Card	MFCU1 or MFCU2 READER
	Disk	DISK
	Tape	TAPE
Chained Input Files	Disk	DISK
Update Files	Disk	DISK
Combined Files	Card	MFCU1 or MFCU2
	Data Com- munications	REMOTE
Output Files	Card	MFCU1 or MFCU2 PUNCH
	Disk	DISK
	Listing	PRINTER, PRINTR2
	Data Com- munications	REMOTE
Display File	Console Printer	CONSOLE

Table 4-4. Device Assignment for Files

The B 1800/B 1700 will also accept the following additional device names in column 40-46:

READ01	PUNCH20
MFCM1	PUNCH42
MFCM2	PRINTUF
READ20	PRINTLF
READ40	DISK11
READ42	DISK11F
CRP	DISK45
CRP20	SPO
DATA96	

If communications with a remote device is desired, the entry REMOTE, DATACOM, or BSCA is used. A Telecommunication Card is required for each data communications file declared in an RPG program. Refer to Section 7, Telecommunications Card Specifications, for a detailed description of the entries required on the Telecommunication Card.

Data communications files can be input, output, or combined files, and are used to reference Network Definition Language (NDL) files associated with the network controller. The filename in columns 7-14 of the File Description Card entry must be the same as the filename of the NDL file being referenced, or the names should be file-equated with a File statement. For information concerning the Network Definition Language, refer to the <u>B 1800/B 1700 System Network Definition Language Reference Manual</u>, Form Number 1073715.

REMOTE

When REMOTE is specified in columns 40-45, the remote devices are accessed on a demand basis. The fields of the file description specifications shown in Table 4-4a must be coded with the applicable entry when REMOTE is specified. The remaining fields must be coded as they would be for any demand file.

Column Number	Field Name	Entry	Function or Description
15	File type	I	Input.
		0	Output.
		С	Combined.
16	File designation	D	Demand file.
32	File organization	Blank	One buffer.
		1-9	Number of buffers.
40	Device	REMOTE	Remote devices are to be accessed on a demand basis.

Table 4-4a. File Description Specifications - REMOTE

The SEND and RECV operation codes are used in calculations when REMOTE is specified, and allow the user to specify indicators to report on:

- a. Exception conditions.
- b. Incomplete I/O operations.
- c. End-of-file conditions.

Refer to the subsection titled Programmed Control Of Input And Output in section 9 for detailed information about SEND and RECV.

DATACOM Or BSCA

When DATACOM or BSCA is specified starting in column 40, the fields of the file description specification shown in Table 4-4b must be coded as shown.

Table 4-4b. File Description Specifications - DATACOM or BSCA

Column Number	Field Name	Entry	Function or Description
40	Device	DATACOM	Telecommunications file.
		BSCA	Telecommunications file.

53

LABELS ("FILE OPEN" field)

Any entry is allowed here. Only entries meaningful to the B 1700 will be used. Meaningful entries are:



60-65 CORE INDEX

The core index is a rough table in memory which contains entries representing the key fields of the data file on disk. The use of the core index may significantly reduce the time needed to process an indexed file because it allows a more direct access to the specific record required. The program must search only a portion of the file instead of all entries in the file preceding the required record. The core index field must be blank when files other than chained indexed files are specified.

This field is used only by files accessed using the CHAIN operator (i.e., indexed-sequential files) to specify the number of bytes of memory to be set aside for indexes. The entry must be right-justified, and leading zeros may be omitted. The maximum size that may be entered is 9999.

At Beginning-of-Job, the core index is built in memory to speed the access time to process the file. The number of keys contained in memory is determined by taking the key length as specified in columns 29-30 and dividing it into the core index as specified in positions 60-65. The program then looks at the End-of-File pointer contained in the File Information Block to determine the total size of the file. The program divides the file into even partitions for the allowable number of keys in memory, and reads every nth record filling the core table in memory with just the data key fields. If no entry is made, a minimum (default) number of 10 of these keys (20 keys if the keys are in packed or numeric form) is automatically specified.

Once the core index is built, the program will begin processing. As an access occurs, the code emitted will do a binary search of the core index to determine in which partition the record should be found. It calculates the lowest actual address and one greater than the highest to be used as the area to be searched for the record. At this point the program reverts to a binary search of the disk.



G14014

Figure 4-5. Core Index Selection of Data Keys

Several considerations should be made in space/time trade-offs when processing indexed-sequential files. The core index should reflect the size of the data file to be accessed and the number of accesses to be performed. When a significant number of accesses are to be performed, the core index should be as large as practical; however, the core index should be moderate-to-small if only a few accesses are desired.

66 FILE ADDITION/UNORDERED

This field applies only to sequential disk and indexed disk files and indicates:

- a. New records are to be added to an existing file; or
- b. Unordered records are to be loaded into an output file.

When an entry is made in column 66 for an indexed file, it implies that the tag or data file is to be ordered in ascending sequence according to the key specified in columns 29-31 and 35-38 of the File Description Specifications.

For indexed files, the tag file is maintained in ascending sequence.

For B-Indexed files, the data file is maintained in ascending sequence.

Column 66 must be left blank when indexed files that are processed by record address files are specified.

varia entries for the fire addition/unoracied field are.
--

Entry	Definition
А	Records are to be added to an existing sequential output file or to any indexed disk file.
U	Records are to be loaded for an indexed file in unordered sequence (creating a new indexed file).
Blank	All files other than sequential output files and indexed disk files that are processed by record address files. If the file is an indexed output file, the records must be loaded in ascending key sequence.

The letter A must be entered in column 66 if there is an ADD entry in columns 16-18 of the Output-Format Specifications record description of the file.

If the letter A is entered in this field for any file other than an update file, all output records must have ADD specified on the Output-Format Specifications (columns 16-18). However, the Output-Format Specifications are optional.

Records can only be added to an existing disk file. When records are added to a sequential output file or indexed disk file the records are added at the end of the file. After all records have been added to an indexed disk file, the tag file or data file is sorted into ascending key sequence depending on the type of indexed file specified, and the program then goes to end-of-job.

The coding options for columns 15 and 66 are shown in Table 4-5.

Table 4-5. Columns 15 and 66 Coding Options

Column 15	Column 66	Function
I	Blank	Read only file. Records cannot be added or updated.
I	А	Read only file. Existing records cannot be updated but new records can be added.
0	Blank	The indexed file is created in the order in which records are loaded to the file. It is the user's responsibility to ensure that records are in the desired order. A run-time error occurs if records are improperly ordered.
0	А	Data records are to be added to an existing file.
0	U	An indexed file is created from data records which may not be in ascending key sequence. For B-Indexed files, the data file is created in ascending key sequence. For indexed files, the correspond- ing tag file is created in ascend- ing key sequence.
U	Blank	Read and update existing records.
U	А	Read and update existing records and add new records.

70 TAPE REWIND

This field specifies the action to be taken during closing of the file, and includes the provision for rewind and/or lock for tape reels, where desired. Valid entries are:

Entry	Definition	
Р	Close with purge.	
U	Close with unload (lock).	
N	Close with no rewind.	
Blank	Close with release.	
R	Close with remove.	

To show the effects of the various options, each type of file is discussed separately in the paragraphs that follow.

Card Input

'

All options are ignored. The input areas are released and the unit is returned to the MCP.

Card Output

All options are ignored. The output areas are released, the trailer label is punched, and the unit is returned to the MCP.

Tape Input

The effects of the various options for tape input are:

Entry	Effect
U	Releases the input areas, rewinds the tape, and the MCP marks the unit "not ready".
N	The input areas are not released, the tape is not rewound, and the device remains assigned to the program.
Blank	Releases the input areas, rewinds and returns the unit to the MCP.

Tape Output

The effects of the various options for tape output are:

Entry	Effect
Р	Releases the output areas, writes the trailer label, rewinds the tape, and overwrites the label, thus making the tape a scratch tape.
U	Releases the output areas, writes the trailer label, rewinds the tape, and the MCP marks the unit "not ready".
N	Writes the trailer label. The tape is not rewound, and the device remains assigned to the program.
Blank	Releases the output areas, writes the trailer label, rewinds the tape and returns the unit to the MCP.

Printer Output

All options are ignored. A page is ejected, a trailer label is written, and the printer is returned to the MCP.
<u>Disk Files</u>

The effects of the various options assigned to disk are described in terms of "old files" and "new files". An old file is one that already exists on disk and appears in the MCP Disk Directory. A new file is one created by the program, and does not appear in the Directory. A new file may only be referenced by the program which creates it.

Entry	Effect
Р	An old file is removed from the disk and deleted from the Directory, or a new file is removed from disk.
U	For an old file, the file re- mains in the Directory and is made available. A new file is entered in the Directory (there- by making it an old file) and made available.
N	Use of this option is not permitted with disk files.
Blank	Same as for U.
R	An old file is removed from the disk and deleted from the Di- rectory. The new file is entered in the Directory and made available.

71-72 FILE CONDITION

This field applies to input (excluding table input files), update, output, and combined files, and indicates whether or not the file is conditioned by an external indicator. The entry indicates (at execution time) whether or not the file is to be used by the program. If a file is conditioned by an external indicator, the file is used only when that indicator is ON. When the indicator is OFF, the file is treated as though End-of-File had been reached, and no records may be read or written into the file. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
U1-U8	The specified external indicator is used to condition the file.
Blank	The file is not conditioned by an external indicator.

External indicators (U1-U8) may be used to condition files. For example, a single program may have two uses. On some occasions, two files may be required to be read (or written); on others, only one file may be required to be read (or written). The optional file can be conditioned by an external indicator.

For example, in a program that has two applications, external indicators determine which application has been selected and what files are to be read (or written).

If a file is conditioned in this way, records written to the output file may also be conditioned by the same indicator on Output Specifications. If an output file is conditioned by an external indicator, every output record described on the Output-Format Specifications for that file should be conditioned by the same external indicator, otherwise the object program will still build the output record and perform blankafter operations but suppress the write operation. Any calculation operation which should not be done when the file is not in use (especially CHAIN and READ operations) may also be conditioned by the same indicator, otherwise the object program will automatically condition the CHAIN or READ on the same external indicator.

If an external indicator is entered in columns 71-72 for a record address file, the same indicator must be assigned to the associated data file.

It is the user's responsibility to set the external indicators (Ul-U8). The external setting and interrogation of the external indicators is done by the use of eight one-bit program switches numbered 1 through 8. Each switch can contain a value of 0 or 1, and can be set at run time by including the switch attribute as part of the EXECUTE statement. The syntax for assigning values to the program switches is as follows:

EXECUTE <program name> SW <switch number> <switch value>

The following EXECUTE statement would turn on external indicator Ul:

EXECUTE RPG/TEST SW 1=1

The program switches can also be permanently initialized by using the MODIFY control instruction as follows:

MODIFY <program name> SW <switch number> <switch value>

When any (but not necessarily all) of the program switches are initialized with the SWITCH attribute used with either the EXECUTE or MODIFY control instruction, console printer input is not requested at program execution time. If the switches are not initialized, operator action is required to set the external indicators by use of the AX input message in response to an ACCEPT message. The following examples show the use of the AX input message:

cprogram number> AX1 (This message results in setting Ul.)cprogram number> AX01 (This message resets Ul and sets U2.)

75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

Figures 4-6 through 4-13 show coding examples for a variety of file types.

FILE DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS

FILE FORMAT											
END OF FILE BECORD ADDRESS	TAPE REWIND										
FILE DESIGNATION	NOT USED										
FORM TYPE FILE TYPE TILE ADDITIO	N/UNORDERED										
LINE FILENAME LENGTH LEVGTH LEVGTH LEVGTH USED USED USED	COREINDEX										
	55 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74										
	<u> </u>										
	┉╅═┥╾╪╌╡╼╋╌╬╎╏╷╖╋╖╬╸╞╶┿╾╞╺┿╲										
	╶┊┫╼╌╪┥╾╡╾╏╴┊┊╣╴╷╁╶╣╶┠╼┼╼╏╍┊╺┥										
CIAL ADDITIONS											
Image: Image											
C 6 F											
EIT KANDOM, BY KEY, WITH ADDITIONS											
ole FILE ADDITIONS											
0.71 I-1 DISK	A										





G12031

Figure 4-7.

Example of File Description Entries for Sequential Files



G12032





G12033

Figure 4-9. Example of File Description Entries for Card Files





G12034





G12035

Figure 4-11. Example of File Description Entries for Console Files



G12036



M X



G12037

Figure 4-13. Example of File Description Entries for Record Address Processing

The following figures illustrate RPG coding examples for indexed and direct files. Figure 4-14 illustrates the updating of an existing file; figure 4-15 illustrates the creation of a new file.



FILE DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS

FILE DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS



Figure 4-15. Indexed and Direct Files - File Creation

、

SECTION 5

VECTORS AND EXTENSION SPECIFICATIONS

Extension specifications are used to describe all tables, arrays, and record address files that are specified in an RPG program.

The Extension Specifications Summary Sheet, form number 1057924, is used for coding the field information that is described in the following pages.

FIELD DEFINITIONS

Figure 5-1 can be used in conjunction with the following field definitions for the Extension Specifications.

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

An E must appear in this field.

11-18 FROM FILENAME

This field is used to name a record address file or a pre-executiontime vector file, and must contain the filename of every record address file and every pre-execution-time vector file to be used by the program. The file must be specified on the File Description Specifications as an input record address file or as an input table file. The same record address file must not be named in more than one Extension Specification entry.

If the vector is to be loaded at compile time or by Input or Calculation Specifications during program execution, this field must be left blank.

Filenames must always be entered in this field left-justified. When a vector is loaded at compile time, it becomes a permanent part of the program so that a vector file is not needed when the program is executed. Only those vectors that do not change often should be compiled with the program. When vectors are being compiled with the program, the vector data must follow the source program deck.

19-26 TO FILENAME

The TO FILENAME field defines the relationship between a file named in this field and a file named in the FROM FILENAME field, columns 11-18.



- A. 11-18 Contains the file identification of a record address file or the name of a preexecution time vector file.
- B. 19-26 Contains the file identification of the file to be processed by a record address file or the name of the file to which vector will be outputted. If blank, vector not to be output at EOJ.
- C. 27-32 Contains the name of the input table or array. Entries: TABXXX (X= any alphanumeric character) or 1-6 alphanumeric characters. Also used to name the first of two alternating vectors.
- D. 33-35 Specifies the exact number of entries contained in each vector input record.
- E. 36-39 Specifies the maximum number of items contained in the first vector named. Entry maximum: 4095, right-justified.

- F. 40-42 Specifies the length (in bytes) of each element in the vector. Maximum numeric entry is 31, maximum alphanumeric entry is 511, right-justified.
- G. 43 Specifies if the external vector elements are in binary, packed, or unpacked decimal format. Entries: Blank, B, or P.
- H. 44 Specifies the number of decimal positions contained in each element. Entries: Blank or 0-9.
- I. 45 Specifies the sequence in which elements will be loaded for the first vector. Entries: Blank, A or D.
- J. 46-57 These columns are used to describe the second of two alternating vectors. Entries are of the same type as specified for the first vector. The second vector is loaded in alternating format with the first.

G14022

Figure 5-1. Extension Specifications Summary Sheet

Filenames must be left-justified beginning in column 19. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Description											
Name of an input or update file	The file processed via the record address file named in the FROM FILENAME field.											
Name of an output file	The output file on which a table or array is to be written at ECJ.											

If a record address file is named in the FROM FILENAME field, columns 11-18, then the name of the primary or secondary file that contains the data records to be processed must be entered in the TO FILENAME field, columns 19-26. This primary or secondary file can be an input or update file and must not be specified in any other Extension Specifications entry.

If a file is specified on the File Description Specifications as being processed by an addrout file, then its filename must be entered in the TO FILENAME field, columns 19-26, and an appropriate filename must also be entered in the FROM FILENAME field, columns 11-18.

If a file is specified on the File Description Specifications as being processed as a limits file, then its filename must be entered in the TO FILENAME field, columns 19-26, and an appropriate filename must be entered in the FROM FILENAME field, columns 11-18.

If a table or array is to be written or punched, then enter the designated output file in the TO FILENAME field, columns 19-26. This output file must have been previously defined in the File Description Specifications.

Execution time arrays cannot be written at end of job. In order to produce an array or table, the FROM FILENAME, TO FILENAME, and ENTRIES PER RECORD fields must have entries specified.

If a table or array is to be written or punched, it is automatically written or punched at the end of job after all other records have been written or punched.

An array or table can be written to only one output device. More than one array or table may be written to the same output file, but it is the user's responsibility to ensure that this is a meaningful thing to do.

27-32 VECTOR NAME

This field is used to name tables and arrays to be used by the program. Each vector name must be unique, and must follow the rules for the formation of vector names as described in Section 2. Table names must begin with the letters TAB (note that this includes the name TAB itself); any name appearing in this field which does not begin with TAB is considered an array name.

Vector files are processed in the same order in which they appear on the Extension Specifications form. Thus, if more than one vector file is

specified for the program, the files must be loaded in the same order in which they appear on the form.

If two related vectors are in alternating form within one vector file, the first vector must be named in columns 27-32, and the second vector must be named in columns 46-51. Any combination of vector types (table or array) is allowed in alternating format. (For more information, see columns 46-57 in this section.)

33-35 ENTRIES PER RECORD

This field is used to specify the number of entries in each vector input record. Every record except the last one must contain the number of entries specified in this field. The last record may contain fewer entries than specified in this field. The possible entries that can be made in this field follow:

Entry	Definition
1-999	The number of vector entries contained in each vector input record.
Blank	This vector is a dynamic/ execution-time vector.

Entries in this field must be right-justified, and leading zeroes are not required. Corresponding items from related (alternating) vectors must be on the same record and in alternating format. Each pair of items is considered one entry. The number of entries per record must not exceed the number of entries per vector specified in columns 36-39.

The FROM FILENAME and ENTRIES PER RECORD entries are used to determine the type of vector and therefore how it will be loaded. Table 5-1 is a guide for determining vector type.

Vector Type	FROM FILENAME	ENTRIES PER RECORD
Compile-Time	Blank	Filled
Pre-Execution Time	Filled	Filled
Dynamic/Execution Time	Blank	Blank

Table 5-1. Guide for Determining Vector Type

36-39 ENTRIES PER VECTOR

This field is used to specify the maximum number of elements that can be contained in the vector named in the first VECTOR NAME field (columns 27-32). A maximum of 4095 elements per vector is allowed. For vectors to be loaded in alternating format, this number also applies to the one named in the second VECTOR NAME field (columns 46-51). Entries in this field must be right-justified; leading zeros may be omitted.

40-42 LENGTH OF ENTRY

This field is used to specify the length (in bytes) of each element in the vector named in the first VECTOR NAME field (columns 27-32). For numeric vectors in packed decimal format, enter the number of digits.

Entries in this field must be right-justified; leading zeros may be omitted.

Numeric items in the vector input records must have leading zeros added if their length is less than that specified; alphanumeric entries must have either leading or trailing blanks.

The maximum length of a numeric vector element is dependent on the format of the data, and is as follows:

Format	Maximum Length
Unpacked numeric	31 characters
Packed numeric	31 digits
Binary	4 or 9 digits

The maximum for an alphanumeric vector element is 511 characters. However, an element must be completely contained on one record; therefore, input record sizes will also limit the maximum element sizes.

43 PACKED

This field specifies the external format of the vector data. Acceptable entries are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Vector elements are in either unpacked decimal or alphanumeric format.
Р	Vector elements must be in packed decimal format.
В	Vector elements must be in binary format.

Any vector (including compile-time vectors) may be packed and may be either right or left signed (as specified in the Control Card or by the dollar option RSIGN).

Pre-execution-time vectors can be in packed decimal format unless the filename specified in columns 19-26 is that of a printer file.

For vectors that are loaded or modified as a result of Input Specification entries, the sign position and format (packed or unpacked) described on the Input Specifications dictate the external data format.

Binary compile-time vectors are not allowed.

44 DECIMAL POSITIONS

This field:

a. Is used to specify the number of decimal positions contained in each element of the vector named in the first VECTOR NAME field (columns 27-32). If the elements have no decimal positions, a zero must be entered in column 44. This field must not be blank for a numeric vector or if column 43 contains a P. b. Defines whether a data item is in numeric or alphanumeric format. Column 40 (LENGTH OF ENTRY) defines the length of the item. For alphanumeric data items, the entry specifies the number of bytes. For numeric data items, including those in packed or binary format, the entry specifies the number of digits. For binary data items, either a 4 or a 9 must be specified.

Note that it is possible to define the same numeric data items differently on the Extension Specifications and on the Input Specifications.

Example:

A pre-execution-time array that is specified on the Extension Specifications can indicate that the data items are in packed numeric format, and the Input Specifications can specify that the data item is in unpacked numeric format.

Entry	Definition
0-9	Number of positions to the right of the implied deci- mal point for numeric vector elements.
Blank	Alphanumeric vector.

The acceptable entries for this field are:

45 SEQUENCE

This field is used to specify the sequence in which elements will be loaded for the vector named in the first VECTOR NAME field (columns 27-32). A vector loaded at compile or pre-execution time is checked for the specified sequence. A sequence error at compile time generates warnings in the source listing. A sequence error at pre-execution time causes the program to be discontinued. The sequence check does allow two consecutive elements to be equal. This column must contain an entry if high or low LOKUP is to be used. Alternate vectors need not have the same sequence.

Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Unordered elements.
А	Elements arranged in ascending order.
D	Elements arranged in descending order.

46-57 VECTOR NAME, LENGTH OF ENTRY, PACKED, DECIMAL POSITIONS, SEQUENCE

These fields are used only when describing a second vector which is loaded in alternating format with the vector named in the first VECTOR NAME field (columns 27-32). All of these fields require the same type of entries as the corresponding fields in columns 27-45, but entries in columns 46-57 apply only to the second vector. For a single vector description, these fields must be left blank. Compile-time vectors, pre-execution-time vectors, and dynamic/execution-time arrays can be specified as alternating vectors.

58-74 COMMENTS

This field is available for inclusion of comments and documentary remarks, and may contain any valid EBCDIC characters.

75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

VECTORS

GENERAL

Tables and arrays are logical configurations of data elements that have similar characteristics. Within the scope of this manual, very little distinction is made between tables and arrays, and therefore they are usually referred to as vectors. Where differences exist in their characteristics, they are referred to individually as tables and arrays.

Each element of a vector must be of the same length and data type (numeric or alphanumeric). All numeric elements must have the same number of decimal positions.

TABLE AND ARRAY DIFFERENCES

Every vector to be used by the program must be given a name. All table names must begin with the letters TAB. Array names can begin with any alphabetic character.

Indices can be used to access specific elements within tables and arrays. \supset

If a table name appears without an index, it refers to the last item referenced in the table.

If an array name appears without an index, it refers to the entire array. Such a reference specifies that the designated operation be performed repetitively for each element of the array.

TYPES OF VECTORS

The three types of vectors and the time at which they are loaded with data follows:

Vector Type	Time Loaded
Compile time	During RPG program generation.
Pre-execution time	At the beginning of RPG program execution.
Dynamic/execution time	During RPG program execution. 😕

Data elements for all types of vectors can be altered at any time during program execution.

REQUIRED ENTRIES FOR EXTENSION SPECIFICATIONS

All vectors for a program must be described on the Extension Specifications form. Several of the fields of the Extension Specifications require entries for each type of vector, regardless of the time at which the vector is loaded.

Figure 5-2 illustrates which fields require entries for each of the three types of vectors

PAC FORM	GE [NOT USED													EXTENSION SPECIFICATIONS SEQUENCE DECIMAL POSITIONS PACKED															PROGRAM										80																				
LINE	6	7	8	FROM FILENAME 9 10 11 18								TO FILENAME								TABLE OR ARRAY NAME (VECTOR NAME) 27 32 33					PER	PER BERTABLE PER TABLE COR ARRAY				394		P CL	2 43	3 4 4	45	T/ AI (V N/ 46	ABL RR/ YEC AMI	.E (AY TOI E)	DR NA R	.МЕ 5	HLUNI -	0F	Y ENTRY	¥ 55	56 5	57 5	8				(CON	лмг	ENT	rs						74
01	E		1	TH	E		F	31	T	Ø	W	I	NK	5	ŀ	F	E	C	I	F	I	c (AT I	I	ø	N	Π	L	11	NE	=	5	C	E	F	1	N	E	F	r I	46		Ε	N	T	R	I	E	5	ĪN	IE	c	E	55	5 6	4 1	14	Γ	Π		
0 2	Ε	×		Π	ø		DI	=	SIC	R	1	в	E	F	F F	ŧE		T	H	R	ε	E	T	Y	P	Ε	S		ø	F	h	YE	C	T	Ø	R	5		F	= 1	E	L	D	s	1		81	NT	FIA	14	N	I	N	G	Ø	5N	L	Y	Π	Τ	
03	E		9	E	SL	4	NI	<	5	B	E	L	ø	W	M	Nu	S	Т		В	ε	L	E	F	T	Π	В	L	AI	NH	<	h	H	IE	N		G	øI	נוכ		IG	;	Т	H	E	h	1	EC	; h	10	R	\Box	Τ	Τ	Τ	T	Γ		Π		
04	E	×		r	E	5	cl	21	F	T	I	Ø	N		F	1	E	L	D	5		FI		L	E	D	Π	N	1	TH	4	1	·H	IE	T	C	н		R/A	10	\mathbf{h}	E	R	Π	"	R	1	1	715	۶E	T	R	E	શા	τl		E	D	;	Т	
0 5	ε	×	3	T	H	ø	SI	E	F	I	2	L	E	D	1	11	T	H		т	H	E	C	H	A	R	A	C	TI	EF	R	Ľ	le	5	T	A	R	E	¢	ØF	17	- 1	Ø	N	A			T	T	T	T	Π	T	T	T	T	Γ	Γ	П	Т	
06	ĩ	X		T	Γ		T	Т	Τ	1-			Π	T	T	Τ	Γ					T		Γ		Π	Π	IT	Τ	T	T	Τ	Т	T	Γ	Γ	Π	T	Τ	T	Τ	Τ		Π	Τ	Τ	T	Τ	Τ	Τ	Τ	Π	Т	T	Τ	Τ	Γ	Γ		Π	
0 7	ε			T	Τ		T	T	T	Τ		ø	Ø	Ø	8e	se	Ø	ø	R	R	R	RR	R	R	R	R	R	R	RI	RIF	2	RF	R	R	R	ø	ø	ø	ø	ØØ	sle	sø	ø	ø	ø	ø	C	21	11	7	L	ε	- I	TJ	[]	1 E	T	Γ	Π	Т	
8 0	ε	12		T	R	R	RI	RI	R	R	R	ø	Ø	ø	3e	50	ø	Ø	R	R	R	RI	SE	R	R	R	R	R	R	RI	RI	RF	2 F		R	ø	ø	ø	86	30	se	50	ø	ø	ø	21	P	RF	= F	X	E	C	N	77	I¢	0 N	11-	T	I	M	E
0 0	E	111		T	T			T	T			Γ		1	T				R	R	R	RI	R	2	Γ	Π	R	R	R	RF	21	RF			R	b	0	d	N	x	ł	Y	5	h	a	2	D	YA	16	41r	11	c	T	T	T	T	Γ	Γ	П	T	
10	Ε	11	27.	T	T		1	T	T	T	Γ		Π	T	T	T	T	T			1	T	T	T	T	П	П	П	T	T	T	Ť	T	T	T	Γ		1	T		T	T	T	Π	1		1	T	Ť	Ť	T	Π	T	T	T	T	T	Γ	Π	T	1

G14021

Figure 5-2. Entries Necessary to Describe a Vector

Columns 27-45 are used as needed to specify the name assigned to identify the vector (VECTOR NAME), the number of vector elements occurring in each input record (ENTRIES PER RECORD), the size of the vector (ENTRIES PER TABLE OR ARRAY and LENGTH OF ENTRY), whether the input data is in binary, packed or unpacked decimal format (PACKED), the number of decimal positions in each entry (DECIMAL POSITIONS), and the order in which the elements are sequenced (SEQUENCE).

Additional entries are required if:

- a. The vector is to be loaded at pre-execution time from the file named in the FROM FILENAME field.
- b. The vector is to be written to the output file named in the TO FILENAME field at End-of-Job.

Any file named for vector loading or vector output must also be described on the File Description Specifications.

For dynamic/execution-time vectors, the FROM FILENAME, TO FILENAME, and the ENTRIES PER RECORD fields must be left blank because dynamic vectors cannot be written at End-of-Job.

COMPILE TIME VECTORS

For a compiler-time vector load, the data to be loaded is read into the program storage area reserved by the entries in the Extension Specifications at the same time that the source program is compiled. Physically, the data is placed in a card file called "RPG/VECTOR", which immediately follows the source deck (see figure 5-3).

For a compile-time vector load, short vectors (those which are only partially full) are not allowed. Each vector file must occur in the order in which it was specified, and must contain exactly the number of records necessary to fill it with data. No separators are used to delimit the end of one vector file and the beginning of the next; the compiler reads input records until one vector is full, and then proceeds to fill the next one in order.

Compile-time vectors can be changed by either Input or Calculation Specifications.

COMPILE-TIME VECTOR LOAD

To load a compile-time vector, all that is necessary is to include the data cards for the vector in the proper order in the file "RPG/VECTOR" (figure 5-3). The compiler will automatically read this file after the source program has been read, and will load the data into the vectors declared.



G14024

Figure 5-3. Setting Up a Data Deck For a Compile-Time Vector

If more than one compile-time vector has been declared, care must be exercised in setting up the data deck. The compiler expects data for the vectors to be entered in the same order in which they were declared in the Extension Specifications form. The compiler reads data cards and stores the elements in the first vector until it is full, then proceeds to do the same for the second vector, and so forth. If more or fewer records are present than are necessary to exactly fill a vector, data will be placed into the wrong vector. See figure 5-4 for an example of a compile-time vector load declaration.



G14025

Figure 5-4. Compile-Time Vector Load

PRE-EXECUTION TIME VECTORS

For a pre-execution time vector load, the data to be loaded is read into the program storage area reserved by the entries in the Extension Specifications at the beginning of object program execution, before the normal operations in the program cycle begin. The data for each vector is placed in a file, identified by the names assigned in the File Description Specifications.

More than one vector may be loaded from the same file. Short vectors are not allowed with pre-execution time vector loads.

Pre-execution time vectors can be changed by either Input or Calculation Specifications.

PRE-EXECUTION TIME VECTOR LOAD

To load a pre-execution time vector, the data to be loaded must be placed in the file described in the File Description Specifications to which the vector is assigned (FROM FILENAME). Data is read in at the beginning of program execution and placed in the vector until the vector is full. If more than one vector (not in alternating format) is assigned to a single file, some special considerations must be taken into account (see figure 5-5). Vectors are still loaded in the same order that they are specified in the Extension Specifications, so that files will be opened, read, and closed as necessary to load the designated vectors. If two vectors are assigned to the same table file, and no other pre-execution time vector declaration comes between them, the data for both must be in the same card file. No separators are allowed between the data decks, so that restrictions are imposed the same as those for compile-time vector loads.

FILE DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS



G14026

Figure 5-5. Pre-Execution Time Vector Load

DYNAMIC/EXECUTION TIME VECTORS

Dynamic vectors are loaded during program execution through entries in the Input Specifications or Calculation Specifications. Certain fields of input records or the results of calculation operations may be used to load the elements of a dynamic vector. Such loading, unlike the automatic loading of compile-time and pre-execution time vectors, is completely under programmatic control.

All vectors can be altered during program execution, regardless of when they were loaded initially. Because of this, all vectors may be considered to have "dynamic" characteristics.

DYNAMIC/EXECUTION TIME VECTOR LOAD

To load a dynamic vector, the data elements may be obtained from fields within input records or from the result of operations in the Calculation Specifications. Figure 5-6 provides coding examples on the File Description Specifications and the Extension Specifications for dynamic vector loading.

FILE DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS



G14027

Figure 5-6. Dynamic Vector Loading

Input Specifications Load

Fields within input records may contain data for vector loading. This is done by assigning a vector name with an index or an array name without an index as a field name within an input record description (see figure 5-7). If a FIELD NAME (VARIABLE NAME) designates a single element of the vector, the input field will be placed into the vector element when the record is selected. If FIELD NAME designates an entire array (no index assigned), the input field length must be an integral multiple of the element size (LENGTH OF ENTRY) and equal to or less than the total size of the array. If the input field is less than the size of the array, the elements not referenced will not be affected.



Figure 5-7. Dynamic Vector Load - Input Specifications

Calculation Specifications Load

Any operation which specifies a vector (with or without an index) as the RESULT FIELD will cause the designated vector element (or entire array, if no index is specified) to be loaded with the result of the operation. See figure 5-8 for an example of a load via the Calculation Specifications. Refer to Section 9 for the operations which may be specified for vectors.

P	AGE		'n																					CA	٩L	.C	U	LA	41	ГІ	٩C	1 :	SP	EC	CI	F١	C,	47	10	٩C	١S	;	• •	_				_							P	PRO	ЗG	RA	١M				75	5	Т	-	Т	-8	0		
FORM	TYPE			cor	NT	101	. LI	ΕV	εL		_																											ε)E(CIN	ųΑ	L	PC	.⊦ ISI`		DN: DJC)5 S -	- -	1						1	DE	:N1	ſŀF	IC.	AT	10	N	L	1	1	1	1				
	ł	ļ		11	T	са	TO	RS						F		•T	<u>o</u> p					0	EC	• • •						F	A.C.		פר	2					-			E1	.,		6	UTH 0TH		ł	•	Plu	Re Ind Ari	sulf dica thn Min	net	g rs IC Ze	ro						_										
3 5	6	78	6 NOT	10 1	TON 112	13	14	LON 15	16	17	18				-						27	28				32	33							2			42	43			.,			18	49		51	52	53	Hig 1> Tal Hig 54	ph 2 Die gh 55	Lov 1< (Far Lo	w 2 cto w 57	Equ 1 = r2) Equ 58	uai 2 is uai 59	60								EN		•				,	14
0 1	с			21							A	R	1	Ŀ	ľ							A	D	D			A	F	2	2								A	R	2																				L											
0 2	с	*	A	DC		Т	H	E		F	I	R	2	T		F	Ē	.	5	M	E	N	Т		ø	F		F	4	R	۱		T	ø		E	V	E	R	14	ו		E	L	E	M	E	N	Т		ø	F		A	R	2															
03	с			01																		M	ø	V	ε		c											I	X	I	Ι	Ι					3	0									Γ					Ι		Ι				Ι			
04	с	¥	D	EF	1	N	E		т	H	E		F	: 1	1	: l	-11			"	I	X	H		(Э		L		ø	μ	G	2		0		D	E	c	I	N	46	2	Lł	5)		ŧ		S	E	Т		I	т		T	ø		Z	E	R	:0	8		T				T	
0 5	С	Τ		01	Τ	Γ					L	0	10	IF	7	T	T	T			Τ	Т	A	6			Γ	T	T	1	Τ		Τ					Γ		Τ		T		Τ													Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	1
06	с	¥	D	FF	1	N	ε		Т	H	E	Ι	L	F	1	3 6	i			1	L	Ø	ø	Р	14			T	T									Γ	Γ		-	T		Τ													Γ				T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	1
0 7	с	Τ	Π	01	T	Γ					1	Γ	Τ	T	Τ	T	T	Τ	T	Τ		A	D	D			I	X	(Τ	T							I	X		T	T																Γ			T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	1
0 8	С	*	I	NC	R	E	M	E	Μ	T		I	X	ľ	1	34	Ţ	ŀ	1	1	T						Γ	T	T	1	T	1	T				Г	Γ	T	T	T	T	1	1							1						Γ	T		T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	
0 9	с		Π	01	Т	Γ					1	c)	T	T	T	T	T	T		1	C	ø	м	P		I	X	!		T	1		1	-		T	T	T	T	T	T	1	1					Π			0	2				Γ	T		Γ	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	
10	c	*	1	F	1	X		>		1	ò	T	T	ŧ	1	zh	đ	1	1	N	Ы	1	Ć	A	F	ø	R	Ţ	6	0	z	1	1	1		T	T	t	T	T	T	1	1	1					Π			-	7			T	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	T	t	+	T	+	+	t	1
1 1	с	T		01	N	0	2			Ť	۵	E	2		1	Ţ	t	t	1	1	1	Ď	I	v		T	=		ſ	1	4	1	5	1		T	T	Δ	P	2	T	Ţ	7	x		-			Π		1						T	t	T	t	t	T	t	t	t	1	T	T	1	1	1
1 2	с	¥	I	F	T	H	E		0	2	-	1	N	Ī		Ċ	2	1	F	ø	R	-	1	Ś		0	F	F			1	D	I	v	I	D	Ε	f	2		T	1	4	1	5		I	N	F	ø		т	н	E		E	L	E	M	E	A	ĪT	·Ť	6	XF	=	+	t	T	t	1
1 3	с	¥	A	R/2	Ţ	D	Ø	1	N	Ŧ	F	E	, T	Ī		*	T	2	,	1	ī	X		-		f	ŕ	ť	1	2	+	-	-	7	Ē	F	F	t	f	T	t	1	1	1	-		•		H			İ	-	-		F	F	F	Ë	Ē	f	Ť	t	ť	1	+	+	+	+	+	1
14	с	-	ľ I	01	N	0	2	1	-	ŕ	-	F	T	ť	T	1	ť	1	1	1	1	6	ø	Т	ø	t	L	Q	8	Ø	Þ	+	+	1			t	t	t	t	t	t	1	1	1	1	-			1		1	1	-		F	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	+	+	+	T	†	1
1 5	с	*	1	F	T	Ц	E		0	2		Ī	N	ic	5	ite	•	1.	F	ø	R	×.	ī	Ś	F	0		F			t	R	P	Δ	U	c	U	F	Т	0	¢	1	1	<i>L</i>	ø	ø	D						1	+		-	T	t	T	T	t	t	t	T	Ť	+	+	T	+	+	1
16	c		Ħ	+	ť	ť			-		١	F	0	ţ.	Ţ,	f	Ť	t	ť	-	1	2	5	D		v	ŕ	ť	+	7	ť	4	Ť	4	Ē	Ē	f	h	t	f	t	\dagger	Ť	1	7	-				+	-	1	+	-		-	t	t	t	+	+	t	t	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	1
17	c.	¥	Ь	15	F	L	A	Ŷ		11	E	2	5 1	Į,	+	t	11		3	5	A.	G	E	-	-	T	t	t	1	+	+	+	+	+	Π		t	F	t	t	t	t	+	1	+		-		Η	+		1	1	-	-	F	t	t	+	+	t	+	+	+	+	+	+	\dagger	+	t	-
G1402	+ -+ 28	F	'i	Ξ₽Ξ	r ir	'e	1-4 	5		⊢ 8		+	+	+	+ D	+)y	'n	+ a	-r .n	- 1i	- 1 . (-	7	76		+- 21		+):	+r	-+	$^+$ L	+	+ a	+ d			+	⊢ C	+ a	+	+ . c	+ 21	+ 1]	+ L 8	-+ a 1	-+ E-	i		H 1		+ Sr		+ •C	- i	f	¦ 'i	+	+ 28	+ 1 †	+- : i	t ic	+-)r	+ 15	+	+	+	+	Ť	+	+	4

RULES FOR LOADING A VECTOR

The following rules must be observed in regard to loading vectors:

- a. For a vector to be loaded at pre-execution time, entries are necessary in the FROM FILENAME and ENTRIES PER RECORD fields.
- b. For a vector to be loaded at compile time, the FROM FILENAME field must be blank and an entry must be made in the ENTRIES PER RECORD field.
- c. Vector loading is not implied if the FROM FILENAME, TO FILENAME, and ENTRIES PER RECORD fields are blank. Vectors whose specifications contain blanks in those fields can be loaded as a result of Input or Calculation Specifications, which are execution-time loads.

VECTOR OUTPUT

Compile-time and pre-execution time vectors may be written to an output device at End-of-Job by specifying an output file in the TO FILENAME field of the Extension Specifications. This vector output is performed automatically after all processing has been completed. Vector records will be in the format specified by the Extension Specifications.

Dynamic vectors cannot specify a TO FILENAME, and thus cannot be automatically written out at End-of-Job.

Also, an entire array may be written during output time by specifying the array name without an index as field names (VARIABLE NAME) in the Output-Format Specifications. If an entire array is to be output in this way, the end position specified must allow sufficient space for all elements of the array, allowing for any editing. For editing of a whole array see Section 10.

VECTORS IN ALTERNATING FORMAT

Vectors specified as occurring in alternating format have related elements contained in alternating format on each input record (see figure 5-9). The two vectors need not be of the same size (LENGTH OF ENTRY), type (numeric or alphanumeric), or sequence order, but they must have the same number of elements contained on each input record, and each vector must contain the same number of elements (NUMBER OF ENTRIES PER TABLE OR ARRAY). Each pair of elements on the input record is considered one entry. The first element of each pair belongs to the vector described in columns 27-45; the second element belongs to the vector described in columns 46-57.

FO	P/ RN	AGI 1 T	≡ [YPI	1 E	2	_ N	10.	T L	JSE	D	IN	3 1	FIE	:LI	N C	IUN	1B1	R								1	EX	т	EI	٩S	10	N	SI	PE EC		FI	С/ . Р(РА	AT SI DSI	EQ TI		S NC 3 1	Е-]		D	EC	:1M	1A1	L P P.	os AC	SEC ITI KE	201 101 20	en VS	CE]]		
L 3	IN	E 5	•	7	8	9	10	F 11	R	ом	F	ILI	EN	A	ле I	3 19	т	0	FI	LE	NA	M	E 2	6 2	TA AF (VI NA	BL RR EC	LE AY TC E)	OI 'N OR	R	1E 32	ENTRIES	PER	# RECORD		DER TARIF	OR ARRAY	39	HLONET 40	OF	ATRY 42	-3	•	45	TA AF (V N/ 46	ABI RR EC	LE AY TC	OI ′N DR	R	VIE 51	HLENGTH	οF	YATN3 24	55	56	57	58	
0	1		Е			Γ		V	E	C	Π	P	SF	2	I	Τ	T	Τ	T	T	Τ	T	T	T	1	E	C	1	Τ	Π	Γ	1	0			1	٩	T		5		2						Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Τ
0	2		E					V	E	C	Π	Q	5 F	2	2		Γ			T				h	V	E	C	2	'			1	0			1	0			2								Γ			Γ	Ι				Γ	Γ
0	3		E									Γ	Ι				Ι							1	V	E	C	3				1	0			1	0			3		2		۷	E	C	4					2	Γ	[Γ	Γ	Ι



G14023

Figure 5-9. Vectors in Alternating Format

*

۲

.

SECTION 0

LINE COUNTER SPECIFICATIONS

Line Counter Specifications are used only for line printer files to:

- a. Specify form length. The default is 66 lines.
- b. Specify the overflow line.
- c. Define the line channel equations that are associated with the carriage control format tape that must be installed on the printer when the program is executed.

Line Counter Specifications are required when using the RPG I dialect but are optional when using the RPG II dialect.

LINE - CHANNEL EQUATIONS

The LINE NUMBER, FL OR CHANNEL NUMBER, and OL OR CHANNEL NUMBER fields are used to specify line number - channel relationships referred to as line - channel equations

CHANNEL

The word "channel" is used in conjunction with the format or carriage control tape that is installed on the line printer. The carriage control tape is used to assist in the movement and positioning of the paper as it passes through the print mechanism.

LINE NUMBER - CHANNEL NUMBER

The LINE NUMBER and CHANNEL NUMBER fields are used to relate a line that is to be printed with a channel punch in the line printer carriage control tape.

FIELD DEFINITIONS

Figure 6-1 can be used in conjunction with the following field definitions for Line Counter Specifications.

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

This field must contain the letter L.



- A. 7-14 Specifies the name of a printer file.
- B. 15-17 If 18-19 contains FL, this entry specifies the length of the page or form length. If 18-19 are numeric, this entry specifies the number of lines from the top of the page to associate with that channel number. Entries: 1-112, rightjustified.
- C. 18-19 Designates the use of the numeric entry in columns 15-17. Entries: FL or 1-12, right-justified.
- D. 20-22 If 23-24 contains OL, this entry specifies the line number of the overflow line. If 23-24 are numeric, this entry specifies the number of lines from the top of the page to associate with that channel number. Entries: 1-112, rightjustified.
- E. 23-24 CHANNEL NUMBER associated with the overflow line designated in columns 20-22. Entries: OL or 1-12, right-justified.
- F. 25-74 CHANNEL NUMBER related to preceding LINE NUMBER entry. Entries: 1-12, right-justified LINE NUMBER designates a particular line on each page. Entries: 1-112, right-justified.

G14029

Figure 6-1. Line Counter Specifications Summary Sheet

7-14 FILENAME

This field is used to specify the name of the printer file to which these Line Counter Specifications apply. The filename must also be described on the File Description Specifications and must be assigned to a printer. The entry in this field is required and must be leftjustified.

15-19 LINE NUMBER, FL OR CHANNEL NUMBER

These fields have two possible meanings, depending upon the entry in columns 18-19.

If columns 18-19 contain the entry FL (Forms Length), the entry in columns 15-17 specifies the length (in print lines) of each page. The LINE NUMBER field entry must be between one and 112, inclusive, and be right-justified in the field, and leading zeroes are optional (see figure 6-2).

If columns 18-19 contain a numeric entry between one and 12, inclusive, the entry in columns 15-17 specifies the number of lines from the top of the form to be associated with the CHANNEL NUMBER entry designated in columns 18-19. The LINE NUMBER entry must be between one and 112, inclusive. Both entries must be right-justified in their respective fields, and leading zeros are optional (see figure 6-2).

	FORM TYPE								L	.IN	EC	00	IN I	EK	51	ECH	-10	AI	ION	5																				
	1	Τ		1		2			3			4			5			6		Т	7	,	Т		8			9				10			1	1	T	1:	2	
LINE	FILENAME		LINE NUMBER	FL OR CHANNEL NUMBER	LINE	OL OB CHANNEL	NUMBER	LINE	CHANNEL	NUMBER	LINE	NUMBER	CHANNEL	LINE	NUMBER	CHANNEL NUMBER	LINF	NUMBER	CHANNEL		NUMBER	CHANNEL	NUMBER	LINE		CHANNEL	LINE	NUMBER	CHANNEL	NUMBER	LINE	CHANNEL	NUMBER	LINE	NUMBER	CHANNEL	NUMBER	LINE NUMBER	CHANNEL	NUMBER
3 5 6	6 7	14	15 1	7 18 19	20	22 23	24	25	27 28	29	30	32	33 34	35	37	38 39	40	42	43 44	45	4	7 48	49 5	0	52	53 54	55	57	58 5	i9 60)	62 63	3 64	65	67	68 f	59 7	0 7	2 73	74
111	L1571		10	100	5	01	2		Τ			Π		Π			Π																	Π						
12 L	-11572		5	SFL	1	00	1	6	01	2		Π	Т	Π	Π		Π	Т	Π			Π		T				Τ						\square						
13 L	11573		80	AFL	6	00	1		Τ			Π			Π		Π							Τ	Π							Т	Π	\Box		\Box	Τ	T		

G14030

LIST1 specified channel 1 as line 10 and channel 12 as line 50.

LIST2 specifies the form length (50 lines) and channels 1 and 12.

LIST3 specifies the form length (80 lines) and the overflow line (line 60).

Figure 6-2. Line Counter Specifications Code Example

20-24 LINE NUMBER, OL OR CHANNEL NUMBER

This field has two possible functions, depending upon the entry in columns 23-24.

RPG II Dialect Only

When OL is entered in columns 23-24, the entry in columns 20-22 specifies the line number that will be considered the overflow line. The overflow line must be less than or equal to the form length. When the destination of a space or skip operation is a line beyond the overflow line but not beyond the form length the overflow indicator

specified for the file is turned ON to indicate that the end of the page is near. If the destination is beyond the form length the overflow indicator does not turn ON.

When the output is conditioned on an overflow indicator or fetch overflow is specified and the overflow indicator is ON, the following actions will take place before the forms are advanced to the next page:

- a. Detail lines still to be printed as part of the current program cycle will be completed.
- b. Total lines will be printed.
- c. Total line conditioned by the overflow indicator for this file will be printed
- d. Heading and detail lines conditioned by the overflow indicator for this file will be printed.

Since all these actions will take place after the overflow line is reached, the programmer should be certain that enough space is left between the overflow line and the bottom of the page to allow all the lines to be printed. Refer to the subsection titled Printer File Handling in the Output-Format Specifications section for detailed information about overflow handling.

RPG I Or RPG II Dialect

If columns 23-24 contain a numeric entry between one and 12, inclusive, the entry in columns 20-22 must specify the number of lines from the top of the form to be associated with the CHANNEL NUMBER entry (columns 23-24). The LINE NUMBER field entry must be between one and 112, inclusive. Both entries must be right-justified in their respective fields, and leading zeros are optional (see figure 6-2).

25-74 LINE NUMBER AND CHANNEL NUMBER

The rest of the form is divided into ten 5-character fields, each consisting of a 3-character LINE NUMBER field and a 2-character CHANNEL NUMBER field. All fields are optional and must be left blank if they are not to be used (see figure 6-2).

The CHANNEL NUMBER fields may contain a numeric entry between one and 12, inclusive. This CHANNEL NUMBER entry is associated with the corresponding LINE NUMBER field entry (between one and 112, inclusive) and is used to relate a channel number to a particular line on each page of the output forms. The same channel numbers must not be specified more than once on the same Line Counter Specification.

All entries must be right-justified in their respective fields. Leading zeros are optional.

The LINE NUMBER field entry must not be greater than the form length specified in columns 18-19 or the default value of 66.

75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

PRINTER CHANNEL SKIPPING

The user can control printer channel skipping by making appropriate entries in the RPG source program specifications. The entries in the specifications and the results obtained are different for the two RPG dialects, as defined in the following paragraphs.

CHANNEL SKIPPING - RPG II

When forms skipping is specified in columns 19-22 of the Output-Format Specifications, the entry refers to the line number on the form or page to be printed.

When a LINE NUMBER and CHANNEL NUMBER are entered in columns 15-19 of the Line Control Specifications form, a reference to a line in output for which a corresponding line - channel equation exists will result in the generation of a channel skip.

Example:

If the Line Control Specifications describe a line - channel equation which specifies that line 28 is equal to channel 3, then any time an output specification references a skip to line 28, a skip to channel 3 results.

CHANNEL SKIPPING - RPG I

When forms skipping is specified in columns 19-22 of the Output-Format Specifications, the entry refers to channel numbers, not lines. If line - channel equations are specified on the line counter specifications form, then a reference to a channel in output for which a corresponding line - channel equation exists results in the generation of a channel skip. The equations are necessary so the program can determine where the paper is positioned in relation to the overflow line.

CHANNEL SKIPPING - RPG I AND RPG II

When line – channel equations are specified but are not referenced on the Output-Format Specifications, no syntax error or warning message results.

It is the responsibility of the user to insure that the proper carriage control tape is installed on the line printer.

PRINTER BACKUP

If a line printer is not available during RPG program execution, the output data is sent to a printer backup file and is subsequently printed exactly as intended providing that the proper carriage control tape is installed on the line printer.

Line Counter Specifications are required when generating programs with RPG I. A summary of the required and optional entries follows:

- a. Columns 15-19 can optionally contain the form length and columns 18-19 can optionally contain "FL". If these entries are omitted, the default value of 66 is assumed for the form length.
- b. If the form length is specified in columns 15-19, then columns 20-74 can be used for line channel equations that can specify a maximum of ll channels.
- c. If a form length is not specified in columns 15-19, the default value of 66 is assumed and columns 15-74 can be used to specify up to 12 channels.
- d. The user must specify channel 1 and channel 12. Channel 12 defines the overflow line.
- e. The user must provide line channel specifications for any channel used in the Output-Format Specifications.
- f. "OL" is not specified.
- g. A skip to channel 12 is permitted.

SECTION

TELECOMMUNICATIONS CARD SPECIFICATIONS

The function of the Telecommunications Card is to further define a data communications file specified on the File Description Specifications as a REMOTE, DATACOM, or BSCA file. A Telecommunications Card is required for each data communications file specified on the File Description Specifications.

There is no special form used for coding Telecommunications specifications. The Control Card Specification form is used for illustrating Telecommunications coding positions and entries in this manual.

Standard coding procedures are used for the Input and Output Specifications when data communications files are declared. On output, exception records are written only to the REMOTE file whose filename is specified in the FACTOR 2 field with the SEND operation code that is being executed.

DATA COMMUNICATIONS FILES

Data communications files are required when the RPG program is to communicate with a remote device, and they are used to transmit and/or receive information contained in corresponding NDL files of the network controller. The filename of the NDL file must be entered in columns 7-14 of the Telecommunications Card. The data communications files used with B 1800/B 1700 RPG are of the following two types:

- a. REMOTE
- b. DATACOM and BSCA

The following two subsections titled REMOTE and DATACOM AND BSCA contain the detailed information required to define data communications files. The Telecommunications Card entries and the coding positions in which the entries must be made are explained for both types of data communications files.

REMOTE FILES

One Telecommunications Card is required for each REMOTE file declared in a program. Multiple stations can be assigned to a REMOTE file, and the remote devices are accessed on a demand basis.

A description of the required fields to be coded for a Telecommunications Card follows. Following the field definitions is figure 7-1, which illustrates the use of the Control Card Specifications form for coding Telecommunications entries for REMOTE files.
Field Definitions - REMOTE Files

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description of this field.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description of this field.

6 FORM TYPE

This field must contain a T.

7–14 FILENAME

This field must contain the name of the REMOTE file specified on the File Description Specifications.

15

Column 15 must be blank.

16-18 NUMBER OF STATIONS

A numeric entry must be made in this field to specify the maximum number of terminals that can be assigned to the data communications file. Valid entries are 001-999.

19-21 MAXIMUM MESSAGES

A numeric entry must be made in this field to specify the maximum number of input messages per station that can be queued.

Example:

If MAXIMUM MESSAGES is set to 2 and a terminal attempts to transmit three messages before the program reads a message, the following events occur:

- a. The terminal remains in transmit mode following the attempted transmission of the third message since the input queue is full.
- b. When the program performs a read operation, a message is read from the input queue, thereby making space available in the input queue for the third message.
- c. The third message is then transmitted from the terminal buffer to the input queue, and the terminal returns to local mode.

22-27 STATION NUMBER

Prior to the execution of a SEND operation code, a valid relative station number must be entered in this 3-byte field. After a RECV operation code is executed, the MCP indicates to the program which station was read, and the station number is automatically placed in this field.

×

28-33 MESSAGE LENGTH

Prior to the execution of a SEND operation code, a message length equal to or less than the declared record size must be entered in the 4-byte message length field. After a RECV operation code is executed, the MCP indicates to the program the length of the message read, which is then placed in this field.

34-80 -

This field must remain blank.

Figure 7-1 illustrates the use of the Control Card Specifications form for coding Telecommunications entries for REMOTE files.



Burroughs B 1700 RPG

One Telecommunications Card is required for each DATACOM or BSCA file declared in a program. Only one station (terminal) can be assigned to a DATACOM or BSCA file. A description of the fields of a Telecommunications Card for DATACOM or BSCA files follows. Entries must be made in columns 6, and 7-14.

Figure 7-2 illustrates the use of the Control Card Specifications form for coding Telecommunications entries for DATACOM or BSCA files.

FIELD DEFINITIONS - DATACOM OR BSCA FILES

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

This field must contain a T.

7-14 FILENAME

This field must contain the name of the DATACOM or BSCA file specified on the File Description Specifications.

15 CONFIGURATION

This field is unused. Any entry other than blank, P, M, or S will be given a syntax error.



A. 6 Must contain the letter T.

B. 7-14 Contains the name of a DATACOM or BSCA file entered on the File Description Specifications.

G14033

Figure 7-2. Telecommunications Entries - DATACOM or BSCA

Figure 7-3 is an example of an RPG data communications program. The program uses the BITON and BITOF operation codes to build the special characters required in data communications programming. Refer to Section 9 for a complete description of the BITON and BITOF operation codes.



TELECOMMUNICATIONS SPECIFICATIONS

1	2 3	4	5	6	18	9	10) 11	12	13	14	15	5 16	5 13	18	1 1	20	21	22	2 23	3 24	25	26	21	28	29	30	31	32	33	34	35	36	373	83	94	0 41	42	43	44	45	46	47	48	49 5	50 5	1 5	52 5	3 5	4 5	5 5	6 57	58	59	60 6	61 6	26.	3 64	64	66	61	68	69	70	11.7	27	3 '	4 75	5 76	11	78	79	80
Π	T		1	T	TE	R		2	I	T	Γ	Ι	c		1	c	k		1'9	ST.	F	N	u	M	M	E	s	2	E	N		Ι	Τ		Τ		Τ	Τ		Ι					Τ		Ţ		1	Τ	Ţ							1		Γ			1			Ì	T		I		1		
Π	1		T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T		T	T	T	T	T	T		T		T	Г	Γ			Γ											T	T		T			1			Ī	1	Ţ	Ι	T	Ţ	T				Ţ		1	Ι	Τ									i	1	i		1
H	1-	Ħ	-†	1	t	T	t	T	T	T	t	T	t	T	t	t	T	T	T	T	T	T	T		1	1							1		1	1	T	T	T	T	Γ				1	T	T	T	T	+	T		Γ	Ì	1	T	I	Ī		T	[T	Τ		T	Ţ	Γ	Γ	i		
IT	T	Π	T	1	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	Γ												1		T	T	T	T						T		Ţ		Ţ		Ī	Γ	1						Ι							T	I	Ì	i			Ĺ
H	-+		+	+	-	+	+	+	t	+-	1-	t	+	+	t	t	+	t	+	T	t	1	1		1	1			_		-			1		1	T	T		T	Γ			T	1	Т	Т	T	1	T	Т	T	Т	TT	1		T		Ţ	Τ-	Г	1		1	T	1	T		Т			Ĺ.	



G12068/SHEET 1 OF 5





G12068/SHEET 2 OF 5

Figure 7-3. Example of an RPG Data Communications Program (Sheet 2 of 5)



G12068/SHEET 3 OF 5

Figure 7-3. Example of an RPG Data Communications Program (Sheet 3 of 5)

Progr	mme	٢.		- va ne				,																	E	3	u	r	'1	re	0	u	Ś	3]	h	s	ł	R	P	G																								Da	ate	-	-					
Progr	amii	с —				-	-										_							_	с	<u>A</u>	L	cu	L	<u> </u>	10)N	s	PE	CI	FI	:A	TI	0	N																	_							Pa	ige			. c	ار			
Page	er, i		Control Level	Not N			AN	ID Z			10	20	Fa	act	or					Or	Dera	atu	57					Fi	acı	or	2						Re Fi	elc	11			Field	Length	Decimal Positions 0.9	Half Aduit H/Edu Code		Fab Ins (light hair oRe	Milling Con	nus nus nus nus nus nus nus nus nus	Equipors	ual 2 is ual						Ca	, ,	ne•	n ts								Pr I	'og Ide	ran nt	n	
Ηŕ		r l			hal		T.		Je	10	6	Ť	Ï	ï	u	rT	T	T	Ť	Ť	1	T	Ŷ	ť	T	T	,.	50	ń	ř	Γ	T	T	Ť	f	Ē	Ē	T	Ť	T		Ť	T	ľ	t	+	Ť		Γ	20	- 19	T	1	Ť	ŗ	Ţ	T	Ť	Ť	Ť	Ť	Ť	T	T	Ť	+	Ť	Ť	ŕΤ	Ϋ́	Ť	4
\vdash	0 2	H	SA	r f	ff	+	Η		f	Y	ĥ	-	1	-	-	7	┥	+	1	1	+	t	t	+		0	,	2	7	,	t	t	ŀ	+	12	c	┢	t	+	+	t	$^{+}$	1	t	t	+	╋	t		Η	+	+	+	+	+	t	+	+	t	t	\dagger	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	H	H	+	-
H	03	H	SR	+	H	+	Ħ	+	+		H	-t	+	1	1	1	+	$^{+}$	ľ	2 1		6		朩		1	2	4	Ś	ī	t	t	ŀ	t	ĥ	c		t	t	t	t	t	F	t	t	\dagger	╈	t		Η	+	+	+	+	÷	+	$^+$	+	+	t	+	+	+	+	+	†	+	+	+		+	-
H	04	H			E	F	R	RA	te	R	F	Ŧ	+	-		1	t	$^{+}$	Ť	1	+	ſ	Ť	+	Ť	1	-	-	-		\vdash	t	F	t	f	F		t	t	t	t	$^{+}$	+	t	t	$^{+}$	╈	t		Η	+	+	+	+	+	t	t	$^{+}$	t	t	t	+	÷	$^{+}$	+	t	+	+	H	H	+	-
H	0 5	H	co	FF	ľť	+	F	+	Ť	P		1	+	-	ť	Ť	1	\dagger	1,	5 1	1			ŧ	t	0	1	2	1	-	F	t	F	t	t	R	ŀ	t	t	t	t	t	1	t	t	t	t	t			+	i	+	t		t	ţ	+	t	t	1	1	+	+	+	t	\dagger	+	t	1	+	-
\vdash	0 6	H	ko		††	\dagger	+	+	+	H	H	1	+	1	+	\dagger	+	+	i	2 1	- T		5	1		2	4	5	6	7	1	t	F	t	F	R	\vdash	1	t	t	t	t	f	t	t	+	\dagger	+			+	+	$^{+}$	t	\dagger	\dagger	t	t	t	t	t	+	ţ	1	+	†	Ť	+	Ħ	1	+	-
\vdash	0 7	H	1	07	2	Чт	t	RP	A	c		E.	╤┤	+		\dagger	0	R	ť	24	+	ť	Ŧ	+	f	-	-	-	-	ŕ	\vdash	t	-	t	f	F	\vdash	1	+	┢	t	+	+-	ł	+	+	+	t	H		+	+	+	+	t	+	t	+	+	+	t	+	+	$^{+}$	+	$^{+}$	+	+	+	+	+	-
++-	0 8		SP	IN 1		+	† ť		ť	F	Ĥ	+	+	-	+	ť	ř	1	1	2 1	- 1	+	6	ŧ	t	0	4	2	7	1	ŀ	t	-	t	R	R		t	t	t	t	t	1	t	$^{+}$	+	\dagger	+-	Η		1	+	+	$^{+}$	+	+	$^{+}$	+	t	+	+	1	+	$^{+}$	+	†	+	+	+	1	+	1
H	0 9		c p	1+	Ħ	\uparrow	†	+	t	h	H	1	+		1	†	1	+	F	21	. 7	t		1		3	4	5	6	,	ŀ	t	-	t	R	R	-	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	+	t	t			1	+	+	T	+	+-	t	1	t	t	+	i	+	+	+	t	+	1	1	1	+	1
H	10		. k	r.	R	R	Ħ	AL	t	H	T	A	R	s		+	t	1	ħ		Ť	1	Ť	t	f	7	İ	-	Ĭ		F	t	-	t	Ť	٢	-	t	t	1	t	t	$^{+}$	t	t	$^{+}$	+	t	Η		1	+	\dagger	t	+	+	t	t	t	t	+	\dagger	+	+	+	t	+	+	+	+	+	1
H	11	1	SR	FF	Ħ	1	H	1	1-	H	H	Ť	Ť	-	+	t	ť	Ť	ſ	11	1	1	i F	t	t	5	1	2	4	1	F	t	-	t	c	A	т	1	t	t	+-	t	1	t	t	+	+	+			1	+	\dagger	T	+	t	÷	t	t	t	1	$^{+}$	T	t	+	†	+	1	1	+	+	-
H	1 2	1	SI		††	$^{+}$	Ħ	+	+	H	H	+	+	1	+	+	†	$^{+}$	F	2 1			sin	t	1	1	5	6	7	,		1	-	t	Ē	A	Ť	1	t	t	t	\dagger	f	ł	t	t	t	t	Η	1	+	$^{+}$	\dagger	t	İ	+	÷	t	t	t	t	1	t	t	$^{+}$	t	$^{+}$	+	+	+	\dagger	٦
H	1 3	\mathbf{H}	SR	+	$\uparrow \uparrow$	+	H	+	+	Η	H	+	\dagger	1	+	+	t	+	5	Ţ	h	6	61		T	5	5	1	1	-		t	-	t	F	A	T	1		t	t	t	1	t	t	t	t	t	H	1	+	t	+	+-	+	1	+	t	t	t	+	+	t	t	t	t	+	+	+	1	+	1
\vdash	14	Ħ			Ħ		11	+	t	H	H	1	+	1	+	t	1	t	1	31	1	1	5	t	1		2	2	H	6	7	1		T	c	A	T	2	-	1	t	t	T	T	T	t	t		1	1	1	+	+	+	t	+	÷	+	t	t	1	T	t	t	t	t	1	1	1	1	1	1
H	1 5	1	SR		\mathbf{H}	+	tt	+	\uparrow	Η	H	+	+	1	+	t	t	$^{+}$	1	1	6 v	Ē	1	te	ſ	1	T	1	1	Ť	-	F			c	A	T				T	t	2	t	t	t	t	H	1	1	+	+	$^{+}$	+	+	t	+-	t	t	t	T	t	t	t	t	t	+	+	+	+	+	1
\vdash	16		S.F		H	+	Ħ	t	t	Η	H	+	1	1	+	t	t	t	ĥ	A.	, v	E		C	1	Ť	F	2	1	1		F	-	F	c	A	T			t	t	t	Ť		t	t	i			1	1	t	t	T	T	t	T	t	t	t	t	t	T	\dagger	t	t	t	1	†	1	1	1
H	1 7	1	X	SF	7	7	A	RS	t		H	s	Ŧ	1	+	t	1	t	ť	ť	ť	t	T	f	Ť	1	1	1	+					-	f	Ľ	-				T	t	t	T	t	+	1				1	1	+	+	t	Ť	t	t	t	t	t	t	+-	t	+	t	+	Ť	1	+	+	1
\vdash	1 8	1	SR	FF	ľt	ť	F T	T	1	Η	H	7	+	1	+	t	t	t	F	3 1		1	F	t	t	5	1	3	5	,	-		-	F	s	T	1		-		T	t	1	T	t	t	+-			1	+	1	1	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	t	1	t	t	t	t	†	1	+	1	+	1
H	1 9	1	SR		Ħ	T	Ħ	T	T	Π	H	†	+	1	1	t	t	1	1	s	T	l	N	忭	1	t	4	6	7	•				-	3	T	1				T	T	T	T	T	T	1			1	1	T	1	t	T	1.	T	+	T		T	Ì	T	T	T	T	T	1	T	T	1	1
H	20	1	SR		IT	T	ΠŤ	1	T	Π	H	1	T	1	1	T	t	T	h	Nø	iv	Ē	1	J	1	A .	T	1	1	1					2	T					Γ	T	2	Ì	T	t	+			+	1	1	1	t	Ţ	ľ	T	T	T	T	T	1	T	T	T	T	T	1	1	T	1	1
	1	1	SR	H	H	1	Ħ	1	T	Π	H	1	1	1	1	1	t	t	A	1	Īv	E	t	S	s I	r!:	1	1	1	1				Γ	s	Т					T	t	T	ŀ	t	+-	T			+	1	1	Ť	t	1	t	T	T	t	T	t	1	T	T	T	t	T	1	1	T	1	1
38 61	8. 11	9/ 5	PC L	21.17	٥, 6	9 89	·9 9	9 59	109	63	29	(9 (<u>59 e</u>	65	85 /	59	ς	. 1	5 8	\$."	1	, 0	6 6	r 8.	• /1	P 9	96	50	66	1 3	20	11	Ű t	68	88	18	98	ςξ	46	55	28	11	08	6.	8.	Ċ.	٩.	-,	۶.		-		U e	1 8	ï.	19	١S	1 1	11	17	11	1.0	1.6	6 1	8	l	9	ş	7	5	3	ĩ

G12068/SHEET 4 OF 5

Figure 7-3. Example of an RPG Data Communications Program (Sheet 4 of 5)

6

.



Figure 7-3. Example of an RPG Data Communications Program (Sheet 5 of 5)

| | | |

1

1

1

1

, ,

,

SECTION 8

INPUT SPECIFICATIONS

Input Specifications describe the records within each file and fields within each record to be used as input data for the program. The two types of input specifications are:

- a. Record type descriptions (columns 7-42) which define the various input records and their relationship to other records in the file. Columns 43-70 must be blank.
- b. Field descriptions (columns 43-70) which define each field within the records. Columns 7-72 must be blank.

Field description entries must start one line below the associated record type descriptions, or an error will occur. A warning is emitted if a record type description is not followed by a field description. Field and record descriptions must not be specified on the same line.

FIELD DEFINITIONS

Figure 8-1 can be used in conjunction with the following field definitions for the Input Specifications.

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Chapter 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Chapter 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

This field must contain the letter I.

7-14 FILENAME

This field is used to identify the file to which the subsequent record type and field descriptions belong. The file specified must have been previously described on the File Description Specifications form as an input, update, or combined file. Every input, update, or combined file (except input table files and record address files), described in the File Description Specifications, must be described on the Input Specifications form. The FILENAME entry must be the same as the one used in the File Description Specifications. It must appear on the first line containing information about the records in the file; if the entry is left blank, the last filename entered is assumed to be the file being described. The first record type description must not have a blank FILE-NAME entry:

Burroughs

B 1700 RPG



A. 7-14 Contains a filename specified in the File Description Specifications.

N

- B. 14-16 Puts the record identification codes in an AND or OR relationship. Entries: AND or OR.
- C. 15-16 Specifies if records are to be processed in a predetermined sequence. Entries: 01-99 or any alphabetic character.
- D. 17 If sequence is specified, the entry indicates the number of records of each type in a sequence group. Entries: 1 or N.
- E. 18 Specifies if records sequenced must be present. Entries: Blank or 0,
- F. 19-20 Contains either a record identifying indicator (01-99), a control level indicator (L1-L9), a halt indicator (H1-H9), the spread card designator (TR), or specifies look ahead records (**).
- G. 21-41 Record Identification Codes: 21-24, 28-31, 35-38 (specifies the

G14034

position within the record that contains a record identification code. Entries: Blank or 1-N where N = record length).

25, 32, 39 (indicates if the character in columns 27, 34, or 41 is or is not present. Entries: Blank or N. 26, 33, 40 (Specifies what part of

the code character in columns 27, 34, or 41 is to be read. Entries: C the entire character, Z - the zone portion, D - the digit portion).

27, 34, 41 (Contains the code character. Entries: Any EBCDIC character).

- 42 Specifies which stacker will be н. used. Entries: Blank or 1-6.
- 43 Specifies if numeric input is in Τ. packed or unpacked decimal format. or binary format. Entries: Blank, P, or B.
- J. 44-47 Contains the left-most position of the input field. Entries: numeric, right-justified.
- K. 48-51 Contains the right-most position of the input field. Entries: numeric, right-justified.
- L. 52 Contains the number of decimal positions for numeric fields. Entries: Blank or 0-9.
- 53-58 Contains field names (1-6 alphanumeric characters, leftjustified) or one of the special field names, PAGE, PAGE1, PAGE2, UDATE, UMONTH, UDÁY, UYEÁR, TABXXX (X=any alphanumeric character).

- 59-60 Contains the control level Ν. indicator. Entries: Blank or L1-L9.
- 61-62 Specifies sequence checking for 0. a single input or combined flle or sequence checking with matching records for two or more input and/or combined files. Entries: Blank or M1-M9.
- P. 63-64 Contains one of the following field record relations indicators or blank: 01-99 (record identifying indicator), L1-L9 (control level indicator previously defined), MR (matching record indicator), U1-U8 (external indicator), or HO-H9 (halt indicator).
- 65-66 Used to indicate if the speci-٥. fied field is greater than blank or positive. Entries: Blank, 01-99, но-н9.
- R. 67-68 Used to indicate if the specified field is less than blank or negative. Entries: Blank, 01-99, но-н9.
- s. 69-70 Used to indicate if the specified field is blank or zero. Entries: Blank, 1-99, HO-H9.

Figure 8-1. Input Specifications Summary Sheet

Primary and secondary files are processed in the same order as they are described in the File Description Specifications. If primary or secondary files are not described on Input Specifications in the same order as they are described on the File Description Specifications, a warning is emitted. The warning is emitted because the object program from some RPG compilers may process primary and secondary files according to the order in which they appear on the Input Specifications

All record type and field descriptions for a particular file must be grouped together on the Input Specifications. Descriptions of records from different files must not be interspersed.

14-16 AND/OR LINES

There is no limit on the number of AND or OR lines that may be specified; however, it is recommended that the user not exceed 20 if compatibility with other Burroughs systems is desired. AND/OR lines must be preceded by a line containing at least one record identification code entry.

AND Line

If it is necessary to specify more than three record identifying codes to identify a record type, an AND line may be used. The word AND should be entered in columns 14-16 and the additional record identifying codes should be entered in columns 21-41. There must be at least one record identification code entry on each AND line.

OR Line

In some cases, a particular record type may be identified by two or more different codes. For this condition, the word OR entered in columns 14-15 indicates that only one of the codes specified need be present to identify the record type (see figure 8-2). Record identification codes are not required on OR lines, although this is not necessarily a meaningful thing to do. Other uses of the OR relationship are discussed later in this chapter (refer to figures 8-10 and 8-18).

15-16 SEQUENCE

This field is used to specify a special sequence to different record types in a file. If this field contains an alphabetic entry (note that this includes a blank entry, although a warning will be emitted), it specifies that the record types need not be in any special order.

Within each file, all record types having alphabetic entries in the SEQUENCE field must be specified before those with numeric entries. Refer to figure 8-4 for an example of how to code the SEQUENCE field when both alphabetic and numeric entries are desired. All chained and demand files must have an alphabetic entry in this field.

when a contraction of the second of the program when a second the program of the second of the secon

A sequence group is data file records which are defined by a numeric entry specified in columns 15-16 of the Input Specification line.

If this field contains a numeric entry, it indicates that sequence checking is to be done. The order of precedence is the sequence in which the records are declared on the Input Specifications. This allows the programmer to specify that one record type must appear before

			1 2	-																			I	NF	٧V	т	SP	EC	CIF	÷IC	:A:	TIC	٦N	IS													F	PRO	DGF	14	N			75	П	-	Т	80	1	
	PAC	GE				NU	MB	ER		-1	Г		OF	ידוס RE _ RE	ON CO	RD	D	EN'	r i F	YII	NG	IN	DIC	:A1	rof	я			P	АС	KE	D _	_		м	AT	сн	INC	3 F	IEL	.DS	: 01	٩c	на	INI	NG	FI	ELC	DS -	171	CAI	10	N	Ц	<u> </u>		1		i	
FORM	ITY	PE		S	ΕQ	UEI	NCE	-	7	1															S	TA	ск	ER	SE	LE	ст	7	\downarrow	DE	CI	MA	LP	os	ITI	ON	۲	co	DNT	RC		LEV	EL	1 _	_	L	F	FI	ELD	RE	ECC	RD	RE	ELA	(TI)	2N
																	RE	co	RD	ID	EN	TIF	IC.	AT	101	10		ES				-11	11	1	FIE	LD	LO	CA	тю	NC										11			FIE	LD	• • •					
	ľ	٦.							ŧ	†	1	1	'				-	-	╀			2	-		-	┝─			3	-	-	ł۲	1	┝			-				╢							ŧ		1	ŧ	┝			T		4			
LIN	E		ŀ	-16	ENA	ME	E							POS	3 7 1(ON	OT (N)	/Z/D	P	os	ITI	ON	OT (N)	/Z/D	HARACTER	РО	ISI1	rio	N	01 (N)	Z/U UARACTER				FR	ЪW			то			F (\ N	IEL /AF AM	DI RIA E)	BL	ME E							LUS	SUNI		ZERU UH BLANK		NC US	DT ED	
3	5	6	,				1		5 16	17	18	19	20	21		24	Z 25	26 2	708	3		31	2 32	33	34	35			38	2 C 39 4	5 C 10 4	42	43	44			174	8		5	1 52	53				58	59	60	61	62	63 64	4 6	م 5 66	≥ 67 (68 F	59 70	2 71			74
01	İ	ī			T	Π	Ť	Ť		Í		Ĺ	1	Ť	17	F		cli	Ţ	T	T	18	Ť	C	E	ñ	Π	7	آو	Ť	cle	>	f	f	Π	Т	Ť	Ť	Т	Ť	T	ĥ		Т	T	Ť	f	Ť	ŤΊ	Î	Ť	Ť	Ť	ΓŤ	Ť	T	Ń	Ŵ	\mathbb{N}	
0 2		ī	ŤŤ	T	Ť	H	1	A	UD	İ			÷	+	E	10		C	r	\dagger	Ť	T	t	f	Ē	Π	Π	Ť	+	T	Ŧ	t	t	T		1	t	\dagger	\dagger	t	t	T		1	T	\uparrow	t	t	H	ſŤ	+	t	$\uparrow \uparrow$	H	1	+		χ	$\langle \rangle$	1
0 3		ī	$\dagger \dagger$	1	T	H		ø	R				1	+	Ť	1		D	1	t	T	T	t	t	Π	П	П	T	1	1	T	t	t	T	Ħ	1	T	T	t	T	t			1	T	T	T	T	П	ſŤ	+	T	Ħ	П	1	+		X/X	$\langle \rangle$	1
0 4		I	H	T	T			T	1	Γ			-†	T	T	П			T	T	T	T	T	Γ	Π	П	П	T	T	T	T	T	T	Γ	Π	1	T	T	T	T	T	Π		T	T	T	T	T	Π	Π	T	T	T	Π	T	1		ŴЛ,	Ŵ	())
Ū S		1 1	k F	TH	E		2	1	νE	5		A	в	øh	E I	П	D	E	50		s I	e	Ε	T	A	П	R	E	c	ØI	RIC	1	Т	Ŷ	P	ε	1	JH	1	c	H		С	A	N	e	λE	1-	Π	ſŤ	Ť	T	T	ht	1	T		W.	$\langle \rangle$	Щ
26		1	6	1	D	E	N	T	IF	I	E	D		B	1	T	Н	ε	0	: 0	sic	e		u	D	E	P	T	"	T	AF	P	ε	A	R	1	VK		1	N	T	Ρ	ø	s	r l'	r r	0	N	5	T	T	T	T	IT	T	T	M	N/V	$\langle \rangle$	Ť,
0 7	T	1	ł	-	77	-	8	0	0	F		Т	H	εĪ	1	N	Ρ	U	r	F	2 6	c	ø	R	D		Π	Π	H	E	1	A	IN	6		1	ī.	1	NE	T	1	S		U.	518	: 0	厂	1	N	T	\uparrow	T	T	H	T	T	T))		$\langle \rangle$	1
0 8		: 3	R I	0	R	D	E	R	T	ø		s	P	EC	:1	F	Y	1	70		5	T	1	Ø	N	A	L	Ĥ	C	HI/	AF	A	C	T	E	R	5	1	19	5	Þ	A	R	T	C	ØF	t	T	H	E	+	T	T	H	T	1	N	8//8	ΛŅ	1
οs		1	F	F	È	C	Ø	R	D	I	D	ε	N	T	IF	1	С	A	rli	10	SA	I	c	ø	D	ε			T	T	1	Ť	T	Γ		1	T	T	T	t	Ť	ľ		Ť	Ť	Ť	T	T	Π	Π	1	t	T	Ħ	T	T		Ŵ	$\langle \rangle$	
10		I	K	1	T	Ī		Ť					1	T	T	Ħ			T	T	T	T	T	1	Π	Π	Π	T	T	+	T	T	t	T	H	1	1	1	T	T	t			1	\dagger	T	t	T	Ħ	ſŤ	Ť	t	T	ΓŤ	1	\dagger		ΜN.	Ŵ	$\langle \rangle$
1 1		1	K I	TH	IΕ		"	ø	e "		L	I	N	ε	A	L	L	01	Je	3	A	N	T	A	L	T	E	R	NI	AF	TΕ	T	C	ø	D	E	Ŧ	τį	8	B	E		s	PI	E	:1	F	1	ε	D		T	T	Ħ	T	T	M	N/V	$\langle \eta \rangle$	11
1 2		1	K	Π	-H	U	S		A		D	I	G	1	r	9		II	1	1	r h	ΙE	T	F	1	R	S	F	Ī	PI	2E	1	Π	1	Ø	N	T	1	iL	L	T	Δ	L	s	2	9	ΪE	R	V	E	1	t	T	H	1	+	M	χ/χ	χ	1
1 3		1	•	Π	ø		1	DI	EN	F	I	F	Ŷ	T	TH	ε		RI	k	k	XR	20	T	Т	ų	P	ε		T	E	VE	N	T	Ī	F	1	τh	HE	T	F	1	R	S	T	1	20	sla	E	Ť	Ĩ	1	T	17	Ħ	T	T	Ŵ	<i>\$\\</i>	Ŵ	1
1 4		1	6	C	Ø	E	5	1	uø	F		A	P	PE	A	R		11	J	ĥ	1	E	T	I	N	P	U	F	T	RI	ε	e	R	D		1	T	T	T	Ť	f	Ť		+	Ť	ſ	F	T		ſŤ	+	T	Ħ	ht	1	+		V/X	Ŵ	
1 5		I	4	T	Γ	Π		T	T	Γ			T	T	T	Π			T	T	T	T	Т	Γ	Π	Π	Π	1	T	T	T	T	T	ſ	Π		T	T	T	T	T	Π	1	T	T	T	Γ	Τ	П	T	T	T	T	Π	T	T	M	XXX	$\langle \! \! \rangle$	
16	T	1	6 1	FØ	SR		7	H		A	B	ø	V	E	R	ε	С	Ø	2	5	T	·Y	P	E	5		ε	I	TI	HI	εR	2	T	H	Ε	1	N	Ø	slp)		D	E	P	r	1	Ī	N	Π	T	T	T	T	Ħ	T	T		ЖŅ	Ň	(Ì)
17		1		F	ø	s	1	7	10	N	s		7	7.	. 8	10		Ø	2	K	1	D	I	G	Ī	Т	Π	9	T	I	И	P	ø	5	1	T	1	34	I	1	T	C	ø	R	E	30	T	H	D	T	1	T	T	Π	T	T	N)	<u>8</u> ///	$\langle \! \! \rangle$	$\langle \rangle$
18		1)	ŧ	h	II	L	L	1	2A	u	5	E	ŀ	TI	1E	Π	L	1	1	A	10	1	C	A	T	ø	R		TK	Ø	E	BE	Г	T	U	R	Ule	1	5	R	SN			T	T	T	Γ	Γ	Π	T	T	T	T	Π	T	T	M	N/N	$\langle \rangle$	11

G14035

Figure 8-2. AND/OR Relationships - Record Identification Codes

another record type within a sequenced group. The program will automatically check the designated order as the records are read.

The first sequenced record type specified must have the lowest sequence number (01), the next record type should be given a higher number, etc. Gaps in sequence numbers are allowed, but the numbers used must be used in ascending order.

If a record is encountered that is out of sequence, the program will halt. The system operator can order the program to resume, at which time it will ignore the record that is out of sequence and read the next record from the file.

Records in an AND or OR line cannot have a sequence field entry; the entry from the previous line also applies to the line with the AND or OR entry.

In the example shown in figure 8-3, the input file PRCARD contains two record types which are to be sequence checked. Each group of input records of the input file PRCARD must contain exactly one of the first record type which may be followed by any number of records of the second type. A record identifying indicator of L1 is assigned to the first record type, so that a control break will occur each time the first record of a new group is read. Refer to figure 8-4 for an example of how to code the SEQUENCE field when both alphabetic and numeric entries are desired.



G14036

Figure 8-3. Input Sequence Checking

17 NUMBER

This field is used only if sequence checking is to be done (i.e., the SEQUENCE field contains a numeric entry). An entry in this field indicates whether more than one record of the designated type may appear in each group of a sequenced input file (see figure 8-4).

Records in an AND or OR line cannot have a NUMBER field entry; the entry from the previous line also applies to the line with the AND or OR entry.

Valid entries for the NUMBER field are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Record types are not being se- quence checked (SEQUENCE field contains alphabetic entry).
1	Not more than one record of this type will be present in each sequence group.
N	One or more records of this type will be present in each sequence group.

8 L Ġ.

Burroughs REPORT PROGRAMING LANGUAGE



Printed in U.S. America

1055860

G12039



18 OPTION

This field is used only if sequence checking is to be done (i.e., the SEQUENCE field contains a numeric entry). An entry in this field indicates whether certain record types are optional. An alphanumeric "O" entry specifies that a record of this type may or may not be present in each group of a sequenced file. If this field is left blank, each group may contain one or any number of records of this type, depending on the entry in column 17 (see figure 8-4).

Records in an AND or OR line cannot have an OPTION field entry; the entry from the previous line also applies to the line with the AND or OR entry. Valid entries are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Record type must be present in each group.
0	Record type is optional, and may not be present in each group.

If all record types in a file are designated as optional, no sequence errors will be detected.

Example Coding of Sequence, Number, and Option Fields

Figures 8-4A, B, and C illustrate coding of the sequence, number, and option fields on the Input Specifications. Following each figure is a description of the specified record sequence. In conjunction, tables 8-1, 8-2, and 8-3 list possible sequences which records from SEQ1, SEQ2, and SEQ3 can appear in for figures 8-4A, B, and C, respectively. The records from the SEQ1, SEQ2, and SEQ3 files are read sequentially.

The sequence the records from SEQ1 (as specified in figure 8-4A) can appear in is as follows:

- a. A record with a 1 in column one must be read first. Subsequent records with a 1 in column one must follow records with a 2 or 3 in column one.
- b. A record with a 2 in column one must follow a record with a 1 in column one.
- c. A record with a 3 in column one must follow a record with either a 1 or 2 in column one.

Records with a 2 or 3 in column one are optional, but at least one of these records must appear after each record with a 1 in column one.

Figure 8-4A is used in conjunction with table 8-1.

Burroughs REPORT PROGRAMING LANGUAGE

1

	PF	100	RA	м	ID																																				1	R	06	R.	4 1	1MI	R													Ρ	AG	ε		D4	Δ.T.F	:		01	F					
I			1	2																										11	١P	U	T	S	Pf	ΞC		=10	c/	47	-10		NS	5															P	RC)GF	RA TIF	.M			.	75	T	T	<u> </u>		80]	
FORM	TY	PE			SI	=0			IBE CE	R		٦					_ F	ε	20	RD		DE	N7	FIF	YI	N	3 1	iN	DI	CA	۸T	OF S	₹ TA	Cł	ĸΕ	R	P SE	AC	CK	EC T) _	٦	D)EC	M. Cin		CH	IN OS	G F		LD IS-	s	OR CO	C NT	HA FR(G I	FIE E La	LD	•S -	1		— F	-IEI	ו LD	- R	EC	:OR		RE		י גדו	ON
	Т	T								Т	┢	Π	Т	Π	-	h				_	R	EC	OF	RD	10	E	νT	ÎF	=10	CA'	TI	ON	10	:0	DE	s				-	Π	rt	T			_			~		T	Ħ								h		h	П		F	IE!	LD			Т				-
											ł			ł	,	$\left \right $				1				Ι				2			_						3	_			ļŧ	ĺŧ				-0				<u> </u>	<u></u>	ļ							,		,	Ļ		,	11	٧D	10	AT	OR	s				
LINE				FI	LE	NΑ	M	E									РО	sı	тю	лс	NOT (N)	C/Z/D	CHARACTER		209	517	ΊC)N	NOT INI		CIZIU	CHARACTER	PC	SI	TI	101	N	NOT (N)	C/Z/D	CHARACTER				F	RC	M			то)			FI (V N/	EL AF	.D RIA IE)	NA	.E	Ξ		•					PLUS	>>	SINIM	CONIN	ZERO OR	BLANK	1	NC)T EC)
3	5	6 /						T	14	15	16		18	8 1	9	20	21		Γ	24	2	5 26	6 2	72	8	ſ	_	31	3	23	33	34	35	Г	Т	3 T	18	39	40	41	42	43	4	4	T	1	74	8	Т	-5 T	15	52 5	53	-		T	Ť	58	59	60	61	62	63	64	65	66	67	68	69	70			\overline{M}	74 (\\\
0 1	+		E	Q	1	-	\vdash	╀	-	O	1	1	╇	-	0	1			┝	1	+	F	1	4	+	+	-	┝	╀	-+	+	-	┢	┝	+	+	+	+		-	\vdash	┝	╞	+	+	+	+	+	+	+				-			2	-				μ	Η	Н	\vdash	+	\vdash	$\left \right $	\vdash	+	H	\mathcal{H}	\mathbb{A}	\mathbb{A}
0 2	+	+	+	-	┝		-	+	+						0	1	_	-	┝		$\left \right $			+	+	+		┝	+	╉	+	+	-	┢	╀	+	+	+			-	\vdash	╀	╉	+	ł	4	╉	+	┦	L IC	4	-		C	5		4	-		-	Н	\vdash		\vdash	+	┢╌┥		\vdash	-	₩,	\mathcal{M}	#	\mathcal{M}
0 3	+			-	┝	-	┝	t	+	ľ	10	4	44	4		4			┢	F	+	ľ	- 0	4	+	-+		┝	+	+	+	+	F	┢	+	+	+	┥	-	-	\vdash	\vdash	╀	+	+	-	1	-	+									-	-	-		Η	\vdash	Η	\vdash	+	$\left \right $	$\left \right $	\vdash	f	\mathcal{H}	\mathcal{H}	#	h
0 5	-	+	+	-	-	-	+	+	╀	1	12	1			0	2			┝	1	+	C	. 2	╷┼	+	-		┢	+	+	+	+	-	┢	+	+	+	+		-	┝	┢	+	+	+	+	4	+	+-	-	+	4		5		-		4		-	-	Η	⊢┥	Н	$\left + \right $	+	H	$\left \right $	\vdash	-f	H	\mathfrak{M}	\mathbb{H}	\mathbb{H}
0 6	+		+	┼─		-	+-	+	t	f		1		Ŧ		3		-	┢	┢	+	F	₽	+	+	+	-	┢	+	╉	+	+	<u> </u>	┢	+	╉	+	+	-			\vdash	╀	╉	╉	+	1	Ť	+	1	1			r	F	,	n	2	-	-		Η	H			+	$\left \right $			+	#	#	\parallel	$\langle \rangle$
0 7	+			┢	+-	-		+	┢	\dagger	+	\dagger	\dagger	\dagger	-				-	t	\uparrow	t	╉	\dagger	+	+		-	+	╉	+	1		t	+	╉	+	+	-				t	╋	+	-	4	+	+	ſ	7	1			E			4				Η	H	Π		+	H		H	1	$\langle \! \! \rangle$	$\forall h$	\parallel	$\langle \rangle \rangle$
0 8	+	$\frac{1}{1}$	+	-	┢	-	-	+	╋	╀	╀	╀	\dagger	╉	-				┢	†-		\dagger	+	\dagger	+	+	-		+	+	+	1		t	+	+	+	-	-		┝	\vdash	t	+-	╈	+	╋	+	+	+	1	+	+	+		+	-+					Η	\vdash		$\left + \right $	+	\uparrow	H	+	-	(₩	$\langle \rangle$	$\langle \rangle$	$\langle \rangle \rangle$
0 9	1	ī		t	1-			T	+	t	+-	t	t	\dagger					F	t	T	t	Ť	t	1	1			+	†	+	1		T	t	t	1	+			F	F	t	╋	+	1	t	Ť	+	t	t	1	Ť	1	1		1		-	-		Π	Π		<u> </u>	1		i		1	Ť,	Ŵ	$\langle \! / \! / \! /$	$\langle \rangle \rangle$
1 0	1	ī	+	1		-	+	\uparrow	+	t	+	\dagger	t	t	-	-			-	1	1	+	\dagger	t	+	+		F	\dagger	+	+	-		T	t	t	+	-			\vdash	T	t	1	+	1	t	+	+	Ť	╋	1	+	1		1	1			_			H			1	+	+	i t		W.	Ŵ	χ	χ
1 1	Ţ	i T	1	ſ	1		1	t		t	t	T	t	t						F	t	T	Ť	T				Γ	Ť	Ť	1	1	[Γ	t	1	1	1					T		1		T	+-	1	1	Ť	1	1	1								П				1			[]	T	Ŵ.	$\langle \rangle \rangle$	$\langle / /$	$\langle \rangle \rangle$
1 2	Ţ	i		T	T			T	T	T	T	T	T	T				-		Γ		T	T	T				Γ	T	T	T	1	1		T	T	T	T					T		T	T	T				T	1											Π		T	1	T	Π	\square	T	Ŵ.		$\langle \! / \! / \! /$	$\langle \eta \rangle$
1 3		I								T	T	T	T	T						Γ	I		T	T					T	T	T	1		Γ	T	T		1					Τ	T	T		T	T	T		T	T			T	T	Τ						Π			1		Π		T	Ŵ	$\langle \rangle$	$\langle \! \! \rangle$	(
14	Ī									Γ			T									T		T					I		Ι				I												T																			1		\Box		T	M	M	\mathbb{Z}	
1 5		I				~								Ι																			L																																								M	$\langle \rangle$
	Τ	I							Γ	Γ	T	Γ	Γ	T										T					Γ	T	J					Ι	T						Γ					I			Ι															Ι		Π		T	M			$\langle \rangle$
		1								Ι		Ι	Ι	Ι										Ι	T					Ι	Ι				Γ	Ι		Ι							Ι		Ι	Ι	T		Ι	I																			M		M	$\langle N \rangle$
		t I												Ι									Ι		Ι					Ι																					Ι		Τ	ł																	Ŵ	M		$\langle \langle \langle \rangle \rangle$
Printe	d ir	n U	s /	٩m	eric	a																																																	_	_		-			-		-								1	05	58	60



G12064

Table 8-1 lists one possible sequence in which records may appear from SEQ1. Asterisks denote out of sequence records. This table is used with figure 8-4A.

Relat Reco Numl	tive ord oer	Data in Column One
1 2 3 4		1 2 3 1
5 6 7		1* 2 1
8 9 10		3 2** 1
11 12 13		2 2*** 3
*	Expects or 3 in	a record with a 2 column one.
**	Expects in colum	a record with a l n one.
***	Expects or 3 in	a record with a l column one.

Table 8-1. SEQ1 Data File

Figure 8-4B is used in conjunction with table 8-2.

The sequence the records from SEQ2 (as specified in figure 8-4B) can appear in is as follows:

- a. A record with a 1 in column one must be read first. Subsequent records with a 1 in column one must follow records with either a 1, 2, or 3 in column one.
- b. A record with a 2 in column one must follow a record with a 1 in column one.
- c. A record with a 3 in column one must follow a record with a 1 or 2 in column one.

1

Burroughs REPORT PROGRAMING LANGUAGE





Figure 8-4B. Input Specifications for DISKIN (SEQ2)

8-8B

🖌 🕒

Table 8-2 lists one possible sequence in which records may appear from SEQ2. Asterisks denote out of sequence records. This table is used with figure 8-4B.

Rel Re Nu	ative cord imber	Data in Column One
	1	1
	2	2
	3	2*
	4	3
	5	1
	6	3
	7	2**
	8	1
	9	1
1	.0	1
*	Expects a in column	a record with a 1 or 3 n one.
**	Expects a column of	a record with a l in ne.

Table 8-2. SEQ2 Data File

Figure 8-4C is used in conjunction with table 8-3.

The sequence the records from SEQ3 (as specified in figure 8-4C) can appear in is as follows:

- a. A record with a 1 in column one must be read first. Subsequent records with a 1 in column one must follow records with a 1, 2, or 3 in column one.
- b. A record with a 2 in column one must follow a record with a 1 in column one.
- c. A record with a 3 in column one must follow a record with a 1 or 2 in column one.

Burroughs REPORT PROGRAMING LANGUAGE





Figure 8-4C. Input Specifications for DISKIN (SEQ3)

8-8D

Table 8-3 lists one possible sequence in which records may appear from SEQ3. Asterisks denote out of sequence records. This table is used with figure 8-4C.

Re I	elative Record Number	Data in Column One
	1	1
	2	1
	3	2
	4	2*
	5	3
	6	1
	7	3
	8	3**
	9	1
	10	- 3
	11	1
	12	2
	13	1***
	10	1
*	Expects a re column one.	ecord with a 3 in
**	Expects a recolumn one.	cord with a l in
***	Expects a recolumn one.	cord with a 3 in

Table 8-3. SEQ3 Data File

19-20 RECORD IDENTIFYING INDICATOR

This field may be used for the following purposes:

- a. To assign an indicator to each record type.
- b. To indicate look-ahead fields.
- c. To specify spread cards.

Entry	Definition
01-99	Record identifying indicator.
L1-L9	Control level indicator.
LR	Last record indicator.
H0-H9	Halt indicator.
TR	Spread cards.
**	Look-ahead field.

If this entry is blank a warning will be emitted. The various indicators are defined in the following paragraphs.

Record Identifying Indicator 01-99

Each input file may contain different types of records requiring different operations. Record identifying indicators are used to signal to the rest of the program cycle the type of record just read. When a specific record type is selected for processing, its corresponding identifying indicator is turned ON. This indicator remains ON for the rest of the current program cycle and may be used to condition various calculation and output operations, as desired. All record identifying indicators are turned off at the same point in the program cycle. Each record identifying indicator may be ON for any one file at any one record identifying indicator may be More than one record identifying indicator ON at any one time, each one associated with a different file (i.e., through CHAIN or READ operations).

Record identifying indicators do not have to be assigned in any order. If the same operations are to be performed on different record types, the same indicator may be assigned to more than one type.

Record identifying indicators are not allowed in an AND line, but indicators may be specified for every record type that requires special processing in an OR relationship.

Control Level Indicator L1-L9

A control level indicator is used instead of a record identifying indicator when a record type, rather than a control field, signals the start of a new control group. This use of the control level indicator does not cause the lower control levels to turn ON. Refer to the CON-TROL LEVEL field for a complete description of control level indicators.

Last Record Indicator LR

The last record indicator is used instead of a record identifying indicator when a record type, rather than automatic End-of-File, signals the end of processing. Final total operations are conditioned by this indicator.

Halt Indicator HO-H9

A halt indicator is used instead of a record identifying indicator when the occurrence of a specific record type denotes a desired condition requiring a program halt.

Look-Ahead Field **

Look-ahead fields are specified by placing asterisks in columns 19 and 20. All fields named in columns 53 through 58 on the specifications lines following the look-ahead specifications are look-ahead fields.

Look-ahead fields can be used to:

a. Determine when the last record in a particular control group is being processed.

1

b. Extend the use of the matching record function.

Rules for Look-Ahead Fields.

The following rules must be observed regarding look-ahead fields:

- a. Look-ahead fields can be specified for input, update, or combined files that are primary or secondary files, regardless of whether or not they are processed by record address files.
- b. Look-ahead fields cannot be specified for combined files, demand files, or for files that specify spread card records.
- c. One set of look-ahead fields can be specified per file, and the field descriptions apply to all records in that file.
- d. Look-ahead fields can not be used as result fields in calculation operations.
- e. The name given to a look-ahead field must not occur on any other Input or Extension Specification.
- f. If the look-ahead field occurs on an Output Specification, blank after must not be specified.
- g. When a program needs to access information before and after the record is selected for processing, the field must be described twice with different names (once as a look-ahead field and once in the normal way). Refer to figure 8-5.
- h. The ** line cannot follow a record type description that has a numeric sequence entry.
- i. Columns 17-18 and 21-74 must be left blank.
- j. Any combination of alphabetic characters or blanks can be entered in columns 15-16 except ND and R \emptyset (\emptyset = blank).
- k. The fields themselves are described on the lines following the ** line. When fields are described, columns 7-42 and 59-74 must be blank.
- 1. When the last record of a file is being processed, any lookahead fields for that file contain all "9's" (signed numeric or alphanumeric according to field type).

Figure 8-5 provides an example of how to code look-ahead fields.

Use of the Look-Ahead Feature with Input Files.

When the look-ahead feature is used with an input file, the look-ahead field allows the program to access information in a field of the next record that is available for processing. Thus, the program can use information from the look-ahead field to condition certain operations prior to the time the record is normally available for processing.

Use of the Look-Ahead Feature with Update and Combined Files.

When the look-ahead feature is used with an update or combined file, the look-ahead field usually references the current record being processed. The look-ahead file references only the next record in the





file when the current record was not read from the file. Therefore, when an update or combined file is the only file being read, the lookahead field always references the current record.

Processing Two Input Files Using the Look-Ahead Feature.

Figure 8-6 shows processing of records from two input files, one of which is a primary file and the other a secondary file. All primary records are processed before any secondary records are available. Therefore, to use data from the secondary file while processing the primary file record it is necessary to use the look-ahead feature.

Record	Drocessed	Look-Ahead
	FIOCESSEU	<u>Records Available</u>
	P1	P2 S1
	S1	P2 S2
	S2	P2 S3
	S3	P2 S4
	P2	P3 S4
	S4	P3 S5
	S5	P3 S6
	S6	P3 S7
	P3	P4 S7
	P4	P5 S7
	S7	P5 S8
	P5	P6 S8



G14037

Figure 8-6. Records Available for Look-Ahead: Two Input Files

Processing an Update File and a Secondary File Using Look-Ahead.

Figure 8-7 shows processing records from an update file and a secondary input file.

Record Processed	Look-Ahead <u>Records Available</u>	<u>)</u>
Ul	U1 S1	
S1	02 $S2$	
S2	U2 S3	
S 3	U2 S4	
U2	U2 S4	
S4	U3 S5	
S5	U3 S6	
56	U3 S7	
U3	U3 S7	
114	U4 S7	
S7	U5 S8	





Figure 8-7. Records Available for Look-Ahead: One Update File, One Input File

Spread Card Indicator TR

Spread card records can only be used with primary or secondary input card files that do not have look-ahead fields. A spread card record consists of a header field and one or more associated trailer fields, thereby permitting the storage of more data on each card. For example, a file for an order filling program can contain an invoice number, part number, quantity, and price.

Figure 8-8 illustrates the difference between a regular data deck and a data deck in spread card format. Note that six cards are required for invoice number 1 in regular format, but only one spread card is required for the identical information. For each spread card, the header field contains INVOICE NUMBER and the trailer fields contain the set PART# QTY PRICE.

Figure 8-9 shows the Input Specifications for the spread card data deck shown in figure 8-8.



G12040

Figure 8-8. Comparison of Regular and Spread Card Data Decks

8-14

Burroughs REPORT PROGRAMMING GENERATOR



Figure 8-9. Coding for Spread Cards

Rules for Spread Cards.

The following rules must be observed regarding spread cards.

- a. Spread cards can be specified for primary or secondary input card files only.
- b. Look-ahead fields are not allowed.
- c. If sequencing is specified in columns 15-16, then an "N" must be entered in column 17.
- d. The header field specification is optional, but when specified is coded as follows:
 - 1. Describe the header fields on separate specifications lines immediately following the file and record type entries.
 - 2. Describe only the header fields that are used within the program.
- e. Enter "TR" in columns 19-20 to specify that the trailer fields are described on the specification lines that follow. All other entries on the "TR" line must be left blank.
- f. It is necessary to describe only the trailer fields that are to be used in the program. However, the fields that specify the beginning and ending position of each trailer portion must be described.
- g. All trailer fields must be of the same length and contain the same fields. Therefore, it is necessary to describe only the first trailer portion.
- h. Trailer field entries are made in columns 44-58, and all other columns are left blank.

Processing Spread Cards.

Spread cards are processed as follows:

- a. The header portion of the spread card record and one trailer portion are processed each program cycle and are treated as one logical record.
- b. The process described in step a continues until:
 - 1. All trailer portions of a record have been processed, or
 - 2. A trailer portion of a record is encountered whose fields are all blank.

When either of the described conditions occurs, the next spread card is read and processing continues.

21-41 RECORD IDENTIFICATION CODES

When more than one record type is used within a file, only one record type will be selected for processing during each program cycle. The record identifying indicator for that record type will be turned ON when it is selected and will remain ON for the rest of the current program cycle.

In order to identify the various record types to the program for the purpose of record selection, each record type must have a unique code assigned to it. This code consists of a certain character or combination of characters occurring in certain positions of the record. The record identification codes are checked according to the sequence in which they were specified, and that checking is terminated when a condition is encountered that causes a record identifying indicator to turn ON. For that reason, a record within a file that does not contain record identification codes should be specified last.

The RECORD IDENTIFICATION CODES field is used to describe the code for each record type. If all records are to be processed alike regardless of their type, or if all records are of the same type, this field should be left blank.

This field is subdivided into three subfields of seven columns each, allowing up to three code characters to be described on one line. The three subfields are taken to be in an AND relationship, and any that are not needed to specify code characters should be left blank. Each of the three subfields is divided into four entries, and coding is the same for all three subfields. The subfields are discussed in the following paragraphs.

21-24, 28-31, 35-38 **POSITION**

These fields are used to give the locations in the record of each character in the record identification code. Entries must be numeric, between one and the record length specified, inclusive, and right-justified (leading zeros are optional).

25	.3	2.	39
	, .	- ,	00

NOT

These fields are used to indicate whether the specified character must be present in the record at the designated position. Valid codes are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Character must be present in the location specified by the POSITION entry.
N	Character must <u>not</u> be present in the location specified by the POSITION entry.

191

<u>C/Z/D</u>

These fields are used to indicate which portion of the character specified in columns 27, 34, and 41 should be used for comparison: the zone, the digit, or the entire character. Valid entries are:

Entry	Definition
С	Entire character.
Z	Zone portion.
D	Numeric (digit) portion.

Every alphabetic character, numeric character, or special character is represented by a different combination of punches in the 80-column or 96column cards. Each character punched on the card is composed of **two** parts, a zone portion and a digit portion. Even after a character has been read into the machine, it is still composed of these two parts (see appendixes A and B).

A character is represented in the computer by eight bits. The first four bits comprise the zone portion and the last four bits comprise the digit portion. The configuration of these bits is set in the binary equivalent of their hexadecimal value. In appendix B, the hexadecimal value of the character A is given as Cl. Therefore, the corresponding bit configuration for A would be: $1 \quad 1 \quad 0 \quad 0 \quad 0 \quad 0 \quad 1$.

Since the character is represented by 12 punch positions on an 80-column card and six punch positions on a 96-column card, translation must take place so that it can be represented by eight bits in storage. This is an automatic function. As a result of it, however, the way characters are represented in the machine and the way they appear on the punched card are not always identical. Not all characters that have the same zone punched in the card have identical zone structures in the machine. For example, character \$ has the same zone punch in the card as character K. However, they do not have the same zone representation in the machine.

Whenever just the zone or just the digit portions of characters are used in specific functions, such as sequencing, testing, or identifying records, the exact structure of the characters in the machine must be known. For example, when identifying a record type on the basis of the zone portion of the character D, notice that several characters have the same zone structure as the letter D. If a card with the record identifying code of E is read, it is still considered to be a D type record because the zone of character E is the same as the zone of character D. The zone of the plus (+) character is treated like the zone of the characters A through I, and the zone of the minus (-) character is treated like the zone of the characters J through R, irrespective of the internal codes actually used for plus and minus.

In figure 8-10, only the records of customers whose last names begin with the letters A through I will be processed since the zone portion of A is the same as for the characters B through I. The first letter of each last name begins in column 10.



G14040

Figure 8-10. C/Z/D Coding Example 1

In figure 8-11, 5-digit employee numbers are checked to see that all 5 digits are numeric. The zone for all numeric characters is the same.

Γ				Π	T											Π		Π	Π	Γ	Π					RE	C	DR	DI	DE	NT	IFI	CA	T	0	V C	00	DES	3			
				ł											,	ł	ł		ł				1							2							3					
·L	_1	NI	Ξ					FI	LE	NA	M	E								PC	SI	тіс	N	NOT (N)	C/Z/D	CHARACTER	PC	DSI"	τιο	N	NOT (N)	C/Z/D	CHARACTER	PC)SI	тю	ON	NOT (N)	C/Z/D	CHARACTER		
3			5	ô	17								14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21			24	25	26	27	28			31	32	33	34	35			38	39	40	41		
0		1		1	E		M	Ρ	L	Y	F	I	L	A	A			1	2				1		Z	1				2		Ζ	1				3		Z	1		
0	Ī	2		1	Γ								A	N	D								4		Z	1				5		Ζ	1									

G14041

Figure 8-11. C/Z/D Coding Example 2

In figure 8-12, only persons whose names start with C, L, or T will be processed, since the digit portion of the characters L and T is the same as C.





NOTE

If packed decimal format is specified, the zone portion and the digit portion of each byte contains a numeric character. Therefore, the user must know where the numeric character he is referencing is located, i.e., either the zone portion or the digit portion.

27,34,41

CHARACTER

Any valid EBCDIC character may be used to identify the input record type. These fields are used to specify the character to be used for comparison as part of the identification code.

If none of the RECORD IDENTIFICATION codes are found on a record, the program will halt. The system operator may request resumption of the program, at which time it will ignore the record in error and read the next record from the same file (see appendix E).

Additional Record Identification Codes

If necessary, more than three record identification codes can be specified by entering "AND" in columns 14-16 of the next line. Columns 21-41 should then be coded as previously described.

It is also possible to specify an "or" relationship between records by entering "OR" in columns 14-15 of the next line. Columns 21-40 should then be coded as previously described. The capability of specifying more than three record identification codes can be used when:

a. Multiple record types have the same fields but the fields are in different positions.

- b. Multiple record types have the same field descriptions.
- c. A field occurs in one type of record but not in another.
- d. Various combinations of a, b, and c.

42 STACKER SELECT

This field is used to indicate the stacker into which the input card is to be placed after being read. Only card input or combined files may be stacker selected. Input files may be stacker selected only in the Input Specifications; combined files may be stacker selected either in the Input or Output-Format Specifications. If a combined file is stacker selected in both the Input and Output-Format Specifications, the Output-Format Stacker Specification overrides the stacker specified in the Input Specifications. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Cards automatically go to default stacker.
Numeric Entry (1-6)	Cards go into the stacker specified.

Card types identified by OR lines may be stacker selected for a special stacker by an entry in this field; however, if the STACKER SELECT field entry is left blank, the card type selected by the OR line will go to the default stacker. AND lines may not have an entry in STACKER SELECT.

At execution time, any record types specifying a stacker number higher than that available on the device being used will go to the default stacker.

This entry should be left blank for input files with multiple I/O areas, otherwise a warning is emitted that the results may not be those the user intended.

43 PACKED OR BINARY FIELD

This field is used to specify that a numeric field is in packed decimal format or binary format. Valid entries are:

Entry	Description
Blank	Field is in unpacked decimal format or is alphanumeric.
Р	Field is in packed decimal format.
В	Field is in binary format.

When the input field named in columns 53-58 is in packed decimal format, column 43 must contain a "P". When the input field is in binary format, column 43 must contain a "B".

Whether in packed decimal, or unpacked decimal format, the data may be signed at the most significant or least significant position as specified by means of column 17 of the Control Card or by use of the dollar option RSIGN. The object program automatically converts all numeric data internally during execution with the sign at the most significant position.

UNPACKED DECIMAL FORMAT

Unpacked decimal format means that each byte of storage contains one character. Each byte is divided into a 4-bit zone portion and a 4-bit digit portion. The format for unpacked decimal (left signed) is shown in figure 8-13.

-	1		9		7		6
Positive Sign	0001		1001		0111		0110
zone	digit	zone	digit	zone	digit	zone	digit

G12042

Figure 8-13. Unpacked Format for Decimal Number 1976 (Left Signed)

The format for unpacked decimal (right signed) is shown in figure 8-14:

9

1

7

6

	0001		1001		0111	Positive Sign	0110
zone	digit	zone	digit	zone	digit	zone	digit

G12043

Figure 8-14. Unpacked Format for Decimal Number 1976 (Right Signed)

When processing numeric data in the unpacked format, the zone portion is included for each digit in the number, but only the zone in the rightmost (right signed) or leftmost (left signed) digit serves as the sign (determines if the number is positive or negative).
PACKED DECIMAL FORMAT

Packed decimal format means that each byte of storage can contain two decimal numbers. The sign is included for the number, but the zone portion is omitted for each digit in the number. Each byte consists of two 4-bit digit positions. Within each number, either the leftmost or rightmost byte contains a digit and the sign, depending on whether left or right signs are desired.

When describing external data in RPG, the smallest element is a byte or character. Packed data is always character-aligned on external storage media such as magnetic tape or disk.

Unpacked decimal format means that each byte of storage contains one character. Each byte is divided into a 4-bit zone portion and a 4-bit digit portion:

zone	digit	zone	digit	zone	digit	zone	digit

Each digit portion holds one digit of the number. On conversion to packed decimal format, the zone portions are dropped, except for the sign position.

Packed data input always causes the field that is to contain the data to be of an odd size, since even-numbered digits are padded with a zero. All digits except the sign digit are considered data.

The following example illustrates the format for packed decimal data:

S	0	^d n	$^{d}2$	d1
0	d n	$\dots d_2$	d ₁	S

left signed output

right signed output

S = sign O = digit zero - (even number digits are zero padded) $d_n \cdots d_1 = digits of the field.$

Table 8-4 shows the corresponding packed field length in bytes for unpacked fields of one byte through 15 bytes in length.

BINARY FORMAT

Binary format means that two bytes of storage can contain up to four decimal numbers, and that nine decimal numbers can be contained in four bytes of storage.

Rules for Binary Format

The following rules must be observed when binary format is used:

a. Each binary field must be either two bytes or four bytes in length.

Unpacked Field Length In Bytes	Packed Field Length In Bytes
15 14	8
13 12	7
11 10	6
9 8	5
7 6	4
5 4	3
3 2	2
1	1

Table 8-4. Packed Equivalents for Unpacked Fields

- b. Binary fields cannot be used as control fields or matching fields.
- c. Each two-byte field consists of a 1-bit sign followed by a 15-bit numeric value. The numeric value must be within the range -9,999 and +9,999 inclusive.
- d. Each four-byte field consists of a 1-bit sign and a 31-bit numeric value. The numeric value must be within the range -999,999,999 and +999,999,999 inclusive.
- e. When a two-byte or four-byte binary field is assigned a value greater than it can store, the result is truncation of the leftmost (high order) digits of the decimal number.
- f. For binary fields, the leftmost bit is the sign bit and is used to indicate whether the number is positive or negative. If the sign bit is a 0 (OFF) the number is positive. If the sign bit is a 1 (ON) the number is negative. Figure 8-15 shows the format of a two-byte binary field.



Figure 8-15. Format of Two-Byte Binary Field

g. The decimal value of a binary field can be determined by adding the decimal equivalents of the binary bits that are ON. The sign bit is not included in the addition. Figure 8-16 shows how the decimal equivalents of binary bits are obtained.

Sign	16384	8192	4096	2048	1024	512	256	128	64	32	16	8	4	2	1	Decimal Equivalent
0	0	0	0	0	1	1	1	1	0	1	1	1	0	0	0	Binary Number
																$ \begin{array}{c} & & 8 \\ & & 16 \\ & 32 \\ & & 128 \\ & & 256 \\ & & 512 \\ & & 1024 \\ \hline \end{array} $
G12045																1976

Figure 8-16. Binary Representation of the Decimal Number 1976

44-51 FIELD LOCATION

This field is used to describe the location of data fields within a record, and is divided into two subfields that specify the beginning (FROM) and ending (TO) positions of the data field. A field of only one character will have the same position number entered in both sub-fields. Both entries must lie between 1 and the RECORD LENGTH. The TO entry must be greater than or equal to the FROM entry. Entries in the FROM and TO subfields must be right-justified; leading zeros are optional (figure 8-17).

The length of a packed decimal field in digits (P in column 43) is 2n-1, where n is the number of bytes occupied by the data as specified by FROM and TO.

If the FIELD NAME entry (columns 53-58) specifies an array name without an index, it is not necessary that the FROM and TO entries provide

¥.

Į	f	=1E		L	oc	AT	10	N							
	1	FR	ON	1		т	o			F ('N	JEI VA IAN	_D R1/ (E)	N/ AB	LE	E
43	44			47	48			51	52	53					58
Π				1				9	0	E	H	Ρ	N	ø	
Π			1	0			2	3		N	۵	M	E	L	
\Box			2	4			4	2	0	H	R	S			
Г			5	3			5	5	0	C	ø	D	E		
П			5	6			5	7		5	E	X			



Figure 8-17. FIELD LOCATION Coding Example

sufficient space for the whole array, as long as it is big enough for an integral number of array elements. The array will be read in from element 1 up to as many elements as will fit into the locations specified. The decimal positions must contain the same entry as specified on the Extension Specifications for that array.

52 DECIMAL POSITIONS

This field is used to specify the number of positions to the right of the implied decimal point in a numeric field. This entry may not be blank for a numeric field; if the data field contains only integral values, a 0 should be entered to indicate no decimal positions. Valid entries are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Alphanumeric field.
0-9	Number of decimal positions in a numeric field.

Any field to be used for arithmetic operations, or to be edited, must be numeric. The number of decimal positions specified cannot exceed the length of the field (as specified in the FIELD LOCATION field).

If the FIELD NAME entry (columns 53-58) on the Input Specifications specifies an array name, then the decimal positions field must contain the same entry as specified in the decimal positions field of the Extension Specification for that array.

53-58 FIELD NAME (VARIABLE NAME)

This field is used to assign an identifier (name) to an input data field. All fields that will be referenced by the program must be named. Names must be assigned in accordance with the rules for forming field names as described in Chapter 2. A previously defined vector name may be used, which allows loading of the vector during input. Refer to Section 5 for a complete discussion of this method of vector loading. A separate line must be used for each field description.

All fields within one record type should have unique names; if two or more fields within the same record have identical names, only the last one defined is used. Fields from different record types may have the same name, but all names not uniquely defined must have the same length and data type (decimal position entry). These fields do not have to occur in the same location in each record.

OR Relationship

To eliminate duplicate coding of identical fields within different record types, the OR relationship may be used. The OR relationship, illustrated in figure 8-18, shows two record types which have identical fields in the same record positions. Refer to columns 14-16 in this section.

Special Words

The following special words are reserved for use as variable names in columns 53-58 of the Input Specifications:

PAGE PAGEn (where n=1-8)

If page numbering is desired on output, the special word "PAGE" or "PAGEn" for two more printer files is used to indicate that page numbering is to be done. Page field coding is illustrated in figure 8-19.

This feature allows a page number to be entered through a field in an input record, the field called "PAGE". The page number printed will be one greater than the page number contained in the "PAGE" field of the input record. A page field is incremented by 1 each time before it is printed. The field may be defined as any length, but it must contain zero decimal positions. Unless otherwise specified, it is assumed to be four digits in length with zero decimal positions (see figure 8-19). The "PAGE" field may be used in calculations like any other field.

The same "PAGE" entry may be used for two different output files, but this is not recommended.

Figure 8-19 is an example of PAGE field coding on Input Specifications.

j	•••	-		2										_	05	рт	0	N									ļ	NI	PL	JT	S	PE	EC	۱F	10	:A	T	0	N:	S														PF ID	ROC	SR.		AT	10	N	75	1	Π	Τ	ő	י ר	
FORM	TY	PE	Ш		SE	N QU		BE CE -	R		7			٢		R	EC	OF	٩D	10)EN	ITI	FY	(IN	G	INI	210	:A'	ro s	R STA	.CF	<e< td=""><td>R:</td><td>P/ SEI</td><td>۹C LE</td><td>КЕ СТ</td><td>D</td><td></td><td>1</td><td>DE</td><td>M CI1</td><td>АТ ЛА</td><td>CH L P</td><td></td><td>G F</td><td>EIEI</td><td>LD: IS-</td><td>s o</td><td>R (</td><td>CHA TR</td><td></td><td></td><td>G F</td><td>IEL La</td><td>.DS</td><td>'n</td><td></td><td>-</td><td>FIE</td><td>LD</td><td>В В</td><td>EC</td><td>OR</td><td>DF</td><td>REL</td><td>_ AT</td><td>IGN</td></e<>	R:	P/ SEI	۹C LE	КЕ СТ	D		1	DE	M CI1	АТ ЛА	CH L P		G F	EIEI	LD: IS-	s o	R (CHA TR			G F	IEL La	.DS	'n		-	FIE	LD	В В	EC	OR	DF	REL	_ AT	IGN
	Tİ	Т							Г	┢	Tİ	Τİ	Т	+	Т					RE	CO	DR	DI	IDE	N	1F	IC.	٩T	10	N	0	DE	S				Т	İΤ	Π								Т	Г					Τ	1	Т	+	Т	t	T	F15	1.0)		T			-
	1									ļ	ļĮ		H	+	t				1				Γ			2				Г			3				1	ļ	ŧ١	F	IE	LD	LC	CA	λTI	ON								1		l		ļ		ND	DIC	AT	OR	s			
LINE		,		FI	LEP	IAN	E	14	15	16				9.2		PO	SIT	rio	'N	(N) LON 25	5 C/Z/D	2 CHARACTER	P(osi	TIC	0N	& NOT (N)	S C/Z/D	CHARACTER	P	osi	ודו	01	A NOT INI	INIT ION O	C C/2/D	CHARACTER	12	13	F	R	м	47	18	тс	 >		2 5		LD .RI ME)	NA ABI	.ME	58	¥ 59.6		1	2.6	•		sur sur	51 1911 E	SUNING C	B ZERU OR	BLANK	N U	OT SEI	2 74
01	Ĩ	F	T	11	F	Vic	м	Ť	ĥ	Ā	ť	Ť	Ť,	Ż	Ĩ	Ì		R		2.5	r	5	Ĩ.	Г	Γ	Ī	52	33	f	ľ	Г	T	Ť	T	Ť	Ť	1	-	1	T	Τ	T	1	Ť	Т	Ť	T	f	Ť	Π		T	1	T	Ť	T	Ť	Ť	T	T	f	Ì	ĹΤ	1	Ť,	T	Ť
0 2	$\frac{1}{1}$	f	t	-		1	11	\mathbf{T}	F	F	t	t	ť	+	Ť	1	1	f				-		$^{+}$	F	f		t	t	t	t	t	$^{+}$	t	\dagger	+	+	1	1	+	-		1	+	+	6	t	╞	1	5	,	7	7	+	†	\dagger	t	\dagger	t	t	t	H		+	片	t	t
03	$\frac{1}{7}$	$^{+}$	+	┢	$\left \right $	+	╋	+	┢	+	t	╈	$^{+}$	+	╉	+	-	\neg	-		-		-	+	+-	t	┢	ł	┢	┢	┢	+	+	+	+	+	┥	+	+	+	-	•	1	+	╈	2	+	t	1	E	-	2	1	+	+	+	$^{+}$	$^{+}$	+	+	┢		\vdash	+	$\frac{1}{1}$	+	t
0.1	Ŧ;	+	+	+	$\left \right $	+	+	+	┢	┢	╀	+	$^{+}$	+	╉	+	-	H	-	-			\vdash	┢	\vdash	+	┢	┢	+	┢	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	+	-	+	4	+	ť		1	ار	1	5	5		4	+	+	+	+	╈	╀	┢	┢			+	1	÷	14
	Ŧ,	╀	+	-	H	+	+	+	┝	┝	╀	╀	+	+	+	-	-	-	4		-	-	┝	+-	-	$\left \right $	-	-	+	╞	+-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	4	4	+	+	4 1	4	4	1	Ľ	5		귀	+	+	+	╀	╀	╀	┢	┝	\square		+	1	+	fil
05	+	+	+	-		+	+	+	+		╞	╋	+	+	+	-	-		_	_	-		┡	+	-	╞	-	-	-	╞	╞	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-		61	4	+	-4	69	4	₽	1	E	5	ים	4	+	+	+	╀	+	╋	+-	┡	\vdash	-	-{	1	4	1
06	+	+	+		$\left \right $	+	+	₋	B	B	1	+	÷	3	1	-	-	8	0	_	C	B	┡	╞	-	1	-	-	1	+-	┞	+	+	+	+	+	4	+	-	-	-	-	4	+	+	+	+	+	1-	\square		-+	-	+	+	+	╀	+	╀	+-	┞			+	1	4	1
0 7	1	1	_	1_	\square	_	1	1	L		L	1	4	4	4	_			_				L	L	L			L	L	L	L	1	\downarrow	1	4	\downarrow	4	1	_		_	\downarrow	1	_	-	Ę	5	F	I	ε	L	D	1	1	1	4	1				L			_	1	1	1.
08	I		1								L		1				_	Ц					L																			10	2		Ľ	2 5	5	F	I	ε	L	D	2				L							1	1	1:	1
0 5	1				11																											1										4	1		4	417	7	F	I	E	L	D	3											-			
10	1	Τ		Ι		T	Τ			Г	Γ	Τ	Τ	T	Τ			П							Γ		Γ		Γ	Г	Γ	T	Τ	T		T	Τ	Τ				60	0		1	60	3	F	1	Ε	L	D	4	T	Τ	T	Т	T	Т	T		Γ			T	T	1
1 1	I	H	k	1			T	T	T	T	T	T	T	1	T			П							T	Γ	T	ſ		T	t	T	T	T	T	T	1	1		1		1	1	T	T			Ť	T			=†	1	1	1	t	t	t	t	t	t	Π		1	1	Ŧ	1
1 2	Ti	-	6	Т	H	E	F	E	c	ø	R	2	5	ſ	5	E	s	c	R	1	P	Т	5	ø	N	5	t		A	0	V	F	t	F	R	x ^{†.}	T	ut l		c	ø	M.	Ŧ		r In	v	5	-lu	E	H	9		и	E	1	E.	F	1	h	G	t	Η	H	+	Ì.	Ŧ	1.
1 3	1	1	4	t	F	ц		4	1	6	Ť	T		F	-	c	P	1	P	Ť	1	ø	N	G	Ë	r	5	5	ľ	P	F	f	t		x	- u	È		1	F	D		i l	S	+		ť	ľ		H		a		-	ť		T		ľ	1	ŀ	H	\square	t	1	\dagger	t
14	h	1	ì	İ	Δ	5	4	L L	6	w	1	ť		RI		1	ø	W	-	ŀ	1	1	F	ľ	1	ľ	F	ľ	t	ť	f	t	t	1	Ť	4	4	ť	-	-	=	1	Ť	-	+		1	f				7		+	ť	-+'	ť	1	ľ	+	+		\square	+	1	+	t
1 5	I	ť	+	+	f	4	٢		٣	f	f	╀	ť	4	Ŧ	-	-	Ť	÷	-	\vdash	H	F	t	t	t	+	t	t	t	\dagger	$^{+}$	$^{+}$	+	+	$^{+}$	+	+	1	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	$^{+}$	$^{+}$	1-	\square		+	+	+	+	ł	$^{+}$	$^{+}$	+	+	\vdash	H	\vdash	+	+	+	13
+++	+	+	+	+	H	+	+	+-	┢	+	╉	╉	+	+	+	-	-	Н	-	-	-	-	⊢	+-	+-	-	+-	-	┝	┢	┡	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	-	-	+	4	+	+	+	+	+	+	-			+	+	+	+	╀	+	╀	+-	┞	Н	\vdash	+	+	+	H

	ΡΑ	GF	: ſ	1	2											_		- (OP	τŀ	10	N											11	١F	U	T	S	PE	EC	IF	10	CF	١T	IC	N	IS																PF ID	10) 13(GR VTI	AN FI	.1 CA	TE	ON	, [75	Π	Π	Γ	Γ	50		
FORM	ידו	(PI	Ľ	1			SE	QL	NU JEI	IM NC	BE E	R .		٦				Г		RE	ΞC	:01	RC)	DE	N	TI	Ŧ٧	IN	G	łſs	D	IC.	٩T	OF S	R TA	.Cł	٢E	R	P. SE		к	ED		٦	р	EC	MA IM		Р		ан ат	FIE	LC NS-	s	OR CO	C	HA 'RC	INI DE		S F VE	IEL La	_D:	۶٦		r	- F	IEL	_D	RF	EC(OR OR	 ວ	RE		TH	'nC
		ħ				-		-				Π	-	П	Τ	Π		t	T			_	-	R	50	:0	RC)	DE	N	TI	FI	CA	τı	10	٧ (:0	DE	S		-	-	٦	ħ	ſŤ	Ē	_	-			-			T	Π						Т	1	Т	1	Τ	$^{+}$	Т	E	IEL	D			1	—			٦
		ł											ļ	H		ł		ł	Γ	-	_		1				Τ				2				٦	Γ			Э	;				ŧ	ł		FI	EL	D	LO	CA	T	ION	1	IJ						1	1	.	1	.	ţ		11	101	iC.A	AT	۶C	s	Ĺ			1
LIN	E	£	7		F	IL	E	A	ME		14	16	16				0	20	P	05		ГIС	24	NDT (N)	0.2.0	CIADACTED		PO	sı	тю	010	2 1.0T /11	S NOT (N)	s c/z/D	CHARACTER	P(DSI	.т.	101	2 0		s c/z/D	CHARACTER	5	17		Ff	10	м	Ī	•	т	5			F1 (V N/	EL AF	D I RIA E)	BL	ME E		•				•		PLUS		MINUS	5	ZERO OR	3 BLANK		NC	IT ED	
01	Í	I	F	T	6	L			^	1	<u> </u>	Ā	h	ť	Ŧ	1	0	Ā	Ť	Ť	T	0	ĥ	1°	L	Ť	Ĵ	٦		Γ	ľ	Ť	1	-	24	,5	Г	Т	T		1	40	<u>"!</u>	<u>47</u>		ľ	Г	T	Ť	Ŧ	Ť	Т	Ť	+	1	T	1	Т	Т	Ť		T	4	T	+	Ť	1	T	7	Ť	7	Ţ	÷	h	17	्य	1
0 2		1	<u>.</u>	•		ť	-	1	1	-1	0	P	F	t	t	1	2	4	t	\dagger	+	R	5	t	1		2	-	_	F	t	†	+		-	F	t	t	+	+	+	1	-	-		F	t	t	$^{+}$	╉	+	+	+	┫	1	+	+	+	+	\dagger	╉	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	-	H	Ċ.		Ľ,
03		I	-		F	t	1	1		-	٢	ľ	\vdash	t	t	1	<u>ر</u>	ŀ	t	\dagger	1		۲	t	ť	1	1			h	t	t	1	-	-	F	t	t	t	$^{+}$	+	+			-	t	t	t	t	t	\dagger	+	1	5	1	F	T I	F		D	1	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	1	+	-	1	11		Ť.
0 :		I				t	1		-				t	t	t	1		t	t	t	1			t	t	t	1		-	F	t	t	1		-	F	t	t	t	\dagger	1	1		-		t	t	t		1	\dagger	1	2		1	F	,	E			2	+	1	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	1	+	_	Ħ	Ē		ï,
0 5		I			T	t	1	1	-			F	İ	t	ţ	1		T	T	t	1	Π		t	t	t	1			Г	t	t	1		-	T	t	t	t	\dagger	1	1				t	t	1	¢ 1	Ť	+	t	4	7	2	F	1		1	D	3	+	1	+	1	+	1	†	+	\dagger	1	1	~				Ť.
0 6		I			Γ	T	1					Γ		T	T	1			T	T	1		Γ	T	T	T	1				T	T	1		1	Γ	T	t	t	Ť	1					T	Г	6	δC	5	T	T	6	9	1	F	T	E		D	4	Ť	1	T	1	1	1	1	1	1		1	-	È		Ì	
0 7		I				T	1							T	T	1			T	T	1			T	T	T	T			Γ	T	T	T			Γ	Γ	t	T	T	T	1			_	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	1		1		1		1	Ť	1	1	1	1	T	1	T	1	1	1	1		Ē		7	Ň
08		Ι			Γ	T	1						Γ	T	T	1			T	T	1			T	T	T	T		-	Γ	T	t	1		1	Γ	T	t	t	t	1	1				Γ	T	T	T	t	T	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	T	†	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	+	1	1		Н	Н		7
СЭ		I			Γ	T							Γ	Γ	T	1			T	T	1			Γ	Ι	T	Τ			Γ	T	Τ				Γ	Γ	T	T	T	1					Γ	Τ	T	T	T	T	T		T	1		1		T	1	T	1	1	T	1	1	1	1	1	T	T	1		1		1	3
10		1				T							I	T	T	1			T	T	1			T	T	T	T			Γ	t	T	1			Γ	T	T	T	T	1	1				Г	T	T	T	T	T	1	T	1		1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	†	1	1	1	1	1	1		Ň		T	Ĵ.
1 1		I			Γ	T	T						Ι	Γ	T	Ι			Τ	T	1			Ι		T	T		_	Γ	Τ	T				Γ	Γ	T	T	T	T					Γ	Г	T	T	T	T	T	T	1		1	Τ	1	T	T	T	1	1	T	1	T	1	1	1	T	T	1		Ē	ĥ,	N	
1 2		I				T	T							Γ	T	1			T	T	T			T	T	T	T			Γ	T	T	1			Γ	Γ	T	Ť	T	T					Γ	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	1		Ť	1	Ť	1	1	1	1	1	+	1	+	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	Ŕ	$\overline{\mathbf{N}}$	Ť	
1 3		1				T								T	T	1			Γ	T	1			T	T	T	T		_	Γ	Γ	T	1		-		Γ	T	T	T	1	1				Г	T	T	T	t	T	T	T	1	1	1	1	T	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	Ť	1	+	1	+		1	-	Ċ.		N	
14		1				T								T	t				T	T	T			T	T	T	T		-	Γ	T	T	1			Γ	Γ	t	t	Ť	Ť	1		-		F	t	t	T	t	t	1	T	1		1	1	1	1	†	1	1	1	1	1	Ť	1	+	1	+	1	1				Ń	
1 5		I				T	T								T	I				T	T				T	T	T			Γ		T	T			Γ	Γ	T	T	T	T	1	1			Γ	Γ	T	T	T	T	1	T	1	1	1	1	1	T	1	T	T	1	1	1	T	1	T	1	1	1	1	1	ñ	1	T	
G14	04	4			1	Т	1	1				-	-	r	T	7		1	Г	T	1	_		1	1	T	T				1	1				,,	-	+	+-	+	1	-	-			-	1	1	-	+	1	+	-+	1	+	+	+	+	1	-	+	-	+	-+	+	-	+	+	+	+	+	+	-		H	-+	-

Figure 8-18. OR Relationship - Identical Fields Within Different Record Types



Figure 8-19. PAGE Field Coding

59–60 CONTROL LEVEL

This field is used to assign control level indicators to primary or secondary files. Any field other than a whole array or a look-ahead field may be assigned a control level indicator, in which case it is known as a Control Field. Control fields are checked each program cycle for a change in information; when data in the field changes, a control break occurs. A group of records with the same information in the control field is known as a Control Group. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
L1-L9	Control level field assigned.
Blank	No control elevel field as- signed.

A control break occurs when a record containing a control field is read and the information in that control field is different from the information in the same control field of the previous record. When a control break occurs, the designated control level indicator turns ON, along with all control level indicators lower than it. For example, if control level indicator L5 is turned ON, L4, L3, L2, and L1 are also automatically turned ON. Control level indicator L0 is always ON and cannot be assigned to a control field. However, L0 can be used to condition total calculations or total output.

A control level indicator may be turned on or off by SETON or SETOF, or may be used as a record identifying indicator. However, in such cases, control level indicators lower than the one specified are not turned on or off automatically.

Control level indicators are used to condition operations, such as:

- a. Calculations that must be performed when a control group changes (totals, etc.).
- b. Operations that must be performed on the first card of a new control group.
- c. Summary punching or total printing that must be performed for each control group.

Control level indicators can be used in input, calculation, and output specifications. The following rules must be observed when assigning control level indicators:

- a. The same control level indicator may be used in different record types or files; however, the control fields associated with that indicator must be of the same length. (See figure 8-20).
- b. Field names have no effect upon the control level indicator assigned; therefore, control fields in different record types may have both the same name and the same indicator assigned.
- c. The maximum size of a control field is 255 characters.
- d. Within one record type, control fields may overlap.
- e. Numeric control fields are treated as though they had no decimal positions.
- f. For numeric control fields, only the digit portion of each character is compared; thus, negative numbers are treated the same as positive numbers.
- g. All control fields with the same control level indicator are considered numeric if any one of those fields is described as numeric.
- h. Control levels need not be written in any special sequence, and gaps are permitted in the control levels assigned.
- i. Control fields are initialized to binary zeros.

2

j. Total calculations and total output operations are bypassed until the first cycle following a cycle in which a record specifying control field is selected. This prevents a control break from occurring the first time a record with control

P	AG	E	Ļ	2												01	РТ	101	N									I	N	ΡL	JT	· s	SPI	EC	: F	-10	CA	T	0	N	S														PF IC	107 130	GR	AI FI	И СА	. T 1)	NC	ſ	5 T	Т	T	Т	80)		
FORM	TY	PE	L		 s	EQ	N	UN EN	1BE CE	ER	_		I		1		- R	EC	OF	٩D	ID	EV.	ITI	FΥ	/IN	G	INI	DIC	CA.	то ?	R ST.	AC	KE	R	P SE	AC LE	КЕ СТ	D		1	DE	M CII	IAT MA		HN POS	G F	FIE ION	LD: IS-	s c	OR (CH. ITR		IIN LE	G I	iEI iLg	DS	۶Ţ		r	- F'	EL	D	RE	со	RD	R	EL	- АТ	101	
	T	Τ		•						Τ	t	Τ	IT	Π		T					RE	cc	R	D	ID	INT	FIF	IC	AT	10	N	cc	D	ās				I	IT	h	F	IF			204			Τ	Π					٦		Τ	1		T	Τ	FI	EL	D			Τ				
	1										ł	1	ł	ł	1	'				1				_			2	-	-	-	╞				3			-	1	ŧ١									ł							, [ł	ļ	IN			TO	RS	1				
LINE				F	11	EN	м	E									PO	SI-	гю	N	NOT (N)	C/Z/D	CHA RACTER	PC	osi	тю	NC	NOT (N)	C/Z/D	CHARACTER	P.	os	ыт	101	N	(N) LON	C/Z/D	CHARACTER			ı	FR	ом			т	D			FIE (VA NAI	LD RI ME	NA ABI)	AME LE	E							PLUS		MINUS	ZERO OR	BLANK		Ni Ui	OT	D	
3 5	6	7	7	- -			•		14	4	5 1	6 1	71	8	19 2	20	21			24	25	26	27	28			31	32	: 33	3 34	3	5		_3	8	33 4	04	114	24	13	44	_		47	48		5	15	2 5	3	T ~~	T -		58	59 E	<u>;0</u>	61 (62	63 6	64	55 6	66	7 69	3 51	9 70	2/71	1	-	74	
0 1	1	1	1	F	1	A	Т	A	1	ŀ	z۱	2			٥	9				2		C	Q	L							L												_					1																		\mathbb{N}	W	M	Ŵ	ļ
02	1												1											L							L		\downarrow										7	0		ŀ	7	5	4	11	N	ø	R		ι	1								L		\mathbb{N}	Ŵ	Ŵ	M	١
03	I	L																						L	L	L	L													_			7	6			80	2	N	AL	M	E							\downarrow							V)	Ŵ	Ŵ	Ŵ	1
0 4	I																						_				L				L												6	1		ŀ	7K	20	۶ŀ	1A	J	ø	R		L	2										\mathbf{N}	M	W.	<u>M</u>	1
0 5	1																																										5	5			6	5	h	Ø	T	A	L			3										\mathbb{N}	W)	W	M	1
0 6	1									þ	$\langle \rangle$	<u>k</u>			0	B				2	N	C	Q	L	L						L																																			$\langle \rangle$	W	W	NI.	2
0 7	1																																										1	١			20	sk	1	14	L	ø	R		L	2											XN)	W/	N	Ś
8 0	1	Ι			T	Ι	Γ			Ι																Γ		Τ		Ι		Τ	Ι	Ι		Τ			Ι				2	1		Ţ	30	>	F	= 1	L	L	ε	R		Τ			T	Ι			T		Τ	\mathbb{N}	M	N	M	Ì
0 9	I								T	Ι															Ι		Ι				I		T	T		T			Τ				3	1			30	0	1	1	N	ø	R		L	1				Τ		Τ	T	T	T		N	N	M	1
1 0	:				Τ	T			T			Τ	Ι			Ι			Π							Γ	Γ	T	Γ	T		T	T	T	T	T		T	T					5		Τ	15	5	1	Ø	T	A	L		L	3	T	Τ		T	T	T	T	Τ	T	N	M	M,	M	į
1 1	1	Ŧ	K			T		T		Ι	1		Ι			Ι			Π							Γ	Γ	Τ	T	Τ	Γ	Τ	T	Τ	Τ	Τ	Τ	Τ	Τ							Τ	Τ	Τ	Т		Τ				Τ	T	T	Τ	Τ	Т	Τ	Τ	T	Τ	Т		M	W	M	1
1 2	1	X	k	h	1	ĮE		5	S F		: 0	2		F	I	C	A	T	I	ø	N		L	1	N	E	5	,	4	١E	3	ð١	1	T	1	DI		54	: 1	R	I	в	ε		TI	N	0	F	R	C	ø	R	D		T	ų	P	E	5	,	T	T	T	T	T	N	N	M	N	Ì
1 3	1	1	K	T	E	30	1	-	1	k	XF	-	1	N	H	1	C	H	T	H	A	V	E		C	ø	N	T	R	2¢	1L	T	1	F	1	ε		D	5		D	E	F	1	NI	EI	D.	T	E	v	E	N		T	H	z	U	G	н	T	T	T	T	T	T	N	N.	M	M	í
14	I	1	K	T	1	H	E		F		IE	1		D	S	1	ø	C	C	υ	R		1	N	T	D	1	F	F	E	F	26	E)	J	T	1	P	2	5	l	т	I	ø	N	5	1	WI	ih	T	11	N	Π	T	H	E	T		1	1	1	T	T	T	T	T	VI,	W)	M)	M	Į
1 5	I	1	h		1	RE	c	0	SR	2		5	J		T	H	ε		L	E	N	G	T	Н	I	A	N		>	C	E	: (:1	1	1	AI		1	2	ø	s	I	T	1	Ø	N	5	4	1	ZΕ		T	H	E	1	s	AI	M	E	T	T	T	T	T	T	V)	(N)	M)	M	į
16	I	1	*	Τ	1	0	R	2	E	4	AC	1	1		P	A	I	R	1	T	Δ	L	s	ø	T	N	2	Ят	E	T	F	rTi	1	1	Г	Ŧ	r I	NA			L	2		1	И	4	Ja	5	2	5	A	N	D		L	3	T	1	1	1	T	T	T	T	T	ĮĮ,	W)	ĮΪ,	XII)	1
197	Ti	ĺ,	K	T	Ĩ	T	0	37		Ţ		ſ	T	c	ø	N	T	R	ø	Ţ		F	1	ε	L	D	e	<u>ن</u> ا ا	e	stv	E	T	zi	đ	4	P		1	T				1	Ì	f	1	Ť	Ť	Ť	T	ľ	t		1	=	Ŧ	1	1	-†	1	1	t	T	t	T	₩	(X)	χt	X//	1
	1	Ť	Ť	T	Ť	Ť	ľ	ť	ť	T	1	T	T			1			Ť	Ť		İ		Γ	Ť	ŕ	T	T	f	Ť	t	Ť	T	Ť	T	Ť	Ť	T	T						1	1	1	T	T	1	T				1	T	Í	1	1	1	T	T	t	T			Ŵ(M,	XЩ	ļ

Figure 8-20. Control Fields in Two Record Types

fields is read (the input control fields would usually not be equal to the value contained in the initialized control fields).

- k. Different record types in a file need not have the same number of control fields. However, the user must ensure that unwanted control breaks do not occur.
- 1. Control level indicators cannot be assigned to a binary field.

Split Control Fields

If the same control level indicator is assigned to more than one field within the same record type, the control field created is known as a Split Control Field. All fields so designated (those having the same control level within the same record type) are combined by the program in the order specified in the Input Specifications and are treated as one control field. Split control fields are illustrated in figure 8-21.

The following special rules must be observed for split control fields:

a. The same control level indicator may be used for split control fields in different record types if the field names used are different. The length of various portions of a split control

Ű.



Figure 8-21. Split Control Fields

field in one record type may be different than the corresponding portions in another record type; in fact, a control field may be split in one record type but not in another. However, the total length of the control fields (whether split or not) must be the same in both record types. For further information see FIELD RECORD RELATION (column 63-64).

- b. If one portion of a split control field is numeric, the entire field is considered numeric.
- c. Any one portion of a numeric split control field can not exceed the maximum size allowed for a numeric field, which is 15 characters. However, the total length of all fields assigned to one control level indicator (within each record type) can be as large as 255 characters.

d. A mixture of packed and unpacked control fields is allowed.

For example, consider that three different record types can have:

1. A control level specified with a field size of seven bytes.

- 2. Split control fields of three and four bytes.
- 3. A split control field consisting of two bytes containing three packed digits, one byte, and three bytes containing three unpacked digits.
- e. No other specification lines may come between lines describing split control fields.

61-62 MATCHING FIELDS

This field is used to designate matching fields for multifile processing and sequence checking. Valid entries are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	No matching fields and no sequence checking specified.
M1-M9	Matching fields and sequence checking when two or more input, update, or combined files specify the same match fields.
	Sequence checking when only one input, update, or com- bined file specifies match- ing fields.

Matching Fields

Designation of matching fields allows comparison of records from a primary file with records of one or more secondary files to determine if the records match. A maximum of nine different fields can be specified by field designators M1-M9, which are used to specify which fields in each record are to be matched.

The matching record indicator, MR, is turned ON when the contents of the primary file match field is the same as the contents of the match field of any secondary file. The matching record indicator is set ON or OFF before detail calculations during the RPG program cycle.

M1-M9 are not indicators, but cause MR to be set ON when the specified records match. MR is used to condition those operations that are to be executed when the records match.

Rules for Matching Fields

The following rules must be observed when assigning matching field values:

a. All Match Fields must be in the same sequence during input, because sequence checking is automatically done on all fields designated as matching fields. A sequence error in any field will cause a program halt. When the system operator resumes

4

program operation, the record in error is ignored and the next record from the same file is read.

- b. If matching is used, it is not necessary for all primary and secondary files to have Match Fields. Neither must all record types within a file have Match Fields. But at least one record type from two files must have Match Fields specified if the files are ever to be matched.
- c. All fields given the same matching field value (M1-M9) must be of the same length.
- d. Overlapping of different Match Fields within one record type is allowed; however, the length of any individual Match Field must not exceed 255 characters.
- e. All records to be matched must contain the same Match Fields (M1-M9); otherwise, a match may not be obtained.



When more than one Match Field is designated for a record type, all fields specified are combined in order by descending sequence of matching field values and are treated as one contiguous Match Field. The high order field is M9.

- g. Split Match Fields are not allowed; thus, the same matching field value should not be used more than once in one record type, unless field record relation indicators are used.
- h. Numeric Match Fields are treated as though they had no decimal positions.
- i. For numeric Match Fields, only the digit portion of each character is compared; thus, negative numbers are treated the same as positive numbers.
- j. All Match Fields with the same matching field value are considered numeric, if any one of the fields is numeric.
- k. In order for the matching record indicator to be turned ON, the absolute values of the data in the match fields in the secondary file must equal the absolute values of the data of the match fields in the primary file. Therefore, when more than one matching field value is used for matching records, the contents of all match fields must match before MR can be turned ON.
- 1. Field names have no effect upon the matching field values assigned; therefore, Match Fields in different record types may have both the same name and the same matching field value assigned.
- m. Whole arrays must not be designated as match fields.
- n. Records in primary and secondary files without match fields are processed before records with match fields specified.
- o. Match fields for each match field value must have the same length.

Multiple File Processing Using Matching Records

At the beginning of RPG program execution, one record is read into the input buffer of each primary and secondary file. One of these records is selected for processing according to the rules following this paragraph. After the selected record is processed, the next record is automatically read from the same file. During the next program cycle, the current record is compared with the records remaining from the previous cycle in order to select the next record.

Rules for Multiple File Processing Using Matching Records

The following rules apply to multiple file processing using matching records:

- a. If the next record from any primary or secondary file has no match fields, then that record is selected.
- b. If the records do not match and the records are in ascending sequence, then the record with the lowest match field value is selected. If records are in descending sequence, then the record with the highest match field value is selected.
- c. If more than one record satisfies either of the rules described in items a and b, the record from the highest priority file is selected. The primary file is of highest priority, followed by the secondary files in the order they are specified on the File Description Specifications.
- d. When a record from the primary file matches a record from the secondary file, the primary file record is processed first.
- e. When more than one secondary file is declared, all matching records from a secondary file are processed before control is passed to the next secondary file.
- f. Matching records allow the program to enter data from the primary record into the matching secondary record, since the primary record is processed first. Transfer of data from secondary records into matching primary records may be done through the use of look-ahead fields.
- g. The MR indicator is ON during the processing of any record containing a match field, providing the current match field value originally occurred in a primary record. Otherwise, MR is in the OFF state.
- h. MR, the matching record indicator, is turned OFF for one program cycle when a record selected by the FORCE operation is processed. If the next record not selected by the FORCE operation matches the last record with match fields specified, the MR indicator is turned ON.
- i. If the primary file has an E in column 17 of the File Description Specification but the secondary files do not, any secondary file records that match the last primary record plus any interspersed secondary file records without match fields are processed before the LR indicator is turned ON.

When the coding shown in figure 8-15 is compiled and executed, the two matching fields are combined in the ascending order of the matching field values, M1 and M2. Notice that an End-of-File is specified for the secondary file. This causes the job to end after the last record in the file, TIMECDS, is read.

Processing of matching fields proceeds as follows:

- a. When a record from the primary file matches a record from the secondary file, the primary file record is processed first.
- b. When records do not match, the record with the lowest (ascending files) or highest (descending files) Match Field value is processed first.
- c. A record type which has no matching field specification is processed immediately after the record it follows, and the MR indicator is not turned ON. If such a record is the first one in a file, it is processed first (even if it is not in the primary file).
- d. Matching records allow the program to enter data from the primary record into the matching secondary record, since the primary record is processed first. Transfer of data from secondary records into matching primary records may be done through the use of look-ahead fields.
- e. When additional secondary files are declared, all matching records are processed in one secondary file before passing control to the next secondary file. The precedence of the secondary files is determined by their order of appearance on the Input Specifications.

In figure 8-22 the two matching fields will be combined in the ascending order of the matching field values, M1 and M2. Notice that an End-of-File has been specified for the secondary file. This will cause the job to end after the last record in the file, TIMECDS, has been read.

The example shown in figure 8-23 is used to illustrate the order in which two matching fields will be processed. An End-of-File has been specified for the primary file.

The files (figure 8-23) will be processed in the following order:

- S1 Records with no matching fields are processed before records with matching fields regardless of file type.
- P1
S2
S3The MR indicator is ON. All matching secondary recordsare processed after the primary record.
- P2
- $\begin{array}{c} P3 \\ S4 \end{array}$ The MR indicator is ON.
- P4

FILE DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS





G14048



Figure 8-23. Record Selection From Two Matching Files

•

S9	When an End-of-File condition is specified for a primary file, secondary records are not processed unless the MR indicator is turned ON.
P7	Last record processed.
P6 S7 S8	The MR indicator is ON.
P5 S6	The MR indicator is ON.
S5	When no records match, the record with the lowest se- quence number is processed, regardless of file type.

The example shown in figure 8-24 illustrates the order in which records with three matching fields are processed.



```
G14050
```

Figure 8-24. Record Selection From Three Matching Files The files (figure 8-24) will be processed in the following order:

P1	
P2 1S1 2S1 2S2	The MR indicator is ON since all Match Fields match.
182	When records do not match, the lowest matching field is processed next.
P3	
1S3	
P4	
P5	
2S 3	
P6	
2S4	
P7	
P8	
1S4	
185	
186	
P9 1S7 2S5 2S6 2S7	The MR indicator is ON. 2S7 is the last record processed

Sequence 'Checking

Sequence checking of records within a file is performed when even matching field designators (M1-M9) are assigned. The sequence checking is performed in conjunction with matching records if two or more input, update, or combined files have match field designators specified.

If only one input, update, or combined file has an entry in columns 61-62, then sequence checking only is performed on the data in the fields to which M1-M9 have been assigned. A maximum of nine fields (M1-M9) within the record can be selected for sequence checking. When a record is encountered which has a field or fields out of sequence, the program halts. The system operator can cause program operation to be resumed, in which case the record in error is ignored and the next record is read from the same file.

The following rules must be observed when assigning matching field designators for sequence checking:

- a. All fields designated for sequence checking must be in the same order, either ascending or descending.
- b. When more than one field is designated for sequence checking, all fields specified are combined in order by ascending sequence of matching field designators (M1-M9) and are treated as one contiguous field.
- c. Split sequence fields are not allowed; thus, the same matching field designation should not be used more than once in the record, unless field record relation indicators are used.
- d. Numeric fields are treated as though they had no decimal positions.
- e. For numeric fields, only the digit portion of each character is compared; thus, negative numbers are treated the same as positive numbers.
- f. All sequence fields are considered numeric if any one of the fields is numeric.

The example shown in figure 8-25 illustrates coding procedures for sequence checking.

63-64 FIELD RECORD RELATION

The assignment of field record relation indicators in columns 63-64 permits data to be made available for processing only if the conditions specified in the field record relation columns are satisfied. For example, if the indicator is ON, the data is made available just prior to detail calculations. If the indicator is OFF, the field remains in its previous condition.



Figure 8-25. Coding for Sequence Checking

The following rules should be observed when assigning field record relation indicators.

- a. A field record relation indicator need not necessarily be the same as any record identifying indicator specified for the file.
- b. Fields within one record type which specify the same field record relation indicator may be entered in any order; however, the most efficient data storage is obtained when they are written as a group on specification lines following one another.
- c. All portions of a Split Control Field must be assigned the same field record relation indicator and must be written as a group on specification lines following one another.

If field record relation indicators are not to be assigned, this field should be left blank (see figure 8-26). The acceptable entries are as follows:

Entry	Definition
Blank	No field record relations.
01-99	Record identifying indicator assigned to a record type.
L1-L9	Control level indicator de- fined elsewhere.
MR	Matching record indicator.
U1-U8	External indicator defined elsewhere.
H0-H9	Halt indicator defined else- where.

Each of the entries is discussed in the following paragraphs.

01-99 <u>Record Identifying Indicators</u>

When several record types have been defined in an OR relationship, all fields defined apply to all record types. In many cases, however, not all of the record types defined have exactly the same fields. The FIELD RECORD RELATION field allows the programmer to specify that some fields apply only to certain record types and not to others. If the FIELD RECORD RELATION field is left blank, the associated field applies to all record types to which it is subordinate. However, by placing the same entry found in the Record Identifying Indicator field of one record type in the FIELD RECORD RELATION field, the field is identified as applying only to the corresponding record type.

Control Fields and Match Fields may also be related to a particular record type in an OR relationship by a FIELD RECORD RELATION entry.

When two or more Control Fields or two or more Match Fields have the same control level indicator or matching field value, respectively, only one of these may not have a field record relation indicator assigned. (This applies to a group of specifications, if it is a split control field specification.) Thus, specifications with field record relation indicators are used if that indicator is ON; when none of the field record relation indicators are ON, only the specification without any field record relation indicator is used.

L1-L9, MR Control Level or Matching Record Indicator

The use of control level or matching record indicators signifies that the data from the field is to be made available only if a control level break or matching record condition has occurred on this record.

F	AG	E	Ч	2								1	_	- (OPT	rio	N									ł	NI	٦	JT	S	PE	C	١F	IC	:A	T	0	N	S														Р I 1 С	RO DEI	GR NTI	IAN IFI	/ CA	гіс	0N	75		Π	Т	Ť	30		
FORM	TY	PE			S	ΕQ	NU UEI	ME NCI	8EF E -	۱ 				Г	_ '	REC	201	RD	ID	EN	ITI	FY	'IN	GI	N		CA1	го s	R TA	٩C٢	<e'< td=""><td>R</td><td>P/ SEI</td><td></td><td>KE CT</td><td>D</td><td>1</td><td>]</td><td>DE</td><td>M CII</td><td></td><td>°C⊢ LF</td><td></td><td>G I SIT</td><td>FIE 101</td><td>LD</td><td>s (</td><td></td><td>CH NTF</td><td></td><td>IN.</td><td>G I EVI</td><td>FIE</td><td>LD</td><td>s]</td><td>Í</td><td>-</td><td>FI</td><td>ELC</td><td>R</td><td>EC</td><td>ORI</td><td>D F</td><td>REL</td><td>LA.</td><td>Ti</td><td>ON</td></e'<>	R	P/ SEI		KE CT	D	1]	DE	M CII		°C⊢ LF		G I SIT	FIE 101	LD	s (CH NTF		IN.	G I EVI	FIE	LD	s]	Í	-	FI	ELC	R	EC	ORI	D F	REL	LA.	Ti	ON
	T	T							Τ	\uparrow	Τ	Т	Т	t	Γ			_	RE	cc	R	21	DE	NT	٦F	IC.	AT	10	N	201	DE	s				Ι	Π	Ħ		16			20	A.T.		Ţ	Ħ					٦		Π	T	Π	T	Т	FIE	LD	,		Τ		-		٦
	1	1								ŧ	ŀ			ŧ	L			1		_					2				L			3			-	_	ł	ŧ١									ŧI.							$\left\ \right\ $		1	ł		INC		AT	OR	5				
LINE			_	Fi	LE	NA	ME	:							PC	SSI	тіс	N	NOT (N)	C/Z/D	CHARACTER	PO	SIT	TIC	N	NOT (N)	c/z/D	CHARACTER	P	SSI	τı	01	NOT INI	12/D	OLLED ADTER	CHAHACIEN			F	R	м			тс	D			FIE (V.	ELC ARI) AB)	AM LE	E							PLUS	MINITE	NI1400	ZERO OR	BLANK	r L	JSE 10	T ≣D	
		ť	-10	6	In	Г	51	Ť	14 (1	-	7	1		120	21	Г	6	6	25	20	7	28	Π		31	32	33	34	135	Г	Т	T	5 3	9 4	14	1	1	-3	44	Т	Ť	4/1	48	Т	Ť	51 3	1	T	Т	Г		58	59 6	4	616		53 6	4	15 66	6/	68	69			M.	111	14
0 2	1	ſ	ſ	μ3	μ	۲	Ň	┥		R	+	$^{+}$	ľ	指	+	┢	8	5	-	r	R	-	Η	Η		\vdash	\vdash		t	+	+	+	+	+	$^{+}$	╉	╉	-	+	+	+	-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	H		$\left \right $	+		+	+	+	+		Η	$\left \right $	-ľ	₩	\#	₩	#
0 3	I	t	+	\vdash	\vdash	┢			8	R	+	t	Ĩ	1	ŧ	+	8	n		č	č	-	Η	Η	-	\vdash	t	\vdash	t	+	$^{+}$	$^{+}$	\dagger	$^{+}$	\dagger	\dagger	\dagger	1	+	1	+	1	+	+	+	\dagger	╉	+	╋	\vdash	\square			1	\uparrow	\dagger	+	+	+	\mathbf{H}	Η			(W	\#	11	ff
04	I	t	\uparrow	F	F	F			d	R	t	T	Č	5H	1	t	P	6		Ē	D		Π	П		F	T	F	t	t	t	t	t	t	T	t	T			1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	t	T	t				1	it	1	t	t	T				ľ	ĺΪ)	ſΪ	ΰ,	ΪÌ
0 5	1	t	T	1		F		T		Ť	T	T	f	T	T	T	М	Ĭ		ſŤ	1		Π			Γ	F		T	T	T	t	T	t	T	T	T	1	1	1	+	1		1		5	1	F)	E	1	D	6	2	Ī	T	1	t	t	1				ľ	(Ŵ	ţţ),	ţ),	$\langle \! (\!) \! \rangle$
0 6	1											T	T				Π	\square													Τ	T	T	T		T				-	1	1		ŀ	7	5	2	=)	E	L	D	1	1	2	T	T		T					1	(W	ţţ,	ţī,	ŢŢ,
0 7	I												Τ				\Box	\square													Ι					T					6	1		k	6	Ï	1	91	E	L	Ø	2	2	3	Π		D.	2					N	M)	ill'	įij	$\langle l \rangle$
0 8	I	Γ									Τ		Τ					\Box											Γ	Γ	Γ	Ι		Ι	Ι	Ι	Ι				6	5		,	7	2	İ	=]	Ę	L	D	3	L	3	\Box	1	0:	2					T	M	M	M	<u>II</u>
0 9	I										T	Τ	Ι	T																											ŀ	7		ľ	1	2	ļ	=1	E	L	0	4	2	4		1	03	3					R	Ŵ	\overline{V}_{l}	11)))
10	1	T	Τ	Γ	Γ					T	Τ	Τ	Т	Τ	Γ		Π	Π		П				Π		Γ	Γ		Γ	Γ	Τ	Τ	Τ	T	T	Τ	T	Τ	Τ		1	3		i	2	2	Į	Ŧ	E	L	0	5	L	41	Π	K	02	3	T					(Ŋ	\overline{W}_{i}	M	Π
1 1	1	T	T	Γ					Τ	T	T	T	Т	T	Γ		Π	Π		T	Τ					Γ	Γ		Γ	Γ	Τ	T	T	T	T	T	T			1	4	1	1	l	5	14	4	7	E	2	0	4		Τ	T	T	03	3	T	Π			T	(W	ΩĨ,	Ū,	Ũ
1 2	1	T	T	Γ	Γ	Γ			T	T	T	T	T	T	Г	Γ	Π	Π		Π							Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Т	T	T	T	T	T	T	1		1	1	0	T	T	1	3	Į	1	E	1	0	7	L	41	T	1	24	丌	T	Π	Π		N	Ň)	MI.	Ŵ,	η_{j}
1 3	1	T	T	Γ	Γ	Γ			T	T	T	T	Τ	T	Г	Γ	Π	Π		Π						Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Τ	T	T	T	T	T	T		T		1	4	1	i	21	D	1	F1	E	L	D	B	L	4	T	7	04	Æ	T				N	M)	M,	Ŵ,	<u>II</u>
14	Tī	T	T	Γ	T			1	T	T	T	T	T	T	Г	Γ	П	Π		Π	T			Π			Γ	Γ	Г	Γ	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	1	1		2	1	1	i	2	5	1	F /	E	L	0	9	L	4	T	1	213	Æ	T				1	M	M.	ļЩ	17
1 5	I	T	T		Γ				T		T	T	Τ	T	Γ	Γ	Π	Π		Π						Γ	Γ		Γ	Γ	Γ	T	T	T	T	T	Τ		T	Τ	Τ				T	Τ	T	T	T	Γ				T	T	T	T	T	T				T	M	η_{l}	W	jį,
\prod	I	T	Τ	Γ				Τ	Τ	T	Τ	Т	Г	Τ	Γ	Γ	Π	Π	٦	Π	1		Π						Γ	Γ	Γ	Τ	T	Τ	T	Τ	T		T	1		T	T	Τ	Τ	Τ	T	T		Γ				T	Т	T	T	T	T	Γ	Π		T	(M	MI,	W.	ŢŢ,
Π	I	t	T	Γ	Γ			1	T	T	T	T	T	T	Γ	Γ	П	П	1	T	1		Π	Π		Γ			Γ	Γ	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	1	1	T	1	1	1	T	T	T	T	T	T	Г	Π			1	T	T	T	T	T	Π	Π		T	$\langle \chi \rangle$	ĮΪ	17),	17
	I	Ī									Ι	I	L			Γ		Π													Γ	Ι		Ι		I	I												Ι							I		T	Ι				I	(W	Ŵ	<u>M</u>	

Figure 8-26. Field Record Relations - Using the OR Relationship

Restrictions:

- a. A control Yevel indicator should not be used on an input specification line to show the field record relation of a field that is designated in columns 59-60 of the same line as a part of, or the control group.
- b. The matching record indicator (MR) should not be used on an input specification line to show the field record relation of a field that is designated in columns 61-62 of the same line as a part of, or all of, the matching record input control group.

To overcome these restrictions, the fields have to be defined twice, once to specify the control and/or matching fields, and again on another specification line (but with a different Variable Name) to specify the field record relations desired.

U1-U8 External Indicators

External indicators are used primarily to condition files in the File Description Specifications (see columns 71-72, FILE CONDITION). However, they may also be used to condition fields even though file conditioning is not specified. Data from the associated field will be accepted only when the specified indicator is ON.

HO-H9 Halt Indicators

The halt indicators are used to show a field/record relationship, and specify that the data in the field is to be made available only when the given halt indicator is ON. This would usually be used (with a record specified with the halt indicator in columns 19-20, RECORD IDENTIFYING INDICATOR) to load a signal pertaining to the reason or conditions of the halt operation.

65-70 FIELD INDICATORS

The FIELD INDICATOR field is composed of three subfields that allow the data of the input field to be tested as follows:

- a. If the input field is defined as numeric, the data is tested for a positive, negative, or zero condition.
- b. If the input field is defined as alphanumeric, the data is tested for greater than blank, less than blank, or blank, according to the EBCDIC collating sequence.

Valid entries are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	No field indicators used.
01-99	Field indicator.
но-н9	Halt indicator.

The FIELD INDICATOR field is subdivided as described in the paragraphs that follow.

65-66 PLUS

Any valid indicator specified in this field will turn ON if the corresponding data field is greater than zero (numeric field only) or greater than blank (alphanumeric field).

67-68 MINUS

Any valid indicator specified in this field will turn ON if the corresponding data field is less than zero (numeric field only) or less than blank (alphanumeric field).

69-70 ZERO OR BLANK

Any valid indicator specified in this field will turn ON if the corresponding data field is zero (numeric field only) or blank (alphanumeric field). The following rules must be observed when assigning and using field indicators:

a. All field indicators are OFF at the beginning of the program, and remain OFF until the condition being tested is satisfied on the input record just read.

If the RPG I dialect is specified on the Control Card Specifications or the \$ ZBINIT option card is included in an RPG II program, then any indicators from 01-99 which are used as zero/blank indicators are set ON at the beginning of program execution unless they are also used as record identifying indicators. All other field indicators are set OFF at the beginning of the program. Field indicators are set ON if:

- 1. The condition being tested is satisfied by the input record just read, or
- 2. In the case of zero/blank indicators which may have been set ON during the previous output cycle.

If the condition being tested is not satisfied, the indicator is turned OFF.

NOTE

When the RPG I dialect option is specified, it can be overridden by including a \$NZBINIT option card in the program.

- b. A field may be assigned more than one indicator; however, only the indicator specified for the condition with a true result will be turned ON. All other indicators assigned to the field will be turned OFF.
- c. The state of a field indicator assigned to fields in different record types is always determined by the last record selected.
- d. The state of a field indicator assigned to more than one field within one record type is determined by the last field to which it is assigned.
- e. When different field indicators are assigned to fields in different record types, a field indicator will remain ON (or OFF) until another record of the same type is selected.
- f. If a halt indicator specified in the FIELD INDICATOR field is turned ON as a result of the corresponding condition being true, the program will halt <u>after</u> the input record which caused it to turn ON has been completely processed.
- g. Field indicators cannot be assigned to whole arrays.

75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

SECTION 9

CALCULATION SPECIFICATIONS AND OPERATION CODES

Calculation Specifications are used mainly to indicate the sequence and timing of the data manipulation that belongs to the following two broad categories:

- a. Arithmetic, logical, and manipulative operations on defined data elements (fields), and
- b. Input/output control of some kinds of files.

The Calculation Specifications describe the operations to be performed on the data and specify the order in which the operations are to be performed. Calculation Specifications are of three types, which are optional, but if they occur, must appear in the following order:

- a. Detail calculations.
- b. Total calculations.
- c. Subroutines.

Subroutines must not be the only Calculation Specification entries, because subroutines can only be accessed from detail or total calculations.

Within each grouping, operations are performed in the order in which they are written.

Each specification line describes one operation, and is divided into three functional parts:

- a. Conditions under which the operation is to be performed (columns 7-17).
- b. The kind of operation to be performed and the data which is to be operated upon (columns 18-53).
- c. Tests to be made upon the results of the operation (columns 54-59).

FIELD DEFINITIONS

Figure 9-1 can be used in conjunction with the following field definitions for the Calculation Specification.

1-2 <u>PAGE</u>

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 <u>LINE</u>

Refer to Chapter 2 for complete description.

9-2

Burroughs

B 1700 RPG



- A. Contains one of the following control level indicators: L0-L9 (perform calculation at control break), LR (perform calculation after the last record), SR (calculation is part of a subroutine), AN, OR (establishes AND or OR relationships between indicators), or blank.
- B. 9-17 Columns 10-11, 13-14, 16-17 may contain up to 3 indicators to condition a calculation operation. Entries: Blank, 01-99, L1-L9, LR-MR, H0-H9, U1-U8, 0A-0G, or OV Columns 9, 12, 15 specify that the following indicator is to be off. Entries: Blank or N.
- C. 18-27 Contains either the name of any user or compiler defined field, an alphanumeric or numeric literal, any subroutine, or TAG name, or vector name, any special name, or blank. Entry must be left-justified.
- D. 28-32 Specifies the type of operation to be performed. Entries: ADD, Z-ADD, SUB, Z-SUB, MULT, DIV, MVR, XFOOT, SQRT, MOVE, MOVEA, MOVEL, MLLZO, MHHZO, MLHZO, MHLZO, COMP, TESTN, TESTZ, BITON, BITOF, TESTB, SETON, SETOF, GOTO, TAG, TIME, ZIP, LOKUP, BEGSR, ENDSR, EXSR, FORCE, EXCPT, DSPLY, READ, CHAIN, RECV, SEND, SETLL, or DEBUG. Entry must be left-justified.
- E. 33-42 Contains either the name of any user or compiler defined field, any alphanumeric or numeric literal, a subroutine name, a vector name, any special name, a GOTO operation label, a filename or blank. Entry must be left-justified.

- F. 43-48 Specifies the name of the field, vector, or vector element that will be used to store the results of the operation. Entry must be alphanumeric and left-justified.
- G. 49-51 Specifies the length of the result field.
 Entries: Blank or any decimal numeric.
- H. 52 Specifies the number of decimal positions. If blank, entry is alphanumeric. Entries: Blank or 0-9.
- I. 53 Specifies if the contents of the result field are to be rounded off. Entries: Blank or H.
- J. 54-55 Entry is turned on if the result field is positive or FACTOR 1 is the highest in a compare operation, or FACTOR 2 is the highest in a lookup operation or a tested zone (TESTZ) is a plus-zone. Entries: 01-99, L1-L9, LR, HO-H9, 0A-OG, OV or blank.
- K. 56-57 Entry is turned on if the result field is negative, or FACTOR 1 is the lowest in a compare operation, or FACTOR 2 is lowest in a lookup operation, or a tested zone (TESTZ) is a minus-zone. Entries: 01-99, L1-L9, LR, H0-H9, OA-OG, OV or blank.
- L. 58-59 Entry is turned on if the result field is zero, or FACTOR 1 is equal to FACTOR 2 in a compare or lookup operation, or a tested zone (TESTZ) is neither a plus- or minus-zone. Entries: 01-99, L1-L9, LR, H0-H9, 0A-OG, OV or blank.

Figure 9-1. Calculation Specifications Summary Sheet

G14052

6 FORM TYPE

A C must appear in this field.

7-8 <u>CONTROL LEVEL</u>

The valid entries for this field are listed below, and each entry is described in the paragraphs that follow.

Entry	Definition
Blank	Calculation operation is part of detail calculations or may be part of a subroutine.
L0-L9	Calculation operation is per- formed in total calculations when the designated control break occurs or the speci- fied indicator is set ON (L0 is always ON).
LR	Calculation operation is per- formed after the last record has been processed (or if set ON).
SR	Calculation operation is part of a subroutine (documenta- tional not required for sub- routines).
AN, OR	Establishes AND and OR re- lationship between lines of indicators.

An entry of LO-L9 or LR indicates that the operation is performed during total calculations when the specified indicator is ON. The first entry of LO-L9 or LR in columns 7-8 determines the start of total calculations. All detail calculations (if any are specified) must precede any total calculations. Any operations with blanks in columns 7-8 occurring before any total operation, or any BEGSR operation, are treated as detail operations, and are performed during detail calculations in every cycle depending upon the conditions specified in columns 9-17.

Subroutines, if used, must be specified after all detail and total lines. For a subroutine, column 7-8 may contain SR, OR, AN, or blank. The first BEGSR operation determines the start of subroutines.

LO-L9 Control level indicators LO-L9 are used to condition operations that are to occur at a control break. If a control level indicator is specified in columns 7-8, the operation described on the same specification line is done only when the designated indicator is ON. When a control break for a certain level occurs, all lower control level indicators also turn ON. However, when a control level indicator used as a record identifying indicator turns ON to indicate a specific record type, or when a control level indicator is turned ON by a SETON operation, all lower level indicators remain OFF. Control level indicators need not be specified in any particular order. Operations will be executed in the order in which they are specified, providing the control level indicator, columns 7-8, is ON.

The LO indicator is turned ON during every cycle of the program after detail output. If no other control level indicators are assigned, but it is desired to perform total calculation and total output operations, the LO indicator may be used to condition those operations. LO indicator coding is illustrated in figure 9-2.



G14053

Figure 9-2. LO Indicator Coding Example

LR

The LR indicator automatically turns ON when the last record of the appropriate file has been read and processed (all control level indicators L1-L9 also turn ON). This indicator is used to condition those operations that are to be performed at End-of-File. The LR indicator can also be turned ON by its specification as a calculation resulting indicator. In that case, if the LR indicator is turned ON, the lower control levels are not set ON as a result. When the LR indicator is used as a resulting indicator in Calculation Specifications, the operation should be conditioned by NLR to avoid the inadvertent resetting of the LR indicator.

- SR The SR entry is not an indicator; rather, it is used to indicate that the specification on the same line is part of a subroutine. All subroutine lines must be specified after all other calculation lines. Subroutines must be specified after all detail and total lines are specified. For a subroutine specification line, columns 7-8 can contain SR, OR, AN or blank. The BEGSR operation determines the start of a subroutine.
- AN-OR This field may also be used to specify that lines of indicators are in an AND or OR relationship. There is no limit on the number of AND or OR lines that may be specified; however, it is recommended that the user not exceed seven if compatibility with other Burroughs systems is desired. The last line of a group in an AND or OR relationship contains the Operation Code and all operands. All previous lines in the group must contain blanks in columns 18-59. The first line of a group may contain an LO-L9, LR, or SR entry if the entire group is conditioned by a control level indicator or is part of a subroutine. Each AND/OR line, and the previous line, must contain at least one indicator in columns 9-17.



Figure 9-3. AND/OR Relationship Coding Example

9–17 INDICATORS

This field is divided into three subfields such that up to three indicators on each line may be specified to condition a calculation operation. Each subfield is divided into two parts, as follows:

- a. NOT (one column).
- b. INDICATOR (two columns).

The NOT portion is used to specify that the associated indicator must be OFF in order for the operation to occur. If this condition is desired, an N must be entered in the NOT position; otherwise, the NOT portion must be left blank.

The INDICATOR portion is used to specify the indicator to be tested for ON (NOT = blank) or OFF (NOT = N). Only the following entries are allowed in this portion of the INDICATOR field:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Operation not conditioned by any indicator.
01-99	Operation conditioned by indi- cator used elsewhere in the program.
L0-L9	Operation conditioned by con- trol level indicator previously assigned.
LR	Operation conditioned by last record indicator.
MR	Operation conditioned by matching record indicator.
H0-H9	Operation conditioned by halt in- dicator used elsewhere in the program.
U1-U8	Operation conditioned by ex- ternal indicator previously defined.
OA-OG, OV	Operation conditioned by over- flow indicator previously defined.

All three indicators on one line are in an AND relationship. All indicators on one line (or grouped lines), plus the Control Level Indicator (if used) must be ON or OFF as specified, in order for the associated operation to take place.

Each of the indicators is discussed in the paragraphs that follow.

Indicators 01-99

- a. To condition calculation operations that are to be performed only for specific input record types (record identifying indicators).
- b. To condition calculation operations that are to be performed only when an input field satisfies certain conditions (field indicators).

Ű.

9-6

c. To condition calculation operations according to the results from previous operations that were specified in the Calculation Specifications (resulting indicators).

Control Level Indicators (LO-L9)

The control level indicators are normally defined in the CONTROL LEVEL field of the Input Specifications, but can be used as calculation resulting indicators. For either usage, the control level indicators entered in columns 9-17 signify an operation to be performed only during the first cycle and after a control break.

The following information is applicable when control level indicators are specified in the INDICATORS field:

- a. If the operation is performed during detail calculations, it occurs only while processing the first record of the new group.
- b. If the operation is performed during total calculations, it occurs only when the control break specified in columns 7-8 and the control break specified in the INDICATORS field are both satisfied. When both control breaks are satisfied, the last record of a control group has been processed.
- c. If the operation is part of a subroutine and is called from detail calculations, it occurs only while processing the first record of the new group.
- d. If the operation is part of a subroutine and is called from total calculations, the operation occurs only if the EXSR is of an equal or higher control level than the control level indicator specified in the INDICATORS field.

Last Record Indicator (LR)

The last record indicator is used to condition operations that are to be performed at end-of-job.

Matching Record Indicator (MR)

The matching record indicator is used to indicate whether an operation is to be performed only relative to the status of the matched records found.

The following rules must be observed when using the MR indicator:

- a. When used during detail calculations, MR refers to the status of the match fields of the record last selected.
- b. When used during total calculations, MR refers to the status of the match fields of the record prior to the last record selected.

c. When used in a subroutine that is called during detail calculations, MR refers to the status of the match fields of the record last selected. When used in a subroutine that is called during total calculations, MR refers to the status of the match fields of the record prior to the last record selected.

Halt Indicators (HO-H9)

Halt indicators previously assigned in the Field Indicators field of the Input Specifications or Resulting Indicators field of the Calculation Specifications can be used to condition operations that are to be performed only when an error condition occurs.

Since the program does not halt until the record in error has been completely processed, action must be taken to prevent reporting the erroneous results. By using the halt indicators in conjunction with an N entry in the NOT portion of the INDICATORS field, an operation can be inhibited when the specified halt indicator is ON.

External Indicators (U1-U8)

External indicators can be used to condition operations that are to be performed only when the specified indicator has been set at program execution time. Refer to the description of the FILE CONDITION field in the section on File Description Specifications for a complete description of external indicators.

Overflow Indicators (OA-OG, OV)

These indicators, previously assigned in the File Description Specifications, can be used to condition operations that are to be performed when the overflow line of a printer file has been reached.

18-27 FACTOR 1

This field is used to supply data to be operated on by the Operation Code specified in columns 28-32.

Allowable entries are:

- a. The name of any field previously defined or to be defined later.
- b. A literal (alphanumeric or numeric).
- c. A label (tag name, subroutine name, END subroutine name).
- d. A vector name or an element of a vector. A vector element is composed of the vector name, followed by a comma, followed by the desired index value.

Ŵ.

e. The special words UDATE, UMONTH, UDAY, UYEAR, PAGE, and PAGEn.

Entries, including numeric literals, in this field must be leftjustified.

28-32 OPERATION

This field is used to specify the proper operation to be performed using FACTOR 1 and FACTOR 2. The Operation Code must be leftjustified in the field.

Operations are performed in the order in which they appear on the Calculation Specifications sheet; however, all operations conditioned by control level indicators specified in the CONTROL LEVEL field must appear after those operations not conditioned by control level indicators and prior to all subroutines.

Each of the operation codes is discussed in detail in the second portion of this section of the manual.

33-42 FACTOR 2

This field is used to supply data to be operated on by the Operation Code specified in columns 28-32. Allowable entries are:

- a. The name of any field defined elsewhere in the program.
- b. A literal (alphanumeric or numeric).
- c. The name of a subroutine (EXSR operation only).
- d. A vector name or an element of a vector. A vector element is composed of the vector name, followed by a comma, followed by the desired index value.
- e. The special words UDATE, UMONTH, UDAY, UYEAR, PAGE, and PAGEn.
- f. A label (GOTO Operation only).
- g. A filename (DEBUG, DSPLY, CHAIN, READ, RECV, SEND or FORCE operation only).

Entries in this field must be left-justified.

43-48 RESULT FIELD

The use of this field is dependent upon the particular operation being performed. The entry in this field is used to name the field, vector, or vector element that is to be used to store the results of the operation specified on this specification line.

All entries in the RESULT FIELD must be left-justified. The entry can be the name of a vector or vector element defined elsewhere in the program, or the name of a field described elsewhere in the program or on this specification line. Special words, except those in the following list, can also be entered in the RESULT FIELD.

The following special words must never be used in the RESULT FIELD:

- a. UDATE
- b. UMONTH

- c. UDAY
- d. UYEAR

Also, literals must never be used in the RESULT FIELD.

Definition of a new field is also allowed, and is accomplished by entering the new field name, along with FIELD LENGTH and DECIMAL PO-SITIONS entries for that field. Refer to Section 2 for a complete description of field names.

49–51 FIELD LENGTH

This field is used to specify the length of a result field that has not been previously defined. Numeric and alphanumeric fields are limited to the size specified in Section 2.

If this entry is left blank the field must be defined elsewhere. This field must be blank if RESULT FIELD is blank. It is allowable to enter the length of a field that has been previously defined; however, the length and number of decimal positions specified must be the same as that previously defined.

Entries in this field must be right-justified, and leading zeros are optional.

52 DECIMAL POSITIONS

This field is used to specify the number of positions to the right of the implied decimal point in a numeric result field. If the RESULT FIELD is alphanumeric, or the FIELD LENGTH is blank, this field must be left blank. The valid entries are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Alphanumeric field.
0-9	Number of decimal positions in a numeric field.

When defining numeric fields, the number of decimal positions must be the number of decimal specified; if the field only contains integral values, a zero must be entered to indicate no decimal positions.

The number of decimal positions specified must not exceed the length of the RESULT FIELD, as specified by the FIELD LENGTH entry.

53 HALF ADJUST

This field is used to indicate whether or not the contents of the RESULT FIELD are to be rounded. Rounding is accomplished by adding 5 (or -5 for negative values) to the digit to the right of the last decimal position of the RESULT FIELD. Then all digits to the right of the last decimal position are dropped. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Do not half adjust.
н	Half adjust.

Entries in this field are allowable only for certain arithmetic operations.

54-59 RESULTING INDICATORS

The indicators U1-U8, MR, or IP must not be entered in this field. Any other RPG indicator or blanks are valid entries.

Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
01-99	Any numeric indicator.
L1-L9	Any control level indicator.
LR	Last record indicator.
но-н9	Any halt indicator.
OA-OG, OV	Any overflow indicator.

Indicators specified in these columns are set OFF immediately before the operation is performed. Immediately after the operation, indicators are set ON to indicate the result of the operations. The use of the result indicators is dependent on the type of operation specified.

Resulting Indicators must not be specified when the RESULT FIELD contains an array name, the only exception being a LOKUP operation.

Figure 9-4 illustrates the use of resulting indicators and various operation codes. The specific uses of the result fields is further described in the discussion on the various operation code types in this section.

60-74 COMMENTS

This field is available for inclusion of comments and documentary remarks, and may contain any valid EBCDIC characters.

75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Chapter 2 for a complete description.

OPERATION CODES

Various categories of Operation Codes are provided to allow data manipulation required by the RPG programmer. Operation Codes are entered only in the OPER-ATION field of the Calculation Specifications, and specify what type of

		CALC	ULATION SPECIFIC	ATIONS	75 80 PROGRAM
FORM TYPE CONTROL LE	VEL	-		HALF ADJUST	
	s			Ţ	Resulting Indicators Arithmetic Plus Minus Zero
LINE AND AN	FACTOR 1	OPERATION	FACTOR 2		Commune High Low Regul 1>2 11 2 1 2 1 - 2 Lookup
3 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 1	16 17 18 2 TTC MDC PATT	7 28 32	33 42	43 48 49 51 52 9	Table(Factor2) is High Low (Equal 3 54 55 56 57 58 59 50 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
02 0 01	FIELDI	SUB	FJELD	FIELD3	22
o 3 C¥ INDICAT	ØR 22 WILL I	BE TUR	NED ØN IF	FIELD3 15	NEGATIVE.
		- + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +		┠╌┼╌┽╌┽╌┽╶┥	┲┾┟┼┨┽╊┼┟┽┽┽┼┼┝┿╪┽┾┶┶
	BPEKAI I KONS	COND	124	╏┾┼┼┼┼┼┼┼	234517
07 C# 1ND1CA	ØR 23 WILL	SE TUR	NED ØN IF	FIELDZ > 1	24.
° 6 °¥ INDICA	ØR 45 WILL	BE TUR	NED ØN IF	FIELD2 < 1	24.
··· * INDICA	ØR 67 NILL	SE TUR	NED ON IF	FIELD2 = 1	24.
		┨┥┥┥┥	┝┼┽┼┽┼┼┼┼	┠┼┼┼┼┼┠┼┼╂┨	┨┼┨┤┫┽┨┽┟┝┝┝┝┝┝┝┝┝┝
	ARCIMENT	INKUP	TABLES	┢┾┾┿┽╎┠┼┼┠╏	
1 3 CX IF THE	VALUE CONTAI	INEDI	N THE ARGU	MENT FIELD	IS FOUND IN TABLES.
	TOR 89 WILL	BE TU	RNED ØN.		
		┢┽┽┽┼	╶┼┾┽┽╎┽┽┽┾╸	┠┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼	┲┿┫┿╋┿╋┽╄┽┼┽┽┼┼┼┼┼┼┼
	PERATIONS	CULATIN	DISKIN	┠┼┽┽┾┽╊┾┼╂┨	
		PNEDØ		CETCHATED F	PECARD IS NOT FOUND.
10 TH LINDICAL	WK 22 12 10			C DI GINAII CU	
		CALCU		TIONS HALF ADJUST	
	/EL	CALCU	JLATION SPECIFIC		PROGRAM 75 80 IDENTIFICATION
	FACTOR 1	CALCU	JLATION SPECIFICA		PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION
1 2 PAGE	FACTOR 1	CALCL OPERATION	FACTOR 2	ATIONS HALF ADJUST DECIMAL POSITIONS RESULT FIELD	PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION 75 80 INTERVIEW Interview Intervi
I I	FACTOR 1	CALCU OPERATION		ATIONS HALF ADJUST DECIMAL POSITIONS RESULT FIELD	PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION 75 80 Arithmetic Plus Minus Zero Compare COMMENTS 1 2 Lookup Tablefactor 21 is Hugh Low Equal (St 55) 55 57 (\$ 59 60 74
1 2 PAGE CONTROL LET FORM TYPE INDICATOR: LINE AND AND 5 6 3 5 0 1 0 2 0 5 0 2 0 3	FACTOR 1		FACTOR 2		PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION 75 80 Resulting Indicators Arithmetic Indicators Arithmetic Arithmetic Fluss Compare Compare High Low E-qual Commare Tuble/Factor 21 is High Low E-qual S1 52 S1 S2 S1
I I	FACTOR 1		FACTOR 2		PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION 75 80 Resulting Indicators Image: Compare Image: Compare Image: Compare High Icow Equal 1>2 12 12 1 - 2 Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments Lookup Tuble(Factor 2) is Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments S 5) 5 5 7 (25 5) Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments Lookup Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments S 5) 5 5 7 (25 5) Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments S 1 5 2 Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments S 3 5 1 5 5 Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments S 3 5 1 5 5 Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments S 3 5 1 5 5 Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments S 3 5 1 5 5 Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments Image: Comments
I I I I I PAGE	FACTOR 1 FACTOR 1 16 17 18 22 1 ND ICATØRS : VELINES SE7 , AND SS INC		FACTOR 2 33 42 51 AND 52 RS ØFF.		PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION 75 80 Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Arithmetic Indicators Indicators Indicators Arithmetic Indicators Indicators Indicators Arithmetic Indicators Indicators Indicators Arithmetic Indicators Indicators Indicators Arithmetic Compare Comments Indicators High Low Equal Indicators Indicators Indicators High Low Equal Indicators Indicators Indicators High Low Equal Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Inditit Indicators In
ID I ID </td <td>FACTOR 1 FACTOR 1 16 17 18 22 I NID I C ATTØRS : VE L I NES SE7 AND SS I NE</td> <td></td> <td>FACTOR 2 33 42 51 AND 52 RS ØFF.</td> <td>ATIONS HALF ADJUST DECIMAL POSITIONS RESULT FIELD</td> <td>PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION 75 80 INTERIATION Interior Interior Interior Arithmetic Interior Interior Interior Arithmetic Interior Interior Interior High Low Equal COMMENTS Interior Interior Tube (Factor 2) is High Low Equal Interior Interior SM 55 55 57 55 59 50 74 Interior Interior SM 3 T H E N SE T T HE Interior</td>	FACTOR 1 FACTOR 1 16 17 18 22 I NID I C ATTØRS : VE L I NES SE7 AND SS I NE		FACTOR 2 33 42 51 AND 52 RS ØFF.	ATIONS HALF ADJUST DECIMAL POSITIONS RESULT FIELD	PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION 75 80 INTERIATION Interior Interior Interior Arithmetic Interior Interior Interior Arithmetic Interior Interior Interior High Low Equal COMMENTS Interior Interior Tube (Factor 2) is High Low Equal Interior Interior SM 55 55 57 55 59 50 74 Interior Interior SM 3 T H E N SE T T HE Interior
ID I ID ID PAGE	FACTOR 1 FACTOR	CALCU OPERATION 28 $32SETØNSETØNSETØF1 CATØ$	FACTOR 2 33 42 5 1 AND 52 RS ØFF.	ATIONS HALF ADJUST DECIMAL POSITIONS RESULT FIELD	PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION 75 80 Indicators Anthmetic Anthmetic Anthmetic Plus Minus Zero COMMENTS 1/2 1/2 Lookup Compare COMMENTS 1/2 Lookup Table Factor 21 is High Low Equal 7/5 1/2 S1 S2 S3 S1 S5 S 1/4 1/4 SN S 7 H E N SE 77 7 HE 1/4
ID I PAGE ID CONTROL LET FORM TYPE CONTROL LET INDICATOR INDICATOR LINE AND AND AND LINE SETTING ID ID 01 CH SETTING ID 01 CH SETTING ID 02 C ID ID 03 C ID ID 04 CH SETTING ID 05 CH SB SE 017 CH READ ID 017 CH READ ID 017 CH READ ID	FACTOR 1 FACTOR 1 FACTOR 1 16 17 18 1 ND I C ATØRS : VE LI NES SET , AND SS I NE ERATØRS : ØF-FILE CØNE			ATIONS HALF ADJUST DECIMAL POSITIONS RESULT FIELD	PROGRAM 75 80 IDENTIFICATION IDENTIFICATION IDENTIFICATION Program Compare Compare Program Compare Commare Program Compare Commare Program Compare Commare Program Compare Commare Program Compare Comments 15/15/2 1 - 2 Comments Table/Factor 2) is Hugh Comments S3 5/1 S/2 S3 1 S/5 S3 1 S/5 S3 1 S/5 S3 1 S/5 S4 S4 8/5 S1 S/2 S4 S6 1 S/2 S4 S4 S7 THEN SE 7/7 S6 S7 S4 S6 S7 S4 S6 S5 S5 S7 THEN SE 7/7 S7 S6 S6 S7 S7 S7
1 1 2 PAGE	FACTOR 1 FACTOR 1 FACTOR 1 I_{0} I_{1} I_{1} I_{1} I_{1} I_{1} I_{1} I_{1} I_{1} I_{1} I_{1} I_{2} I_{1} I_{1} I_{2} I_{1} I_{2} I_{2} I_{1} I_{2}	CALCU CALCU OPERATION 28 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32	JLATION SPECIFIC JLATION SPECIFIC FACTOR 2 33 42 51 AND 52 RS ØFFF FILEE4 ØN READ TØ BE		PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION 75 80 Resulting Indicators Indicators Arthmetic Program Program Compare High Low Equal COMMENTS 12 Lookup Commare Lookup Commare Lookup Commare Solos 74 51 S-2 Indicators S 1 S-5 Indicators M No T H E N SE T T HE H 8 Indicators
1 2 PAGE	FACTOR 1 FACTOR 1 FACTOR 1 I_{0} I N D I C A T Ø RS : V E L I N E S S E 7 A N D SS 1 N E E R A T Ø R S : 0 F - F 1 L E C Ø N D I C	CALCU C	FACTOR 2 FACTOR 2 A A A A A A A A		PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION 75 80 Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Arthmetic Program COMMENTS Indicators Indicators Comments Indicators Indicators Arthmetic Communic Comments Indicators High Invis Zero Comments Indicators Indicators High Invis Zero Comments Indicators Indicators Statistic floation Statistic floation Statistic floation Indicators Statistic floation Statistic floation Statistic floation Indicators Indicators Statistic floation Statistic floation Indicators Indicators Indicators Statistic floation Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Statistic floation Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Statistic floation Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Indicators Statistic floatistic floatistic floating Indicators Inding
1 2 PAGE CONTROL LE FORM TYPE CONTROL LE INDICATOR: INDICATOR: LINE AND AND LINE AND AND 1 2 2 2 3 5 6 7 8 0 1 C 0 1 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 2 C 0 </td <td>FACTOR 1 FACTOR</td> <td>CALCU C</td> <td>FACTOR 2 FACTOR 2 33 42 51 AND 52 RS ØFF. FILE 4 GN A. READ TØ BE TURN</td> <td></td> <td>PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION 75 80 Indicators Anthreate Anthreate Anthreate Plus Minug Zero Compare COMMENTS COMMENTS 1/2 Lookup Compare COMMENTS 1/2 Lookup Compare COMMENTS 1/2 Lookup Compare COMMENTS 1/2 Lookup Comments 1/2 1/2 Lookup Comments 1/2 1/2 Lookup Comments 1/2 1/2 1/2 Lookup Compare Comments 1/2 1/2 Lookup Comments 1/2 1/2 1/2 1/2 Lookup Comments 1/2</td>	FACTOR 1 FACTOR	CALCU C	FACTOR 2 FACTOR 2 33 42 51 AND 52 RS ØFF. FILE 4 GN A. READ TØ BE TURN		PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION 75 80 Indicators Anthreate Anthreate Anthreate Plus Minug Zero Compare COMMENTS COMMENTS 1/2 Lookup Compare COMMENTS 1/2 Lookup Compare COMMENTS 1/2 Lookup Compare COMMENTS 1/2 Lookup Comments 1/2 1/2 Lookup Comments 1/2 1/2 Lookup Comments 1/2 1/2 1/2 Lookup Compare Comments 1/2 1/2 Lookup Comments 1/2 1/2 1/2 1/2 Lookup Comments 1/2
1 1 2 FORM TYPE CONTROL LE FORM TYPE INDICATOR: LINE AND AND LINE AND AND 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 2 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 4 0 5 0 5 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 5 0 7 0 7 0 7 0 7 0 7 0 7 0 7 0 7 0 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 <td>FACTOR 1 FACTOR</td> <td>CALCU OPERATION 28 <math>32 SETØN SETØN SETØF 7 HE 1 CATØRATØRATØRS:TESTZ</math></td> <td>FACTOR 2 FACTOR 2 FACTOR 2 33 42 5 AND 52 R ØFF. FILEE4 ØN AREAD TØ BE TURN LEFTMØRT</td> <td>ATIONS HALF ADJUST DECIMAL POSITIONS RESULT FIELD A3 48 49 51 726 A ADD 1 CATØRS A CATØRS A CATØRS</td> <td>PROGRAM 75 80 IDENTIFICATION IDENTIFICATION Indicators Anthmetic Plus Minung Zero COMMENTS Compare COMMENTS 1/2/1<2/td> 2 Lookup Compare Fulle Factor 21 is Hump I cow Equal 5/1 5/2 5/3 5/3 5/3 5/3 6/0 7/4 1/2 1/2 1/3 5/3 5/3 5/3 5/3 5/3 6/0 7/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4</td>	FACTOR 1 FACTOR	CALCU OPERATION 28 $32SETØNSETØNSETØF7 HE1 CATØRATØRATØRS:TESTZ$	FACTOR 2 FACTOR 2 FACTOR 2 33 42 5 AND 52 R ØFF. FILEE4 ØN AREAD TØ BE TURN LEFTMØRT	ATIONS HALF ADJUST DECIMAL POSITIONS RESULT FIELD A3 48 49 51 726 A ADD 1 CATØRS A CATØRS A CATØRS	PROGRAM 75 80 IDENTIFICATION IDENTIFICATION Indicators Anthmetic Plus Minung Zero COMMENTS Compare COMMENTS 1/2/1<2/td> 2 Lookup Compare Fulle Factor 21 is Hump I cow Equal 5/1 5/2 5/3 5/3 5/3 5/3 6/0 7/4 1/2 1/2 1/3 5/3 5/3 5/3 5/3 5/3 6/0 7/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4 1/4
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	FACTOR 1 FACTO	CALCU OPERATION 28 32 SETØN SETØN SETØF 7 HE 1 $C \Delta TØ$ $RE \Delta D$ 1 $T I Ø N$ $\Delta T Ø R$ S: T E ST Z S $T HE$	FACTOR 2 FACTOR 2 FACTOR 2 33 42 51 AND 52 R ØFF. 6N A READ T BE TURN L EFTMØST 1 A-T ØR		PROGRAM 75 80 IDENTIFICATION IDENTIFICATION IDENTIFICATION Arithmetic Program COMMENTS Partitinetic COMMENTS IDENTIFICATION Prison Compare COMMENTS IDENTIFICATION COMMENTS IDENTIFICATION Prison Compare COMMENTS IDENTIFICATION COMMENTS IDENTIFICATION IDENTIFICATION COMMENTS IDENTIFICATION Inductors IDENTIFICATION IDENTIFICATION IDENTIFICATION COMMENTS IDENTIFICATION IDENTIFICATION COMMENTS IDENTIFICATION IDENTIFICATION COMMENTS IDENTIFICATION IDENTIFICATION COMMENTS IDENTIFICATION IDENTIFICATION COMMENTS IDENTIFICATION INDICTICATION IDENTIFICATION IDENTIFICATION
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	FACTOR 1 FACTO	CALCU C	FACTOR 2 JLATION SPECIFICA FACTOR 2 33 42 51 AND 52 R ØFFF. FILE 4 ØN READ TØ BE TURN LEFTMØST 1 A-I ØR CTE TESTE	ATIONS HALF ADJUST DECIMAL POSITIONS RESULT FIELD 43 48 49 51 26 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	PROGRAM 75 80 IDENTIFICATION IDENTIFICATION Prostructure Provide Structure Prostructure Provide Structure Prostructure Provide Structure Prostructure Provide Structure Prostructure COMMENTS 122 122 Lookup Comments Table Factor 21 is Provide Structure Hugh Low Equal 74 51 52 53 53 53 155 ØN 3 THEN Provide Structure Provide Structure MND FILE MND FILE NO FILE NO FILE NO FILE NO FILE NO FILE NO FILE NO FILE NO FILE NO FILE NO FILE NO FILE NO FILE NO FILE NO FILE

Figure 9-4. Resulting Indicators Coding Example

ı¢

arithmetic, logical, or input/output operation is to be performed on the associated operands.

Table 9-1 summarizes each of the operation codes discussed in the following paragraphs.

ARITHMETIC OPERATIONS

In the descriptions of arithmetic operations in the following paragraphs, an indexed vector or a table name is valid anywhere that a field name is valid except as noted. Arithmetic operations are allowed only on numerically defined data items. FACTOR 1 and FACTOR 2 fields must contain the names of numeric fields or numeric literals. The RESULT FIELD must be numeric. All results are signed and decimal alignment is performed. If the RESULT FIELD is not large enough to hold the result of an arithmetic operation, the result is truncated at either or both ends following decimal alignment. If the RESULT FIELD is too large to hold the result of an arithmetic operation, then leading and trailing zeroes are inserted following decimal alignment.

FACTOR 1, FACTOR 2 and the RESULT FIELD may all be different fields or any two or all three may be the same field. HALF ADJUST may be specified for all operations except SQRT and MVR (i.e., DIV when followed by MVR). Resulting indicators may be specified for all operations provided the RESULT FIELD is not a whole array.

The use of result indicators in connection with arithmetic operations is as shown below:

- a. Plus (Columns 54-55). Any indicator entered in this field will be turned on if the result of an arithmetic operation is positive.
- b. Minus (Columns 56-57). Any indicator entered in this field will be turned on if the result of an arithmetic operation is negative.
- c. Zero (Columns 58-59). Any indicator entered in this field will be turned on if the result of an arithmetic operation is zero.

Each of the arithmetic operations is discussed in the paragraphs that follow.

- ADD This operation adds the contents of FACTOR 2 to the contents of FACTOR 1 and stores the sum in the RESULT FIELD. FACTOR 1 and FACTOR 2 are not affected by this operation, unless one of them is also designated as the RESULT FIELD. HALF ADJUST may be specified.
- SUB This operation subtracts the contents of FACTOR 2 from the contents of FACTOR 1 and places the difference in the RESULT FIELD. FACTOR 1 and FACTOR 2 are not affected by this operation, unless one of them is also designated as the RESULT FIELD.

Note that subtracting two fields which are the same gives the same result as clearing the RESULT FIELD to zero, and can be used as a method of clearing fields to zero.

MULT This operation multiplies the contents of FACTOR 1 by the contents of FACTOR 2 and stores the product in the RESULT FIELD. FACTOR 1 and FACTOR 2 are not affected by this operation, unless one of them is also designated as the RESULT FIELD. HALF ADJUST may be specified.
						1	1	r	1		
Operation	Operation Code Columns		ntrol vel	dicators	ctor 1	ctor 2	sult eld	eld ngth	cımal sıtion	lt just	sulting dicators
Type	28-32	Definition	Le C	In	Fa	Fa	Re F1	F1 Le	De Po	Ha	Re In
Arithmet-	ADD	Add Factor 2 to Factor 1	0	0	R	R	R	0	0	0	0
Opera-	Z-ADD	Clear Result Field and add Factor 2	0	0	В	R	R	0	0	0	0
tions	SUB	Subtract Factor 2 from Factor 1	0	0	R	R	R	0	0	0	0
	Z-SUB	Clear Result Field and subtract Factor 2	0	0	В	R	R	0	0	0	0
	MULT	Multiply Factor 1 by Factor 2	0	0	R	R	R	0	0	0	0
	DIV	Divide Factor 1 by Factor 2	0	0	R	R	R	0	0	0	0
	MVR	Move remainder of preceding division to a Result Field	0	0	В	в	R	0	0	В	0
	XFOOT	Sum elements of an array and put sum in Result Field	0	0	В	R	R	0	0	0	0
	SQRT	Derive the square root of Factor 2	0	0	В	R	R	0	0	В	В
Move Operation	MOVE MOVEL	Move Factor 2 into Result Field, right-justified Move Factor 2 into Result Field, left-justified	0 0	0 0	B B	R R	R R	0	0	B B	0 0
	MOVEA	Moves data (left justified) into, or out of, an alphanumeric array.	0	0	В	R	R	в	в	В	В
Move Zone	MLLZO	Move zone from low-order position of Factor 2 to low-order position of Result Field	0	0	в	R	R	0	0	в	в
Operation	MHHZO	Move zone from high-order position of alphanumeric Factor 2 to high order of alphanumeric Result Field	0	0	в	R	R	0	в	в	в
	MLHZO	Move zone from low-order position of Factor 2 to high-order position of alphanumeric Result Field	υ	0	в	R	R	0	в	в	в
	MHLZO	Move zone from high-order position of alphanumeric Factor 2 to low-order position of Result Field	0	0	в	R	R	0	0	В	в
Compare	COMP	Compare Factor 1 to Factor 2	0	0	R	R	В	В	В	В	R
Operations	TESTZ	Tests the zone portion of the leftmost character of Result Field	0	0	в	в	R	0	в	в	R
	TESTN	Tests a numeric value of the field specified by the Result Field.	0	0	в	в	R	0	В	в	R
Binary	P I TON	Set on specified bits	0	0	в	R	R	0	В	В	В
Field	BITOF	Set off specified bits	0	0	в	R	R	0	В	В	В
Operations	TESTB	Test specified bits	0	0	в	R	R	0	В	В	R
Setting	SETON	Set one, two, or three specific indicators on	0	0	В	В	В	В	В	В	R
Indicators	SETOF	Set one, two, or three specific indicators off	0	0	в	В	В	В	В	В	R
Program Branching	GOTO	Branch to another calculation specifica- tion line	0	0	в	R	в	В	в	в	в
Operations	TAG	Identify the name in Factor 1 as a destination label to which GOTO may branch	0	в	R	в	в	в	в	в	В
Transfer Control Function	ZIP	Initialize System commands	0	0	в	R	В	В	в	В	В
Lookup Operations	LOKUP	Table or array lookup	0	υ	R	R	0	0	0	В	R
Sub-	BEGSR	Beginning of the subroutine	0	В	R	В	В	В	В	В	В
routines	ENDSR	End of the subroutine	0	В	0	В	В	В	В	В	В
	EXSR	Call to execute the subroutine	0	0	В	R	В	В	В	В	В
Program	FORCE	Forcing record to be read next	В	0	В	R	В	В	В	В	В
of	EXCPT	Causes output	0	0	В	В	B	В	В	В	В
Input and Output	DSPLY	A field is printed on the console printer and or data is entered via the console printer into a field	υ	0	0	R	0	0	0	В	В
	READ	A record is read from a demand file	0	0	В	R	В	В	В	В	ΕI
L	CHAIN	A record 1s read from a disk file	0	0	R	R	В	В	В	В	ΕI
Debug Operation	DEBUG	Aid in finding programming errors	0	0	0	R	0	В	В	В	В
Time	TIME	Time of day / time and day.	0	0	В	В	R	0	0	В	В
Data	SEND	Writes to the remote file specified in FACTOR 2.	0	0	В	R	В	В	В	В	0
Comm.	RECV	Reads from the remote file specified in FACTOR 2.	0	0	B	R	В	В	В	В	0
Process Within Limits	SETLL	Sets the lower limit for a demand file processed sequentially within limits.	0	0	R	R	в	в	в	в	в

Table 9-1: Summary of Operation Codes

NOTES

0 - Optional R - Required B - Blank

1 - 5 - M

EI - Only the Equal Indicator columns may be used. The indicator will be turned on if end-of-file occurs on the demand file while reading or attempting to read.

Table 9-2 provides an example of the contents of the RESULT FIELD for the multiplication operation, showing various field lengths and decimal positions. In the example, all fields that are permitted are shown, although some contain incomplete results. Fields not permitted are blank; HALF ADJUST is not specified. Note that a field length of eight with five decimal positions gives all the significant digits without adding zeros either left or right.

DIV This operation divides the contents of FACTOR 1 by the contents of FACTOR 2 and places the quotient in the RESULT FIELD. FACTOR 1 and FACTOR 2 are not affected by this operation, unless one of them is also designated as the RESULT FIELD.

Any remainder resulting from the divide operation will be lost unless the next operation specified is the MOVE REMAINDER operation (MVR); if so, the result of the divide operation cannot be half adjusted. The RESULT FIELD cannot contain a whole array when an MVR is the next operation.

If FACTOR 2 is equal to zero, the operator is notified and the program discontinues.

MVR This operation moves the REMAINDER from a previous DIV operation to the designated RESULT FIELD. The MVR operation must immediately follow the DIV operation, and FACTOR 1 and FACTOR 2 must be left blank. The RESULT FIELD for the MVR operation must be the same length as FACTOR 2 for the DIV operation. Both the DIV and the MVR may be conditioned on indicators, which need not be the same for both operations. However, the programmer must ensure that the MVR operation is never performed without the DIV, otherwise the result of the MVR is undefined. HALF ADJUST must not be specified.

The following considerations should be made when specifying the size of the RESULT FIELD:

- a. The number of significant decimal places in the REMAINDER is the larger of:
 - 1) The number of decimal positions in FACTOR 1 of the previous DIV operation.
 - 2) The sum of the decimal positions in FACTOR 2 and the RESULT FIELD of the previous DIV operation.
- b. The maximum integer positions in the REMAINDER equals the integer positions in FACTOR 2 of the previous DIV operation.
- c. The RESULT FIELD must not be a whole array.

Figure 9-5 provides a DIV and MVR coding example.

				· · · · · · · · ·						
			De							
Field Length	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
1	2	.6						,		
2	92	2.6	.61							
3	192	92.6	2.61	.611						i
4	0192	192.6	92.61	2.611	.6111					
5	00192	0192.6	192.61	92.611	2.6111	.61116				
6	000192	00192.6	0192.61	192.611	92.6111	2.61116	.611160			
7	0000192	000192.6	00192.61	0192.611	192.6111	92.61116	2.611160	.6111600		
8	00000192	0000192.6	000192.61	00192.611	0192.6111	192.61116	92.611160	2.6111600	.61116000	
9	000000192	00000192.6	0000192.61	000192.611	00192.6111	0192.61116	192.611160	92.6111600	2.61116000	.611160000
10	0000000192	000000192.6	00000192.61	0000192.611	000192.6111	00192.61116	0192.611160	192.6111600	92.61116000	2.611160000

Table 9-2. RESULT FIELD Contents for Various Field Lengths and Decimal Positions - MULT Operation

NOTE

RESULT FIELD contents for the multiplication operation: 89.67 MULT 2.148.

,

pi a



Figure 9-5. DIV and MVR Coding Example

SQRT

The operation derives the SQUARE ROOT of the contents of FACTOR 2 and places it in the RESULT FIELD. FACTOR 1 must be left blank.

To obtain reasonable precision from SQRT, the following points should be observed:

- a. For every digit left of the decimal place in the RESULT FIELD, there should be two digits left of the decimal placed in FACTOR 2.
- b. For every digit right of the decimal point in the RESULT FIELD, there should be two digits right of the decimal point in FACTOR 2.

The result of the SQRT operation is automatically adjusted; therefore, a HALF ADJUST entry for SQRT is not allowed.

If the FACTOR 2 operand is negative, the program will display a "SQRT" error message and halt. The operator may resume processing, in which case the RESULT FIELD will set to zero.

Table 9-3 provides an example of the contents of the RESULT FIELD for the square root operation. In the example, all fields that are permitted are shown, although some contain incomplete results. Fields not permitted are blank.

XFOOT This operation is used to crossfoot (sum) the elements of a numeric array. All the elements of the array specified by FACTOR 2 are summed and the total placed in the RESULT FIELD. FACTOR 1 must be left blank. The RESULT FIELD must not be a whole array.

Resulting indicators may be specified. If the RESULT FIELD is an element of the array named in FACTOR 2, the value of that element before the XFOOT operation is used in obtaining the total. HALF ADJUST may be specified.

9-18		

	Decimal Positions														
Field Length	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8						
1	5	.7													
2	55	4.7	.72												
3	055	54.7	4.72	.721											
4	0055	054.7	54.72	4.721	.7213										
5	00055	0054.7	054.72	54.721	4.7213	.72130									
6	000055	00054.7	0054.72	054.721	54.7213	4.72130									
7	0000055	000054.7	00054.72	0054.721	054.7213	54.72130	.721305								
8	00000055	0000054.7	000054.72	00054.721	0054.7213	054.72130	4.721305	.7213048							
9	000000055	00000054.7	0000054.72	000054.721	00054.7213	0054.72130	54.721305	4.7213048	.72130482						
10	000000055	000000054.7	00000054.72	0000054.721	000054.7213	00054.72130	054.721305	54.7213048	4.72130482						
11	0000000055	000000054.7	000000054.72	00000054.721	0000054.7213	000054.72130	0054.721305	054.7213048	54.72130482						
12	000000000055	0000000054.7	000000054.72	000000054.721	00000054.7213	0000054.72130	00054.721305	0054.7213048	054.72130482						
13	0000000000055	00000000054.7	0000000054.72	000000054.721	00000054.7213	00000054.72130	000054.721305	00054.7213048	0054.72130482						
14	00000000000055	000000000054.7	00000000054.72	0000000054.721	000000054.7213	000000054.72130	0000054.721305	000054.7213048	00054.72130482						
15	000000000000055	0000000000054.7	000000000054.72	00000000054.721	0000000054.7213	0000000054.72130	00000054.721305	0000054.7213048	000054.72130482						

Table 9-3. RESULT FIELD Contents for Various Field Lengths and Decimal Positions - SQRT Operation

NOTE

٠

RESULT FIELD contents for the square root operation: SQRT 2994.42.

Z-ADD This operation sets the RESULT FIELD to zeros, and adds the contents of FACTOR 2 to the RESULT FIELD. FACTOR 1 must be left blank.

FACTOR 2 is not affected by this operation unless it is named in the RESULT FIELD. HALF ADJUST may be specified.

Z-SUB This operation sets the RESULT FIELD to zeros, then subtracts the contents of FACTOR 2 from the RESULT FIELD. FACTOR 1 must be left blank. This operation is used to change the sign of the field designated by FACTOR 2. HALF ADJUST may be specified.

Note that this is the same as Z-ADD, but the sign is changed.

In the example shown in figure 9-6, if the contents of FIELDA equals 678.9321, then the contents of FIELDB will equal 000678.93, and the contents of FIELDC will equal -000678.93.



CALCULATION SPECIFICATIONS

G14057

Figure 9-6. Z-ADD and Z-SUB Coding Example

MOVE OPERATIONS

MOVE operations transfer the contents of the FACTOR 2 field to the RESULT FIELD. FACTOR 2 is not affected by the MOVE operation. FACTOR 1 must be left blank. Resulting indicators can be specified to indicate the status of RE-SULT FIELD (plus, minus, or zero/blank) in the same manner as field indicators on Input Specifications. If FACTOR 2 and the RESULT FIELD are the same length, MOVE and MOVEL operate in the same manner. FACTOR 2 can be a field, vector, vector element, or literal; however, a RESULT FIELD can only be a field, vector, or vector element.

An array name may be entered in FACTOR 2 as long as the RESULT FIELD also specifies an array. In this case, the designated move operation will be performed on each element of the array designated in FACTOR 2, with the result being placed in the corresponding elements of the array designated in the RESULT FIELD. The operation is terminated when the end of the shorter array is reached. If the RESULT FIELD is an array and FACTOR 2 is not, then

DECIMPL POSITIONS ARE IGNORED WHEN MOVING DATA FROM ONE NUMERIC FIELD TO ANOTHER. FOR EXAMPLE & X is a field w/ 3 decimals and Y is a field w/ 2 Movimals a move of 10.000 from X to Y vields 100.00 in Y. the designated move operation will be performed on FACTOR 2, with the result being placed in all elements of the RESULT FIELD array.

For the purpose of MOVE, MOVEL, the "sign" of the variable is defined as (1) the algebraic sign if the variable is numeric, or (2) the low order zone if the variable is alphanumeric.

Move operations may be specified between fields of different data types. This will convert an alphanumeric to a numeric and vice versa. Decimal points are ignored in all move operations. HALF ADJUST may not be specified with MOVE or MOVEL.

MOVE This operation moves characters from FACTOR 2 to the RESULT FIELD, starting with the rightmost character and continuing until either the source field is exhausted, or the destination field is filled. The sign of FACTOR 2 is moved to the sign position of the RESULT FIELD.

When an alphanumeric-to-numeric move is specified, the digit portion of each character is moved to the RESULT FIELD. Blanks are transferred as zeros. The zone portion of the rightmost alphanumeric character is used as the sign of the RESULT FIELD.

When a numeric-to-alphanumeric move is specified, each digit is converted to its corresponding internal character code as it is moved to the RESULT FIELD. The sign of the numeric field is placed in the zone portion of the rightmost character. If the numeric field is positive, then the zone portion of the rightmost character contains the systems standard positive sign (hexadecimal C). If the numeric field is negative, then the zone portion of the rightmost character contains the systems standard negative sign (hexadecimal D). If writing to the printer, characters A thru I, or ? are printed in the rightmost character of the field. The characters A thru I represent digits 1 thru 9, respectively. The question mark character (?) represents digit 0. Refer to Appendix B for more information concerning the hexadecimal values for the B 1800/B 1700 character set.

MOVE operations are shown in table 9-4.

MOVEL This operation moves, left-justified, characters from FACTOR 2 to the RESULT FIELD, starting with the leftmost character and continuing until either the source field is exhausted, or the destination field is filled.

> When a numeric to alphanumeric move is specified, each digit is converted to its corresponding internal character code as it is moved to the RESULT FIELD.

When an alphanumeric-to-numeric move is specified, only the digit portion of each character is moved to the RESULT FIELD. Blanks are transferred as zeros.

The sign is transferred only if the RESULT FIELD is numeric and not greater in length than FACTOR 2 or if the result is alphanumeric and equal in length to FACTOR 2. The sign of FACTOR 2 is the algebraic sign if it is a numeric data item or low order zone if FACTOR 2 is alphanumeric.

MOVEL operations are shown in table 9-5.

	RESULT FIELD LARGER THAN FACTOR 2.													
1 - 2 - 1 1 - 2	A FACTOR 2	A FACTOR 2 RESULT FIELDS												
Alphanumeric	<u>AB4SK</u> <u>AB4SK</u>	Before MOVE Operation After MOVE Operation	<u>1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9</u> <u>1 2 3 4 A B 4 S K</u>	Alphanumeric										
Alphanumeric	A B 4 S K A B 4 S K	Before MOVE Operation After MOVE Operation	$\begin{array}{rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr$	Numeric										
Numeric	-9 8 7 6 5 4 3 -9 8 7 6 5 4 3	Before MOVE Operation After MOVE Operation	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Numeric										
Numeric	$\begin{array}{rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr$	Before MOVE Operation After MOVE Operation	A B C D E F G H I A B 9 \$ 7 6 5 4 3	Alphanumeric										
RESULT FIELD SMALLER THAN FACTOR 2.														
Alphanumeric	GEBKLM4SK GEBKLM4SK	Before MOVE Operation After MOVE Operation	5 6 7 8 4 L M 4 S K	Alphanumeric										
Alphanumeric	GEBKLM4SK GEBKLM4SK	Before MOVE Operation After MOVE Operation	+5 6 7 8 4 -3 4 4 2 2	Numeric										
Numeric	-9 8 7 6 5 4 3-9 6 7 6 5 4 32 7 6 5 4 32 7 6 5 4 3	Before MOVE Operation After MOVE Operation	+5 6 7 8 9 -7 6 5 4 3 5/0	Numeric										
Numeric	- <u>9 8 7 6 5 4 3</u> - <u>9 8 7 6 5 4 3</u>	Before MOVE Operation After MOVE Operation	<u>A B C D E</u> <u>7 6 5 4 L</u>	Alphanumeric										
1	FACTOR	R 2 AND RESULT FIELD SA	ME LENGTH.											
	FACTOR 2		RESULT FIELD											
Alphanumeric	A B 4 S K A B 4 S K	Before MOVE Operation After MOVE Operation	5 6 7 8 9 A B 4 S K	Alphanumeric										
Alphanumeric	A B 4 S K A B 4 S K	Before MOVE Operation After MOVE Operation	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Numeric										
Numeric	$\begin{array}{rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr$	Before MOVE Operation After MOVE Operation	+1 2 3 4 5 -9 8 7 6 5	Numeric										
Numeric	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Before MOVE Operation After MOVE Operation	A B S D E 8 7 6 5 M	Alphanumeric										
LETTE	R K = MINUS 2	LETTER L = MINUS 3	LETTER M = MINUS 4											

Table 9-4. MOVE Operations

F

<u>Facto</u>	<u>r 2</u>	<u>Result F</u>	<u>lield</u>	Characters	Sign
Type	Length	Type	Length	Transferred	Transferred
Numeric	Equal	Numeric	Equal	Digits	To sign position
Numeric	Shorter	Numeric	Longer	Digits	No transfer
Numeric	Longer	Numeric	Shorter	Digits	To sign position
Numeric	Equal	Alphanumeric	Equal	Digits	To rightmost zone
Numeric	Shorter	Alphanumeric	Longer	Digits	To rightmost zone
Numeric	Longer	Alphanumeric	Shorter	Digits	No transfer
Alphanumeric	Equal	Numeric	Equal	Digits	To sign position
Alphanumeric	Shorter	Numeric	Longer	Digits	No transfer
Alphanumeric	Longer	Numeric	Shorter	Digits	To sign position
Alphanumeric	Alphanumeric Equal		Equal	Bytes	To rightmost zone
Alphanumeric	Alphanumeric Shorter		Longer	Bytes	To rightmost zone
Alphanumeric	Alphanumeric Longer		Shorter	Bytes	No transfer

Table 9-5. MOVEL Operations

MOVEA The MOVEA (MOVE ARRAY) operation moves the data from the left-most position of the field specified in FACTOR 2 to the leftmost position of the field specified in the RESULT FIELD. When the end of either FACTOR 2 or the RESULT FIELD is reached, data transfer is terminated. When the RESULT FIELD is longer than FACTOR 2, the remainder of the data in the RESULT FIELD remains unchanged. The data contained in FACTOR 2 is never changed.

The MOVEA operation code may be used with either vector type, tables, or arrays.

It is possible to move the following with MOVEA:

- a. Adjacent array elements into a field.
- b. A field into adjacent array elements.
- c. Adjacent elements in one array into the corresponding elements of another array.
- d. The array in either FACTOR 2 and/or the RESULT FIELD can be indexed. The index can be either absolute or variable.
 - 1. For moves from FACTOR 2, the data transfer begins at the element indicated by the value of the index.
 - 2. For moves to the RESULT FIELD, the data reception begins at the element indicated by the value of the index.
- e. A literal to a field.
- f. A literal to an array.
- g. A literal to an array element.

h. A table name or element when referenced by FACTOR 2 or the RESULT FIELD.

с. Х. 1

i. An array can be moved to itself by referencing the same array in both the RESULT FIELD and FACTOR 2.

Requirements for MOVEA Operation

The following requirements must be observed for the MOVEA operation:

- a. The data format of both FACTOR 2 and the RESULT FIELD must be alphanumeric.
- b. The operation code, FACTOR 2, and the RESULT FIELD must contain entries.
- c. Control levels and conditioning indicators (columns 7-17) may contain valid entries. The remaining portion of the specification line must be left blank.

Restrictions for MOVEA Operations

The following restrictions must be observed when using the MOVEA operation:

- a. FACTOR 2 or the RESULT FIELD cannot reference numeric data.
- b. The RESULT FIELD cannot contain a literal.

Coding Examples for MOVEA Operation

The six figures (figures 9-6a-f) on the following pages show the use of the MOVEA operation and the contents of FACTOR 2 and RESULT FIELD before and after execution of the MOVEA.

· ··· ··· ··· ···



<u>ARRAY</u> A B C D E F G H I J K L A B C D E F G H I J K L

G12047

Figure 9-6b. Array to Field MOVE - Array Indexed by Literal ARRAY is an alphanumeric array containing four elements of three characters each.

BEFORE MOVEA

AFTER MOVEA

FIELD1

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

J K L 4 5 6 7 8

FIELD1 is an eight-character alphanumeric field.



ARRAY2 and ARRAY have different numbers of elements, but all elements are of the same length.



 ARRAY
 ARRAY

 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
 BEFORE MOVEA
 A B C D E F G H I J K L

 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
 AFTER MOVEA
 6 7 8 9 E F G H I J K L

G12049

Figure 9-6d. Array to Array MOVE - FACTOR 2 Indexed FACTOR 2 is indexed by a variable (N) whose value is 4. ARR2 and ARRAY have elements of different lengths.





ARR2 and ARRAY have elements of different lengths.

MOVE ZONE OPERATIONS

Move zone operations are used to move the zone portion of only one character. FACTOR 2 is not affected by this operation, and only the zone portion of one character of the RESULT FIELD is affected. FACTOR 1 must be left blank. HALF ADJUST and resulting indicators must not be specified.

An array name may be entered in FACTOR 2, as long as the RESULT FIELD also specifies an array. In this case, the designated move zone operation will be performed on each element of the array designated in FACTOR 2, with the result being placed in the corresponding elements of the array designated in the RESULT FIELD. The operation is terminated when the end of the shorter array is reached.

If the RESULT FIELD is an array, but FACTOR 2 is not, the zone from FACTOR 2 is moved into the appropriate position in all elements of the array.

For the purpose of move zone operations, the low-order zone portion of a variable is defined as:

- a. The algebraic sign if the variable is numeric, or
- b. The low-order zone if the variable is alphanumeric.

A high-order zone must only refer to alphanumeric field. For a numeric field, only the sign can be referenced.

The systems standard positive sign is forced into all positive numeric fields that are the result of a move zone operation. When the zone portion of a positive numeric field is moved to the zone portion of an alphanumeric field by a move zone operation, the sign byte of the result field contains alphanumeric 0-9. When the zone of a negative numeric field is moved to the zone of an alphanumeric field by a move zone operation, the sign of the result field contains the systems standard negative sign (D).

Move zone operations are shown in table 9-6.

Instruction	Contents of FACTOR 2	RESULT FIELD	Definition						
MHHZO	Alpha	Alpha	Move high-order zone portion of FACTOR 2 to high-order zone of RESULT FIELD						
MHLZO	Alpha	Alpha	Move high-order zone portion of FACTOR 2 to low-order zone of RESULT FIELD.						
	Alpha	Numeric	Move high-order zone portion of FACTOR 2 to the sign posi- tion of RESULT FIELD.						
MLHZO	Alpha	Alpha	Move low-order zone portion of FACTOR 2 to high-order zone of RESULT FIELD.						
	Numeric	Alpha	Move sign position of FACTOR 2 to high-order zone portion of RESULT FIELD.						
MLLZO	Alpha	Alpha	Move low-order zone of FACTOR 2 to low-order zone of RESULT FIELD.						
	Alpha	Numeric	Move low-order zone portion of FACTOR 2 to sign position of RESULT FIELD.						
	Numeric	Alpha	Move sign position of FACTOR 2 to low-order zone portion of RESULT FIELD.						
	Numeric	Numeric	Move sign position of FACTOR 2 to sign position of RESULT FIELD.						

Table 9-6. Move Zone Operations

9-28

-

Each of the move zone operations is discussed in the following paragraphs.

MHHZO This operation moves the zone from the high-order (leftmost) position of FACTOR 2 to the high-order (leftmost) position of the RESULT FIELD. Both FACTOR 2 and RESULT FIELD must be alphanumeric (see figure 9-7).



G14058

Figure 9-7. MHHZO Move Zone Operation

MHLZO If FACTOR 2 is alphanumeric and the RESULT FIELD is alphanumeric, this operation moves the zone from the high-order (leftmost) position of FACTOR 2 to the low-order (rightmost) position of the RESULT FIELD. If FACTOR 2 is alphanumeric and the RESULT FIELD is numeric, this operation moves the high-order (leftmost) position of FACTOR 2 to the sign position of the RESULT FIELD. FACTOR 2 must be alphanumeric (see figure 9-8).



Figure 9-8. MHLZO Move Zone Operations

MLHZO If FACTOR 2 is alphanumeric and the RESULT FIELD is alphanumeric, this operation moves the zone from the low-order (rightmost) position of FACTOR 2 to the high-order (leftmost) position of the RESULT FIELD. If FACTOR 2 is numeric and the RESULT FIELD is alphanumeric, this operation moves the zone from the sign position of FACTOR 2 to the high-order (leftmost) position of the RESULT FIELD. The RESULT FIELD must be alphanumeric (see figure 9-9).



G14060

Figure 9-9. MLHZO Move Zone Operations

MLLZO If FACTOR 2 is alphanumeric and the RESULT FIELD is alphanumeric, this operation moves the zone from the low-order (rightmost) position of FACTOR 2 to the low-order (rightmost) position of the RESULT FIELD.

If FACTOR 2 is alphanumeric and the RESULT FIELD is numeric, this operation moves the zone from the low-order (rightmost) position of FACTOR 2 to the sign position of the RESULT FIELD.

If FACTOR 2 is numeric and the RESULT FIELD is alphanumeric, this operation moves the zone from the sign position of FACTOR 2 to the low-order (rightmost) position of the RESULT FIELD.

If FACTOR 2 is numeric and the RESULT FIELD is numeric, this operation moves the zone from the sign position of FACTOR 2 to the sign position of the RESULT FIELD (see figure 9-10).





COMPARE OPERATIONS

These operations are used to test specified fields for certain conditions. The results of these operations are shown by the setting of the specified RESULTING INDICATOR (01-99, L1-L9, LR, H0-H9, OA-OG, OV). FACTOR 1 and FACTOR 2 are not affected by the operation. At least one RESULTING INDICA-TOR must be specified. The RESULT FIELD must be blank. HALF ADJUST must not be specified. Neither FACTOR 1 or FACTOR 2 may be a whole array.

- COMP This operation compares FACTOR 1 with FACTOR 2, causing the RESULTING INDICATORS to be set as follows:
 - a. HIGH (columns 54-55) FACTOR 1 > FACTOR 2
 - b. LOW (columns 56-57) FACTOR 1 < FACTOR 2
 - c. EQUAL (columns 58-59) FACTOR 1 = FACTOR 2

Both fields must be of the same data type.

Comparison of Numeric Fields

The comparison of numeric fields is based on their respective values considered purely as signed numeric quantities. The length of the fields, in terms of digits, is not itself significant. Both fields are automatically aligned on their decimal points, and leading or trailing zeros are supplied, as needed, to make the lengths identical.

Comparison of Alphanumeric Fields

The comparison of alphanumeric fields is accomplished by placing FACTOR 1 and FACTOR 2 left-justified in work areas of equal length, and padding the rightmost positions of the shorter field with blanks. A character-to-character comparison is then made beginning at the leftmost position of each field. Moving to the right, the comparison continues until:

- a. An unequal condition is found between corresponding characters, or
- b. The end of the fields is reached.

When the unequal condition is found, if the character that is highest in the collating sequence is in FACTOR 1, the high (1>2) indicator is turned ON, if specified. If the character that is highest in the collating sequence is in FACTOR 2, the low (1<2) indicator is turned ON, if specified. Otherwise, the equal (1=2) indicator is turned ON, if specified.

When the end of the fields is reached, a condition of equal is indicated.

TESTN The test numeric operation tests the contents of the alphanumeric field, indexed vector name, or unindexed table name specified in the RESULT FIELD (columns 43-48) for numeric characters or blanks. A whole array can not be specified. If all characters in the alphanumeric field specified are numeric, the indicator specified in columns 54-55 (high) is set ON. Each character in the field must be unsigned, with the exception of the low-order character, which must contain:

- a. The systems standard positive or negative sign, or
- b. Be unsigned, or
- c. Contain a valid plus or minus character to be considered numeric.

If the alphanumeric field specified contains numeric characters and leading blanks, the indicator specified in columns 56-57 (low) is set ON. The indicator specified in columns 58-59 (equal) is set on ON if the field contains all blanks. The same indicator can be specified for more than one condition and is set if the condition exists.

The TESTN operation determines the sign of the low-order (right-most) character within an alphanumeric field as follows:

Character Sign	Character Being Tested
Plus	A thru I, +0, +
Minus	J thru R, -0, -
Unsigned	0 thru 9

The TESTN operation determines the character status of the other characters within an alphanumeric field, with the exception of the low-order character, as follows:

Character Status	Character Being Tested
Numeric	0 thru 9
Non-numeric	All other characters

NOTE

The TESTN operation applies to alphanumeric fields only. If an arithmetic operation is to be performed, then this field must be moved to a numeric field.

Table 9-7 lists the various results of the TESTN operation for a 4-byte alphanumeric field. A "b" indicates a blank character.

	Indicator Results									
Contents of	Columns	Columns	Columns							
Field	54-55	56-57	58-59							
ABCD	OFF	OFF	OFF							
bABC	OFF	OFF	OFF							
bbbA	OFF	ON	OFF							
Abbb	OFF	OFF	OFF							
123D	ON	OFF	OFF							
b12C	OFF	ON	OFF							
bb1C	OFF	ON	OFF							
bbbb	OFF	OFF	ON							
1234	ON	OFF	OFF							

Table 9-7. Results of the TESTN Operation Code

TESTZ This operation tests the ZONE portion of the leftmost character of the RESULT FIELD, setting the specified RESULTING INDICATOR (01-99, L1-L9, LR, H0-H9, OA-OG, OV) to the results of the test. FACTOR 1 and FAC-TOR 2 must be blank. HALF ADJUST must not be specified. The RESULT FIELD must not be a whole array.

If the RESULT FIELD is alphanumeric, the character under test will set a specific RESULT INDICATOR according to the following:

Character Under Test	RESULTING INDICATOR Set
A-I, &	PLUS (columns 54-55)
J-R, -	MINUS (columns 56-57)
All Others	ZERO (columns 58-59)

If the RESULT FIELD is numeric, the PLUS (columns 54-55) or MINUS (columns 56-57) indicator will be set according to the sign of the field. A ZERO indicator must not be specified for a numeric field. Note that TESTZ is essentially a zone portion test and will differentiate between +0 and -0. If the programmer wishes to test for greater than, less than, or equal to zero, he should use a compare (COMP opcode) against zero, instead of TESTZ.

BINARY FIELD OPERATIONS

Three operation codes, BITON, BITOF, and TESTB, are provided to set and test individual bits. The individual bits can be used as switches in a program.

In binary field operations the operation codes BITON, BITOF, or TESTB are used. FACTOR 2 may contain either of the following:

- a. Bit values 0-7. One or more bits (maximum of eight) may be set ON, set OFF, or tested per operation. The bits are numbered from left to right and are enclosed in apostrophes. The order of specification of the bits is not restricted. Bits not specified in FACTOR 2 are not changed.
- b. The name of a one-position, alphanumeric field or table, or array element. In this case, the bits which are on in the field or array or table element are set ON, set OFF, or tested in the RESULT FIELD; bits which are not ON are not affected.
- BITON This operation code causes bits identified in FACTOR 2 to turn ON (set to one) in a previously defined field named as the RESULT FIELD. The operation code BITON must appear in columns 28-32. Conditioning indicators can be used in columns 7-17. Any entry under FIELD LENGTH must be 1.

FACTOR 1, DECIMAL POSITIONS, HALF ADJUST, and RESULTING INDICATORS are not used with the BITON operation (see figure 9-11).

-																D	EC	IM		HA P(A TI	ON DJI	US IS -	г. Т]						ף וו	
7	OF	ΡEF	RA ⁻	ric)N	23	FACTOR 2 F								RESULT FIELD							Resulting Indicators Arithmetic Plus Minus Zere Compare High Low Equa 1>2 1<2 1 = Lookup Table (Factor 2) i High Low Equ											
.1			Γ	Γ									Π	Ţ	Ť	Ţ						-		Ľ.	-			Ĩ		<u> </u>	Ĩ		ŕ
	B	1	٢	ø	N	١	١	2	3	4	1				F	3	1	Т	A														Ĺ
1	B	1	Т	Ø	N	1	Т	Ε	M	A					E	3	1	T	B							_							
1				L.					_					_	4	-							_	-									-
-	B	I	Τ	Ø	F	I	T	E	M	B				_	ŀ	4	R	R	>	X	Y	_											
-	В	1	T	Ø	F	`	1	2	3	1					1	4	R	R	•	X	Y												
	B	I	T	Ø	F	4	R	R	\$	X	Y				ŀ	ſ	B	L	\$	2	0												
-			ļ											_	_	_																	
-	T	E	5	T	B	<u>\</u>	0	5	7	1					E	3	I	T	٢								1	0	1	2	1	2	
1		-						-								_																	-

CALCULATION SPECIFICATIONS

G14062

Figure 9-11. Binary Field Operations Coding Examples

BITOF This operation code causes bits identified in FACTOR 2 to turn OFF (set to zero) in a previously defined field named as the RESULT FIELD.

The operation code BITOF must appear in columns 28-32. All other specifications are the same as those for the BITON operation (see figure 9-11).

TESTB This operation code causes bits identified in FACTOR 2 to be tested for an ON or OFF condition in the previously defined field named as a RESULT FIELD, setting the specified RESULTING INDICATOR to the result of the test. All other specifications are the same as those for BITON and BITOF.

> At least one RESULTING INDICATOR must be used with the TESTB operation; as many as three can be named for one operation. Two indicators may be the same for one TESTB operation, but not three. If FACTOR 2 contains bits which are all OFF, no RESULTING INDICATORS are turned ON. RESULTING INDICATORS have the meanings described in the following paragraphs.

Columns 54-55

An indicator in these columns is turned ON if each bit specified in FACTOR 2 is OFF (0) in the Result Field.

Columns 56-57

An indicator in these columns is turned ON if two or more bits were tested and found to be of mixed status: that is, some bits ON and other bits OFF. It is important to ensure that the field named in FACTOR 2 contains more than one bit which is ON if an indicator appears in columns 56-57.

<u>Columns 58-59</u>

An indicator in these columns is turned ON if each bit specified in FACTOR 2 is ON (1) in the Result Field.

The following explanations refer to figure 9-11.

- a. Bits 1234 are turned ON in the field named BITA.
- b. Bits that are ON in the field named ITEMA will cause the corresponding bits in the field named BITB to be turned ON.
- c. Bits that are OFF in the field named ITEMB will cause the corresponding bits in the array element ARR,XY to be turned OFF. Then bits 1, 2, 3 will be turned off in array element ARR,XY, and finally the bits that are off in ARR,XY will be turned off in the array element TBL,20.
- d. If bits 0, 5, and 7 are OFF in the field named BITC, indicator 10 will be turned ON. If bits 0, 5 and 7 are of mixed status in the field named BITC, indicator 12 will be turned ON. If bits 0, 5, and 7 are ON in the field named BITC, indicator 12 will be turned ON.

SETTING INDICATORS

Up to three indicators may be set ON or OFF with one operation. These may be entered in the RESULTING INDICATORS field. FACTOR 1, FACTOR 2, HALF ADJUST, and the RESULT FIELD must be left blank. The following rules must be observed when setting indicators:

- a. The following indicators may not be set ON or OFF: 1P, MR, LO, or U1-U8.
- b. Setting a control level indicator (L1-L9) ON or OFF does not affect any other control level indicator.
- c. All control level and record identifying indicators, except LO are automatically turned OFF after detail output operations are completed, regardless of any previous SETON or SETOF operations.
- d. If any halt indicators (HO-H9) are set ON and are not turned OFF before the detail output operations finish, the program will halt.
- e. If the LR indicator is turned ON by a SETON operation which is conditioned by a control level indicator (columns 7-8 on Calculations Specifications form), the program will stop after all total output operations are completed. If the LR indicator is turned ON by a SETON operation which is not conditioned by a control level indicator, the program stops after the next total output operation is completed.
- SETON This operation sets the indicators entered in the RESULTING INDICATORS field ON.
- SETOF This operation sets the indicators entered in the RESULTING INDICATORS field OFF.

PROGRAM BRANCHING OPERATIONS

Operations within the Calculation Specifications are normally performed in the order in which they are written. Branching operations allow variation of the order of operation; thus, conditional branching and repetitive operations are possible.

GOTO This operation causes the program to branch (GOTO) to some other instruction rather than "falling through" to the next sequential operation. Branching both forward and backward is allowed. Branching into or out of subroutines is not permitted. Branching from total calculations to detail calculations, though permitted in RPG I, may produce unexpected results when used in RPG II.

FACTOR 2 must contain a label (which must be defined elsewhere in the program as a TAG) which must follow the rules for formation of labels as described in Section 2. Columns 18-27 and 39-59 must be blank.

TAG This operation is used to identify the point where a GOTO operation will branch. FACTOR 1 must contain a unique label (TAG) which must follow the rules for formation of labels as described in Section 2. Conditioning by a control level indicator in columns 7-8 is permissible if the TAG is part of TOTAL CALCULATIONS. The INDICATOR field (columns 9-17) must be left blank. Columns 33-59 and 24-27 must be blank.

TRANSFER CONTROL FUNCTION

This operation causes the MCP to execute a control instruction within the operating RPG object program. The MCP control instructions which may be specified are system dependent. Refer to the <u>B 1700 System Software Operational Guide</u>, Form No. 1068731.

ZIP The operation code ZIP causes the MCP to execute the control instruction contained in FACTOR 2. FACTOR 2 may be a field name or vector name, previously defined, or a meaningful alphanumeric literal enclosed in apostrophes. The operation may be conditioned by the conditioning indicator. All other fields must be left blank. The information contained in FACTOR 2 must be a valid MCP Control Statement. The contents of FACTOR 2 must not exceed a maximum of 511 alpha characters.

> ZIP may be used for programmatic scheduling of object programs contained in the Disk Directory, or ZIP may be used to accomplish any of the MCP control functions performed through the console printer (SPO) or card reader.

> In the example shown in figure 9-12, the field DATA contains the alphanumeric information, "EX JOB10". EX JOB10 is a control instruction. When the priority for JOB10 is recognized once memory space becomes available, the MCP will retrieve JOB10 from the Disk Directory and place it in the MIX for subsequent operation.

> The program containing the ZIP operation will proceed to the next sequential instruction following the ZIP operation, without waiting for the execution of the program JOB10.

The example of a literal in FACTOR 2, shown in figure 9-13, will cause the same action.

LOOKUP OPERATIONS

<u>LOKUP</u>

This operation code is used to search a table or array for a particular data item. The table or array name is entered in FACTOR 2. The search word is entered in FACTOR 1.

Search Word

The search word, sometimes called the search argument, is the data item for which the program tries to find a match in the table or array named in FACTOR 2.

The Search Word in FACTOR 1 may be:

a. An alphameric or numeric literal.



G14064

Figure 9-13. The ZIP Operation Using a Literal

- b. A field name.
- c. A table name.

*

- A table element.
- d. An array element.

When FACTOR 1 references a table name, it refers to the element in the table that was last selected in a previous LOKUP operation. It does not refer to the whole table.

When FACTOR 1 references a table element, it refers to the actual table element and not necessarily to the element in the table that was last selected in a previous LOKUP operation. Resulting Indicators

Resulting indicators must be used with the LOKUP operation code. Those resulting indicators are used to specify the type of search to be performed. For example:

- a. When an indicator is assigned to EQUAL (columns 58-59), the table or array is searched for an item equal to the search word.
- b. When an indicator is assigned to HIGH (columns 54-55), the table or array is searched for an item that is nearest to, yet higher in sequence than, the search word. When the search is successful the indicator is turned ON.
- c. When an indicator is assigned to LOW (columns 56-57), the table or array is searched for an item that is nearest to, yet lower in sequence than, the search word. When the search is successful the indicator is turned ON.

Indicator Assignment

At least one resulting indicator must be assigned, and up to two resulting indicators may be specified if desired. However, when two resulting indicators are specified, one of them must be assigned to EQUAL. Resulting indicators may be assigned as follows:

EQUAL

EQUAL, HIGH EQUAL, LOW

HIGH

LOW

A LOKUP operation code causes a syntax error when:

- a. No resulting indicator is specified.
- b. Indicators are assigned to both HIGH and LOW.

Rules for LOKUP

- a. At least one resulting indicator must be assigned.
- b. The search word and the data items in the table or array must be of the same data type (alpha or numeric), and of the same length.
- c. Decimal points are ignored for numeric data.
- d. A table or array should be searched for HIGH, LOW, HIGH EQUAL or LOW EQUAL only if it is specified as ordered on the Extension Specifications.
- e. When multiple indicators are assigned, one of them must be assigned to EQUAL, with EQUAL taking precedence.

For example: Search for HIGH or EQUAL, the EQUAL condition takes precedence.

'5' LOKUPARY, X > = 20 21

The array contains: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Indicator 21 will turn on and X points to element 5, containing "5".

- f. Resulting indicators are turned ON only when the search is successful, and likewise, are turned OFF for an unsuccessful search.
- g. When a LOKUP operation is performed on a table or array, the search starts with:
 - 1. The first element of the table or array when FACTOR 2 contains an unsubscripted table or array name.
 - 2: The element reference when FACTOR 2 contains a subscripted table or array name.
- h. A subscripted table name cannot be specified in the result field for a LOKUP operation.
- i. An array name can not be specified in the result field for a LOKUP operation.
- j. Short tables or arrays should only be searched for an EQUAL condition because the compiler-supplied "filler" may cause the LOKUP to produce unexpected results.
- k. Any search for other than an EQUAL condition (LOW or HIGH, or LOW and EQUAL, or HIGH and EQUAL) is allowed only if the vector was specified as having ascending or descending sequence on the Extension Specifications. The search algorithm assumes that the vector is in the specified sequence; if the user allows the vector to get out of sequence, the results may be unpredictable or not what the user anticipated.

Single Table LOKUP

When the LOKUP operation code is used to search for an item in a single table, entries must be made in FACTOR 1 (search word). FACTOR 2 (table to be searched), and at least one resulting indicator must be assigned to designate the type of search. In addition, control level and conditioning indicators may be used.

When a table item is found that satisfies the type of search specified (HIGH, LOW, EQUAL), a copy of that data item is placed in a special hold field, and the appropriate resulting indicator is turned ON. With each successful search, the contents of the table element is placed in the special hold field, thereby destroying the data that was previously there. When the search is unsuccessful, the contents of this field are left unchanged.

Two Table LOKUP

When the LOKUP operation code is used with two related tables, only one table is actually searched. Entries must be made in FACTOR 1 (search word), FACTOR 2 (table to be searched), the result field which must contain the name of the related table from which data will be made available, and at least one resulting indicator must be assigned to designate the type of search. In addition, control level and conditioning indicators may be used.

When using LOKUP with related tables, the two tables should be capable of holding an equal number of entries. Whenever the searched table (FACTOR 2) is longer than the related table (Result field), the search is terminated when the end of the shorter table is reached.

Referencing Unsubscripted Table Entries

When a unsubscripted table name is used in any operation except LOKUP, the table name refers to the data item that was placed in the special hold field by the last successful LOKUP. This allows a program to use table items when performing calculations.

When an unsubscripted table name is used as the result field in operations other than a LOKUP, the data item that was placed in the special hold field is changed by the calculation operation. In addition, the actual corresponding table item in the table is also changed. This is one way that the contents of a table can be changed during program execution.

When an unsubscripted table name is used as the search word (FACTOR 1) of a LOKUP operation, the contents of the special hold field is used. This allows a program to use the result of the last successful search as the search word or argument for other LOKUP operations.

When an unsubscripted table name is used in an operation prior to a successful LOKUP, the contents of the special hold field is the first data item in the table.

Referencing Subscripted Table Entries

When a subscripted table name is used in any operation, the data item referenced is the actual entry in the table. The contents of the special hold area are not affected in any way.

LOKUP With An Array

The LOKUP specifications for an array are the same as those specified for a table, except that when an array is specified in a two-vector LOKUP, the array name must appear in FACTOR 2, and only an unsubscripted table name can be used in the result field.

The following items pertain to array handling:

- a. Arrays do not have special hold fields; therefore, when a search is successful, the indicators only reflect that the data item is in the array. The data item is not immediately available to the program.
- b. When referencing an array, if only the array name is used (no subscript), the search begins with the first element in the array.
- c. When referencing an array and a subscripted array name is used, the search begins at the element specified by the subscript. The subscript may be a numeric field name or a literal. When a search is successful, the appropriate indicator will turn ON. The type of subscript used will have the following effect:

- a. When the subscript is a literal, a successful LOKUP operation will only verify that the data item is in the array. The actual data item or its location within the array will not be available to the program.
- b. When the subscript references a numeric field name, a successful LOKUP operation will verify that the data item is in the array. In addition, the element number of the array in which the data item is contained will be automatically placed in the field that originally contained the beginning subscript. The data can now be made available to the program by again referencing the array using the same subscript field.

When the LOKUP operation is unsuccessful, the results are as follows:

- a. For an unsubscripted array all indicators are reset.
- b. For an array subscripted with a literal all indicators are reset. The literal is not affected.
- c. For an array subscripted by a numeric field name, all indicators are reset, and the value of the subscript is set to 1.

The algorithm used for the LOKUP operation code is shown in table 9-8. The array or table type references the A or D entries in columns 45 and/or 57 of the Extension Specifications. These entries determine the sequence of the data items, which is either ascending (A) or descending (D). A LOKUP operation for any search relation other than EQUAL requires that the table or array must be in either ascending or descending sequence.

The LOKUP search relation references the entries made in columns 54 through 59 of the Calculation Specifications. The entries made in these columns specify the type of search to be performed.

LOKUP Search Relation	Definition
LSS	Less than
LEQ	Less than or equal to
EQL	Equal
GEQ	Greater than or equal to
GTR	Greater than

The algorithm references the type of search actually performed by the interpreter for each type of LOKUP operation.

Example:

An ascending table is to be searched for an item that is less than (LSS) a particular value. The table is searched for the first item that is equal to

(EQL) or greater than (GTR) the particular value. If the search is successful, the interpreter then references the table item immediately preceding the found item.

When a table or array is not specified as being in sequence, the only LOKUP operation that is permitted is a search for EQUAL. Each element in the table is compared with the data item specified for an EQUAL comparison.

Table 9-8 follows:

Array or Table Type	LOKUP Search Relation	Algorithm of Actual Search Performed by Interpreter
Ascending	LSS	GTR or EQL
Ascending	LEQ	GTR
Ascending	EQL	EQL
Ascending	GEQ	GEQ
Ascending	GTR	GTR
Descending	LSS	LSS
Descending	LEQ	LEQ
Descending	EQL	EQL
Descending	GEQ	LSS
Descending	GTR	LSS or EQL

Table 9-8. LOKUP Algorithm

SUBROUTINES

Subroutine operation codes are used only to delimit the beginning and end of a subroutine, or to call a subroutine for execution from some point in the program. Specification lines within a subroutine must contain the entries SR, OR, AN, or blank in the CONTROL LEVEL field (columns 7-8), and all subroutines must be the last operations specified in the Calculation Specifications. The recursive use of subroutines is allowed but not recommended, for example, the operation EXSR SUB1 within the SUB1 subroutine. Subroutines may not be nested in the Source Language, e.g., BEGSR cannot appear in a subroutine. Refer to figure 9-14.

- BEGSR This operation code is used to indicate the beginning of a subroutine. FACTOR 1 must contain the name of the subroutine, which must follow the rules for formation of labels as described in Section 2. Columns 33-59, and 24-27 must be blank.
- ENDSR This operation code is used to indicate the end of a subroutine. FACTOR 1 may contain a label. This label is used like a TAG, as a point for a GOTO operation within the subroutine to branch, thus



Figure 9-14. Subroutine Coding Examples

allowing an exit from different points within the subroutine. Columns 33-59 and 24-27 must be blank.

EXSR This operation causes execution of a subroutine, and may appear anywhere within the Calculation Specification. When execution of the subroutine is completed, control returns to the next line following the EXSR operation. The EXSR operation can be used within a subroutine.

The EXSR operation may be conditioned by an indicator, allowing the subroutine to be executed (called) only when all the conditions are satisfied. FACTOR 2 must contain the name of the subroutine being called, which must be the same name entered in FACTOR 1 of a BEGSR operation. FACTOR 1 and columns 39-59 must be left blank.

PROGRAMMED CONTROL OF INPUT AND OUTPUT

Within the normal B 1700 RPG program cycle, a record is read, calculations are performed (using the data from that input record), and an output record is written. The CHAIN, DSPLY, EXCPT, READ, RECV, and SEND operations allow greater control over input and output, providing the capability to read and write records at times other than those normally available as part of the RPG program cycle. The FORCE and SETLL operations permit some programmatic control over the selection of records for processing.

CHAIN The CHAIN operation provides a method of accessing a data file on disk in an order other than the physical sequence of the records. CHAIN can be specified anywhere in the Calculation Specifications in columns 28-33.

> When the CHAIN operation code is specified, the following requirements must be satisfied:

- a. FACTOR 1 must contain a key specifier which cannot be a whole array.
- b. FACTOR 2 must contain the name of the file the program is chaining to.
- c. An indicator should be specified in columns 54-55 to turn ON if the record is not found. If it is desired that the systems operator be informed when no record is found, the field can be left blank.

When the CHAIN operation code is specified, the following fields must be left blank:

- a. RESULT FIELD.
- b. FIELD LENGTH.
- c. HALF ADJUST.
- d. DECIMAL POSITIONS.
- e. RESULTING INDICATORS EQUAL

When the CHAIN operation code is specified, optional entries are allowed in the following fields:

- a. CONTROL LEVEL INDICATOR.
- b. CONDITIONING INDICATORS.

When the chained file is conditioned with an external indicator, the CHAIN operation should be conditioned with the same external indicator. If this is not done, the CHAIN operation is automatically suppressed when the external indicator is OFF in order to avoid changing the status of the indicator specified in columns 54-55.

The following paragraphs describe how the CHAIN operation functions for each of the applicable file types.

Chained Indexed Files

The field length of FACTOR 1 must be the same as the key length specified for the file in the File Description Specifications. Note that if FACTOR 1 is a literal, leading zeroes or trailing blanks may be required to make the field length and key length equal. The filename entered in FACTOR 2 must have been defined in the File Description Specifications as a chained indexed disk file. If the file named in FACTOR 2 was defined in the File Description Specifications with P or N in column 31, then FACTOR 1 must be numeric.

<u>Input Files</u>. The value of the data specified in FACTOR 1 is compared against the index in order to locate the data record whose key field contains the same value as FACTOR 1. All specified record identifying indicators and field indicators are set appropriately.

If an equal condition is not found in the index, the indicator specified in columns 54-55 is switched ON. If no indicator is specified, the systems operator is notified by a message on the console printer.

<u>Update Files</u>. A chained indexed update file is processed in the same manner as chained indexed input files, with the following exception: When a record is found, the record location is retained. This allows the record to be written back into the same location from which it was read without having to CHAIN again.

Output Files. Output files are not allowed.

Chained Direct Files

FACTOR 1 must be numeric and FACTOR 2 must be defined in the File Description Specifications as a chained direct file.

Record Identification in Direct Files. When chaining to a direct file, if the key is equal to or greater than 1 and equal or less than the total number of records in the file, there will always be a "found" condition. Such a situation can present problems. In a file with a potential of more records than have actually been written, there are gaps in the file. For example, records one, five, and 1000 are all that a 1000-record, direct file currently contains. Under these conditions, when chaining to relative record number six, a record found condition implies only that the key is greater than 0 and less than or equal to the potential number of records in the file.

To ensure that the record being read is, in fact, a record and not an empty location, the user must take care to design proper record identifying codes in the direct files.

<u>Input Files</u>. The value of the data specified in FACTOR 1 must be a numeric (literal or field name) integer between 1 and n, where n is not greater than the total number of records in the file, and is the relative record number of the desired record.

If the key (numeric integer) is within the bounds of the file, the record will be found. Refer to Record Identification in Direct Files in this section for additional information. If the key is beyond the bounds of the file, the indicator specified in columns 54-55 is turned ON; however, if no such indicator is specified, the operator is notified by a message on the console printer. <u>Update Files</u>. The chained direct update file is processed in the same manner as the chained direct input file, with the following exception: When a record is found, the record location is retained. Therefore, the record can be written back into the location from which it was read without chaining again.

<u>Output Files</u>. In order to create a direct file, it must be specified in the File Description Specifications as output and chained in columns 15-16. At program execution time, when the key (relative record number) is used to chain, the record location specified is made available for the writing of the record as defined on the Output-Format Specifications. Refer to Record Identification in Direct Files in this section for additional information.

The highest key (relative record number) that is written when the file is first created determines the maximum file size.

Chained Sequential Files

Any disk file can be accessed as a sequentially created disk file by providing FACTOR 1 of the chain with relative record numbers for keys. To accomplish this, the disk file must also be defined on the File Description Specifications as a chained direct file, regardless of how it was originally created. However, this is an unusual procedure as it requires extensive knowledge of the location within the file of particular records.

<u>Input Files</u>. Chained sequential input files are handled the same as chained direct input files. Refer to the subsection titled Chained Direct Files in this section for detailed information.

<u>Update Files</u>. Chained sequential update files are handled the same as chained direct update files. Refer to the subsection titled Chained Direct Files in this section for detailed information.

DSPLY This operation causes data to be displayed on the console printer (SPO) or provides for certain low volume data entries to be entered by the systems operator through the console printer. The file name of the file assigned to the console printer must be entered in FACTOR 2. The HALF ADJUST and RESULTING INDICATORS fields must be left blank. Control level and conditioning indicators may be assigned. FACTOR 1 is optional and may be used to name a data item, which may be a field name or a vector element, or to specify a literal (numeric or alphanumeric). The RESULT FIELD is optional and may be used to specify the name of a data item (field name or vector element). If the RESULT FIELD is used, the systems operator must respond on the console printer. If both FACTOR 1 and the RESULT FIELD are blank, a syntax error is emitted.

The DSPLY operates in the following manner:

- a. If the RESULT FIELD is blank and FACTOR 1 contains a data item, the data item is printed on the console printer and the program proceeds to the next operation. (See figure 9-18, line 2.)
- b. If the RESULT FIELD contains a data item and FACTOR 1 is blank or contains a data item, the data is printed on the console printer and an ACCEPT message will be generated by

the MCP, to which the systems operator must respond. The contents of the response will be placed in the field specified in the RESULT FIELD. For the format of the ACCEPT message, refer to the <u>B 1800/B 1700 System Software Operational</u> Guide, Form No. 1068731. (See figure 9-15, line 5.)

- c. If both the RESULT FIELD and FACTOR 1 contain data items, the data from both is printed on the console printer and an ACCEPT message is generated by the MCP, to which the systems operator must respond. The contents of the response are placed in the field specified in the RESULT FIELD. (Refer to figure 9-15, line 8).
- d. Display output is crunched by the MCP.



Figure 9-15. DSPLY Operation Coding Examples

- EXCPT This operation allows EXCEPTION records to be written during calculations. Every time the EXCPT operation is executed, all lines in the Output-Format Specifications with a TYPE entry (column 15) of E will be written, dependent on conditioning indicators. If this operation is specified, Exception Time Output Specifications are required. The EXCPT operation may have CONTROL LEVEL and conditioning INDICATORS assigned; all other fields must be left blank.
- FORCE This operation enables selection of the file from which the next record is to be taken for processing. This specification overrides the normal record selection process that occurs during input. The FORCE operation does not actually read any records during
calculations, but only selects the file which will supply the next record for processing.

The force operation enables programmatic selection of the file from which the next record is to be taken for processing, and overrides the normal record selection process that occurs during input. The FORCE operation only selects the file which is to supply the next record for processing, and does not actually read any records during calculations.

The FORCE operation applies only to input, update, or combined files designated as PRIMARY or SECONDARY files. FACTOR 2 must contain the name of the file to be forced; all other fields (except conditioning INDICATORS) must be left blank. This operation must not occur within total calculations or in subroutines.

The MR indicator is always off while a forced record is being processed, and the forced record is treated as if it had no match fields specified.

The programmer should exercise care when specifying more than one FORCE operation during the same program cycle. If more than one FORCE is conditioned to occur, only the last one affects record selection, and all of the others are ignored. If the forced file is at end-of-file, normal record selection determines the next record to be selected for processing.

READ This operation is used to cause a record to be read from a demand file during calculations. This differs from the FORCE operation because FORCE causes input during the <u>next</u> program cycle, whereas the READ operation causes input during the <u>current</u> program cycle. It also differs from the CHAIN operation, because CHAIN is used to read records randomly, whereas the READ operation is used to read records sequentially.

FACTOR 2 must contain the name of the file to be read. The FACTOR 1, RESULT FIELD, FIELD LENGTH, DECIMAL POSITIONS, and HALF ADJUST fields must be left blank. The READ operation may be conditioned by CONTROL LEVEL or conditioning INDICATORS in columns 7-17.

Whenever the READ operation is specified, an indicator should be specified in columns 58-59 of the Calculation Specifications. The indicator is turned ON when an end-of-file condition occurs for the indexed file. Any subsequent attempt to read from the same file causes the indicator to be turned ON. When no indicator is used and an end-of-file condition occurs, the program automatically displays an REOF message on the console printer. The systems operator can then enter either STOP or GO on the console printer. If STOP is entered, the program terminates as if LR had occurred. If GO is entered, the program continues.

It is good programming policy to always use an indicator in columns 58-59 with the READ operation code.

The following rules must be observed when using the READ operation:

- a. Only demand files designated as INPUT, UPDATE, or COMBINED may be read by the READ operation.
- b. Sequence-checking in the Input Specifications is not allowed for demand files.
- c. Control levels, matching fields, and look-ahead fields are not allowed for demand files.
- d. If a demand file is conditioned by an external indicator (U1-U8) which is not set, the READ operation will be ignored (the End-of-File indicator in columns 58-59 will not turn ON).
- e. When READ operations are performed on demand files for which sequential within limits processing has been specified, the entire file can be read as many times as desired even though end-of-file has been reached. Refer to the subsection titled Sequential Within Limits in Section 4 for additional information about that type of file processing.
- RECV This operation is used to read messages from REMOTE data communication files during calculations. Only files specified as REMOTE and designated as demand in the File Description Specifications can be accessed with the RECV operation.

The RECV operation is similar to READ but permits the user to specify indicators in columns 54-59 to cause the following to be reported to the RPG program:

- a. Exception conditions.
- b. Incomplete I/O operations.
- c. End-of-file condition.

FACTOR 2 must contain the name of the REMOTE file to be read. The FACTOR 1, RESULT FIELD, FIELD LENGTH, DECIMAL POSITIONS, and HALF ADJUST fields must be left blank.

Indicators can be specified in columns 54-59 and are described as follows:

Columns 54-55

An indicator can be specified in columns 54-55 to cause exception conditions to be reported. The indicator is turned on only when the following conditions are satisfied:

- a. The established number of retries per read operation is attempted by the network controller without success, and
- b. The TERMINATE ERROR statement is included in the NDL network controller and is invoked during the attempted RECV operation.

NOTE

When a TERMINATE ERROR condition occurs, the incoming message to the RPG program is not processed.

When a specified indicator in columns 54-55 is turned on, there are several possibilities that can be programmed by the user. Some of these possibilities are:

- a. Re-issue a RECV operation for the same terminal.
- b. Make an entry in a log file.
- c. Display a message on the console printer to notify the B 1700 operator.
- d. Stop attempting to read from a terminal if repeated errors occur, or go to end-of-job.

If no indicator is specified in columns 54-55 and a TERMINATE ERROR condition occurs, the message is not processed and the RPG program is not informed of the error unless the program has previously cleared the record identifying indicators.

Columns 56-57

This field can be used to specify the type of read discipline desired for a RECV operation. If an indicator is specified in columns 56-57, incomplete I/O operations are reported to the RPG program. If no message is queued on an attempted RECV operation, incomplete I/O is reported and control is returned to the RPG program.

If no indicator is specified in columns 56-57 and a RECV operation is executed, control is not returned to the RPG program until a message is read.

Following are several items that could be programmed for depending upon the results of incomplete I/O reporting:

- a. Notify the operator that specific terminals do not respond.
- b. Send inquiry messages to the terminals.
- c. Have the RPG program perform other functions before attempting to read the message again.
- d. Determine if there is activity on the data communications transmission lines.

Columns 58-59.

This field is used to indicate if end-of-file conditions are to be reported to the RPG program. The end-of-file indicator can be turned on by:

a. Entry of the Quit Controller (QC) input message on the console printer by the B 1700 operator, or .

- b. And end-of-file message is placed in the queue assigned to the file by a controlling Message Control System (MCS).
- SEND This operation is used to write exception records (messages) to REMOTE data communications files during calculations. Only files specified as device type REMOTE and designated as demand in the File Description Specifications can be accessed with the SEND operation.

FACTOR 2 must contain the name of the REMOTE file to which the message is to be sent. The FACTOR 1, RESULT FIELD, FIELD LENGTH, DECI-MAL POSITIONS, and HALF ADJUST fields must be left blank.

The SEND operation is similar to EXCPT but permits the user to specify indicators in columns 56-59 to cause the following to be reported to the RPG program:

- a. Incomplete I/O operations.
- b. End-of-file conditions if an invalid key is used.

The indicators that can be specified in columns 56-59 are described as follows:

Columns 56-57.

This field can be used to specify the type of write discipline desired for a SEND operation. If an indicator is specified in columns 56-57 and the SEND operation is attempted when the message queue is full, incomplete I/O condition is reported to the RPG program. The output message queue size is controlled by the network controller.

Several actions that could be taken following incomplete I/O reporting are:

- a. The RPG program can send the message again.
- b. The B 1800/B 1700 operator can be notified that a terminal doesn't respond to inquiry.
- c. Stop attempting to send messages to a particular terminal.

Columns 58-59.

This field can be used to indicate if end-of-file conditions are to be reported. If an indicator is specified in columns 58-59, end-offile is reported for output and combined (input and output) files if an invalid key is used for a SEND operation.

If no indicator is specified in columns 58-59, end-of-file is not reported and use of an invalid key results in the display of a DS or DP message on the console printer.

Prior to the first SEND operation, a value must be moved to the station number field (columns 22-27 on the Telecommunications Specification Line). This value is three characters long and represents the relative station number in the file of logical stations defined in the Network Controller program. Prior to every SEND operation, a value must be moved to message length field (columns 28-33 on the Telecommunications Specification line). This value is four characters long and represents the largest ending position value defined on the Output Specification line for the REMOTE file.

Example Program:

The following program sends the message 'HI THERE' to the remote station from which the program was executed:

00100H 00200FPRIMARY IPE F 180 180 DISK 00300FREMFILE 0 F19201920 REMOTE 00400TREMFILE 001002STATONMESLEN 00500IPRIMARY AA 01 006001 1 1 DUMMY 00700C MOVE '001' STATON 3 00800C MOVE '0010' MESLEN 4 00900C SEND REMFILE 010000REMFILE E 01 011000 10 'HI THERE'

SETLL When this operation is specified in the Calculation Specifications, any indexed file that is designated as a demand file can be processed sequentially within limits.

WARNING

An indexed file designated as a demand file cannot be processed sequentially within limits by both a limits file and the SETLL operation code within the same program.

When SETLL is specified, the absolute value contained in a field or literal is used to establish the lower limit (bound) of the record key for the indexed file that is to be processed sequentially within limits. The upper limit (bound) automatically defaults to the highest record key that exists in the file.

FACTOR 1 must contain a field name, a vector element, a table name, or a literal representing the value of the lower limit being set. A whole array is not allowed. The type (alphanumeric or numeric) and length of FACTOR 1 should be equal to the type and length of the key for the file named as FACTOR 2.

FACTOR 2 must contain the name of the file for which the lower limit is to be set. The named file must be specified on the File Description Specifications as an indexed demand file processed within limits, but must not occur on Extension Specifications. For example, no record address file can be associated with this file. Columns 43-59 must be blank. Columns 7-17 can be used in the normal way.

Whenever the indexed demand file named as FACTOR 2 is read using the READ operation, records are read sequentially by key. The SETLL operation sets the lower key limit for the file. The next record read is the record whose key is next in sequence but greater than the lower key limit. Successive records are read in ascending key sequence until either end-of-file occurs or another SETLL operation is executed.

Refer to Section 4 of this manual for additional information concerning SETLL and file processing within limits.

DEBUG OPERATION

The DEBUG operation is a special-purpose function which simplifies the location and correction of errors in an RPG Program.

DEBUG This operation causes records to be written during calculations. These records contain specific information which may be helpful in locating errors in the program. DEBUG operations may appear in as many places as needed within the Calculation Specifications. Every time the DEBUG operation is executed, one or more fixed-format records will be written to an output device. One record contains a list of all indicators which are ON at the time the DEBUG operation is specified; the other record(s) shows the contents of any one field.

DEBUG operations will be compiled into the object program only if the DEBUG field of the Control Card contains a 1 (column 15). All DEBUG operations are syntax checked during compilation.

The file named must be defined as a sequential output file on the File Specifications. All DEBUG output must go to the same file. FACTOR 2 must contain the name of the output file on which the records are written.

FACTOR 1 is optional, and may contain a literal or field name to identify the particular DEBUG operation being executed.

FACTOR 1 must not be a whole array, and the size of the field must not exceed eight positions. The literal or the value of the designated field is written as part of the output records.

The DEBUG operation may be conditioned by indicators in columns 7-17. Columns 49-59 must be left blank. RESULT FIELD is optional, but if specified it must be a field, vector, or indexed vector whose contents are written on the second and subsequent records.

DEBUG Operation Output

One or more records will be written as output from every DEBUG operation. The first record is always written; the second and subsequent records will be written only if the RESULT FIELD contains an entry. See figure 9-16 for an example of the output produced by the DEBUG operation. SOURCE PROGRAM

OUTPUT LISTING

 \sim

1 0101 H 1	DEBUG- 1 INDICATORS ON-01 02 05 ARY •0001 000136
2 0102 FCARDIN IPE 80 80 READER 3 0103 FPRINTOUTO 132 132 PRINTER	ARY ,0002 000000 ARY ,0003 000000 ARY ,0004 000000
	DEBUG- 2 INDICATORS ON-01 02 05 75 80 85
4 0201 E AKY 5 6 2	ARBAIA 000136 DEBUG- INDICATORS ON-01 02 05 75 85 DEBUG- INDICATORS ON-01 02
5 0301 ICARDIN AA 01	ELEMENT \$ 1 OF ARRAY EARY LOADED WITH: 1.36 LOAD ARY 1 WITH 1.36
7 0303 I 9 1001X 05	DEBUG- 1 INDICATORS ON-01 04 05
8 0304 I 13 80 CMNT	ARY ,0001 000136 A ARY ,0002 000000
	ARY +0003 000000 ARY +0004 000000
10 0302 C ≥1≥ DEBUGPRINTOUT ARY	ARY +0005 000000 DEDUCATORS ON-01 04 05 75 80 85
12 0404 C ≥2≥ DEBUGPRINTOUT ARDATA	ARDATA 000000
13 0405 C SETOF 80 14 0406 C DEBUGPRINTOUT	DEBUG- INDICATORS ON-01 04 05 75 85 DEBUG- INDICATORS ON-01 04
15 0407 C SETOF 758505	ELEMENT \$ 2 OF ARRAY 2ARY2 LOADED WITH: 0.00 LOAD ARY,2 WITH 0.00
	DEBUG-1 INDICATORS ON-01 02 05
17 0501 OPRINTOUTO 2 01	ARY +0002 000000
18 0502 0 9 22LCMENT \$2 19 0503 0 IX Z 11	ARY .0004 000000
20 0504 0 33 ≥ OF ARRAY ≥≥ARY≥≥ LOADED≥ 21 0505 0 40 ≥ WITH: ≥	ARY ,0005 000000 DEBUG- 2 INDICATORS ON-01 02 05 75 80 85
22 0506 0 ARDATA 48 ≥ 0 • ≥ 23 0507 0 CMNT 120	ARDATA 123456 DE5UG- INDICATORS ON-01 02 05 75 85
	DEBUG- INDICATORS ON-01 02 FLEMENT \$ 3 OF ARRAY 2ARY2 LOADED WITH: 1234.56 LOAD ARY,3 WITH 1234.56
	ARY .0001 000136
	ARY +0002 000000 ARY +0003 123456
	ARY +0004 999999 ARY +0005 000000
	DEBUG- 2 INDICATORS ON-01 02 05 75 80 85
	DEBUG- INDICATORS ON-01 02 05 75 85
	ELEMENT \$ 4 OF ARRAY 2ARY2 LOADED WITH: 9999.99 LOAD ARY,4 WITH 9999.99
	DEBUG- 1 INDICATORS ON-01 02 05
	ARY +0001 000135 ARY +0002 000000
	ARY +0003 123456 ARY +0004 99999
	ARY ,0005 654321
	DEBUG- 2 INDICATORS UN-01 02 05 75 80 85 ARDATA 654321
	DEBUG- INDICATORS 0N-01 02 05 75 85 DEBUG- INDICATORS 0N-01 02
	ELEMENT \$ 5 OF ARRAY 2ARY2 LOADED WITH: 6543.21 LOAD ARY,5 WITH 6543.21

G14070



s

ł

£ in

The first record written is in the following format:

Record Position	Entry
2-7	DEBUG
9-17	Blank
18-31	The words INDICATORS ON-
32-any posi- tion depending on the number of indicators ON	List of indicators that are ON, separated by blanks.

TIME

The TIME operation provides the system time. The system date is provided as an option. System time and system date, as referred to here, are the dynamic time and date provided by the system, and may change during the execution of an RPG program.

To use this operation, enter the operation code TIME in columns 28-32 of the Calculation Specifications. The Result Field, columns 43-48, must contain the name of a six or twelve digit numeric field which may be defined elsewhere in the program or in columns 49-52 of the Calculation Specifications. The numeric field named in columns 43-48 may not be a whole array. FACTOR 1, FACTOR 2, HALF ADJUST, and the Resulting Indicators must remain blank.

After this operation is performed:

- a. A six-digit Result Field will contain the system time in the format hhmmss, where hh represents hours, mm represents minutes, and ss represents seconds.
- b. A twelve-digit Result Field will contain both the system time and the system date, with the format of the system date being dependent on the entry in the Inverted Print field (column 21) of the Control Card Specification.

If the Inverted Print field contains a blank, the Result Field is provided in the format hhmmssmmddyy.

If the Inverted Print field contains a D, I, or J, the Result Field will be in the format hhmmssddmmyy, where hh represents hours, mm represents minutes, ss represents seconds, mm represents month, dd represents day, and yy represents year.

¢ 嶉

v

SECTION 10

OUTPUT-FORMAT SPECIFICATIONS

The Output-Format Specifications state where a record is to be written. Within the file where the record is to be written, these specifications also define when to write, what data is to be written, and the location and format of the data within the record.

Depending on the peripheral equipment available, RPG can be used to write on line printers, character printers, tapes, disks, cards and remote devices. While any of these devices can be used to create new files or records, disks are suitable for changing a record in place without changing the location of the record in the file. Therefore, the Output-Format Specifications can describe all of, or part of, a record.

The Output-Format Specifications are used to define where to write. Device in the File Description Specifications names the peripheral and filename associates a uniquely devised mnemonic with that device.

The Output-Format Specifications are functionally divided into the following two sections:

- a. Record description, consisting of columns 7-31.
- b. Field description, consisting of columns 23-70.

RECORD DESCRIPTION SECTION

The record description section contains the following information:

- a. Where the record is to be written filename, columns 7-14.
- b. When the record is to be written file type, column 15.
 - 1. Detail output, enter D. Enter H for heading information.
 - 2. Total output, enter T.
 - 3. Exception output, enter E. Exception output is written only as a result of the EXCPT operation code and may be executed during either detail calculations or total calculations.
- c. Output conditioning indicators, columns 23-31. These indicators are used in parallel with the H, D, T, and E of column 15 further control when the record is to be written.

FIELD DESCRIPTION SECTION

The field descriptions contain the following information:

a. When to write the data on the record. Output conditioning indicators, columns 23-31.

- b. What data to write on the record.
 - 1. Variable name, columns 32-37.
 - 2. Edit codes, column 38, punctuate the data written.
 - 3. Blank after, column 39, clears the field after the write.
 - 4. Constant or edit word, columns 45-70, punctuates and/or specifies constant information to be written in the record.
 - c. Relative location where the data is to be written in the record-end position, columns 40-43.
 - d. Format of data to be written in the record.
 - 1. Edit codes, column 38, punctuate numeric variables.
 - 2. Packed, column 44, may specify packed format of numeric variables.
 - 3. Binary, column 44. May specify binary format of numeric variables.
 - 4. Constant or edit word, columns 45-70, specifies constant data and punctuation and constants, if required, of numeric variables.

Since several of the Output-Format Specification fields have multiple usages which are conflicting, they are discussed in the text of this section.

Figure 10-1 illustrates and describes the Output-Format Specifications form.

The first Output Specification must be a record type description. Field description entries must start one line below the associated record type descriptions. A warning is emitted if a record type description has no associated field descriptions.

FIELD DEFINITIONS

Refer to figure 10-1 in conjunction with the following field definitions for the Output-Format Specifications.

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

An 0 must appear in this field.

7-14 FILENAME

This field is used to identify the file to which the subsequent record type and field description entries belong. The file specified must have been previously described on the File Description Specifications form as output, update, combined, or input, with an A in column 66 on the File Description Specifications and ADD specified in columns 16-18 of the Output-Format Specifications. Every output file described



- A. 7-14 Contains a filename specified in the File Description Specifications.
- B. 14-16 Puts the output indicators in an AND or OR relationship. Entries: AND or OR.
- C. 15 Specifies the type of output record to be written. Entries: H, D, T or E.
- D. 16-18 Specifies if a record is to be added to an indexed sequential file. Entries: Blank or ADD.
- E. 16 Specifies (1) which stacker the output card is to be placed or (2) that the overflow routine is to be invoked. Entries: Blank, F, or 1-N (N=number of stackers).
- F. 17-18 Specifies forms spacing, before or after printing, for printer output files. Entries: 0 or blank, or 1-9.
- G. 19-22 Specifies forms skipping, before or after printing, for printer output files. Entries: 0-99, A0-A9, B0-B2, or blank.
- H. 23-31 Output Indicators:

23, 26, 29 Indicates if the output indicator in columns 24-25, 27-28, or 30-31, must be ON or OFF. Entries: Blank or N.

24-25, 27-28, 30-31 Contains a previously defined indicator which is to condition output. Entries: 01-99, LO-L9, LR, MR, HO-H9, U1-U8, 0A-0G, OV, IP, or blank.

G14071

- 32-37 Contains a previously defined field name or vector or one of the special field names PAGE, PAGE through PAGEn, *PLACE, *PRINT, UDATE, UMONTH, UYEAR, UDAY, JDATE.
- J. 38 Specifies the editing for a numeric output field when not using an edit word. Entries: Blank, 1, 2, 3, 4, A, B, C, D, J, K, L, M, X, Y, or Z.
- K. 39 Specifies if a variable is to be reset after the output operation is finished. Entries: Blank or B.
- L. 40-43 Specifies the location of a field within an output record. Entries: 1-N (N=maximum record length) right-justified or an * in column 40.
- M. 44 Specifies that an output field is to be written in alphanumeric, packed or binary format. Entries: Blank, P, or B.
- N. 45-70 Contains constants and/or edit words, used to format and punctuate output records, enclosed in apostrophes and left-justified. Entries: Any valid RPG character (see text for uses of characters with special meanings).

in the File Description Specifications should also be described on the Output-Format Specifications form, but this is not required.

If this entry is blank on a record type description, the filename of the previous record is assumed. The first record type description must not have a blank filename entry.

For update files, only the fields to be changed must be specified in an output record. The remainder of the update record remains unchanged.

15 TYPE

This field is used to specify when an output record is to be written. These records contain such information as the following:

- a. Heading records contain such information as page headings, and are treated as if they were detail records.
- b. Detail records usually contain some type of data obtained directly from input records and calculation operations. Detail records are written once during every cycle, depending upon conditioning indicators.
- c. Total records usually contain totals accumulated from a group of input records. Total records are written only during cycles in which a control break occurs, depending upon conditioning indicators.
- d. Exception records are written during calculation time, through use of the EXCPT or SEND operation codes.

Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
н	Heading records.
D	Detail records.
Т	Total records.
Е	Exception records (written during calculation time).

Record types can be specified in any order. However, if all output indicators are satisfied, the sequence of output is the order specified on the Output-Format Specifications, as follows:

a. Heading and detail output. Each cycle including IP output on the first cycle only.

10 - 4

- b. Exception output. During total calculation except during the first cycle.
- c. Total output. Each cycle except the first.
 - d. Overflow output. Each cycle when a paper overlow condition has occurred.
 - e. Exception output. During detail calculations.

First page (1P indicator ON) output is heading or detail output conditioned with the 1P indicator, and only occurs at the beginning of program execution because the 1P indicator is permanently turned OFF after the first detail output.

Overflow output is heading, detail, or total output records conditioned with an overflow indicator.

For ease of writing and subsequent program maintenance, one of the following two methods is usually used for determining output record sequence:

- a. The records within one file are specified, beginning with heading records and continuing with detail records, total records, and exception records.
- b. The programmer can specify headings for all files, detail records for all files, total records for all files, and exception records for all files.

The two methods of determining the sequence of output specifications can be varied as required, so that the programmer can ensure the proper physical sequence of the records in the files.

Exception records can be specified for a combined file, although this is not recommended for files other than REMOTE. Exception output records conditioned on LO-L9 or total output must not be specified for primary or secondary update files.

16-18 RECORD ADDITION

If a record is to be added to an input, output, or update file, the following conditions apply:

- a. The file must be a disk file.
- b. The corresponding File Description Specification must have an A in column 66.
- c. The word ADD must be entered in columns 16-18 of the record type description.
- d. ADD must not be specified on an AND/OR line.

16 STACKER SELECT/FETCH OVERFLOW

This field may be used to specify:

- a. The stacker into which the output or combined file card is placed after it is processed, or
- b. That the overflow routine can be called for possible execution prior to printing the record specified by this line.

Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Cards automatically go to default stacker.
Numeric Entry	Stacker into which card type is stacked.
F	Fetch overflow (printer files only).

STACKER SELECT

Output card files can only be stacker selected on the Output-Format Specification.

Combined card files can be stacker selected on either the Input Specifications or the Output-Format Specifications. At program execution time, if a record appears that is selected in both the Input and Output Specifications, it is selected according to the Output-Format Specification. The programmer should try to avoid such instances because the results may be confusing.

Stacker selection on the basis of matching records should be specified only for detail output lines, because the card is selected prior to total time.

If the numeric entry specifying stacker selection is greater than the potential of the attached hardware device, the record is selected to the normal (default) stacker.

Record types identified by OR lines can be stacker selected to a special stacker by an entry in the field. However, if the stacker select field is left blank, the record type selected by the OR line goes to the default stacker (stacker select entry on the previous line is not assumed). AND lines can not have a stacker select entry.

FETCH OVERFLOW

If the printing of a line could cause overflow, leaving insufficient space on the page to print the remaining detail, total output lines or lines conditioned by the overflow indicator, FETCH OVERFLOW should be specified (F in column 16).

When the overflow line is reached, the same sequence of events always occurs. These events are described in detail in the subsection titled Printer File Handling in this section of the manual. Briefly, remaining detail lines, total lines, and overflow-lines (lines conditioned by the overflow indicator) are printed on the page following the occurrence of overflow. If, however, it is desired to print overflow lines ahead of the usual time, a FETCH OVERFLOW routine may be specified. This may be initiated any time after the overflow line has been reached. When overflow is caused in this manner, the following actions take place:

- a. All total lines conditioned by the overflow indicator are printed. If skipping is specified on these lines, it occurs as defined by the user.
- b. Heading and detail output lines conditioned by the overflow indicator are printed. If skipping is specified on these lines, it occurs as defined by the user.
- c. The line that fetched the overflow routine is printed.
- d. Any detail and/or total lines left to be printed in the current program cycle are printed.

For the printer file, an F in column 16 on the Output Format Specifications specifies that the overflow routine will be fetched. An F can be specified for any total, detail, or exception line that is not conditioned by an overflow indicator.

If a line causes the overflow indicator to turn ON, the next line containing an F in column 16 will cause the execution of the overflow routine. When that is complete, normal printing will resume with the statement that fetched the overflow routine (see figure 10-2).

			ł											S _P	Ċ _E		SK	CIP	0	υτ	PU	т	INI	סוכ	AT	OF	۱S	
L	IN	E				FIL	.EI	٩N	ME					ш			IJ				AI	yD		A	٧D			
														BEFOR	AFTER		BELOH	AFTER	NOT			NOT			NOT			
3		5	6	7							14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21 2	2 23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	3
0	1		ó	Ρ	R	1	N	T	Ø	υ	T	H			2	0	6			Ø	F							Γ
0	2		0																Τ			Γ						Γ
0	3		0			Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ			D	F	Γ	2				Τ	1	0	Γ					Γ	ſ
0	4		0			[Γ	Γ	Γ					Γ						Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ			Γ
0	5		0	Γ	Γ			Γ				T		Γ	1				Τ	L	1	Γ					Γ	T
0	6		0	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ		Γ			Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ		Τ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ			Γ
0	7		0	Γ		Γ						T	F	Γ	1	Γ	Γ		Τ	L	1	Γ		Γ			Γ	Γ
0	8		0		Γ	Γ	Γ	T	Γ			Ť		Γ	Ĺ	T	T		T	T	Γ	T	Γ		Γ	Γ	Γ	t
0	9		0		Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ				Г		Γ	1				T	ø	F	Γ	Γ	Γ			Γ	T
1	0		0				T	T					T	T	T	Γ	T		T	T	Ť		T				T	t
1	1		0		T	Γ	T	T		Γ		F	Γ	T	1	Γ	T		T	Ø	F	ſ	T				T	t
G 14	107	72	0	1	1	1	1	1-	1	1	1-	ľ	1	1	1	t	1	1-+-	+	ſ	1	1	1-	1	1	1	1	t

Figure 10-2. FETCH OVERFLOW Coding Example

In the example in figure 10-2, if the printing of line 03 causes the overflow indicator to turn on, output lines will occur in the following order:

- 05 is printed on the same page if indicator Ll is on.
- 07 fetches overflow.
- 09 and 11 are printed.
- 01 is printed after skipping to a new page.
- 07 is printed if indicator Ll is on.

Forms will not automatically advance to a new page. It is the programmer's responsibility to specify a skip to the first printing line on a new page. This skip to Top-of-Page must be specified on a line conditioned by the overflow indicator (see figure 10-3).

												ł		S _P	C _E		SK			0	υτ	PU	т	IN	DIC	AT	OF	₹S	
L	IN	E			ł	FIL	.Er	NA	ME					ш		ų						A	١D		A	ND			
														PEFOR	AFTER			ACTCD	ī	NOT			NOT			NOT			
3		5	6	,							14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31	3
0	1	Γ	0	P	R	1	N	Г	Ø	υ	Т	H			4	0	6				Ø	F							
0	2		0	Γ																									Γ
0	3	Γ	0																										
GIA	10	73	•																										

Figure 10-3. Overflow Indicator with Skip Specified

Fetch may be specified for an OR line, but not for an AND line. Fetched overflow can be specified for any detail, total, or exception line, except those conditioned by an overflow indicator.

When more than one printer file is used, fetch pertains only to the overflow lines associated with the file in which the record specifying fetch is defined.

Exception Lines

Since an overflow indicator cannot be specified on an exception output line (E in column 15), FETCH OVERFLOW may be used to cause overflow output at exception time.

The use of fetch overflow (figure 10-4) will cause the heading, detail, and total overflow lines to be printed when the overflow line has been passed (if the conditioning indicators of the fetch line are satisfied). The user may also force overflow by setting ON the appropriate overflow indicator (using the SETON operation code) prior to issuing the EXCPT operation code.



Figure 10-4. FETCH OVERFLOW with Exception Output Coding Example

17-18 SPACE

This field is used to specify forms spacing for printer output files. It is divided into two subfields such that spacing BEFORE or AFTER printing may be specified. If both fields (SPACE and SKIP) are blank, single spacing after printing is assumed.

Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	No spacing specified.
0	Space Suppress.
1-9	Space 1-9 lines, as specified.

Refer to the subsection titled Printer File Handling in this section of the manual for additional information.

19-22 SKIP (RPG II DIALECT)

This field is used to specify forms skipping for printer output files. It is divided into two subfields such that skipping BEFORE or AFTER printing may be specified. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
0-99	Line number for skip-0-99.
A0-A9	Line number for skip-100-109.
B0-B2	Line number for skip-110-112.
Blank	No skipping specified.

Refer to the subsection titled Printer File Handling in this section of the manual for additional information.

A skip entry must not be greater than the form length as specified in the Line Counter Specifications or as defaulted.

If both skipping and spacing are specified on the same line, the operations are performed in the following order:

- a. SKIP BEFORE.
- b. SPACE BEFORE.
- c. SKIP AFTER.
- d. SPACE AFTER.

The user should exercise his option to ensure skipping and spacing AFTER printing since it is more efficient than skipping and spacing BEFORE printing.

Different SPACE and SKIP entries may be specified for OR lines. If all these entries are blank for an OR line, spacing and skipping are done according to the specifications on the preceding line. If any entries are made for an OR line, all desired spacing and skipping must be specified. SPACE and SKIP entries are not permitted on AND lines. Spacing and skipping must not be specified for other than printer files.

23-31 OUTPUT INDICATORS

This field is divided into three subfields such that up to three indicators on each line may be specified to condition an output operation. Each subfield is divided into two parts as follows:

- a. NOT (one column).
- b. INDICATOR (two columns).

The NOT portion is used to specify that the associated indicator must be OFF in order for the operation to occur. If this condition is desired, an N must be entered in the NOT portion. Otherwise, the NOT portion must be left blank. No output line should be conditioned by all negative indicators (at least one of the indicators used should be positive). If all negative indicators condition a heading or detail line, the line is printed at the beginning of the program cycle when 1P lines are written.

The INDICATOR portion is used to specify the indicator to be tested for ON (NOT = blank) or OFF (NOT = N). The following entries are allowed in this portion of the INDICATORS field:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Operation not conditioned by an indicator.
01-99	Operation conditioned by indi- cator used elsewhere in the program.
LO-L9	Operation conditioned by control level indicator previously assigned.
LR	Operation conditioned by last record indicator.
MR	Operation conditioned by match- ing record indicator.
но-н9	Operation conditioned by halt indicator used elsewhere in the program.
U1-U8	Operation conditioned by exter- nal indicator previously set.
OA-OG, OV	Operation conditioned by over- flow indicator previously set.
1P	Operation conditioned by first page indicator.

All three indicators on one line are in an AND relationship. All indicators on one line (or grouped lines) must be ON or OFF as specified in order for the associated operation to take place.

An indicator specified on the line describing the record type will condition the entire output record. An indicator used to condition a field within the record is placed on the same line as the field description (see figure 10-5).

PA	3E	1	2								_	T۱	PE												C	JL	т	Pι	רנ	Γ.	F	•0	R	м	A	т	SF	۶E	СІ	F	IC	A	τı	0	N	s												P 10	RC)GI NT	RA	M IC	AT	101	N	75	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	80]	
-		_	_	FO	RM	T١	'PE			_			. S	TA	C	E	R	SE	LE	CT.	/Fl	т	н	0	VE	RF	LC	2W			_				_													Γ										E	DI	гс	:01	DE	s										٦
												s	P.	1		6 K	IP		0	υт	PI.	T	INI	מס	:A	тс	RS								1													C	ON	M/	٩S	ZI	R	DE	AL	.A	NC	ES	T	NC) s	IG	N	С	T	-	X	-	RE	M	οv	E	٦
		μ								Η		łĻ	°C	F				_	Ľ			_			-														т.	•••	נחר							F	Y	ES		1	-	<u>v</u>	YE	S	<u> </u>		+		1	-		A	t	1	١v		DA		Ē		
										L			1																FI	Eι	D	N	٩N	٨E		Γ,		_	в	LA	N	<	٩F	TE	R				N	ES D				- N - Y	NO YES	5					2			B	:	K L	z	-	FII ZE	ELI RC	DE	D	T
1	INE			F	:ILI	EN	٩M	E				l	Ľ,	r	BF		0	÷		-				A) T	T	-	(V NJ	'A AN	RI. 1E)	AB)	LE						ſ		• E	NC) P	05			N	L	N	0				N	10						4			D	<u>_</u>	М	L		SU	PP	RE	SS	
												L		-	L L L		Ē		b			5			b										ł	Н	т	••••	+	-		f	Ē								••••				_					~~	-									Г	NC	т	٦
												ľ	ľ	۲	а.		<	ς 	ſ			Ĺ			ľ										ľ	1	1		1			Y	١.								co	NS	TA	NT	0	R	EC	л	w	0	٦D										US	٤D	
13	T.T	1	1					л.		1	511	+	4	8 1	9	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	21	28	12	13	13	13	1			Г	Г	Ť	4	813	914	T	Т	-	43	-14	45	Г	Т	Т	Т	Т	Т	Т	Т	Т	T	T	Т	Т	Т	Т	Т	7	1	7	<u> </u>			П	Г		10	1	7	7	14
L	μ.	+	P	R	1	N	Ţ¥.	pt	<u>1</u>	μ	1	1	4	-	_	-		-		1	4	⊢	-	╞	╞	+	+	+	_	-	_	-	┞	+	+	+	+	+	-	_		-		-	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	╇	╀	┢	╀	+	-	-	-	-	-	\vdash			-	Н	\vdash	┢	4	Â	4	IN.
P	2	C	<u>'</u>		_	_	\downarrow	\downarrow	\downarrow	Ļ	Ļ	_	-	_	_		_	_	_	_	_	L			1	+	\downarrow	1	F	1	Ł	L	1	1	4	1	1	4	-	Z	7	L.	L	1	1	4	4	4	+	4	4	+	Ļ	1	╞	1	+	4	_	_	_	_	\vdash			Ц	\square	\vdash	L		R	4	
0	3	C		\square																		L						1	F	1	Ε	L	C		2	1	1			5	0		L	1_					1	1			1			1	\downarrow											L	L	14	2	1	
0	4	C																		1	5	N	1	6					F	I	E	L	C		3					8	3																											Ĺ		1111		14	14
0	5	C	*			Τ	Т	T	Τ	Τ	Т	T	Τ	Τ		٦			Γ				Γ		Т	T	Τ	Τ				Γ	Γ	Τ	Τ	Τ	T							Ι	Τ				Τ	Τ				Τ			Τ						Γ				Π	Γ		111	14	4	11
0	6	C	*	Π	1	NI	2	1	14	h	1	Ø	S	T	1	4		M	u	S	T	Γ	B	ε	Г	K	31	J		F	ø	R		0	J		rl	A	1	L		P	R	1	N	11	r I	1	10	;	0	SF	T	T	-	1	4	5		L	1	N	E		Π	Π	Π	Γ	Γ	111	4	14	14
0	7	c	×		1	N		1	1	h	rk	Ø	5		1	5		M	u	S	T	Γ	B	ε	T	1	81	V		Δ	N	D	T	1	d		1	ø	F	F		F	ø	F	2	F	=]	1		. [3	T	·C)	E	31			1	N	C	L	U	D	E	D	Γ	Γ	111	Ŧ	1	
0	8	10		П		NI	14	N	T	ħ	Ē	1		1	L	1	N	E	T	I	S	T	P	R	Ī		1	r	E	D		F	Γ	T	T	1	T		T			ŕ	Γ	T	T	T		T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T					Γ		Π	Π	Π	Γ	Γ	The second	1	14	14
0	9	C	1		1		T	T	Ť	T	T	T	1	1				Γ	Γ			T	ľ	T	T	T	T	T		-		Γ	T	T	T	T	T		1		Π		Γ	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T					Γ		Π			Γ	Γ	111	14		14
1	0	T	*		Δ	NI	5	10	SR	ł	t	T	1	N	E	S	-	Δ	R	E		U	S	E	Ī	1	ŀ	1	u		T	Ц	E	t	ħ	1	t	F	1	N	1	F	I	e	妺	ī	1	Ø	t	6	81	īн	F		π	ł	Ī	sI	E	C	ø	R	D		T	Y	P	E	5		1	Į.	X
1	11	d	J v			Ri	1	-	1	k		1	J	a	-	-	Δ	ĥ	Î	0	5	F	n	T	Ē		8 6	5		F	,	E	Ī	r	J,	1	J			r	P	Ī	ĥ	1	1	1	x			ľ	1		ſ	4	: 11	6	đ,	Ň	ī	٦	R	F	Ē	0	1		H	Ē	٢	R			111
1	2	6	X		-		1	\dagger	ť	f	1	f	Ť	1	-				F	ſ	ľ	Ĕ	ľ	1	ť	T	1	Ϊ	1		4	٢	T	Ť	1	ť	T	1	7	-	ĥ	ŕ	ľ	ť	ť	1		Ť	1	H			+	F		T	Ŧ	Ť		1	2	-	F	F		ľ	H	F	t		1		111
5	3	t		F	-	۸ŀ	r h	1	i	t	1	t	1	1				t	t	1	Δ	t	t	T	t	t	T	t	1	-		t	t	t	t	t	1	1	1		T	F	t	t	t	t	1	1	t	\dagger	t	t	t	1-	t	t	t	1		1			F		Н	П		F	T	111	1	14	111
1	4	1	Ť		-	7	Ŧ	+	6	đ	7	t	Ť	1	-	-		F	F	4	5	t	4	1	t	t	ŀ	7	1		-	t	t	t	t	t	┫	1	+			F	t	t	+	\dagger	+	+	+	+	+	$^{+}$	t	1-	t	\dagger	t	+	1	1		-	F				Η	F	1		1	1	1
1	5	t	十		1	+	\dagger	\dagger	1	T	ir	1	1	1		-		t	t	1	8	t	ŀ	ľ	t	t	+	4	1		-	t	t	T	t	t	†	1	1			F	t	t	\dagger	+	+	+	\dagger	†	+	T	t	\dagger	t	t	\dagger	+		1		-	F		h			F	t		\$	Ŕ	11
-	1	1	, †	H		+	+	+	t	X	#	4	$^{+}$	+	-			┢	┢	1.	6	┢	F	t	t	+	$^{+}$	+	1		-	┢	t	+	$^{+}$	$^{+}$	+	+	+			┢	F	╋	$^{+}$	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	+	╈	$^{+}$	+	-	-			F	Η	Η		H	-	F		ŝ		111
H	7	+		H		+	+	+	ľ	4	4	$^{+}$	+	-	-		-	\vdash	t	12	5	+	\vdash	┢	t	+	+	+		7	1	E	5	1	t	+	╉	+	+	2	2	┢	┢	+	+	+	-+	+	+	╉	+	+	+	+	╉	+	+	+	-	-			\vdash	$\left \right $	Η	H	Η	\vdash	\vdash	Ê	Ê	f	4
H	6	Ŧ	+	+		+	+	+	+	+	+	+	╉	+	-	-			┢	5	1	╞	0	1	t		;	2	-	1	1		Ê	4	<u> </u>	╡	_	+	-	5	4	╞	┢	╀	+	╉	+	+	+	+	+		+	┼	+	+	+	+	-	-	-		┝	$\left \right $	Η	\vdash	Η	┝	┝	14	4	4	14
Ц	Ø	1	1	1	_		1	1	1	1	1	1	1	_				1	L	4	1	L	2	14	Ľ	-	-	2	-	ł	N	5	Ŀ	1	-	1	2	_	-	2	0	L,	L.,	1	1	1	1		1	-	4	1	┺	1	1		1	1					L					L	1	2	2	2	\otimes

G14075

Figure 10-5. Output Indicators Coding Example

The following paragraphs describe the uses of each of the output indicators.

01-99 Numeric indicators may be used as follows:

- a. To condition output operations that are only to be performed for specific input record types (record identifying indicators).
- b. To condition output operations that are to be done when an input field meets certain conditions (field indicators).
- c. To condition output operations according to the results of previous operations in the Calculation Specifications (resulting indicators).
- LO-L9 Control level indicators may be used to condition output operations that are to be performed only on the first record of a new control group.

The LO indicator remains ON during the entire program. If no other control level indicators are assigned, but it is desired to perform total calculation and total output operations, the LO indicator may be used to condition those operations.

- LR The last record indicator is used to condition output operations that are to be performed at End-of-Job.
- MR The matching records indicator is used to condition output operations that are to be performed only when matching input records are found.
- HO-H9 Halt indicators previously assigned in the FIELD INDICA-TORS field (Input Specifications) or the RESULTING INDI-CATORS field (calculation Specifications) may be used to condition output operations that are to be performed only when an error condition occurs.

Since the program does not halt until after the record in error has been completely processed, some operations must be prevented in order to avoid erroneous output. By using halt indicators in conjunction with an N in the NOT portion of the INDICATORS field, an operation may be inhibited when the specified halt indicator is ON.

- U1-U8 If an output file is specified as conditioned by an external indicator in the File Description Specifications (EXTERNAL INDICATORS field), every output record described for the file should be conditioned by the same external indicator, otherwise the object program will still build the output record (and perform any blank after operations specified) but must suppress the write operation.
- OA-OG,OV Overflow indicators previously assigned in the OVERFLOW INDICATOR field (File Description Specifications) may be used to condition output operations that are to be performed when the overflow line on a printer file has been reached.

Overflow indicators which have not been previously assigned in the File Description Specifications (except OF and OV, which are compiler defined) may not be used in the Output Format Specifications. Forms advancing at End-of-Page are handled automatically if no overflow indicators are assigned to the file. Any specification line not conditioned by an overflow indicator which designates a skip to the next page turns OFF all overflow indicators before the skip takes place.

Overflow indicators must not be used to condition exception records but may condition fields within exception records.

No more than one overflow indicator may be associated with a group of output indicators in an AND or OR relationship, and it must be the same indicator assigned to the file in the File Description Specifications.

The overflow line can be sensed when printing total or detail time output. If an overflow indicator is being used to condition output lines, the following steps occur when the overflow line is sensed during total time output:

a. The overflow indicator turns on.

- b. The remaining total lines not conditioned by overflow are printed.
- c. All total lines conditioned by overflow are printed. If skipping is specified on these lines, it occurs as defined by the user.
- d. Heading and detail output lines conditioned by overflow are printed. If skipping is specified on these lines, it occurs as defined by the user.
- e. Heading and detail lines not conditioned by overflow are printed.
- f. The overflow indicator turns off.

If the overflow line is sensed during detail time output, the following steps occur:

- a. The overflow indicator turns on.
- b. The remaining detail lines not conditioned by overflow are printed.
- c. All total lines not conditioned by overflow are printed.
- All total lines conditioned by overflow are printed. If skipping is specified on these lines, it occurs as defined by the user.
- e. Heading and detail output lines conditioned by overflow are printed. If skipping is specified on these lines, it occurs as defined by the user.
- f. Heading and detail lines not conditioned by overflow are printed.
- g. The overflow indicator turns off.

When using the overflow indicator to condition overflow printing, remember:

- a. Overflow indicators may be turned on and off by the operation codes SETON and SETOF.
- b. Spacing past the overflow line causes the overflow indicator to turn on.
- c. Spacing or skipping past the overflow line to any line on the new page does not turn the overflow indicator on.
- d. A skip to a new page specified on a line not conditioned by an overflow indicator causes the overflow indicator to turn off.

Control Level Indicators With Overflow Indicators

If it is desired to have headings identifying the type of information on each page or each page to contain information from only one control group, control level indicators may be used in conjunction with overflow indicators. Together they condition when headings and/or group information are to be printed.

In the example in figure 10-6, the control level indicator Ll is used in conjunction with the overflow indicator in order to print headings on every page. Line Ol allows the headings to be printed at the top of a new page only when overflow occurs. Line O2 allows printing of headings on a new page only at the beginning of a new control group (Ll). In this way, duplicate headings caused by both Ll and OF being ON at the same time will not occur.



Figure 10-6. Using Control Level Indicators With Overflow Indicators

Figure 10-7 shows the necessary coding for the printing of certain fields on every page.



Figure 10-7. Coding for the Printing of Certain Fields

1P The first page indicator is used to condition HEADING and DETAIL printer output before the first record is processed. The 1P indicator is turned on by the RPG program and is set off after detail-time output and before the first record is processed. It cannot be used to condition calculations, output at total time, or output at exception time.

> All lines conditioned by the 1P indicator are written even before the first record from any input file is processed. Therefore, do not condition output fields (except PAGE, UPDATE, UYEAR, UMONTH, UDAY, and JDATE) which are based upon data from input records by the 1P indicator.

The 1P indicator may also be used in an OR relationship with the overflow indicators OA-OG, OV. This allows printing the same HEADING or DETAIL information on all pages.

The 1P indicator is invalid for update and combined files.

When forms are first inserted in the printer, they may not always be in perfect alignment. Sometimes several lines must be printed to determine the correct positioning of the form. Specifying the number 1 in column 41 of the Control Card Specification, allows the option of repeatedly printing the first line conditioned by the 1P indicator. Each time the 1P line is printed, the program

PAGE	1 2]						1	TYP	F									0	JT	F٤	т	- 1	=0	R۸	۸A	Т	SF	ΡE	СІ	Fł	CA	TI	0	NS	5										PI IC	RO	GR JTI	AM FIC	AT	101	; 	75	Т	Т	Π	ы П	
L.		FC	DRM	TY	ΡĒ			- r	8	STA	ск	ER	SEL	EC.	T/F	εтα	сн	ov	ER	FLC	w																Г									EI	DiT	CC	DDE	s								7
									S _P		s	KIP		ou	TPL	л	INE	DIC.	AT	ORS	;																	:OM	٢٨A	s	ZE	RO TC	BA P P			ES	N	10	sie	in	CF	ŀ	-]'	X =	RE	EMC GN	VE	7
	ľ						ľ		h	E		Т	-			Г		٦			1	515	ı n	NI		_	Г	- 6	DI	тс		DES					F	YI YI	S S				Y NO	ES D			T		1 2		A B	1	Л'	Y =	DA FI	ATE EL[) E!	лт
LINE			FILE	ENA	ME				ų	-	æ	Ι,	-		A	ND		AN	D	_		VA	RI	AB	LE			Γ	_	r	- 1	EN	DP	03	п	ON		N	2 2				YE	-S)					3		C D		м	Z =	ZE SU	RO	RES	s
									1.1 0	FTE	5-10	l		10		Į,			5			NA	WIE .	,			$\frac{1}{1}$	\mathbf{H}		+		Я	Ē	PA	CK	ED																					NOT	-
3	6	7				14		510	17	12	ша 19.21	21	22	23 2	4 2	5	21	28	29	10 3	1 3	,				37	3313	20	10	T	4		15						(co	NST	'AN	ιT (OR	EC	л	W	DRI	D						75	7.	JSE	D 74
0 1	o	RE	PK	ØR	F	1	L	II.	Ë	3	T	T	Ť		IF		Ĩ		-	1	Ť	T	Γ	Γ		Ť			Ť	Τ	Ť	Ť	Ť	Г	Γ	Π		Τ	Τ	Τ	Γ	Π	٦	Τ	Τ	Τ	Τ	Τ	Т			Τ	Τ	Τ	T			
C 2	0			T			T	T	Γ		1	T		1	Ĩ	T				T	T	T	T				1	T	T	1	F 1	T	Īī	R	E	P	ø	RT	•	H	ε	A	D	11	NO	3	1	# 1	1		1	T	T	T	T			<u>ال</u>
C 3	5	Rε	P	ØR	Т	2	ŀ	1		2	1			Ī	1 F					T	Ι							I	T			T	Γ							Γ								T	T			T	T	I	Γ			
04	С					R	Śƙ							6	ðF	·																																										
25	э																													-	35	5	١	R	ε	P	Ø	R1		H	E	A	D	1	NC	5	ŧ	#2	21						L			
06	C	×		_			1									1																1																						1				
J 7	0	*	L	1 N	Ε	5	C	1		A	NC		0	2	C	E	F	I	N	E	4	¥	H	Ε	A	D	1	vk	G	1	. 1	IN	lΕ		T	H	Ą	Т	1	S		Т	Ø		B	E	F	26	11	M	Т	EI	٥					
0.8	9	*		ØN	L	Y	¢	<u>s</u> n	C	Ε	F	ø	R		ſŀ⊦	E		R	E	ΡĶ	2/F	2 T	1		F	1	L	E	ѧ	4	51	1	Þ	H	E		F	1 F	25	5T		P	A	6	E.			1				_						
С 9	С	*																			1																																					
10	0	*	L	IN	E	3	¢	归			HÆ	2Ø	υ	G	H	þ	5		5	Ple	= 4	! [F	Y		B	ø	Т	H	ľ	r ŀ	ł		1	P		A	N		2	E		1	N	D	1	c¥	ΥĪ	Ø	R	s	!	IN	J				
1	С	×		4 N		ØF	2	R	E	L		1	Ø	N	5	11	P	•		41	1	L.	SN	1	N	G		Ţ	H	E	ŀ	ŧ	Α		1	N	G	1	1	IN.	E		T	Ø	1	3		F	R	1	Ν	TI	EL	2				
1 2	0	*		ØN		T	ł		F	I	RS	sТ		P	٩G	E		4	N	D	¥	¥L	L		S	υ	B	2	E	qu	JE	: h	lΠ		F	A	G	E۱	5	(D	υ	R	I	N	G	C	ØV	E/E	R	F	LK	21	J				
13	0	×		PR	1	NI		IN	G		F	SR		Т	4 E		F	I	L	E	<u>)</u>												L																									
14	0								L																																																	
15	Ŀ										ĺ									j																													i									
	Э																				Ι							I	T									Τ														T			Ι			
	0		Π				T	Γ	Γ			Γ	1		T	Γ				T	T			Γ				T	T	T	T	Τ		Γ				T		Γ	T				Τ	T	T	T	Τ			T	T	T	Τ			
	С		Π				Τ															T						T	1			Τ	Γ		Ι					I												Τ	T	T	Τ			
01407																																																										

Figure 10-8. 1P Indicator Coding Example

halts allowing the operator to reposition the form, if needed. To continue processing, enter on the CONSOLE (SPO): \langle program number > AXGO.

AND/OR If it is necessary to specify more than three indicators to condition an output operation, an AND line may be used. The word AND must be entered in columns 14-16, and the additional indicators entered in their respective fields. The conditions specified for all indicators in an AND relationship must be met before the associated output operation will take place.

> OR lines (OR in columns 14-15) may be used to group indicators such that only one of the conditions specified must be met for the associated output operation to take place. Both AND and OR lines may be used together to condition an output record (but not a field). A maximum of three indicators in an AND relationship (on one line) may be used to condition a field. See figure 10-5 for an example of the usage of AND and OR lines.

There is no limit on the number of AND or OR lines that may be specified. However, it is recommended that the user not exceed 20 if compatibility with other Burroughs systems is desired. There must be at least one indicator on an AND/OR line and on the preceding line.

32-27 FIELD NAME (VARIABLE NAME)

This field is used to assign an identifier (name) to an output data field. The identifier used must have been previously defined in the Input Specifications (VARIABLE NAME field), the Extension Specifications (VECTOR NAME field), or the Calculation Specifications (RESULT FIELD field). Also, any special words may be used. A separate line must be used for each field description. Fields may be listed in any order within each record type, since their location is determined by the entry in the END POSITION fields. If fields overlap, only the last field specified appears intact in the output record (the exact results will depend upon the degree of overlap).

Special Words

The following special words are reserved for use as variable names:

PAGE through PAGEn UDATE UMONTH UDAY UYEAR JDATE *PLACE *PRINT

Each special word has a specification defined usage, as described in the following paragraphs:

Page Fields

When page numbering is to be done on output, the special words PAGE through PAGEn are used to indicate that automatic page numbering is to be performed. When a PAGE field is named in this field without being previously defined in the Input or Calculation Specifications, it is assumed to be four characters in length with no decimal positions. On output, leading zeros are suppressed and the sign is not printed unless an edit word or edit code is specified.

The page number begins at zero (unless otherwise specified), and is automatically incremented by one each time before the page field is written.

The page number may be reset at any point during the program by setting the PAGE field to zero before it is printed (see figure 10-9). This may be accomplished in two ways:

PAG	_1 ⊑ [2								r		ΓY	PE												0	υ	T	Ρι	JT		F	0	R	M.	Α.	Г	SF	۶e	C	IF	10	CA	T	10	٩C	٧S	;												F	'R Di	O(EN	JR. ITI	AN FI	л СА	T	101	N	75	Γ	Γ	Ι	Ι	Ţ	30	I	
_		f	F(OR	M	TYI	۶E			\downarrow	-f	-	S1	A	СК	ER	Sf	L	EC	T/F	E	rci	1	ov	'EF	۱F	LC	w							7																								Ε	DI	IT	cc	DC	ES	;											
												^s ,	, A_		s	ĸı	ρ		วบ	ТР	υT	. 11	٩D	IC	AI	o	RS																						co	ом	MA	١S	ZE	R(D E	BAI P B	LA	N	CE	s	N	10	SI	G١	4	CF	1	-	x	•	RE	EM (GI	10 N	VE	÷	
		1							į	ł	*	┝	r'	4		Т		+		-	Т				-			+							L		- E	ED	iτ	С	סכ	ES	s -					*		YE	S				Ň	JO VE	S			1	Γ	-	1	trace	T	AB	·	Т	Y	2	D/ E1	AT	E D	F	וח	т
1	NE			FI	LE	NA	ME								ш.					,	I N	D		AN	D				FI (V	EL	.D RI/	N/ 4B	λM LE	E	1	[. 8		\!!	K E M		FT	E F	ז דו	0			NC	Ň				Y	10	S						3			c		L	z	2	ZE	R	O	FC		
1												048	E B		=ORI		rer	ţ	T	Τ	T,	T	T	-	F	Γ	T	1	N	٩N	IE)				U					Γ			_	. P	A	ск	εD)	L	INC	<u>,</u>										L		-								30					_
												33	1 2		BE		AFI				-	2			NON										R	Ī	T	_		ł		R	1									<u></u>	NS	тΔ	NT	. 0	B	E	- 10	τ.	wr	201										Τ	N	IOT	r n	
3	5	6	7						14	15	15	17			9 2	2	1 2	2 3	2 2	: 2	5	6	7	28	29	30	; ;	13	2				_	37	10	3 3	:	10			43		:	5										+						_	-		-		` 						7	ŀ		~		7.
٥	1	С	PR	21	N	T	ø	u	Τ	H	L		E	3					1		3				L																								Ĺ						L		\perp			_	L	\downarrow								_	L	1114				11/12
0	2	C							Ĺ							L	Ĺ		1	21	2							ļ	>	A	G	E							1	2	0															L	1	1												Ĺ	L	1	<u> </u>	11	11	11/1
٥	3	0	×					Ĺ	L	Ĺ	Ĺ	L	L	Ĺ		1		1						_		L																								L		L								_	L									L		Ê	Ĭ	1		
0	4	0	X)	VIL	E	N		Т	H	Ε		1	I	۱Ľ	2	: (:	ł	Гķ	Ø	R	Ì	Ą	S	S	;]]		SI	N	E	D		T	k	5	ŀ	T	H	Ε		ļ	4	4	G	E		F	1	E	L			I	S		ķ	X	N	5		Π	ŀ	1		Ì	۷	Δ	L	U	ε	Ē	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		1110
0	5	0	*		0	۶F		Π	H	E		P	4	k	÷E		F	-		EL	1	2		I	S		F	2		5	E	Т		T	1	\$	ŀ	Ζ	Ε	R	Ø	1			B	Ε	F	Ø	R	ε	I	E	sε	t	N	IG	,		Ρ	R	. I	N	ΤL		E	D	5		Т	H	E		11	1		11/1
С	8	ა	*		V	A	L	U	Ε		I	S			1)	K	: 1	S		4		V	r	E	D		E	3	2		1	•		L		Ι	Ι				L															L					1						_			L		Ê	Ĭ	Ĭ	1111	1111
٥	7	с,	¥																																						Ĺ																			L								L					12	3		11/1
Э	9	Э	¥	Π		E		۱	B	L	A	N	K	:	4		Eh	Г		2	1		F	I	E	L	. [2		M	Ą	Y		A	l	- <	3	ø		B	Ε		1	ט	S	E	D		T	2		C	A	L	15	ε		-	Т	H	E		F	7	4	G	ε						<u> </u>			144
о	э	0	*		F	1	E	L	D		h	P	\$	E	36	:	F	R		51	t	Т		Т	ø	1	17	zlı	E	R	ø		A	F	h	dr	z)	R		Г	+	4)E			L	Ι	N	E		1	5		P	R	1	A	ıη		ε	D			1	۱¢	s		5	4	Ø	W	N			Ĭ		144
1	0	0	*		E	βE	L	Ø	N	:		Ι	Ι	T							Ι						Ι	Ι								Ι	Ι					Ι	Ι								Γ											Ţ	Ι									1111		11		11/1
1	1	С	*						l		L		L																																						į.											i									I	1111		11		111
1	:	0	øi	ヵ	rif	λU	Τ	•	ĺ	H	Γ	Γ	ŀ	3	Τ	Τ	Τ	Ι	1	Ļ	1							Ι									Τ																Τ							1		I	Ī								1	1111		111	1111	111
1	3	0		Ī	Τ					Γ		Γ	Γ	T	T	T		T	T	T	T					Γ	I	1	2	A	G	E		Γ	T	1	3		1	0	C	X	T				i	Γ	Γ		Ī	T			T		T				Γ	Ī	Τ	T	T	Ī					Ĩ	1111		1.14	1113	11/1
1	4	С											Ι	Ι		Ι	T				I							Ι						Γ	T	Ι	I						I																		Γ	Γ	Ι	T	T	T					Γ	T		111	1112	11/1
1	5	0			T		Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ		T	Τ	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T					Γ	T	T	T					Γ	T	T	T	1			Ē	Ι	I	T				[Γ		Γ	T					T				Γ	Γ		T		T			Π		Γ	1111	111	1114	([[]	1111
Π	Τ	0		T	T	Τ	Γ		Γ	Γ	Γ	Г	Τ	T	T	T	Ĩ	T	T	T	T	1			Γ	Í	T	T	1					T	T	T	T	1			Γ	T	T					T	T	T	T	I	T	T		T	T	1			T	T	Ī	T	1	1					i	The			111	111
П	T	с		T	T	T	Γ	t	T	T	t	T	t	T	1	T	1	T	1	1	1	1				Γ	T	T	1	1				T	T	T	T			Γ	T	T	T	Ì			Γ	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	1		_	Ť	T	1	T	1	1		-			Γ	T		11	UX	7772
	T	c		T		T	T		T	Γ	T	T	T	T	T	T	T		T	1	T	1				T	T	T						T	T	T	T			Γ	T	T	T					T	T	T	1	T	T	Ť	T	T	T	1			T	T	T	t		-1			\square		Ī	T			1112	YUL

G14079

Figure 10-9. PAGE Specification Coding Example

- a. Use the BLANK AFTER specification to cause the field to be cleared to zero after printing, or
- b. Assign an OUTPUT INDICATOR to the PAGE field. If the indicator is ON, the field will be set to zero before normal incrementation takes place.

The same PAGE through PAGEn entry may be used for two different output files, but this is not recommended. PAGE fields are not restricted to printer files.

Date Fields (UDATE, UMONTH, UDAY, UYEAR and JDATE)

Five special words allow the program to obtain the current value of the date as supplied through the B 1800/B 1700 System. The following rules apply to date fields.

- a. UDATE gives a 6-digit numeric field in one of the following formats (depending upon the entry in the INVERTED PRINT field of the Control Card):
 - 1) Domestic (MMDDYY), or
 - 2) International (DDMMYY).
- b. The other three fields, UMONTH, UDAY, and UYEAR, each gives a 2-digit field representing the month, day, and year, respectively.
- c. These fields must not be changed by any operations within the program; thus, they are usually used only in compare, test, and output operations.
- d. JDATE is a special word reserved for accessing the Julian date as obtained from the system. JDATE can be used anywhere that UDATE can be used. JDATE can not be changed in any way by the RPG program. JDATE is five digits long with zero decimal places and has the format YYDDD.

.

*PLACE Specification

The special word *PLACE allows writing of the same field or fields in more than one place in an output record without having to specify the field names and end positions more than once. The designated fields are written in the same relative positions ending in the position specified for the *PLACE entry. It is possible to obtain the same results in two ways (see figure 10-10).

- Define each field and its corresponding end position for а. every time it is to appear in the output records, or
- **OUTPUT FORMAT SPECIFICATIONS** PROGRAM PAGE - TYPE IDENTIFICATION FORM TYPE EDIT COUES ZERO BALANCES NO SICN 1¹PA COMMAS OUTPUT INDICATORS CR SKIP TO PRINT YES S GN DATE YES A B C D FDIT CODES ќ L FIELD EDIT YES NO 2 FIELD NAME BLANK AFTER NO NO YES 3 FILENAME LINE AND (VAR!ABLE - END PUSITION SUPPESS BEFORE NO AFTER NAME) - PACKED 101 CONSTANT OR EDIT WORD 0 1 BUTPUT D FIELDI 5 03 FIELDZ 15 94 25 FIELD3 **C** 3 FIELDI 35 00 45 FIELD2 07 FIELDS 55 CΞ 6 9 THE ABOVE OUTPUT DEFINITION CAN ALSO BE × DEFINED USING THE 10 *PLACE SPECIFICATION, AS SHOWN BELOW: × 11 × 1 2 ۵ ØUTPUT 1 13 FIELDI 5 FIELD2 15 1 5 25 FIELD3 * PLACE 16 55 17 THE *PLACE NAME
- Use the special word *PLACE. b.

18 G14080

Figure 10-10. *PLACE Specification Coding Example

DUPLICATES ALL

Both methods will produce identical results, but use of the *PLACE entry saves extra coding.

The following rules must be observed when using the *PLACE specification:

All fields within the record type written above the *PLACE а. entry are repeated according to the *PLACE specification, not just the one line above.

FIELDS PREVIOUSLY

DEFINED

b. An end position must be given for every *PLACE specification.

USED

- c. An additional *PLACE entry (on a separate line) must be used every time the fields are to be repeated.
- d. *PLACE must be specified after the field names which are to be placed in different positions on the line; *PLACE must not be specified on the first field description line for a record.
- e. The end position specified for *PLACE should be at least twice the highest previously specified end position. If enough space is not allowed for all fields to be printed again, overlapping will occur, with the *PLACE output overlapping the previous characters.
- f. The end position specified for *PLACE must not be lower than the highest previously specified field end position.
- g. The leftmost position of the fields to be moved by the *PLACE specification is always assumed to be position 1.
- h. When *PLACE is specified for card output, the fields and constants named above will be repunched. Any printed output on the cards will not be reprinted unless an * is entered in column 40 of the same line as *PLACE.
- i. Only the conditioning indicators (columns 23-31), FIELD NAME (columns 32-37) and END POSITION (columns 40-43) may have entries.

*PRINT Specification

The special word *PRINT is used to cause card interpreting after punching (for card files only). Printing is done at the top of the cards in the same column positions as the fields are punched. The *PRINT specification must be used only once for each record and appears after all fields on the card which are to be printed. The *PRINT specification may be conditioned by indicators in the OUTPUT INDICATORS field; all other fields must be left blank (see figure 10-11).

Having the *PRINT specification print the corresponding field exactly as punched is not always desirable.

To print the fields in positions other than would be assigned by the *PRINT specifications:

- a. Enter the field name to be printed in the VARIABLE NAME field, and
- b. Enter an asterisk in column 40, and
- c. Enter the end position for the field in columns 41-43 (limited to a maximum of 128), right-justified; leading zeros not required.



G14081



38 EDIT CODES

This field is used to specify editing of an unpacked numeric output field. Editing operations have been provided, for which it is not necessary to write an edit word. These operations and their corresponding edit codes are summarized in the EDIT CODES portion of the Output-Format Specifications sheet.

Only unpacked numeric fields can be edited, and if an edit code is specified, the Constant or Edit Word field must be left blank, except when the check protect or floating dollar sign is required. In that case, enter an asterisk (*) or dollar sign (\$), respectively, in column 45-47. Edit codes X, Y, and Z may never be used with the asterisk or dollar sign. The Y edit code must only be used with field lengths of three to six digits. When an entire array is to be edited with an edit code, the following points must be taken into account to avoid specifying the end position less than the total size of the output data:

- a. Two spaces are inserted to the left of each element, and
- b. Commas, decimal points, and minus signs occupy one character each. The credit sign (CR) occupies two characters.

The following are the edit code rules:

- a. Conditioning indicators on the record description line and the field description line determine when the field is written.
- b. The variable name specified in columns 32-37 must be previously defined as:
 - 1. An entire numeric array, or
 - 2. A single element of a numeric Table or Array, or
 - 3. A numerically defined field, or
 - 4. A numerically defined special word.
- c. The use of an edit code in column 38 will cause various punctuation of the numeric field specified in columns 32-37.
- d. The use of B in BLANK AFTER, column 39, clears the field after output but does not affect any editing specified on this line.
- e. End Position, columns 40-43, defines where the last character of the edited output is to appear.

NOTE

Syntax errors occur if the total length in bytes of the variable and all inserted decimals, commas, and status reporting is greater than the length in bytes from the specified end position to position one of the output record.

- f. Packed, column 44, must be blank.
- g. The Constant or Edit Word portion of this specification line must remain blank, except for the following two exceptions:
 - 1. If the check protect asterisk is required, enter an asterisk in columns 45-47.

1

1

2. If the floating dollar sign is required, enter a dollar sign in columns 45-47.

NOTE

The check protect asterisk and the floating dollar sign may never be used with edit codes X, Y, or Z.

- h. Edit codes A, B, J, K, 1, and 2 provide the comma option. Commas will only be inserted in the edited output if significant non-zero integers exceed three in number.
- i. Edit codes A, C, J, L, 1, and 3 provide the zero balance option. This option provides that at least one zero will be written if the value of the field is zero. The number of zeroes written is determined by the decimal positions assigned when the field was defined, as shown in the following example:

Decimal Position	Zero Balance Output
0	0
1	.0
2	.00
9	.00000000

- j. A sign or symbol for a negative number may be requested or ignored.
 - 1. When requested, A, B, C, and D provide CR for negative status report and J, K, L, and M provide for nega-tive status report.
 - 2. When ignored, 1, 2, 3, and 4 provide for no status report.
- k. Edit code X provides for removal of the plus sign from the field with no zero suppression.
- 1. Edit code Z provides for removal of all signs and the suppression of leading zeroes.
- m. Edit code Y provides for editing in date field format. The variable must be no less than three digits and no more than six digits in length.
- n. An entire array can be edited with one edit code. Include the following when specifying the end position:

1. One space for each character of the array, plus

- 2. Two spaces to be inserted to the left of each element, plus
- 3. One space for each comma that may be inserted, plus
- 4. One space for each decimal that will be inserted, plus one of the following unless using edit codes 1, 2, 3, or 4.
 - (a) One space for each minus sign with each element, or
 - (b) Two spaces for each CR sign with each element. Table 10-1. Edit Codes Table

					Printout on Zero Balance*		
Edit Code	Commas	Decimal Point	Zero Suppress	Sign For Negative Balance	Inter- national I	Inter- national J	Domestic United Kingdom
1	Yes	Yes	Yes	No Sign	,00 or 0	0 ,0 0 or 0	.00 or 0
2	Yes	Yes	Yes	No Sign	Blanks	Blanks	Blanks
3		Yes	Yes	No Sign	,00 or 0	0,00 or 0	.00 or 0
4		Yes	Yes	No Sign	Blanks	Blanks	Blanks
Α	Yes	Yes	Yes	CR	,00 or 0	0,00 or 0	.00 or 0
В	Yes	Yes	Yes	CR	Blanks	Blanks	Blanks
С		Yes	Yes	CR	,00 or 0	0,00 or 0	.00 or 0
D		Yes	Yes	CR	Blanks	Blanks	Blanks
J	Yes	Yes	Yes	-	,00 or 0	0,00 or 0	.00 or 0
К	Yes	Yes	Yes	-	Blanks	Blanks	Blanks
\mathbf{L}		Yes	Yes	-	,00 or 0	0,00 or 0	.00 or 0
М		Yes	Yes	-	Blanks	Blanks	Blanks
X**							
Y***	1		Yes				
\mathbf{Z}			Yes				

NOTES

*Zero balances for the International format are printed or punched in two ways, depending on the entry made in column 21 of the Control Card Specifications.

**The X code removes the sign.

***The Y code suppresses the leftmost zero only. The Y code edits a three to six digit field according to the following pattern:

nn/n nn/nn nn/nn/n nn/nn/nn

BLANK AFTER

39

This field is used to specify that a variable is to be reset after the output operation is finished. Alphanumeric fields will be cleared to blanks and numeric fields will be cleared to zeros. Constants and UDATE, UDAY, UMONTH, and UYEAR must not be specified with BLANK AFTER. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Field is not to be cleared.
В	Variable is to be cleared after being moved to the output buffer.

Entering a B in column 39 specifies that the field named in columns 32-37 is to be set to zero or blank if the field is numeric or alphanumeric, respectively. This is to be done immediately after output to the designated record work area.

When an indicator is assigned to a field to test for zero or blank in the Input or Calculation Specifications and the same field is used on Output Specifications with

BLANK AFTER, then that zero/blank indicator will be affected as follows:

RPG II Dialect

DEFAULT:

\$ BAZBON:

Specified indicator is turned ON after the field is blanked during the output operations.

No effect on zero/blank indicator.

RPG I Dialect

Specified indicator is turned ON after the field is blanked during the output operation.

\$NBAZBON:

DEFAULT:

No effect on zero/blank indicator.

RPG I And RPG II Dialects

If more than one indicator is assigned to the same field as a ZERO/BLANK indicator (on different Input or Calculation Specifications), then only the first one assigned is turned ON when the field is blanked out. When an array or array elements are output with BLANK AFTER, zero/blank indicators are not changed.

When the specified field is a table name, the element that satisfied the last successful LOKUP operation is blanked or zeroed.
40-43 END POSITION

This field is used to specify the location of a field within an output record. Only the location of the rightmost position is specified; the number of positions to the left of that location is determined by the length specified previously for the field. Space must also be left to allow for any editing symbols (edit codes or edit words) that may be entered. The end position must not exceed the record length specified for the file, except in the special case where an * is entered in column 40.

To print fields on a card in a position other than the one assigned by using the *PRINT specification, enter an asterisk in column 40 and proceed as follows:

- a. Enter the field name to be printed in the Variable Name field, or enter a literal in columns 45-70. A variable can be edited by means of an edit code or edit word.
- b. Enter the end position for the field in columns 41-43, right-justified. Leading zeroes are not required.

Table 10-2 Illustrates the results obtained when the various edit codes are used to edit a two decimal position field whose value is a negative (-3.12). The Output Specifications specify an ending position of 12.

		0	utp	ut F	rin	t Po	siti	ons	
Edit Codes	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
Unedited				+ ۱	0	3	1	2	
1					3	•	1	2	
2					3	•	1	2	
3					3	•	1	2	
4					3	•	1	2	
А			3	•	1	2	С	R	
В			3	•	1	2	С	R	
С			3	•	1	2	C	R	
D			3	•	1	2	C	R	
J				3	•	1	2	-	
К				3	•	1	2	-	
L				3	•	1	2	-	
М				3	•	1	2	-	
X				0	0	3	1	2	
Y			0	1	3	1	1	2	
Z	•					3	1	2	
* - R	epr	ese	nts	a n	iega	tive	0.		

Table 10-2. Effect of Edit Codes on End Position

44 PACKED OR BINARY

This field is used to specify that a numeric output field is to be written in packed decimal or binary format. Packed decimal and binary fields should not be printed because the resultant printout will be meaningless.

Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Field is to be written in alphanumeric or unpacked decimal format.
Р	Field is to be written in packed decimal format.
В	Field is to be written in binary format.

When the letter B is specified to indicate binary format, the length of the numeric field that is to be written cannot exceed nine bytes, and the following rules apply:

- a. Numeric output fields that have a length of one digit to four digits inclusive are converted to 2-byte binary fields.
- b. Numeric output fields that have a length of five digits to nine digits inclusive are converted to 4-byte binary fields.
- c. Output in binary format is only allowed for disk, tape, or 80-column card devices.
- d. Arrays, tables, array elements, and numeric fields can be specified.

Column 44 must be left blank:

- a. When an asterisk (*) appears in column 40 of the same Output Specification line.
- b. For fields that precede an *PRINT specification for a card file.
- c. For fields that precede an *PLACE specification for a card or printer file.
- d. For alphanumeric fields.
- e. When a constant is specified.
- f. When an edit code is specified.
- g. When an edit word is specified.

45-70 CONSTANT OR EDIT WORD

Constants or Edit Words are entered in this field. A description of each is provided in the paragraphs that follow.

Constants

Constants are literals usually used for such things as page headings, and contain information that is not changed by an operation. Constants will appear exactly as written in the Output-Format Specifications, in the position specified. The following rules must be observed when forming constants:

- a. The VARIABLE NAME entry must be left blank.
- b. Constants must be left-justified, enclosed in apostrophes, and no more than 24 characters in length.
- c. If an apostrophe is to appear in the constant, two consecutive apostrophes must be coded for each apostrophe required. In reference to the end position, the two apostrophes are to be counted as one.
- d. Numeric data may be used as a constant, but must still be enclosed in apostrophes. Note that this is an alphanumeric literal composed of numeric characters.

The example in figure 10-12 uses the Line Printer Spacing Form to illustrate the coding of output constants.

Edit Words

Edit words give a program more adaptability than edit codes when editing numeric data fields. These data fields are made more meaningful and easier to read by inserting one or more of the following characters:

- a. Comma (,)
- b. Slash (/)
- c. Decimal point (.)
- d. Dollar sign (\$)
- e. Asterisk protection (*)
- f. Zero (0)
- g. Credit field identifier (CR)
- h. Negative field identifier (-)
- i. Constants

na spilling -

When a numeric data field is to be edited, an edit word (sometimes called an edit mask) must be placed in columns 45-70 of the Output-Format Specifications. The edit word must begin in Column 26, be enclosed in apostrophes, and be no more than 24 characters in

	I														-			_	1			_						-	-			2	2												3		-				T						4						I						ł	5						Γ
4		1	2	3	1	ŧ	5	6	7	E	3	9	0	ŀ	1	2	3	ľ	Ŧ	5	6	7	1	з	9	0	Ī	T	2	3	Ţ	4	5	6	T	7	8	9	c	Ţ	1	2	3	4	5	Ī	5	7	8		5	0	1	2	3	4	Ţ	5	6	7	le		5	0	1	2		3	4	5	Te	Ţ	7	8	9	6
1	I				Τ	1	1			Τ	T			Ι				T	T			ſ	T	Τ		Γ	Γ	Ι		Γ	T			Γ	Τ				Γ	Τ	T		1			T	1		Γ	T	T	Τ	-	Γ	T	T	T	T			T	T	1			Γ	T	T		Γ	T	T	1			Γ
2	I				Ι	Ι				Τ				T				Ι					T	T			Γ				T			Γ	T				Γ	T	T				Γ	T	1		Γ	T	T	T		Γ	Г	T	T	1			T	T	1			T	T	1		Γ	T	T	1			Γ
3					T	Τ				Γ				Ι				Ι					T				Γ	T		Γ	T			Γ	Τ	Τ			Γ	T	T					Τ	Τ		Γ	T	T	Τ		Γ	T	Τ	T	Τ			T	T	T			Γ	T	T			T	T	1			Γ
4	I		Γ	Г	T	T				T	T			T				T	1			T	T	T		Γ	Г	T		Γ	T			M	10	Ø	Ν	Т	Н	HL	_	P			5	sh	r	Δ	h	• E	Ī	M	E	N	ĪΤ	t	t	1			t	t	1	1		t	t	1		F	t	t	1			h
5			Γ	Γ	Τ	Τ	Τ			Τ	Τ			T				Τ	T			Γ	T	Ι			Γ	T		Γ	T			Γ	T				Γ	T	T				Γ	T			Γ	T	T	T		Γ	T	T	T	T			T	T	1			Г	T	T		Γ	T	t	1			Γ
6	I		Γ	Γ	T	Τ	1			Ţ	Τ			T				T	T				T	Τ		Γ	Γ	Τ		Γ	T			Γ	T	T			Γ	T	T				Γ	T				T	1	T		Γ	Τ	T	T	T			T	T	1	1		Г	t	1		T	T	T	1			F
7	I		Γ	Г	T	T			Γ	T	1		Ā		-	C	4	si	1	N	T	T	T	1			T	T			T		ø	L	1	D			Γ	T	T			-	T	T	T		P	4	1	네	M	E	N	T	1	1			t	t	1			N	IE	T	N	F	t	t	1			L
8	I		Γ		T	T				T	T		N	1	נ	H	E			R		Ι	T	T		Γ	Γ	T		E	3	4	L	4	Ţ	N	c	E	Γ	T	T					T	T			T	T	T			T	T	T	1			t	T	1	B	Δ	L	1	7	N	c	E		1			Γ
9	1		Γ	Г	T	T			Γ	T	1	1	Γ	t				T	1			Γ	T	T				T			T			Γ	T	1			Γ	T	T				T	T	1			T	1	1		F	t	t	t	1			t	t	1	1		F	Ť	Ť		F	f	Ť	1			F
10				Γ	T	T				T			X	1	<	X	X		<	X			T	T			Γ	T			1	X	X	X			X	X	Γ	T	T	1			Γ	T	1		Γ	X	$\overline{\mathbf{t}}$	X	X		X	X	đ	T			T	t	1	1		x	ħ	đ	X		X	1	đ			F
11	I		Γ	Γ	T	T				T		(A	I	-	C	A	K	3)		Γ	T	T			Γ	T		(ļ	Ø	L	D		3	A	L	D	T	T	1			Γ	T	T		(F	3/		Y	M	N	T		1			T	T	1	(N	E	h	3	B	À	ħ	Ť	Ĵ	1		F
12				Γ	T					T				T				T				Ι	T	T				T			I				T	T			ľ	T	T	1				T	1			T	T	T	1	Ľ	T	T	Ť	T			T	T	t	1		F	T	Ť		-	T	ť	1		-	F



G14082

Figure 10-12. Coding of Output Constants

length. The first apostrophe must be coded in column 45, and the ending apostrophe must be coded in the column following the last character of the edit word.

Edit Word Rules

The following rules must be observed when using edit words:

a. Column 38 must be blank when edit words are used.

- b. A numeric data field name entry must be made in columns 32-37.
- c. An end position must be specified in columns 40-43.
- d. Edit words must be enclosed in apostrophes and must not exceed 24 characters in length.
- e. Any valid, printable RPG character can be used in an edit word. The following characters have special uses when placed in specific positions within the edit word:
 - 🖗 blank , comma
 - 0 zero CR credit symbol
 - \$ dollar sign * asterisk
 - . decimal point & ampersand
 - minus sign
- f. When an edit word is used, automatic suppression of all high-order zeroes within the data field occurs unless a zero or asterisk is specified in the edit word. When zero is specified, the last leading zero in the field is replaced by a blank (\$). When an asterisk is specified, the last leading zero in the field is replaced by an asterisk.
- g. The number of replaceable characters in an edit word should be equal to the length of the field that is to be edited, with the following exceptions:
 - 1. When the floating dollar sign is used, an extra space may be left in the edit word to ensure that the dollar sign is printed when the numeric data field is full.
 - 2. An extra space may be left in the edit word when zero suppression is not wanted. All other editing will be performed.

The replaceable characters and their meanings are:

Replaceable Character	Meaning
0	Zero suppression.
*	Asterisk fill.
	Blank.
\$	Floating dollar sign (if it appears immediately to the left of zero suppress character).

 Fixed dollar signs, decimal points, commas, ampersands, negative signs (CR and -), and constant information are not replaceable characters.

- i. Any zeroes or asterisks following the left-most zero or asterisk are treated as constants and are not replaceable characters.
- j. Any constant to the left of the zero suppression stop character, except the floating dollar sign (\$), will be suppressed unless a significant digit precedes the constant.
- k. When a blank edit word is used, all leading zeroes are suppressed and any sign in the unedited field is removed. Negative values are not identified.
- 1. When no edit word is used, the data in the output record has the same format as the unedited data. When the numeric data field contains a negative number, the loworder sign position will be printed as an alphabetic character (J-R) depending upon the value of the numeric data field.

Zero Suppression

The elimination of high-order zeroes when printing a numeric data field is known as zero suppression. Either full, none, or limited zero suppression can be accomplished by the use of an edit word.

To create the proper edit word a programmer must know:

- a. The maximum size of the field to be edited.
- b. The number of positions to be zero suppressed.

<u>Full Zero Suppression Coding</u>. The following are recommended procedures for full zero suppression coding:

- a. The edit word length is equal to the maximum size of the field to be edited, or
- b. Enter a zero in the rightmost position of the edit word, and
- c. Leave the remaining position in the edit word blank.

When full zero suppression is the only editing function desired, it is more efficient to use the Z edit code by making the appropriate entry in column 38 of the Output-Format Specifications.

<u>No Zero Suppression Coding</u>. The following is a recommended method of coding for no zero suppression, but does not apply to RPG I:

- a. Add one to the maximum size of the field to be edited,
- b. Enter a zero in the leftmost position of the edit word, and
- c. Leave the remaining positions in the edit word blank.

SOURCE DATA	45						0	0	NST	r A I	١T	OF	R E	DI	τv	vo	RD							70	OUTPUT RECORD
000000005	1			,		T	,	Ι		0	•			1						T	Τ	T	Τ		bbbbbbbbbb
0000000	1			,			,	Γ	0		1	1								Τ	T	Τ	T	T	bbbbbbbbbbb
-00000000123	<u>\</u>				,	Τ		,				•			-	1						Τ			bbbbbbbbbb1.23-
-0000123456	١									0	1						Π			Τ	Τ	Τ	Τ	Τ	bbbb123456
+0000123456	ľ	0									1											T			b000123456
000000000	1	\$						Γ	0			8	C	R		G	R	Ø	S	S	1				\$bbbbbbbb00bbbb GROSS
000000000	Ľ		,			,				,				-	ø	L	D		В	AI	_	1			bbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbb
000000	1		,		K).			1																bbbbb,00
000000	1		,				0		1																bbbbbbb 0
000000000	1			,			,		0		¥			1								T	T		bbbbbbbbb 0*00
001234	1	0	2			,	0	T		1										Τ			Τ		b,012,034
-00000015	1		,		T	,							-	1						T		T	Τ		bbbbbbbbbb <mark>15-</mark>
00000005	1		,	1	Τ		Τ	0					-	1						T	Τ	T	T		bbbbbbbb0.05b

Figure 10-13 illustrates some zero suppression examples:

G14084

Figure 10-13. Zero Suppression Coding Examples

Limited Zero Suppression Coding. The following conditions will accomplish limited zero suppression when:

- a. The edit word length is equal to the maximum size of the field to be re-edited.
- b. Enter a zero in the last position that is to be zero suppressed by the edit word. Allow all other positions in the edit word to remain blank.

Editing with a Comma, Decimal Point, and Fixed Dollar Sign.

When editing with a comma, decimal point, or fixed dollar sign, note the following:

- a. The edit word length is equal to the maximum size of the field to be edited plus the number of editing characters that are to be inserted.
- b. When a zero suppress "zero" is not included in the edit word, full suppression is done automatically.
- c. All commas and decimal points to the left of a zero suppress "zero" will be replaced by blanks when they are not preceded by a significant non-zero digit.
- d. The fixed dollar sign will never be suppressed.

Editing with an Asterisk

This special character is used when it is necessary to protect printed data from being tampered with by unauthorized persons. This is accomplished by printing asterisks (8) in the print positions where zeroes and commas have been suppressed. This particular technique is frequently referred to as check protection.

Asterisk fill/check protect follows the same rules as zero suppression. Zero suppression replaces all leading zeroes and commas with blanks, while asterisk fill/check protect replaces these characters with asterisks.

Figure 10-14 shows examples of check-protect or asterisk-fill editing.

SOURCE DATA	CONSTANT OR EDIT WORD 45 70	OUTPUT RECORD
0000123456	1 , , * . & - 1	*****1,234.56bb
-0000123456	∖ ★	*000123456
+1234567890		1234567890
-0000123456	N * 1	****123456
0000001234	`X,	*****,012*34
012345	`& , ≭ 0, 1	***120,345

G14086

Figure 10-14. Asterisk Fill Coding Examples

Editing with a Floating Dollar Sign

A floating dollar sign is frequently used when writing checks. This method of check protection places a dollar sign immediately to the left of the first significant non-zero digit in the data field or the decimal point. Unnecessary commas and zeroes to the left of the dollar sign are replaced by spaces in the output area.

The following rules apply to editing with a floating dollar sign:

- a. An extra space must be left in the edit word for the floating dollar sign because a full print position is required for the dollar sign when the field is full.
- b. The floating dollar sign is placed immediately to the left of the "zero" used to signify zero suppression.
- c. The floating dollar sign should never be placed immediately to the left of a decimal point.

Figure 10-15 illustrates examples of dollar sign coding with before and after images.

SOURCE DATA	CONSTANT OR EDIT WORD 45 70	OUTPUT RECORD
+000000005	` , ,,,,,,,,,,,,,	bbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbb
-0012345678	、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 、 	bbb \$123,456.78CR**
000000000	`\$, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	\$bbbbbbbbbb.00
+0000123456	\$ NET!	\$bbbb123456bbbNET
-0000123456	S &- NETI	\$bbbb123456b-b NET
0000123456	\$0 - NET/	\$000123456bbNET
-0000123456		bbbb\$123456bCR
-1234567890	\$0 & C R 1	\$1234567890bCR
000000005	\$ 50 · &NET /	bbbbbbbbb b bbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbb
000000005	` , ,\$0 . /	bbbbbbbbbb <mark>\$.05</mark> ·
-1234567890	` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` `	\$12,345,678.90-
-0001234567	`,,,\$O.CR'	bbbb \$12,345.67CR
000001234	\$0, SALES!	bbbbbb\$,012.34bSALES
00123456	` , \$, O . /	bbb1 \$,2 34.56

G14085

Figure 10-15. Dollar Sign Coding Examples

Editing Negative Numbers

Negative numbers can be represented in the following two ways:

a. The dash or minus sign (-).

b. The credit symbol (CR).

These symbols that designate negative values are placed on the right side of the edit word. The dash requires one additional position in the output area, while the credit symbol requires two additional positions.

When the field being edited is positive in value, the negative symbols are not printed. If a number is negative and the edit word does not contain negative editing symbols, the number is edited as a positive number.

Figure 10-16 illustrates examples of negative sign coding.

Editing with a Slash

The slash (/) is primarily used to edit date fields, and can be used to provide separation of the day, month, and year in order to make the printed date more readable. As with all edit words, automatic zero suppression will be performed.

When date field editing is desired, it is more efficient to use the "Y" edit code entry in column 38 if the field is from 3 to 6 digits in length.

SOURCE DATA	CONSTANT OR EDIT WORD	OUTPUT RECORD
+0000123456	M & C R & N E T 1	bbbb123456bbbbNET
+0000123456	ACR NET	bbbb123456bbbbNET
-0000123456	ACRINET/	bbbb123456bCRbNET
-0000123456	NET!	bbbb123456b-bbNET
0000123456	L &NET&CR/	bbbb123456bbbbbbb
-0000123456	NET&CR /	bbbb123456bbNETbCR
-1234567890	\$6 , , O. CR/	\$b12,345,678.90CR
+0000123456	` 」 3 ★ • ★ C R ★ ★ /	*****1,234,56bbb**
-0000123456	\\	*****1,234.56*CR**

G14087

Figure 10-16. Negative Signs Coding Examples

Editing to Remove the Sign

When no edit word is specified and a numeric field is printed and/ or punched, the output will have a zone overscore over the loworder digit (right-signed) or the most significant digit (leftsigned) of the field. This zone represents the sign of the field. When the field is positive, the letters A through I will be printed and/or punched. If the field is negative, the letters J through R will be printed and/or punched. The zone can be eliminated by:

- a. Positive signs:
 - 1. An edit word that contains any or none of the edit characters.
 - 2. The "X" edit code entry in column 38. This is the most efficient way of removing the positive sign when no other editing is desired.
- b. Negative sign:
 - 1. An edit word that contains any or none of the edit characters.

For negative fields, an edit word must be used to remove the sign.

SOURCE DATA	45				C	100	IST/	ANT	OR	ED	IT W	IOR	D					70	OUTPUT RECORD
+0000123456			Τ	Π	Τ			Τ	Π		Π				Τ				0000123456
-0000123455		T	Τ			Π			Π		Π		Τ		T	Τ	Π		000012345N
000000000	1	T	T		Τ			1	Π	T			T		T	T			bbbbbbbbb
+0000123456	1	T	Τ	TT	T	Π		1		Τ	Π				T	Τ	Π		bbbb123456
-0000123456	1	T	T		T			1							Ť	T			bbbb123456

Figure 10-17 illustrates examples of sign removal.

G14083

Figure 10-17. Sign Removal Coding Examples

Ampersand

The ampersand is used to provide a blank space in the edit word when RPG II dialect is specified. Refer to figure 10-18 for ampersand coding examples using RPG II dialect.

The ampersand appears as an ampersand when RPG I dialect is specified. Refer to figure 10-19 for ampersand coding examples using RPG I dialect.

SOURCE DATA	45	CONSTANT OR EDIT WORD	OUTPUT RECORD
-1234567890	1\$6	, , O. &- GROSS!	\$b12,345,678.90b-bGROSS
-1234567890	1\$4	3 3 0 · &-NET&PAY'	\$b12,345,678.90b-NET PAY
-0000123456	1\$&	> > *• CR1	\$*****1,234.56CR
+000002	` 0	O LBS. & ØZ. TARE&-1	bbb0LBS,b02bbbbbbbbb
031274	1 8	& & &LATER '	b3b12b74bLATER

G14088

Figure 10-18. Ampersand Coding Examples (RPG II Dialect)

SOURCE DATA	CONSTANT OR EDIT WORD	OUTPUT RECORD
0000123456	A&PRØFIT'	bbbb123456&&PROFIT
0000123456	L CRANET /	bbbb123456bbb&NET
1234567890	154, , , , O. &-NET&PAY	\$b12,345,678.90b-NET&PAY

G14089

Figure 10-19. Ampersand Coding Examples (RPG I Dialect)

Editing and Constants

The edit characters have been described are the standard characters used for editing. However, it is possible to use any character in an edit word. The specified character will be printed on the output report in the position specified whenever a non-zero character has been printed to the left of the specified character.

Figure 10-20 illustrates the use of constants in the edit word.

SOURCE DATA	CONSTANT OR EDIT WORD	OUTPUT RECORD
0000123456	LAPROFIT'	bbbb123456bbPROFIT
-0000123456	s, . & CR NET!	bbbbb1,234.56bCRbbNET
0000123456	1, , DELLARS CENTS!	bbbbb1,234DOLLARS56CENTS
000000	1 JOBLLARS CENTS!	bbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbb
000000	SO DOLLARS CENTS&CR1	bbbb0D0LLARS00bbbbbbbb
-000002	1 OLBS. ØZ.TARE&-1	bbbbLBS.020Z.TAREb-
063369690		b63-36-9690
0042	OHRS. MINS. & VICLOCK	bOHRS.42MINS.b0'CLOCK
093074		b9-30-74bLATER
093074		b9/30/74

G14090

Figure 10-20. Examples of Constants in the Edit Word

75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

EXAMPLES OF EDIT CODES AND EDIT WORDS - RPG II Dialect

Examples of the use of edit words and edit codes follows. Examples 1 and 2 are exceptions, as they are unedited.

The column on the left contains the number of the example.

The center column contains:

- a. The source data.
- b. The edit word or edit code used.
- c. The edited data.

-

The Column on the right contains a brief description of the information in the center column.

Example Number	Edit Word or Edit Code	Description
1	0000123456 no edit word +000123456	With no edit word, the sign posi- tion is not converted to a numeric character. The first character is plus zero (+).
2	-0000123456 no edit word !000123456	With no edit word, the sign position is not converted to a numeric character. The first character is minus zero (!).
3	000000000	Blank edit word. Suppresses leading zeroes.
4	+0000123456 ' ' 123456	Blank edit word. Suppresses leading zeroes.
5	-0000123456 ' ' 123456	Blank edit word. Suppresses leading zeroes.
6	000000005 ',,,0.' .05	This is the usual approach to ed- iting an amount field. The deci- mal appears between the dollars and cents. The commas mark each three positions left of the deci- mal and the zero suppression character (0) immediately left of the decimal causes zero suppres- sion to the left.

7	00000000 , , , 0 – ' 0	The zero suppression begins where the zero suppression character is specified and continues left.
8	-0000000123 ',,,' 1.23-	The status portion is printed when the field is negative. Since no zero suppress character is specified, all insignificant characters are suppressed.
9	-0000123456 ' 0' 123456	The zero suppress specified for this position performs no func- tion. The sign is lost as there is no status specified in the edit word.
10	+0000123456 '0'' 000123456	The zero suppress specified for this position performs no func- tion. The sign is lost as there is no status specified in the edit word.
11	000000000 '\$ 0 &CR GROSS' \$ 0 CR GROSS	From the right of the \$ to the left of the & is 10 characters. Eight zeros are suppressed. All zero fields are positive.
12	0000000000 ',,,, -OLD BAL' OLD BAL	All 10 zeros are suppressed. Only the extension portion of the edit word is output.
13	000000 ', 0. ' .00	This is the usual approach to editing an amount field. The decimal appears between the dol- lars and cents. The commas mark each three positions left of the decimal and the zero suppression character (0) immediately left of the decimal causes zero suppres- sion to the left.
14	000000 ',.0' 0	All insignificant zeros and punctuation are suppressed.
15	000000000 ' , , 0 * ' 0*00	The first zero suppress character is the zero. The * is treated as a constant.
16	001234 '0, ,0 ' ,012,034	Only the first zero of the source data is suppressed. The second zero of the edit word is treated as a constant.

.

17	-00000015 ',,, -' 15-	Zero suppression of all insignifi- cant zeros to the decimal point. Punctuation is suppressed, also.
18	00000005 ',,,0' 0.05	Zero suppression of all insignifi- cant zeros to the decimal point. Punctuation is suppressed, also.
19	000000005 ',,\$0' \$0.05	Zero suppress with floating dollar sign. The dollar sign will move as far right as the zero suppress character.
20	-0012345678 ',, \$0. CR**' \$123,456.78CR**	Floating dollar sign with nega- tive amount. Note that the edit word has one more replaceable position than the length of the source data.
21	000000000 '\$,,0.' \$.00	This is not a floating dollar sign as it does not immediately precede the zero suppress charac- ter. All superfluous punctuation is suppressed.
22	+0000123456 '\$ &- NET' \$ 123456 NET	Zero suppression with constant \$ and an extension portion.
23	-0000123456 '\$&- NET' \$ 123456 - NET	Same as example 22 with status portion reporting negative.
24	+0000123456 '\$0 - NET' \$000123456 NET	Only high-order position zero suppression. Floating \$.
25	-0000123456 '\$0 &CR' \$123456 CR	Floating dollar sign with the status portion reporting negative.
26	-1234567890 '\$0_&CR' \$1234567890 CR	Floating dollar sign with the status portion reporting negative.
27	0000000005 ' , ,\$0 . &NET' \$0.05 NET	Floating dollar sign.

28	000000005	Floating dollar sign.	
	',,\$0.' \$ 05		
	\$.00		
29	-1234567890	Note again that in order for the \$ to appear, the edit word had to	
	', , \$0'	have one more replaceable charac-	
	\$12,345,678.90 -	variable data.	
30	-0001234567	Note again that in order for the	
	',, \$0. CR'	\$ to appear, the edit word had to have one more replaceable	
	\$12,345.67CR	character than the length of the variable data.	
31	000001234	Same as example 29 with an exten-	
	', \$0,SALES'	sion. Note that the placement of the zero suppress may cause non-	
	\$,012.34 SALES	esthetic results.	
32	00123456	Since the \$ and the 0 are	
	',\$,0.'	is a constant in the body.	
	1\$,234.56		
33	0000123456	Check protect asterisk. Sup-	
	',,*.&-'	punctuation, filling each posi-	
	*****1,234.56	tion with *.	
34	-0000123456	The edit word is 10 characters	
	****	position.	
	*000123456		
35	+1234567890	* is a replaceable character. When there are no insignificant	
	1994567990	characters, it is replaced.	
	1234567890		
36	-0000123456	Check protect asterisk. Sup- presses insignificant zeros and	
	' *' ****192456	punctuation, filling each posi-	
~ t			
37	0000001234	Same as example 33. The second * is a constant in the body. Non-	
	****** 012*34	esthetic.	
20	,01201		
30	U12340	(See example 45.) The * fills	
	***120,345	all insignificant positions. The 0 is a constant in the body.	
	•	v	

39	+0000123456	Ten position field into ten po-
	' &CR&NET'	sition body. The ampersands are for spacing only and are not
	120100 1111	printed.
40	+0000123456	Ten position field into ten po-
	' &CR NET'	sition body. The ampersands are for spacing only and are
	123456 NET	not printed.
41	-0000123456	Same as example 40 with status
	' &CR NET'	reporting negative.
	123456 CR NET	
42	-0000123456	Same as example 40 with status
	' &- NET'	reporting negative.
	123456 - NET	
43	0000123456	The extension, NET, does not out-
	' &NET&CR '	put because the status reports
	123456	the generator as part of the
		status, not the extension. Re- verse the order (CR&NET) and the
		word will function properly.
44	-0000123456	Proof of 43.
	' &NET&CR '	
	123456 NET CR	
45	-1234567890	Constant \$. & for spacing only.
	'\$& , , . CR'	Status reports negative.
	\$ 12,345,678.90CR	
46	+0000123456	First * is check protect. Sec-
	',, *. *CR**'	and fourth * are extension.
	*****1,234.56 **	
47	-0000123456	Same as example 46 with status
	',, *. *CR**'	reporting negative.
	*****1,234.56*CR**	
48	-1234567890	Constant \$. & for spacing. Zero
	'\$& , , 0 . &-GROSS'	suppress. & for spacing. Status reports negative. Extension con-
	\$ 12,345,678.90 -GROSS	tains GROSS.
49	-1234567890	Same as example 48. Extension
	'\$& , , 0 . &-NET PAY'	contains NET PAY.
	\$ 12,345,678.90 -NET PAY	

50	-0000123456 '\$& , , *. CR' \$*****1,234.56CR	Constant \$. Replaceable &. Check protect & substituted for replaceable characters, insig- nificant zeros and punctuation.
51	+000002 ' 0 LBS.& OZ.TARE&-' 0LBS. 02	Supress first three zeros of source data. Output fourth zero. Output the constant, LBS. Space across the &. In- sert the O2. Report the status as positive. For more mean- ingful output, see example 51a.
51 a	+000002 ' 0 LBS.& - OZ. TARE' OLBS. 02 OZ. TARE	The significant difference be- tween this example and the pre- vious one is that what is meant to be the extension is located after the status portion.
52	031274 ' & & &LATER' 3 12 74 LATER	Special zero suppression is not specified so zeros are auto- matically suppressed. The ampersands force the source data to be spaced. No status.
53	0000123456 ' &&PROFIT' 123456 PROFIT	Automatic zero suppression. No status. Extension.
54	-0000123456 ',,, &CR NET' 1,234.56 CR NET	Automatic zero suppression. Status reports negative. Extension.
55	0000123456 ',, DOLLARS CENTS' 1,234DOLLARS56CENTS	Automatic zero suppression. Insert significant punctua- tion. Space across constants until the end of the source data is reached.
56	000000 ', DOLLARS CENTS' CENTS	Automatic zero suppression also suppresses insignificant constants in the body of the edit word. CENTS is the ex- tension.
57	000000 ', 0 DOLLARS CENTS&CR' ODOLLARSOO	Suppress three zeros of the source data. Since the status reports positive, CENTS is not printed. Extension must be after status, if there is a status portion.
58	-000002 ' OLBS. OZ.TARE&-' LBS.020Z.TARE -	Same as example 51. See ex- ample 51a for more readable output.

59	063369690 '0 – – ' 63–36–9690	One method of editing a social security number. If the high order zero is not to be sup- pressed, see example 59a.
59a	063369690 '0 – – ' 063–36–9690	When the high-order zero is not to be suppressed, specify the edit word with one extra posi- tion in the first portion, and zero suppress that position.
60	0042 'O HRS. MINS.&O''CLOCK' OHRS.42MINS. O'CLOCK	Zero suppress high-order posi- tion only. Since the apostrophe is used to delimit edit words and constants, if printing the apostrophe is desired, it must be specified two times for each time it is to appear in the out- put. Example 51a could be prof- itably used here for greater read- ability.
61	093074 ' – – &LATER' 9-30-74 LATER	Same type editing as used in ex- ample 59 with an extension por- tion added. Automatic zero sup- pression.
62	093074 ' / / ' 9/30/74	Another method of editing a date field.
63	093074 Y Edit Code 9/30/74	Y is used for editing date fields. The largest field that may be edited with the Y is six digits.
64	09307 Y Edit Code 9/30/7	Y edit of a five-digit date field.
65	0930 Y Edit Code 9/30	Y edit of a four-digit date field.
66	093 Y Edit Code 9/3	Y edit of a three-digit date field.
67	+000000000 1 Edit Code	1 edit of ten-position field. Commas and zero balances to print. No sign.

10-43

68	+000000000 2 Edit Code	2 edit of ten-position field. Commas to print. No zero balance or sign.
69	+000000000 A Edit Code 0	A edit of ten-position field. Commas and zero balance to print. CR for status report.
70	+000000000 B Edit Code	B edit of ten-position field. Commas to print. No zero balance. CR for status report.
71	+000000000 X Edit Code 000000000	X edit of ten-position field. Remove plus sign from field.
72	+0000000000 Z Edit Code	Z edit of ten-position field. Zero suppress.
73	-000000000 1 Edit Code 0	1 edit of ten-position field. Commas and zero balance to print. No sign.
74	-000000000 2 Edit Code	2 edit of ten-position field. Commas to print. No zero balance or sign.
75	-000000000 A Edit Code 0	A edit of ten-position field. Commas and zero balance to print. CR for status report.
76	-000000000 B Edit Code	B edit of ten-position field. Commas to print. No zero balance. CR for status report.
77	-0000000000 J Edit Code 0	J edit of ten-position field. Commas and zero balance to print. – for status report.
78	-0000000000 K Edit Code	K edit of ten-position field. Commas to print. No zero balance. – for status report.
79	-000000000 X Edit Code 000000000	X edit of ten-position field. Remove plus sign from field. Since all zero value fields are treated as positive, the X edit code does not work in this case.
80	-0000000000 Z Edit Code	Z edit of ten-position field. Zero suppress.

81	+000000000 1 Edit Code -00	1 edit of ten-position field, with two implied decimals. Commas and zero balance to print. No sign.
82	+0000123456 1 Edit Code 1,234.56	1 edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Commas and zero balance to print. No sign.
83	+0000123456 2 Edit Code 1,234.56	2 edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Commas to print. No zero balance. No sign.
84	+0000123456 3 Edit Code 1234.56	3 edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Zero balance to print. No commas. No sign.
85	+0000123456 4 Edit Code 1234.56	4 edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. No commas. No zero balance. No sign.
86	+0000123456 A Edit Code 1,234.56	A edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Commas and zero balance to print. CR for status report.
87	+0000123456 B Edit Code 1,234.56	B edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Commas to print. No zero balance. CR for status report.
88	+0000123456 C Edit Code 1234.56	C edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. No commas. Zero balance to print. CR for status report.
89	+0000123456 D Edit Code 1234.56	D edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. No commas. No zero balance. CR for status report.
90	+0000123456 J Edit Code 1,234.56	J edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Commas and zero balances to print. – for status report.
91	+0000123456 K Edit Code 1,234.56	K edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Commas to print. No zero balance. – for status report.
92	+0000123456 L Edit Code 1234.56	L edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. No commas. Zero balance to print. - for status report.

93	+0000123456 M Edit Code 1234.56	M edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. No commas. No zero balance for status report.
94	+0000123456 X Edit Code 0000123456	X edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Re- move plus sign.
95	+0000123456 Z Edit Code 123456	Z edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Zero suppress.
96	-0000123456 1 Edit Code 1,234.56	1 edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Commas and zero balances to print. No sign.
97	-0000123456 2 Edit Code 1,234.56	2 edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Commas to print. No zero balance. No sign.
98	-0000123456 3 Edit Code 1234.56	3 edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. No commas. Zero balance to print. No sign.
99	-0000123456 4 Edit Code 1234.56	4 edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. No commas. No zero balance. No sign.
100	-0000123456 A Edit Code 1,234.56CR	A edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Commas and zero balance to print. CR for status report.
101	-0000123456 B Edit Code 1,234.56CR	B edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Commas to print. No zero balance. CR for status report.
102	-0000123456 C Edit Code 1234.56CR	C edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. No commas. Zero balance to print. CR for status report.
103	-0000123456 D Edit Code 1234.56CR	D edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. No commas. No zero balance. CR for status report.
104	-0000123456 J Edit Code 1,234.56-	J edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Com- mas and zero balance to print. - for status report.

*

105	-0000123456 K Edit Code 1,234.56-	K edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Commas to print. No zero balance. – for status report.
106	-0000123456 L Edit Code 1234.56-	L edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. No commas. Zero balance to print. – for status report.
107	-0000123456 M Edit Code 1234.56-	M edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. No commas. No zero balance. – for status report.
108	-0000123456 X Edit Code !000123456	X edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Re- move plus sign. Since the sign is negative, the sign position is output as the graphic repre- sentation of the minus sign and digit (in this case, ! or minus zero).
109	-0000123456 Z Edit Code 123456	Z edit of ten-position field with two implied decimals. Zero suppress.

Printer File Handling

An important objective of most RPG programs is the generation of a printed report. To help facilitate the production of an easily readable report with minimum programming, special features and functions have been incorporated into Burroughs B 1700 RPG.

Page Formatting

The RPG I and RPG II dialects can both use the Line Counter Specifications and/or carriage control tapes to control paper movement through the printer. However, there are several differences in usage and specification between the two dialects.

<u>RPG I Dialect.</u> The RPG I dialect uses the skip to channel option. Line Counter Specifications are required and must contain at least line-channel equations for channel 1 and channel 12.

The overflow line is the line specified in the line channel equations for channel 12. Up to 12 line-channel equations can be specified on the Line Counter Specifications form.

When a different forms length is desired, the length is entered in columns 15-19 and FL is entered in columns 18-19 of the Line Counter Specifications. Line-Channel equations are required for channels 1 and 12. Up to nine additional line-channel equations can be specified.

Whenever a channel number is specified in columns 19-22 of the Output-Format Specifications, there must be a corresponding linechannel equation entry in the Line Counter Specifications. At compile time, when a skip to channel is found that does not have a corresponding line channel equation, a syntax message is emitted. Neither syntax error nor warning is issued if a line-channel equation is defined but is not referenced in the Output-Format Specifications.

<u>RPG II Dialect.</u> In RPG II dialect, Line Counter Specifications are optional. The default value for form length is 66 lines and the default value for the overflow line is line 60. When these default values are acceptable, as many as 12 line-channel equations can be specified on the Line Counter Specification entry. If the defaults are not desirable, then both the form length and overflow line must be entered in the first two sections of the Line Counter Specification and only 10 line-channel equations can be specified on the remainder of the specification line.

When the line-channel equations are supplied, skip to line will be performed as skip to channel. If no line-channel equation is supplied, skip to line is performed by spacing, in the usual manner.

Entries in columns 19-22 of the Output-Format Specifications are treated as line numbers.

End of Page

The physical end of a page is reached when the paper becomes positioned in the overflow area. For RPG I this is the area from channel 12 to 1 line prior to channel 1. In RPG II it is the first line after the overflow line to 1 line prior to line 1.

When End-Of-Page (overflow area) is sensed during a printer operation, one of the following must occur:

a. Automatic skipping is specified when an overflow indicator is not entered in columns 33-34 of the File Description Specifications. Since the indicator is not defined, it may not be used to condition calculations or output.

Automatic skipping moves the paper from the overflow area to the top of the next page before resuming print operations.

No overflow bookkeeping is available to the user.

For RPG I the paper is moved from the overflow area to Channel 1.

For RPG II the paper is moved from the overflow area to line 6.

 b. Continuous printing is specified when an overflow indicator is entered in columns 33-34 of the File Description Specifications but is not used to condition printer record output. The overflow indicator is defined and may be used in Calculation Specifications. If used on the OutputFormat Specifications, the overflow indicator must condition only field descriptions of printer files.

c. Overflow operations are specified when an overflow indicator is entered in columns 33-34 of the File Description Specifications and that indicator is used to condition record output in the print file. Using the overflow indicator to condition printer file record output defines those lines of print that are to be written during overflow output. It is the user's responsibility to initiate skipping based on overflow, as this is not done automatically.

When overflow operations are specified, normal overflow output may be printed when the overflow output routine in the RPG cycle is reached. If fetching was specified (F in column 16 of the record description line on the Output-Format Specifications), overflow output may be printed immediately: Before the record described on the line containing the F in column 16 is printed. This is fetched overflow output.

Overflow Indicators

Overflow indicators must be used only with printers, and are not assigned by default. The assignment of overflow indicators determines the type of paper motion and overflow handling that will occur.

- a. Overflow indicators not assigned and not used result in automatic skipping. In RPG II this is a skip to line 6. In RPG I this is a skip to channel 1.
- b. Overflow indicators assigned but not used result in printing over the perforation.
- c. Overflow indicators assigned and used result in normal overflow handling.

<u>RPG I Dialect.</u> An overflow indicator will turn on:

- a. When a line is actually printed in the overflow area, or
- b. When, as the result of using the overflow indicator as a calculation resulting indicator, the overflow indicator is set on.

An overflow indicator will turn off when:

- a. The overflow indicator is used as a calculation resulting indicator, and the operation turns it off.
- b. The conditions of the overflow turn off routine are satisfied. Refer to figure 10-21.

<u>RPG II Dialect.</u> An overflow indicator will turn on when:

a. The destination of a skip before or a skip after is in the overflow area.

- b. The destination of space before or a space after is in the overflow area.
- c. A line is actually printed in the overflow area.
- d. The use of the overflow indicator as a calculation resulting indicator turns it on.

An overflow indicator will turn off when:

- a. The destination of a skip before or a skip after is a new page, and the record is not conditioned by the overflow indicator.
- b. The overflow indicator is used as a calculation resulting indicator, and the operation turns it off.
- c. The conditions of the overflow turn-off routine are satisfied. Refer to figure 10-21.

The overflow indicator is not set off if the new page is reached by spacing.

Overflow

The principles used for handling overflow are:

- a. Overflow will be performed only once for any single physical overflow, whether fetched or performed during the normal part of the cycle when overflow processing is performed (For example, after total output).
- b. The RPG program distinguishes between overflow indicators which are set during the detail part of the cycle and those which are set during the total part of the cycle. If set during detail, overflow indicators do not get turned off after detail output, but are maintained for one full cycle until the next time around. If an overflow indicator went on during detail and overflow was fetched, the reason overflow doesn't get performed twice (once for the fetch and once at normal overflow processing), is because overflow will only be performed once for each physical overflow.

If the program overflow specifications leave the printer in the overflow area, the cycle will not erroneously do overflow processing again, but remembers that it has already been performed for the condition that caused overflow. To do overflow processing again, the program must cause another physical overflow by printing again in the overflow area.

c. Overflow indicators can also be controlled in the Calculation Section when used as resulting indicators. When an overflow indicator is set on in the Calculation Section, the effect is exactly the same as if a physical overflow condition had occurred on the printer, with the cycle also distinguishing whether it has been turned on in detail or



Figure 10-21. Printer Overflow Operations

.

*

or total. When an overflow indicator is set off in the Calculation Section, the effect is exactly the same as if overflow processing had just been performed.

A composite flow chart of printer overflow operations is shown in figure 10-21.

Sequence Of Printed Output Operations When All Conditioning Indicators Are Satisfied:

- a. If skip before is specified, call SKIP ROUTINE.
- b. If space before is specified, call SPACE ROUTINE.
- c. Call PRINT ROUTINE.
- d. If skip after is specified, call SKIP ROUTINE.
- e. If space after is specified, call SPACE ROUTINE.
- f. If fetching is specified for this line of print, items a through e are done once for the fetch (call FETCH OVER-FLOW), and again for the line to be printed.
- g. After all detail output, call OVERFLOW TURN OFF ROUTINE.
- h. After all total output, if the last record indicator (LR) is off, call either:
 - 1. The OVERFLOW ROUTINE, or
 - 2. If automatic skipping is specified, call the AUTOMATIC SKIPPING ROUTINE.

	RPG I	RPG II
Overflow Area		
Skip	No effect	TURN ON
Space	No effect	TURN ON
Print	TURN ON	TURN ON
New Page		
Skip	No effect	On a line not conditioned by an overflow indicator TURN OFF
Space	No effect	No effect
Print	No effect	No effect
<u>Overflow Area</u>	Channel 12 to 1 line prior to channel 1.	First line after overflow line to last line prior to line 1.
<u>Automatic Skip</u>	Occurs when an o assigned in the tion for a print rest of the prog	verflow indicator is not File Description Specifica- er and is not used in the ram.
	Paper is moved from overflow area to channel 1.	Paper is moved from over- flow area to line six.

Table 10-3. Effect of Printer Operations on Overflow Indicators Destination

<u>Normal Overflow Output</u>. When the overflow area is sensed (and the indicator comes on), and normal overflow output is specified, the following sequence of events takes place. If the overflow area is sensed during detail calculation exception output:

- a. Complete remaining detail calculations.
- b. Perform detail and heading output not conditioned on the overflow indicator.
- c. Read the next record.
- d. If a control break occurred, perform total calculations.
- e. Perform necessary total output not conditioned on the overflow indicator.

- f. Perform total output conditioned on the overflow indicator.
- g. Perform heading and detail output conditioned on the overflow indicator.
- h. Perform detail calculations.
- i. Perform heading and detail output not conditioned on the overflow indicator.
- j. Turn off the overflow indicator.

When the overflow area is sensed during detail output, the sequence is item b through item j.

When the overflow area is sensed during total calculation exception output, the sequence is item d through item j.

Figure 10-22 provides a graphic view of when the overflow indicator is turned on or off and when printing is performed.

Fetched Overflow Output. When the overflow indicator is sensed and fetched overflow output is specified, the following sequence of events takes place. Before printing the record specified with F in column 16 of the Output-Format Specifications:

- a. Perform total output conditioned by the overflow indicator.
- b. Perform heading and detail output conditioned by the overflow indicator.
- c. Print the record with the F in column 16 that caused the overflow routine to be fetched.

If the overflow area was sensed during detail calculation exception output, the remainder of the sequence is:

- a. Perform the remainder of the detail calculation exception output, if any.
- b. Finish the remainder of the detail calculations.
- c. Perform detail output not conditioned on the overflow indicator.
- d. Read the next record.
- e. If a control break has occurred (item d), perform total calculations.
- f. Perform total output lines not conditioned on the overflow indicator.
- g. Do not perform overflow output. For exceptions, refer to the following subsection titled Multiple Output Lines.
- h. Perform detail calculations.
- i. Perform detail output.
- j. Turn off the overflow indicator.

NORMAL FETCHED 4 8 1 2 3 5 6 7 DETAIL OUTPUT SET OFF OVERFLOW READ RECORD TOTAL CALCULATIONS FIRST CYCLE TOTAL OUTPUT OVERFLOW OUTPUT DETAIL CALCULATIONS ON ONP DETAIL OUTPUT ONP ON SET OFF OVERFLOW READ RECORD ONP TOTAL CALCULATIONS ON SECOND CYCLE TOTAL OUTPUT ONP ON OVERFLOW OUTPUT Ρ Þ Ρ Ρ DETAIL CALCULATIONS DETAIL OUTPUT SET OFF OVERFLOW OFF OFF OFF OFFOFF OFF OFF OFF READ RECORD TOTAL CALCULATIONS THIRD CYCLE TOTAL OUTPUT OVERFLOW OUTPUT DETAIL CALCULATIONS 7 8 3 4 5 6 2 1

OVERFLOW OUTPUT

G12053

ON = OVERFLOW INDICATOR TURNS ON HERE P = OVERFLOW LINES PRINT HERE OFF = OVERFLOW INDICATOR TURNS OFF HERE

Figure 10-22. Bar Schematic of Printer Overflow Operations

If the overflow area was sensed during detail output, the remainder of the sequence is item c through item j.

If the overflow area was sensed during total calculation exception output, the remainder of the sequence is item e through j.

If the overflow area was sensed during total output, the remainder of the sequence is item f through item j.

<u>Multiple Output Lines.</u> When multiple output lines have been specified for any printer, it is possible to continue printing, either before or after overflow output, and again arrive in the overflow area. If this happens, all overflow output may occur again.

Examples of overflow coding are shown in figures 10-23 and 10-24.

FILE DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS



G14031

Figure 10-23. Overflow Coding Example 1 - RPG II

FILE DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS



G14032

Figure 10-24. Overflow Coding Example 2 - RPG I

SECTION

DOLLAR CARD SPECIFICATIONS

Dollar Card Specifications accommodate various extensions to the B 1700 RPG Language, which cannot be handled on the other specification forms. Dollar Cards also allow certain compiler-control options to be set or reset during compilation.

Dollar Cards may appear anywhere within the source deck, as required. The standard Dollar Card Specifications form may be used or options can be coded on the other specification sheets at the points where they will be placed in the source deck.

FIELD DEFINITIONS

Refer to figure 11-1 in conjunction with the following field definitions for the Dollar Card Specifications.

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

This field may be left blank or used to contain the form type of the specification in which the option is to be inserted.

7 \$ OPTION

A \$ sign must appear in this field.

8 NOT

This field is used to specify that the option entered in the KEY WORD field is set ON (NOT = blank) or OFF (NOT = N). Certain options cannot be turned OFF; these are indicated under the KEY WORD entry description. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Specified option is "set".
Ν	Specified option is "reset".



- A. 6 May contain the form type of the specification in which the option is to be inserted. Entries: Blank, F, E, L, I, C, or O.
- B. 8 Specifies if the option entered in the KEY WORD field is to be set ON or OFF. Entries: Blank or N.
- C. 9-14 Names the option to be used, left-justified. For entries, see the descriptions in the text.
- D. 15-24 Used to specify a value to be associated with the entry in the KEY WORD field. Not always required. Entries: Alphanumeric, leftjustified and numeric, right-justified.
- E. 15-74 Used for documenting and commenting.

G14091

A a

Figure 11-1. Dollar Card Specifications Summary Sheet

9-14 KEY WORD

This field is used to name the option to be set or reset (according to entry in NOT field). The option name must be entered leftjustified in the field. Options fall into three categories: file identification extensions, RPG extensions, and compiler-directing options.

The following B 1700 dollar options may or may not be valid on other systems and vice versa. Unrecognized dollar cards will be ignored, but a warning will be emitted.

File Identification Extensions

The following extensions are used to specify the external names for files described in the File Description Specifications. They must immediately precede the file in the File Description Specifications to which they refer. None of the options may be reset.

- \$ PACKID Specifies the pack name of a disk file. Similar to \$ FAMILY and \$ FILEID. Default of blank name and MCP assumes systems pack. This entry should be included to ensure correct handling of the file by the MCP.
- \$ FAMILY Specifies the external main directory family name associated with the file. The value field contains the name (one to 10 characters leftjustified).
- \$ FILEID Specifies the external file ID associated with the file. The value field contains the name (one to 10 characters left-justified).
- \$ DISKID Same as \$ PACKID.

An external name may be in one of the following four forms:

family name family name/file ID disk pack ID/family name/file ID disk pack ID/family name/

The internal name of each file is the filename assigned in the File Description Specifications.

Unless the FAMILY specification is used, the family name will be the same as the internal filename, that is, the filename specified on the File Description Specification. Therefore, if none of the file identification extensions are used the internal and external name will be the same, i.e., the family name. Figure 11-2 illustrates how the insertion of the different file identification extensions before a file called MASTER affects that file's external name.
CODING

EXTERNAL NAMES

101

0 2 F\$ FILEIDMASTERFILE 0 3 FMASTER IP 180
0 2 F F F AMILYPAYRØLL 0 3 F MASTER I P 180
02 FSPACKIDPAYMASTER 03 FMASTER IP 180
02 F\$ FANILYPAYRØLL 03 F\$ FILEIDMASTERFILE 04 FMASTER IP 160
04 F\$ FAMILYPAYRØLL 05 F\$ PACKIDPAYMASTER

0	2	F	\$		F	A	M	I	L	Y	Ρ	A	ų	R	ø	L	L				
0	3	F	\$		F	I	L	E	1	D	M	4	5	Т	E	R	F	I	L	Ε	
0	4	F	\$		P	A	C	K	1	D	P	A	Y	M	4	S	Т	E	R		
٥	5	F	M	A	5	T	E	R			I	Ρ					1	8	0		

IP

180

G14092

0 6 F MASTER

Figure 11-2. Coding File Identification Extensions - Dollar Sign Options

RPG Extensions

The following options may appear only within the File Description Specifications, except RSIGN, and must immediately precede the specification line describing the file to which they apply. None of the following operations may be reset except RSIGN and ONEPAK.

\$ AREAS Specifies the maximum number of areas to be allocated for the file (disk files only). The VALUE field contains an integral value (right justified, leading zeros optional). A system-dependent default value of 25 is assumed unless specified by use of this dollar option. Maximum number of areas that may be assigned is 105.

MASTER/MASTERFILE

PAYROLL

PAYMASTER/MASTER/

PAYROLL/MASTERFILE

PAYMASTER/PAYROLL/

PAYMASTER/PAYROLL/MASTERFILE

- \$ RPERA Specifies the maximum number of logical records that will be written in each disk area. The VALUE field contains an integral value (right-justified, leading zeros optional). The default value assigned is the first multiple of the records-per-block that is equal to or greater than 500.
- \$ OPEN The use of this option results in the explicit open of a file at Beginning-of-Job time. A \$ OPEN card must appear before the File Specification card for each file that is to be explicitly opened at BOJ time.

The default condition is as follows:

At BOJ time, the primary and all secondary files are opened, as well as all input or update indexed files. Demand and output files are implicitly opened upon the first read from, or write to, them.

- \$ CLOSE The use of this option forces a serial input file to remain open until the program reaches End-of-Job. A \$ CLOSE card must appear before the File Specification card for each file that is to remain open until EOJ. The default is for each serial input file to be explicitly closed upon encountering the End-of-File.
- \$ AAOPEN Is a file OPEN time option used to set a bit in the program's code file File Parameter Block for this file and to allocate all disk space areas at the time the file is opened.
- \$ ONEPAK Specifies that this particular file must be contained on one disk.
- \$ CYL Allocates file areas starting on an integral cylinder boundary.
- \$ DRIVE Allocates a physical drive to that particular file. Applies only to Systems disks. VALUE field must be 0-15. Option may not be reset and is not related to PACKID.
- \$ REFORM Input and update disk files are assumed to have the record and block sizes specified in the disk file header, regardless of those specified in the File Specification card. The use of the \$ REFORM option causes the record and block sizes declared in the File Specification card to override those in the disk file header. For example, the DEFAULT bit in the File Parameter Block is reset.

A \$ REFORM card must appear before each input or update disk file where it is necessary to override the record and block sizes specified in the disk file header. \$ REORG Specifies a specialized method of sorting indexed files and will be invoked at End-of-Job. The REORG feature only sorts the additions and then merges them, in place, into the master file. This method of sorting should decrease the sort time and the temporary disk area required. The VALUE field (columns 25-46) must contain the external file identifier of indexed file. The VALUE field has the following naming convention:

disk pack ID/family name/file ID

The use of the \$ REORG option results in the following program execution at EOJ:

INDEXED FILE - RPG/REORD

"B" INDEXED FILE - RPG/REORG

Information deleted

- \$ RSIGN Indicates to the compiler the location of the sign of external numeric data items. When set, all signs are assumed to be in the low-order (rightmost) position of the field; when reset, all signs are assumed to be in the high-order (leftmost) position of the field. This option may be set and reset at different points in the source program, allowing different fields to have different sign positions. If the option is used, it will override the sign position specified in the Control Card Specifications.
- \$ DNAME The value field contains an alpha mnemonic for the physical hardware device to which it refers.
- \$ CHECK Causes all patching records to be sequence checked. Syntax errors are generated for any patch record that is out of sequence.

If the \$ CHECK option is not specified, then sequence warnings are issued. The warning is denoted by an "S" appearing to the left of the record's sequence number on the output listing.

\$ MERGE Causes the following records in the patch file to be merged with an existing source file. The source file is from a source other than a card reader. The source file is expected to reside on tape or disk (disk is default). The internal file name is SOURCE and external file name is SOURCE. The default blocking option is set.

> If it is desirable to change the external file name or input device from disk to tape, then a label equation card must be used. The \$ NEW option can be used with the \$ MERGE option to create a new output source file with patches.

1

The sequence fields are used to control the merge sequence. If the sequence field of a patch record and disk record match, then the patch record replaces the disk record; otherwise, patch records are merged with the tape or disk file. The existing source file remains unchanged.

A "P" is appended to the left of the record's sequence field on the source listing, specifying that the image is a patch record.

- \$ NEW Creates new output source files. If \$ MERGE option is used, then the patches are included in the new source file. The new source file is created on disk or tape (disk is default). Internal file name is NEWSOURCE and external file name is NEWSOURCE. If it is desirable to change the external file name or input device from disk to tape, then label equations cards must be used.
- \$ SEQ Starts sequencing the subsequent source lines on the output listing. If \$ NEW option is used, then the subsequent new source file is sequenced. The starting sequence number begins with the number contained in the sequence field (columns 1-5) of the \$ SEQ option. If the sequence field is blank, the starting sequence number begins with zero. The subsequent records have sequence numbers which are incremented by the value contained in columns 22-24 of the \$ SEQ option. If columns 22-24 are blank, then 010 is assigned.
- \$ DMSNAM Specifies that the compiler print the DMS library files used for the compile. This option is set on by DEFAULT.
- \$ DIGIT8 Causes RPG indexed files to use eight-digit relative record numbers in the tag file. The default is six digits. With this option, RPG indexed files are compatible with COBOL indexed files. The \$ DIGIT8 compiler option must be specified prior to each file's File Description Specification for which an eight-digit relative record number tag file is required.
- \$ SECURE Causes RPG programs to access and create single-named tag files when the program is executed using the USERCODE/PASSWORD pair implemented on the B 1800/B 1700 file security system.

Only one of the following four \$ RPG Extensions may be used per file specification:

- \$ PTAPE Modifies READER or PUNCH to apply to a paper tape reader.
- \$ TAPE7 Modifies a tape device to 7-track.
- \$ TAPE9 Modifies a tape device to 9-track.
- \$ CASSET Modifies a tape device to a cassette.

·

.

Compiler-Directing Options

The following options may appear anywhere within the B 1700 RPG Source Program. These options direct the compiler to perform specific functions. All of the following options may be "reset".

- \$ LIST Specifies that the compiler produce a single spaced output listing of the source statements with the error or warning messages. This option is set "on" by default. Resetting to "off" will not inhibit the errors or warning messages from printing.
- \$ LOGIC Specifies that the compiler produce a single-spaced listing of each source specification line, followed immediately by an intermediate code used to generate RPG S-code. The listing is produced after the NAMES listing (if the NAMES option is set), and does not include addresses or bit configurations, but only the opcodes and logical operands of the program.
- \$ MAP Specifies that the compiler produce a single-spaced listing, detailing the program's memory utilization. The MAP listing is produced after the LOGIC listing (if the LOGIC option is set).
- \$ NAMES Specifies that the compiler is to produce a singlespaced listing of all assigned indicators, file names, and field names. The attributes associated with each file and field are also listed. The NAMES listing is produced immediately after the normal source input listing.
- \$ BAZBON Specifies that if an indicator is assigned to a field to test for ZERO or BLANK in the Input or Calculation Specifications and the same field is used in the Output Specifications with a BLANK AFTER designation, that indicator will be turned ON after the field is blanked during the output operations. The maximum number of associations is 200. Should a N (NOT) be specified in column 8, the indicator will be turned OFF, overriding the original RPG 1 or RPG II specifications. The default values are as follows:

RPG	I	BAZBON	is	set	
-----	---	--------	----	-----	--

RPG II BAZBON is reset

\$ ZBINIT Specifies that all ZERO or BLANK indicators are initialized ON at Beginning-of-Job. The maximum number of associations is 200. If a N (NOT) is specified in column 8, then the ZERO or BLANK indicators are initialized OFF regardless of the specifications for RPG I or RPG II. The default values are as follows:

> RPG I ZBINIT is set RPG II ZBINIT is reset

- \$ STACK If infrequent stack overflow conditions occur during program execution, the user may change the stack size of the resultant program. This should be used only when a legitimate STACK overflow condition has occurred (i.e., nested subroutines more than 8 deep). The default stack size is 313 bits which will allow 8 entries in the stack. To increase the stack size, add 39 bits to the default size of 313 for each additional stack entry.
- \$ XREF Allows the RPGXRF file to be created during compilation for use as input to the RPG/XREF program. The XREF option must be placed at the beginning of the RPG source program, prior to the first File Specification or Control Card Specification. At completion of the compilation, the RPG/XREF program is automatically executed. The program generates the cross-reference listing.
- \$ PARMAP Produces a single-spaced listing of the compilergenerated paragraph names, source statement numbers, and actual segment displacements of the emitted code. This listing may be used to relate to the LOGIC listing.
- \$ SUPR Specifies that the compiler is to suppress all warning messages from the source program listing. (Error messages still print.)
- \$ XMAP Specifies that the compiler print a single-spaced listing of all the code generated, complete with actual bit configurations and addresses. Combined with the listing produced by the LOGIC option, complete information about the generated code of the program is available. The XMAP listing is produced after the MAP listing if the MAP option is set.
- \$ LIBR Copies source records from a library file located on tape or disk to a new or merging file. This option can reference different library files. Columns 15-24 contain the Pack-Id; columns 25-34 the Multi-File-Id; columns 35-44 the File-Id; columns 45-49 the starting sequence number in the library file (optional); and columns 50-54 the ending sequence number in the library file (optional).

An "L" is appended to the record image and is placed to the left of record's sequence field in the output listing. The "L" specifies that the record is from a library source file.

- \$ NEWID Causes the six character identifier specified in columns 15-20 of the \$ NEWID option to be placed in columns 75-80 of the subsequent lines in the output listing. If the \$ NEW option is used, then the six-character identifier is also placed in columns 75-80 of the subsequent source records in the new source file.
- \$ VOID Deletes records of the source file on the output listing. If the \$ NEWID option is used, then the records are deleted in the new source file. Source lines or records

are deleted up to and including the five-digit void limit. If the void limit field (columns 20-24) is blank, then only the source record with sequence number matching the sequence field \$ VOID option is deleted.

\$ PAGE Causes the RPG compiler to eject a page on the output source listing. This option can appear anywhere in the RPG source program and is especially useful for separating subroutines on the output source listing.

15-24 VALUE

This field is used to specify a value to be associated with the option entered in the KEY WORD field. Not all options require a value; those that do are so designated in the individual descriptions of each option (KEY WORD field).

All alphanumeric values must be entered left-justified in the VALUE field. All numeric values must be entered right-justified in the VALUE field; leading zeros are optional.

25-74 COMMENTS

This field is available for inclusion of comments and documentary remarks, and may contain any valid EBCDIC characters.

75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Chapter 2 for a complete description.

x

SECTION 12 COMPILER OPERATION

The Burroughs RPG Compiler is an integral part of the B 1700 software system. It is treated in many respects as merely another program to be executed and can be multiprogrammed with other programs, or with itself.

SOURCE INPUT

An input card file labeled RPG/CARD is the only source required by the compiler. All source input must be punched in the EBCDIC character set unless it is translated on input.

If it is desired that the input file be assigned to a device other than the card reader, then this may be achieved by using the FILE statement. This, of course, means that the device from which the source file is read should have the same record length (80 characters) and blocking factor (1) as the device from which the compiler expects to read the file. An RPG/VECTOR file assigned through the FILE statement should have a record length of 96 and a blocking factor of 1.

CONTROL CARD SYNTAX

The format of the MCP control cards is as follows:

? COMPILE <program-name> WITH RP

G	O LI	BRARY
[T	OR SY	NTAX
F	SA	VE

<control-attributes> ...

- ? CHARGE <charge-number>
- ? MEMORY <memory-size>
- ? PRIORITY <priority-number>
- ? FILE <internal-file-name> <file-attributes>
- ? DATA RPG/CARD

source specification cards

? END

```
? DATA RPG/VECTOR
```

```
compile-time table cards
```

```
? END
```

All of the above control cards are fully discussed in the <u>B 1700 System</u> <u>Software Operational Guide</u>, Form No. 1068731. The format of the four options of the COMPILE statement are discussed here.

- COMPILE This is a "compile and go" operation. If the compilation is error-free, the MCP schedules the object program for execution. The program will not be entered into the Disk Directory, and must be recompiled to be used again. The "compile and go" is the default option of the COMPILE statement. COMPILE may be abbreviated as CO.
- COMPILE TO LIBRARY This option will leave the program object file on disk and will enter the program-name into the Disk Directory after an error-free compilation. The program is not scheduled for execution. LIBRARY may be abbreviated as LI.
- COMPILE SAVE This option combines the execute and library options. The MCP will enter the programname into the Disk Directory and will leave the object program file on disk. The MCP will also schedule the program for execution after an error-free compilation. The program remains in the Disk Directory. SAVE may be abbreviated as SA.
- COMPILE FOR SYNTAX This option provides a diagnostic listing as the only output. This option does not enter the program-name into the Disk Directory or leave the program object file on disk. SYNTAX may be abbreviated as SY.

The following sample deck could be used to compile a source program contained in punched card to library:

- ? COMPILE PROGRAM/TEST1 WITH RPG TO LIBRARY
- ? CHARGE 12345
- ? DATA RPG/CARD
- source specification cards
- ? END

The following sample deck could be used to compile a source program contained on magnetic tape for syntax:

- ? COMPILE AAA/BBB/TEST2 WITH RPG FOR SYNTAX
- ? FILE CARDS NAME = RPG/SOURCE DEFAULT TAPE
- ? END

NOTE

For the effect of the DEFAULT option, refer to the <u>B 1700 System Software Operational</u> <u>Guide</u>, Form No. 1068731.

VECTOR FILE INPUT

The vector input files consist of compile-time and pre-execution-time vector files, both of which are described in the paragraphs that follow.

COMPILE-TIME VECTOR FILES

If the program requires that table or array files be included during compilation, the compiler requires an input card file labeled RPG/VECTOR. This file may be input from a medium other than cards, through use of the FILE statement. Card input may be punched in either the BCD (96 column card) or EBCDIC (80 column card) character set.

Vector files must be entered in the same order as specified in the Extension Specifications, and each file must contain exactly the number of records specified. No separators define the end of one vector and the beginning of the next; records are read into one vector until that vector is full. Filling of the next vector is begun from subsequent records.

The following sample deck could be used to compile a source program (with compile-time vector input) contained on cards to library:

- ? COMPILE AAA/TEST3 WITH RPG TO LIBRARY
- ? DATA RPG/CARD
- source specification cards
- ? END
- ? DATA RPG/VECTOR
- table file cards
- ? END

PRE-EXECUTION-TIME VECTOR FILES

If the program requires table or array files to be included at the beginning of object program execution, the program will require card files with the labels as specified by the program in the File Description and Extension Specifications.

LABEL EQUATION CARD

The label equation card is used to change a compiler file name in order to avoid duplication of file names in the disk directory when operating in a multiprogramming environment, or to access a file name other than the default file names in the RPG compiler. Table 12-1 lists the files that are used by the RPG compiler for source input and compilation output.

Internal File Name	External File Name	Description
CARDS	RPG/CARD	Input file from the card reader.
LINE	RPG/LIST	Source output listing to the line printer.
NEWSOURCE	NEWSOURCE	Output file to disk for a NEW source file when the \$ NEW option is used.
SOURCE	SOURCE	Input file from disk when \$ MERGE option is used.
TABCRD	RPG/VECTOR	Input file for tables from the card reader.

Table 12-1. Files Used for Source Input and Compilation Output

Label equation cards use the FILE statement. Refer to the B 1800/B 1700 Systems, System Software Operational Guide, Form Number 1068731, for additional information. The format of the FILE statement is:

? FILE <internal-file-name> NAME=<file-identifier>;

The FILE statement must immediately follow a COMPILE, EXECUTE, DYNAMIC, or MODIFY statement.

The following sample deck could be used to compile a source program which merges a patch file on cards with a SOURCE program located on disk. The SOURCE program's name is PROGRAM1 and the OBJECT program's name is OBJ.PROG1.

? COMPILE OBJ. PROG1 WITH RPG TO LIBRARY

- ? FILE SOURCE NAME PROGRAM1
- ? DATA RPG/CARD

\$ MERGE card followed by patch card source statements

- ? END
- ? DATA RPG/VECTOR
 - table file cards
- ? END

SECTION 13

SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS

RPG DATA MANAGEMENT FACILITY

The RPG data management system provides the ability to process a DMSII data base using conventional RPG syntax and concepts.

A data base is constructed by a DASDL compilation. The DASDL compiler, using a description of the data base (DASDL source statements), produces a data base dictionary file which contains information about each structure described within the data base.

Data sets, sets, and subsets are the structures which make up the data base. A data set description in DASDL specifies the logical structure of a file. Set and subset descriptions in DASDL specify the logical structures of indexes or index tables (paths) that are used in storage and retrieval of the data contained in a data set.

Data sets and sets on the outermost level of the description are disjoint data sets and disjoint sets respectively. A data base must contain at least one disjoint data set.

In order to effectively use the RPG data management system, understanding how the data base structures relate to the concepts of RPG files is important.

RPG DATA MANAGEMENT FILES

The basic structure in a data base is the disjoint data set. A data set is similar to the RPG concept of a file in that a data set contains the actual records. Unlike RPG, a record can contain not only items of information but other data sets (embedded data sets).

Additionally, records within a data set can contain access paths (or pointers) to the records of another disjoint data set. This access path is called a manual subset.

In order to better understand an embedded data set, consider the data set EMPLOY containing records for each employee. This data set may contain an embedded data set named WRKHIS for each employee's work history. For every employee record in EMPLOY, 0, 1, or more work history records may be stored in the WRKHIS data set. Later, when employee records are being read, DMS delivers all the requested WRKHIS records which have been previously stored. If there are no WRKHIS records, DMS informs the RPG program of this condition.

To better understand how a manual subset is used, consider two disjoint data sets, DEPART and EMPLOY. To gain access to all of the employees within each department ordered by the employees last name, a manual subset may be used. The manual subset provides paths from one disjoint data set to another disjoint data set. That is, within each DEPART record there is a manual subset called DEPEMP. The following DASDL source statements pertain to the previous example:

)

By manual, it is meant that the RPG program must insert the record in the manual subset DEPEMP after creating and storing a record in the data set EMPLOY. Similarly, the RPG program must remove the record in the manual subset DEPEMP after deleting the record in the data set EMPLOY.

A data set may be accessed by way of various paths or, in DMS terminology, by means of sets or subsets. Sets, automatic subsets, and manual subsets with keys are structures that organize the data set records into logical sequences. In RPG terms, this is known as indexing by way of a key. A set provides access to all of the records of a data set. An automatic subset provides access to a limited collection of records, that is, a condition for membership in the subset exists, and the condition is checked each time a record is to be added to the data set.

Sets and automatic subsets declared as indexed-sequential in DASDL allow for accessing successive records based on the ordering sequence of the key, or a given record may be accessed based on the value of the key. In DMS, several sets and/or automatic subsets may exist for the same data set. That is, the same data set may be accessed via several different keys.

An indexed-random set is a structure which provides access to a data set record based on the value of a key. Unlike other sets and automatic subsets, ordering is not implied, except in the isolated case where two or more records contain duplicate key values. In this case, access to the NEXT record makes available the next record which contains a duplicate of the key. All sets other than manual subsets are maintained by DMS. When a record is added, updated, or deleted, DMS adjusts all indexes affected by the various "key" values in the record. No special action is required in the RPG program.

DATA BASE SPECIFICATION

There must be only one Data Base Specification in an RPG program.

The Data Base Specification is optional but is required when any DMS files are declared in the program. If used, the Data Base Specification must immediately follow the Control Specification, if one exists.

FIELD DEFINITIONS

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

This field must contain the letter D.

7-16 DATA BASE NAME

This field must contain the name of the physical data base being used and must be the same data base name referenced by DASDL.

17-26 LOGICAL DATA BASE

This field may contain the name of the logical data base as specified by DASDL. The logical data base is a portion of the physical data base which may be accessed by the program. This logical data base name must have been defined in DASDL. If no entry is made, the entire physical data base is available to the RPG program.

27 ACCESS MODE

This field must contain the letter I or U. If the data base is to be accessed input only, enter the letter I. If the data base is to be updated, enter the letter U.

- 28-74 These columns must be left blank.
- 75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

If the RPG library files created by DASDL reside on a disk other than the system disk, the Data Base Specification must be preceded by a \$ PACKID or \$ DISKID file identification option.



Figure 13-1 shows an example of coding a Data Base Specification.



DATA MANAGEMENT FILE DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS

Every disjoint data set to be used by an RPG program must be described to the RPG compiler in the File Description Specifications. The disjoint data set must be specified in DASDL. Figure 13-2 shows the various processing methods for DMS files.

Progra	mmer				. ~			В	urre	ougl	hs	RP	G								Date _		
Progra	mID		-					FILE	DESCRI	PTION SP	PECIF	ICATI	ON								,986		
					File Descrip	tion	:	Record T	i Address ype	11									File A	ddition dered			
				Q			αj	File O	rganization	<u>ب</u>								[1	2 2	Γ		
						Basard	ode L		Overflow	8				J.F.	Not		lore			L/N		P.,	a m
		a	Filenam	e 20 4	E Length	Length	Ng Mc	11	Key	ů,	Device				Used	1 1	ndex	1.	Not	19 19	Not	Ic	len t
	a	Ϊ		C/R C/R	For		d Lei	2 L 6	Field	oisua				5					Used	Conc	0,20		
Page 4	ة ب	For		End File	E .		Pro La	A - AO	Location	ů.				Cab Lab		1		A'U	į				
1 2	34	5 6	7 8 9 10 11 1	12 13 14 15 16 17 18	3 19 20 21 22 2	3 24 25 26 27	28 29 50	31 32 33 34	35 36 37 38	39 40 41 42	2 43 44	45 46 4	7 48 4- 50 1 5	2 53 54	>6 57 58 5	9 60 61 6	2 63 64 6	5 66 6	6 68 69	21 11 0	3.4	25 .6 .	7 78 19
H	01				┿┾┽┽	┽┼┾┼╽	++-				+++	-+	++++	++-	++++	+++	i i i	++		++			$\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow$
\square	0 2	F	SEQ	UENTIAL	PRØ	ESSI	NG	WITH	NØ	INDE	X		∔∔∔∔∔	++-	++++	÷	+ + +	++		++-	H	4	+++
H	0 3	F	9-1-1-1	┽┼┽┼┼┼	┽┼┼┼┼	++++	-+	┝┝┝┿┿	┢┝┝┝┝	$\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow$	+++	-++	\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow	++	++++	+++	444	$+ \downarrow$	+++	++-	44	4	$\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow$
	0 4	F		IΡ	$\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow$	++++	++			DMS			\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow	1i	İ++++	111	$\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow$	D					
Ш	05	F		IP	\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow					DMS		\rightarrow	$\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow$		┟┟╽╽╽		\downarrow			11			
Ш	06	F	+++++	IS	\downarrow		\downarrow			DMS		\rightarrow	\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow			+++	+++	D		4			\prod
	07	F		IS	\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow					DMS		\downarrow						il					
Ш	0 8	F		up	$\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow$	$\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow$				DMS	444		\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow	↓↓		111	111	D	$\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow$	$\downarrow \downarrow$	Ш	\square	$\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow$
	9 0	F		UP						DMS								Ц					
	10	F		us			II			DMS		\square						D		Π		П	
	1 1	F		us						DMS													
	1 2	F	5														Ш	11	Ш				
	13	F	SEQU	LENTIAL	PROC	ESSI	N6	BYM	EANS	ØF	AN	IN	DEX	C	GLUMI	45 4	7-5	2	MU	s T		Π	Π
Π	14	F	CON	TAIN TH	ENA	AE OF	A	DASD	L-DE	FINE	P	INO	EX.	TT		TIT	TTT	Π	TT	T		TT	Π
Π	15	F	E III									T					TT	Π	TTT	TT		TI	TTT
	16	F		IP	*****					DMS		1	Index					A	$\dagger \dagger \dagger$	11		++	+++
\square	1 7	F		IΡ						DMS		K	Index)	X				D					
	18	F		IP				+++		DMIS	+++		Index)					A	$\dagger \dagger \dagger$	++		++	$\dagger \dagger \dagger$
	19	F	+++++	TP	+++++	+++++		-+++-		DMS		12	Index			$\dagger \dagger \dagger$	+++	M	$\dagger \dagger \dagger$	++		++	<u>†††</u>
	2 0	F	*****	+ rs	++++	+++++		+++	 	DMS		12	Index				+++		+++	++		++	†††
	††	F	+++++	TC	++++	+++++		+++	++++	DMS			Index				+++	D	\dagger	++-	++	++	$\dagger \dagger \dagger$
	++	F	++++	re	+++++	++++		+++		DAAS	+++	++2	Index	,†††		+++	+++-	R	+++	++		++	+++
	++	F		T S	++++	╋╋╋	++1	┽╂╊╴	++++	DMS	+++	++	Tudex			+++	┼┼┼	Ħ	+++			++	$\dagger \dagger \dagger$
		ŧ	┼┼╎┥ ┼		┝╺┼╍┞╸╄╺╄	┥┥┝ ┝┤		╺┥┿┿	╎╴┥╺┥╺┥╸	Dave	+++	++		++	┝╋╋╋╌╄╌╄╸	┶┿┿	┝┿┿╸		┿╄┿	┿┿┥		┿┿	╋╇╇
	12	I.	┥┥┥ ┥	10	┝┼┼ ┼┼	┼┼┾┾┤	+++	+++-		Cheres -	+++	+	That	++	++++	╆╆╇	┥┽╆	PH-	┽┼┽	++	++	++	╇╋╋
$\left + + \right $	2	+÷+	+++++		┞┼┾┾┾	+++++	+++	+++-		Pros	┼┼┼	++	- index	++-		+++		1	+++	++-	++	++	╈
		††	++++	10	┟┾┼┿┿	+++++		-+++-	++++	DMS	╉┼┼╋	++>	Linder	++	┝┼┼╂┼	+++	┼┼┼	D	┿┿┿	++-	+	++	┼┼┼
+++]	↓ ↓ ↓ ↓		┥┽┾┽┽	++++	+++	┿┿┿	┝┼┼┼	UMS	+++	+1	Lindex	++	┝┲╄╋╇	┝┼┼╴	+++		+++	++	-++	++	┥┥┽
$\left + \right $		1-	++++		┟┟┟┟┟┟	╅╋╋	+++	+++	+ + +	PMS	+++	++\$	-neex (++	┝┼┼┼┼	+++-	++	H	+++	++-	-+-+	++	┢┿┿
++		+	┥┥┥┽		$\left\{ \left\{ \right\} \right\}$	++++	+++	-+-+		DMS	┽┼┼	++5	Index		╺╁┼┟┼		<u>↓</u>	D	+++	++	++	++	+++
++	14	₽.	┟┼┼╂╂			┽┽┟┿┽	+++			DMS	+++	+1	Index	1		+++	+++	R	+++	++	++	++	+++
+	18	11.	┟┼┼┽┼		<u></u> <u></u> 	╅┽┼┽┤	+++		+ + + -	DMS	$\left \right $	44	L'ndex/	+++	┝┿╪┿┿	↓↓↓	┟┟┟	4	┽┿┼	++	-+-+	++	++∔
4	9	F			┝╁╎┟┼	++++	+++	-1-1-			$ \downarrow \downarrow$	++	┝┼┼┼┼	$\left + \right $	_++++	i H		4	+++	44	++	++	+++
	10	FX	DEMA	and pro	CESSI	MG.	+++	+++-			$\left \right $	++	<u>; </u>	$\left \right $		\square	L.	4	$\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow$	44	++	#	$\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow$
	44	F		┿┿┶┝┿┿┥	┟┼┟┟┟	$\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow \downarrow$	+++	444	$ \downarrow \downarrow $		$\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow$	++-	┟┼┟┼┟	+++		╎┼┼		4.4	$\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow$	##	$\downarrow\downarrow$	++-	\downarrow
L I	12	F		ID		$\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow$	+++			DMS	$\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow$	++-	┞┼┼╎┟		++++	┢╫╽		A	$\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow$	Ш	$\downarrow\downarrow$	11	$\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow$
1	13	F		ID	┝┿┿┿┷	$\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow$	$\downarrow\downarrow\downarrow$			DMS	\prod	11-		\square					111	Ш	$\downarrow\downarrow$	4	\square
$\downarrow\downarrow$	4	F		WD			+++			DMS	\square			111	++++			A	$\downarrow \downarrow \downarrow$	\square	\square	\square	
	15	F		ud						DMS	Ш												Ш
	6	F																Ш			\square		
	17	F¥	ØUTF	PUT ON L	Y PRO	CESS	ING				Ш	\prod						Ш	\prod	Ш		\prod	
T	8	F 🗱																LT			П	Π	
T	9	F		Ø			TT	TT		DMS		TT						A	ITT		T	TT	
	20	F					\square					T						TT	TTT	TT	TT	TT	TTT

G12070

Figure 13-2. Processing Methods for DMS Files

FIELD DEFINITIONS

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

This field must contain the letter F.

7-14 FILE NAME

The file name specified in the File Description Specifications must be the name of a disjoint data set which is defined in DASDL.

15 FILE TYPE

Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
I	The file specified is an input file.
U	The file specified is an update file.
0	The file specified is an output file.

16 FILE DESIGNATION

This field further describes the use of input and update files. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Output file.
Р	Primary sequential file.
S	Secondary sequential file.
D	Demand file.

Chained, record address, and table files must not be specified as a DMS file.

17 END OF FILE

Refer to Section 4 for a complete description.

18 SEQUENCE

This field is used only by primary and secondary files to indicate whether or not the program is to check the sequence of the input records. Columns 61-62 of the Input Specifications must specify the match fields within the input file records, and this file must have an automatic subset or ordered set specified in columns 47-52 of the File Description Specifications. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
Blank or A	Records with matching fields are to be sequence-checked in ascending order.
D	Records with matching fields are to be sequence-checked in descending order.

This column must be blank for unindexed primary and unindexed secondary DMS files.

Sequence checking is performed when matching fields have been specified for the records in a DMS file. If a record from a matching input DMS file is found to be out of sequence, the program halts. If the program halts, the operator may make one of the following entries:

Console Message	Definition
<program job="" number="">AXGO</program>	Ignore the record out of sequence and read the next record from the same DMS file.
<program job="" number="">AXSTOP</program>	Ignore the record out of sequence, turn on the LR indicator, and perform all end of job totals.
<program job="" number="">DS</program>	Discontinue the program.

All sequence checking is performed according to the EBCDIC collating sequence (see Appendix B). If any matching DMS file specifies descending (D) sequence, all matching files must specify descending sequence.

19 FILE FORMAT

The only valid entries for this field for DMS files are blank or the letter F.

- 20-39 These columns must be blank for DMS files.
- 40-46 DEVICE

The only valid entry for this field is DMS.

Specifying DMS in the DEVICE field indicates that this file is a DMS file. For all files declared as DMS files, the compiler obtains RPG-DMS library files from disk. These library files are created by the DASDL compiler (refer to \$ RPGLIB in the DASDL Information and Suggestions subsection) for the data base declared in the Data Base Specifications. The compiler uses these library files to determine which field names in the RPG source program are from the DMS file.

47-52 INDEX NAME

Enter the name of the automatic subset or ordered set which is the index into the specified DMS file. If this field is blank, then the specified data set is processed in its physical order rather than being processed by index order.

This entry must be blank for demand files, files specified as output, and primary or secondary DMS files which have no index specified in DASDL.

- 53-65 These columns must be left blank for DMS files.
- 66 FILE ADDITIONS/UNORDERED/DELETION

The letter U in this column for a DMS file is invalid.

Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
А	Records may be added to an existing file.
D	Records may be deleted from an existing file.
В	Records may be added to and/or deleted from an existing file.
Blank	Records are not to be added or deleted.

If ADD is specified in columns 16-18 of the Output-Format Specifications for this file, then enter the letter A or B in this field.

NOTE

Adding records to an indexed cycle-driven DMS file when the file is not the file which has just been read in the current RPG cycle can produce unexpected results. For instance, if a record is added to a secondary file following a read of a record from the primary file, the secondary file's record work area contains the added record information. At the time the record information for the secondary file is made available, the information reflects the added record. This situation has implications affecting which record the program receives when the file is processed by means of matching records or control level breaks. To avoid this situ-ation, add records at detail time and when the record identification indicator is set ON for this file.

Since aby disjoint data sets can be specifica on the speci, any crueation 1-72 data sets associated up a disjoint dataset conditioned by a U-indicater are trated as having been conditioned by same u-indicate. Oll calc specs and Output speci affecting embedded data set should be conditioned by the same paients data set and are ignored of U-Indicater as the If DEL is specified in columns 16-18 of the Output-Format Specifications for this file, enter the letter D or B in this field. If the letter O is entered in column 15 of this File Description Specification, only the letter A is allowed in this field. For primary or secondary DMS files with no index specified, the only valid entry in this field is blank or the letter D. The only valid entry for demand DMS files is blank or the letter A. Deletion of records from a demand DMS file is accomplished with the DELET operation code. 13-74 > Must be 1Ø 67-9 These columns must be left blank for DMS files. Dlank for DMS fills PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION ′75–8**∮** Refer to Section 2 for a complete description. Since the location of all DMS files is maintained by DMS, the File Identification options \$ PACKID, \$ FAMILY, \$ FILEID, and \$ DISKID must not be specified for any DMS files defined in the File Description Specifications. Figure 13-2 shows the various processing methods for DMS files. 71-72 - This field may be used on I, UPD, O, and restart DHS Riles and indicates whether the file is conditioned by an external indicator. If a DMS file is conditioned by an external indicator, the file is used only when that indicator is on Indicator off, the file treated on I as if it is at EOF. In Calc specs, if any DMS open. are done to the conditional file, the open should be conditioned on the same U-indicator specified for the DMS file. If the DMS open, aren't conditioned by the same U-indicator & 1 of the indicators is off, the open are ignored and the D1 usulting inducator, if used, is not offected. Filewise, any Output done to the DMS file should be conditioned by the same U-indecator used on the oms file, set the same U-indicator wonth used, the O record is built (and " blank ofter open dore) but the record can't written to the file. any U- indicators being off may still require a recompile of the DASDL pgn to prevent a VERSIONERROR (of destrinay) at Data Base open time. It is impt. to note that DMS files are accessed by opening the dostabase and that even though all OHS files in the pgn may be conditioned by a-indicates which are off, the data base is opened and any exceptions that might normally occur at open time can still Koppen. * Refu to File (Indition (cols. 71.71) Van NON-DHS files pay ENTRY The specified external indicates is used to condition DNS U1-UB filo. pure info in external ind inna Pilo is not conditioned by external indicater. 21. 1

DATA MANAGEMENT EXTENSION SPECIFICATIONS

Extension Specifications are used to describe all tables and arrays used by the RPG program.

FIELD DEFINITION

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

This field must contain the letter E.

11-26 FROM AND TO FILENAMES

A DMS file must not be specified for these fields.

- 27-74 Refer to Section 5 for a complete description.
- 75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

The rules for declaring vectors on Extension Specifications are unchanged. An OCCURS item defined in DASDL must be specified in the Extension Specifications as a vector.

DATA MANAGEMENT INPUT SPECIFICATIONS

Input Specifications describe the records within each disjoint data set or embedded data set to be used as input data for the RPG program.

The entries defined in the Input Specifications for DMS files are divided into the following two sections:

- a. Field Definitions for Record Type Descriptions.
- b. Field Definitions for Field Descriptions.

FIELD DEFINITIONS FOR RECORD TYPE DESCRIPTIONS

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

This field must contain the letter I.

7-14 FILE NAME

Every DMS file which is described in the File Description Specifications as input or update must be described in the Input Specifications. An Input Specification is required for an embedded data set which is used with a FIND or LOCK operation.

Embedded data sets may only be accessed on a demand basis (for example, with a FIND operation). All embedded data sets described in the Input Specifications must be embedded in a disjoint data set which is described in the File Description Specifications.

15–18 SEQUENCE

Sequencing may be specified for a DMS file that is described in the File Description Specifications as primary or secondary and is accessed by means of an index. The File Description Specification entry for that file, columns 47-52, must be non-blank.

Refer to Section 8 for a complete description of sequencing.

19-20 RECORD IDENTIFYING INDICATOR

A DMS file must not have look-ahead fields or spread records specified in this field.

The DMS exception indicators D1, DA-DH, and DJ-DS must not be entered in this field.

Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
01-99	Record identifying indicator.
L1-L9	Control level indicator.
\mathbf{LR}	Last record indicator.
H0-H9	Halt indicator.

21-41 RECORD IDENTIFYING CODES

Entries in these columns may be made if columns 44-51 of the record line contain a DASDL-defined, non-vector field name.

21-24, 28-31, AND 35-38 POSITION

An entry in these fields for a DMS file specifies the position (in digits for numeric items, in bytes for alphanumeric items) within the item specified in columns 44-51 of the record line, not a position in a record.

The item positions are numbered from left to right, with the left-most digit or byte considered to be position one.

These fields must be blank if the letter S is specified in columns 26, 33, or 40 respectively.

26, 33, AND 40 C/Z/D/S

In addition to the character (C), zone (Z), and digit (D) record identification, these fields may contain the letter S. The letter S specifies signed-numeric record identification. If the letter S is specified, columns 21-24, 28-31, and 35-38 must be blank, columns 27, 34, and 41 must contain a positive sign (+) or negative sign (-), and the DASDL source program must define the field specified in columns 44-51 as a signed-numeric field.

For DMS fields, the character, zone, digit, and sign record identification specify a value within the item specified in columns 44-51 of the record line, not a position in the record.

27, 34, AND 41 CHARACTER

If an entry in columns 26, 33, or 40 is the letter S, then the only valid entries for columns 27, 34, and 41 are:

- (+) Declares that a positive sign be used for comparison with the sign position of the numeric field specified in columns 44-51.
- (-) Declares that a negative sign be used for comparison with the sign position of the numeric field specified in columns 44-51.

42 STACKER SELECT

This field must be blank for DMS files.

43 PACKED

This field must be blank for DMS files.

44-51 FIELD LOCATION

When an entry is made in this field on a record description line, it specifies which item in the record is used for comparison in setting the record identifying codes.

When AND or OR lines occur for the record description line using record identification codes, columns 44-51 can contain any one of the follow-ing entries:

- a. A blank, which defaults to the previous entry in columns 44-51.
- b. The same item as previously defined.
- c. A different DASDL-defined item.

When using record identifying codes, the entry in this field in the record description line must not contain a vector name. The only valid entry is a DASDL-defined item.

- 52-74 These columns must be blank.
- 75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

FIELD DEFINITIONS FOR FIELD DESCRIPTIONS

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

This field must contain the letter I.

- 7-43 These fields must be blank for field descriptions.
- 44-51 FIELD LOCATION

This field specifies the location and data characteristics of the FIELD NAME entered in columns 53-58. A DASDL-defined item must be specified here which effectively "locates" and "types" the entry in the FIELD NAME columns.

If this field is left blank and the FIELD NAME entry contains a DASDLdefined name, the FIELD LOCATION defaults to the same entry.

An entry in this field on a field description line must not be a subscripted vector.

52 DECIMAL POSITIONS

This field must be blank.

53-58 FIELD NAME

If the FIELD LOCATION entry is blank, the FIELD NAME entry must be a DASDL-defined name.

Only those fields which are used in the program need to be specified on the Input Specifications.

Table 13-1 lists the allowable combinations of the FIELD LOCATION and FIELD NAME entries, and the action taken.

59-60 CONTROL LEVEL

These fields must be blank for non-indexed, cycle-driven DMS files.

For all other primary and secondary files the L1-L9 control level indicators are valid.

61-62 MATCHING FIELDS

These fields must be blank for non-indexed, cycle-driven DMS files.

For all other primary and secondary files the M1-M9 matching field indicators are valid.

63-64 FIELD RECORD RELATIONS

The DMS exception indicators, D1, DA-DH, and DJ-DS, must not be entered in this field.

Entry	Definition
01-99	Record identifying indicator assigned to a record type.
L1-L9	Control level indicator defined elsewhere.
MR	Matching record indicator.
U1-U8	External indicator defined elsewhere.
HO-H9	Halt indicator defined elsewhere.

For all other files, the following are valid entries:

65-70 FIELD INDICATORS

The DMS exception indicators, D1, DA-DH, and DJ-DS must not be entered in this field.

71-74 These columns must be blank.

75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

Figure 13-3 illustrates two coding examples for DMS Input Specifications.



Figure 13-3. Input Specifications for DMS Files

Table	13-1.	Comb	inations	to a	f Vai	rious	DMS	FIELD	LOCATION	and
	FIELD	NAME	Fields	in	the	Inpu	t Spe	ecifica	ations	

FIELD LOCATION Columns 44 - 51	FIELD NAME Columns 53 - 58	Program Action
Vector	Array	Load the whole Array with the contents of the location specified by the whole DASDL-defined vector.
Vector	Array,J	Load Array,J with the contents of the location specified by the DASDL-defined Vector,J.
Vector	Table,J	Load Table,J with the contents of the location specified by the DASDL-defined Vector,J.
Vector	Array,3	Load Array,3 with the contents of the location specified by the DASDL-defined Vector,3.
Vector	Table,3	Load Table,3 with the contents of the location specified by the DASDL-defined Vector,3.
Vector	Table	Not allowed.
Field Name	Array	Not allowed.
Field Name	Array,J	Load Array,J with the contents of the location specified by the DASDL-defined Field Name.
Field Name	Array,3	Load Array,3 with the contents of the location specified by the DASDL-defined Field Name.
Field Name	Table,J	Load Table,J with the contents of the location specified by the DASDL-defined Field Name.
Field Name	Table,3	Load Table,3 with the contents of the location specified by the DASDL-defined Field Name.
Field Name	Field Name	Load to the contents of Field Name specified in columns 53-58 from the location of the DASDL-defined Field Name in columns 44-49.

Table 13-1. Combinations of Various DMS FIELD LOCATION and FIELD NAME Fields in the Input Specifications (Cont)

FIELD LOCATION Columns 44 - 51	FIELD NAME Columns 53 - 58	Program Action
Field Name	Table	Not allowed.
Blank	Array	Load the whole Array with the contents from the location of the DASDL-defined Array.
Blank	Array,J	Load to Array,J with the contents from the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Vector,J.
Blank	Array,3	Load to Array,3 with the contents from the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Vector,3.
Blank	Table	Not allowed.
Blank	Table,J	Load to Table,J with the contents from the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Vector,J.
Blank	Table,3	Load to Table,3 with the contents from the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Vector,3.
Blank	Field Name	Load to Field Name with the contents from the location of the DASDL-defined Field Name.

DATA MANAGEMENT CALCULATION SPECIFICATIONS

The entries defined on the Calculation Specifications for DMS files are described in the following paragraphs.

FIELD DEFINITIONS

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

This field must contain the letter C.

7-8 CONTROL LEVEL

AND/OR lines (AN, OR). When several DMKEY lines must be specified to establish the required relationship of the DMKEY operations for the immediately preceding FIND or LOCK using random access, an AN or OR in columns 7-8 must be used on all DMKEY operations after the first DMKEY of a group. Columns 7-8 must be blank for the first DMKEY operation, except for the optional entry SR when the DMKEY operation is in a subroutine. See figure 13-5 for two examples of coding the DMKEY operation.

9-17 INDICATORS

Enter the conditioning indicators in these fields.

In addition to those indicators specified in Section 9, the following DMS exception indicators may also be used:

Entry	Definition
Dl	ON EXCEPTION indicator
DA	NOTFOUND indicator
DB	DUPLICATES indicator
DC	DEADLOCK indicator
DD	DATAERROR indicator
DE	NOTLOCKED indicator
DF	KEYCHANGED indicator

Entry	Definition
DG	SYSTEMERROR indicator
DH	READONLY indicator
DJ	IOERROR indicator
DK	LIMITERROR indicator
DL	OPENERROR indicator
DM	CLOSEERROR indicator
DN	NORECORD indicator
DO	INUSE indicator
DP	AUDITERROR indicator
DQ	ABORT indicator
DR	SECURITYERROR indicator
DS	VERSIONERROR indicator

Refer to the B 1800/B 1700 Systems Data Management System (DMSII) Reference Manual, Form No. 1089794, for a complete description of the DMS exception conditions.

All conditioning indicators on a FIND or LOCK operation with random access are applied to the DMKEY operations immediately following the FIND or LOCK operation. Columns 9-17 must be blank for the DMKEY operation(s) which immediately follow the FIND or LOCK statements with random access.

The D1 indicator is set ON for all DMS exception conditions. In addition, one of the indicators DA-DH, DJ-DS is set ON to indicate the type of DMS exception condition.

18-27 FACTOR 1

When the operation code specified in columns 28-32 is a FIND, LOCK, INSRT, or REMOV operation, the allowable entries for FACTOR 1 are:

- a. An index name (retrieval set, automatic subset, ordered set, or manual subset which is defined by DASDL) associated with the data set name specified in columns 33-42, except the REMOV operation.
- b. For the FIND or LOCK operations, FACTOR 1 may be left blank when the access desired is not by means of an index.

For all other DMS operations, FACTOR 1 must be blank.

28-32 OPERATION FIELD

Enter the desired operation code in this field. Refer to Section 9 for a description of the available non-DMS operation codes, and refer to the subsection titled Data Management Operation Codes in this section for a description of the DMS operation codes.

The non-DMS operation codes which are described in Section 9 and cannot be specified for DMS files are as follows:

- a. CHAIN
- b. DEBUG
- c. DSPLY
- §. 400005
- e. READ
- f. RECV
- g. SEND
- h. SETLL
- 33-42 FACTOR 2

When a DMS operation code other than DMKEY or REMOV is specified in the OPERATION FIELD (columns 28-32), the only allowable entry in FACTOR 2 is a data set name. This data set name must be one of the following:

- a. A disjoint data set previously defined on the File Description Specifications.
- b. An embedded data set previously defined in DASDL and embedded in a disjoint data set previously defined in the File Description Specifications.

When the DMKEY operation code is specified in the OPERATION FIELD, the allowable entries in FACTOR 2 are a literal or a variable name.

If the operation code is REMOV, FACTOR 2 must be blank.

43-48 RESULT FIELD

The RESULT FIELD is used to specify the selection expression for FIND and LOCK, and specifies the DASDL-defined key name for the DMKEY operation. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
Blank	Get the current record.
FIRST	Get the first record of the data set. Used with FIND or LOCK operation codes.
LAST	Get the last record of the data set. Used with FIND or LOCK operation codes.
NEXT	Get the next record of the data set. Used with FIND or LOCK operation codes. For index- sequential sets, if there is no current record, get the first record of the data set.
PRIOR	Get the previous record of the data set. Used with FIND or LOCK operation codes.
Key Name	Key name as defined in DASDL. Used with DMKEY statement.

For all other DMS operations, the RESULT FIELD must be blank.

Refer to the B 1800/B 1700 Systems Data Management System (DMSII) Reference Manual, Form No. 1089794, for a functional description of selection expression.

49-51 FIELD LENGTH

This field must be blank when a DMS operation is specified in the OPERATION FIELD.

52 DECIMAL POSITIONS

This field must be blank when a DMS operation is specified in the OPERATION FIELD.

53 HALF ADJUST/ACCESS METHOD

This field is used to specify the access method (random or sequential) for the FIND and LOCK operations.

When FIND or LOCK is specified in the OPERATION FIELD, the following are the only valid entries:

Entry	Definition
R	Random Access
S	Sequential Access

54-59 RESULTING INDICATORS

When a DMS operation other than DMKEY is specified in the OPERATION FIELD, the only valid entries for these columns are the entries D1 or blank. The D1 indicator is the general DMS exception indicator.

Columns 56-59 must be blank for all DMS operations other than DMKEY.

If the DMKEY operation code is specified in the OPERATION FIELD, then columns 54-56 must contain the DMKEY relation. Columns 57-59 must be blank.

If a DMS exception occurs, then:

- a. If the D1 indicator is specified in columns 54-55, D1 is set ON (and one of the appropriate exception indicators DA-DH or DJ-DS).
- b. If blanks are specified in columns 54-55, the program branches to the exception handling routine for one of the following:
 - 1. The data set specified in FACTOR 2 for the FIND, LOCK, FREE, TRBEG, TREND, STORE, and DELET operation codes.
 - 2. The manual subset specified in FACTOR 1 for the INSRT and REMOV operation codes.
- c. The program terminates if blanks are specified in columns 54-55 and no exception handling routine exists for either of the following:
 - 1. The data set specified in FACTOR 2 for the FIND, LOCK, FREE, TRBEG, TREND, STORE, and DELET operation codes.
 - 2. The manual subset specified in FACTOR 1 for the INSRT and REMOV operation codes.

60-74 These columns must be blank.

75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

Setting Indicators

The D1, DA-DH, and DJ-DS exception condition indicators are set OFF immediately prior to a DMS operation and are set ON as a result of a DMS exception condition. The D1 indicator may be used as a resulting indicator of a DMS operation. The DA-DH and DJ-DS indicators must not be used as resulting indicators for a DMS operation.

DATA MANAGEMENT OPERATION CODES

The RPG language provides explicit operation codes to interact with DMS. DMS structures are manipulated by these operations.

A valid data set name is defined as one of the following:

- a. A disjoint data set which has been defined in the File Description Specifications as an input or update demand file.
- b. An embedded data set which is embedded in a disjoint data set defined in the File Description Specifications.

PROGRAMMED CONTROL OF DATA MANAGEMENT INPUT AND OUTPUT

Within the normal B 1800/B 1700 RPG cycle, a record is read, calculations are performed (using the data from the input record), and an output record is written. The DELET, FIND, FREE, INSRT, LOCK, REMOV, and STORE operations allow greater control over DMS input and output providing the capability to read and write records other than those normally available as part of the RPG program cycle.

DELET

The DELET operation code provides a method of deleting a record from the specified data set. Figure 13-4 shows one method of coding the DELET operation.



G1**2072**

Figure 13-4. One Method of Coding the DELET Operation

The DELET operation requires entries in the following fields:

a. The DELET operation code in columns 28-32.

b. A valid data set name in FACTOR 2.

c. The D1 indicator or blanks in columns 54-55.
DELET prohibits entries in the following fields:

- a. FACTOR 1
- b. RESULT FIELD
- c. RESULT FIELD LENGTH
- d. DECIMAL POSITIONS FIELD
- e. HALF ADJUST/ACCESS MODE FIELD
- f. LOW and EQUAL RESULTING INDICATORS

Refer to the DELETE operation in the B 1800/B 1700 Systems Data Management System (DMSII) Reference Manual, Form No. 1089794, for a functional description of the DELET operation code.

DMKEY

This operation code provides a method of specifying the conditions which must be satisfied by the record accessed in the immediately previous FIND or LOCK operation using random access. Figure 13-5 shows two methods of coding the DMKEY operation.

The DMKEY operation requires entries in the following fields:

- a. DMKEY operation code in columns 28-32.
- b. A literal or variable name in FACTOR 2. The literal or variable provides a value for the key condition.
- c. The RESULT FIELD contains a key item name. This item name, defined in DASDL, must be a key item of the set or subset name specified in FACTOR 1 of the immediately previous FIND or LOCK operation.
- d. The key relationship desired in columns 54-56. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition
GTR	The item in the RESULT FIELD is greater than the value of the field or literal specified in FACTOR 2.
LSS	The item in the RESULT FIELD is less than the value of the field or literal specified in FACTOR 2.
EQL	The item in the RESULT FIELD is equal to the value of the field or literal specified in FACTOR 2.
GEQ	The item in the RESULT FIELD is greater than or equal to the value of the field or literal specified in FACTOR 2.
LEQ	The item in the RESULT FIELD is less than or equal to the value of the field or literal specified in FACTOR 2.
NEQ	The item in the RESULT FIELD is not equal to the value of the field or literal specified in FACTOR 2.

Progr	amn	ner													B	ur	r	ou	gl	hs	R	PG													Date			
Progr	am	D		.								-			CA	LCUI	LAT	ION	SPE	CIFI	CAT	IQN													Page		o'	
Page	3	+ Line	 Form Type Control Level 	A ION 4 IO	ND Z	AND Z IOZ	5 17 18	19 20 2	Fact 21.22	tor 1 23 24	25 26 2	Or 28 2	eratic	رن س	4 ئ	Fa 313 36	ctor	2	4, 4,	43 44	Resu Field	111 01 6 4/ 48	tianel 49 50	2 Decimal Positions 0.9	2 Haif Adjust Hi Edit Code	Result Arith Us Mi Com igh Lo igh Lo igh Lo igh Lo igh Lo igh Lo igh Lo igh Lo	att ig cators nus Ze npare ow Eq 2 1= bkup actor2 ow Eq 8 EC 58	ual 2 ual 2 val 2	£) 6 1		Cor	mmer	·15		3	41.5	Progra Iden	179 80
IT	0	1	C 🗶	TTT	TTT	TT	T	ΠΤ		Π	TT	Π	il	Π	Π	Π			Τ	T	Π	Π	ITT		\square	TT						ŢŢ	Π	11	Π	T	Π	П
Π	0	2	C 🖌	EXF	MP	LE	1				TT	Π	TT	T	TT	T				T	Ħ	11			1 T	\square						1	Ħ	11	TT	Ħ	Ħ	
Π	0	3	C 🗶	TTT		TT	Π	Π	Π	Π	T	Π	Π	Π	T	T				T	T				Ħ	IT							Ħ	+ †	T	\square	TT	\square
Π	0	4	с	01		TT	S	ET	1	Π	TT	FI	ND		AA	ST	ER			NE	XT	-			RP	1					1	IT	Ħ		T	\square	T	\square
T	0	5	c			T	T				T	DA	KE	Y	LΟ	\top	T			KE	y 1	IT			G	TR							İİ		$\uparrow \uparrow$	Ħ	Ħ	\square
T	0	6	CAN	d		T	Π		Π		T	DA	KE	Y:	20	T			T	KE	75	T			L	SS						IT	11		\square	T	T	\square
H	0	7	CA	d		$\uparrow \uparrow$	tt	\square	\uparrow	++	11	Dr	KE	y.	5	++	\uparrow		T	KE	y a				N	EQ						H	11		++	Ħ	11.	\mathbf{H}
IT	0	8	c X				T		\top		11	TT	TT	11		T			1	Ħ	T	1		1	Ħ			1		++		11	Ħ	11	11	T	11	\square
T	0	9	c 🗶	EXF	MPI	E	2		Π		T	TT	T		T	T			1		T				11		\square				Î	1	1		T	T	IT	\square
T	1	0	c 🗶				11		11	+		TT	tt	Ħ	TT		\uparrow			T	Ħ	TT	111	1	11	1				1		11	11	11	11	T	11	\square
H	1	1	с	NOS	0	1	Su	B1		TT	TT	10	ICK	1	AA	CT1	ER	11	T	NE	хτ	11		1	RD	1				$\uparrow \uparrow$	-		Ħ	11	$\uparrow \uparrow$	H	tt	
H	1	2	c	f ††	$\uparrow \uparrow \uparrow$	11	11				11	DN	KE	y c	51	TT		11	T	KE	YA			-	E	QL				1	1		tt	11	Ħ	Ħ	tt	H
H	1	3	CAN				IT		Ħ	11	++	DN	KE	y 1	6	11	$\uparrow \uparrow$	11	1	KE	YE				E	QL		+		+ +		IT	Ħ	11	$\uparrow \uparrow$	Ħ	T	\mathbf{H}
T	1	4	COR		TTT	TT	Π				T	Dn	KE	YF	- 11	ELI	25	11	T	KE	YF				6	TR							Π	TT	T	Π	П	\square
T	1	5	CX				T		T		TT	Π	TT	Π	Π	T	Π	T		TT	IT	T								11			IT	T	T	Π	Π	TT
\square	1	6	C 👗	IN	EXF	AMP	LE	1	T	IF	In	DI	CA	T	ØR	0	L	τs	Ø	NN,	T	HE	N	A	FI	ND	0	N	TH		DA	TA	S	ET	11	Π	Π	\square
\square	1	7	C 🕺	MAS	TEF	R	y	VA		ØF	SE	T1	I	S	PI	ERI	-0	RM	ED	,	LØ	ØK	IN	6	FØ	R	TH	e	NE)	(T	R	EC	Øſ	ZD	Π	Π	Π	Π
\square	1	8	c 🗶	WHE	RE	KE	Y1	I	5	GRI	EAT	ER	Τ	HF	M	10		AN	D	LE	ss	Τ	HAI	N	20	A	ND	K	EY	1	IS	N	07	11	Π	\square	Π	\square
	1	9	c 🗶	EQU	AL	T	5		Π	Π					Π	Π	Π					Π								П					Π	\Box	Π	\Box
	2	0	c 🗶		ΠΤ										Π	Π	Π	П	Τ											\prod			Π					
M	0	1	c ¥	Π	TTT	T	T	ΤIT	TT	TT	TT	Π	il	IT	Π	TT	Π	Π	Τ	Π	Π	Π	ΠΤ	Τ		Π				11	Т			T	Π	Π	Π	Π
\square	0	2	c 🗶	IN	EX	AMP	LE	2	T	IF	IN	DI	CA	T	ØR	0		IS	Ø	FF	A	ND	I	ND	IC	AT	012	0	2	E S	0	N.	1	HE	N	Π	TT	\square
Ш	0	3	сX	AL	ØCI	x a	N	THE		DA	TA	SE	T	MA	s	TEI	2	BY	W	AY	0	F	su	B1	I	s	PE	RF	ØRI	NE	ρ,	Ĺ	60	IN I	N6	Π	IT	
H	0	4	C 🗱	FOR	T	HE	NE	XT	R	ECC	ØRC	W	HE	RE		(E)	A	T	S	EO	uA	L	TO	5	A	ND	K	EY	R	rs.	E	Qu	AL	1	Ø	\square	11	
Ш	0	5	C 🗱	10.	Ø	2 1	HE	NE	X	TI	REC	ØF	0	M	IEI	RE	K	EY	A	IS	6	RE	ATI	ER	F	HA	M	FI	ELC	71	•		Î	1	T	Π	Π	\square
Ш	0	6	C 🗶						Π	T	T	IT		Π	Π	T	T	T	T	TT	Π	TT											Π	11	Π	Π	Π	\square
H	0	7	c			T			\dagger	$\uparrow\uparrow$	11	11	11	H	Ħ	$\dagger \dagger$	11	11	T	11	\square	11	\square		li		\square	$\uparrow \uparrow$	++		\uparrow		Ħ			H	\square	\square
H		1	L+		111	11	11		++	++	++	++	++-	H	++	++	++	-++	+		11	11	+++	-		+++	+++	++	++	++	++		++	÷÷	++		11	

G12073

Figure 13-5. Two Coding Examples of the DMKEY Operation

DMKEY prohibits entries in the following fields:

- a. Any conditioning indicator in columns 9-17
- b. FACTOR 1
- c. RESULT FIELD LENGTH
- d. DECIMAL POSITIONS FIELD
- e. HALF ADJUST/ACCESS MODE FIELD
- f. Columns 57-59

The DMKEY operation describes the key conditions for the immediately previous FIND or LOCK operation. Random access must be specified for the FIND or LOCK operation by entering the letter R in column 53 of the Calculation Specifications.

There must be at least one key of a set or subset defined for the DMKEY operation with a FIND or LOCK operation when random access is specified. If only some of the keys of a set or subset are defined, then any key relationship for the undefined key(s) is considered acceptable.

FIND

The FIND operation code provides a method of locating a record in a data set and transferring the record to the record area as defined in the Input Specifications. Figure 13-6 shows methods of coding the FIND operation.

Image 10 CALCULATION SPECIFICATION Page 10 Image 10 <th>Programm</th> <th>er</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>Burrou</th> <th>ighs RPG</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>Cate _</th> <th></th>	Programm	er			Burrou	i ghs RPG			Cate _	
Image: Second	Program I	D			CALCULATION	SPECIFICATION			Page	o'
0:1 C# C# RETSET IS THE INDEX MAME ØF A RETRIEMAL SET DEFIMED IM DASPL, DATSET IS 0:2 C# RETRIEMAL SET RETSET. C# C# RETRIEMAL SET RETSET. 0:4 C# RETRIEMAL SET RETSET. C# RETRIEMAL SET RETSET. C# 0:4 C# RETRIEMAL SET RETSET. RETSET FIND DATSET REJ 0:4 C RETSET FIND DATSET REJ C# RETSET FIND DATSET 0:4 C RETSET FIND DATSET REXT RDA C# REJ 0:4 C RETSET FIND DATSET KEYR EGL C# C# 0:4 C RETSET FIND DATSET SO1 C# DMKEY10 KEYR EGL 0:4 C RETSET FIND DATSET SO1 SO1 C# DATSET SO1 C# 0:4 C# RETSET FIND DATSET KEYR EGL SO1 C# DATSET SO1 C# DATSET SO1 C# DATSET SO1 C# C# DATSET SO1 C# C# DATSET SO1 C# </td <td>Page</td> <td>o Form Type</td> <td></td> <td>Factor 1</td> <td>Operation Factor 2</td> <td>Result Field 4, 4, 44 45 46 47 48 19 00</td> <td>Result is Arithmetic Display the second se</td> <td>Comments</td> <td></td> <td>Program Ident</td>	Page	o Form Type		Factor 1	Operation Factor 2	Result Field 4, 4, 44 45 46 47 48 19 00	Result is Arithmetic Display the second se	Comments		Program Ident
02 C& PETSET IS THE INDEX MAME ØF A RETRIEVAL SET DEFINED IN DASPL, DATSET IS 03 CA THE MAME ØF A DATA SET DEFINED IM DASDL, AND KEVR IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE 04 CA RETRIEVAL SET RETSET. 05 CA 06 C 07 CA 08 CA 09 CA 04 CA 05 CA 06 C 07 C 08 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 01 CA 01 CA 01 CA 02 CA ØRDSET IS THE INDEX NAME ØF AN ØRDERED SET DEFINED IN DASDL, DATSET IS 03 CA 04 CA 05 CA 06 C 07 C 08 CA 09 C </td <td>01</td> <td>C</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>ШП</td>	01	C								ШП
□03 C# THE MAME ØF R DATA SET DEFIMED IM DASDL, AND KEYR IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE 04 C# RETRIEMAL SET RETSET. 05 C# 06 C 07 C 08 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 010 RETSET 011 C 02 RETSET 03 C# 04 RETSET 05 C# 06 C 07 C# 08 C# 09 C# 09 C# 09 C# 09 C# 09 C# 09 C# 09 C# 09 C 09 C <	0 2	2 C	RETSET IS	THE INDED	K NAME OF A RE	TRIEVAL SE	T DEFINED	IN DASDL	DATSET	T IS
<pre>- 0.4 C# RETRIEVAL SET RETSET. 0.5 C# 0.6 C RETSET FIND DATSET ROL 0.7 C DMKEYIO KEYR EQL 0.8 C RETSET FIND DATSET WEXT ROL 0.9 C DMKEYIC KEYR EQL 0.9 C RETSET FIND DATSET SOL 0.1 C# 0.1 C# 0.1 C# 0.1 C# 0.2 C# ØRDSET TS THE INDEX NAME ØF AM ØRDERED SET DEFIMED IM DASDL, DATSET IS 0.3 C# MREMARE ØF A DATA SET DEFIMED IM DASDL, AMD KEYØ IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE 0.4 C# ØRDSET FIND DATSET ROL 0.6 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET ROL 0.7 C DMKEYIC KEYØ FQL 0.8 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT ROL 0.9 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SET DEFINED IM DASDL, AMD KEYØ IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE 0.4 C# ØRDSET FIND DATSET ROL 0.6 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET ROL 0.7 C DMKEYIC KEYØ FQL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET FIRST SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET FIRST SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET FIRST SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET FIRST SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET FIRST SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET KEYT SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET FIRST SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET FIRST SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET PEXT SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND PEXT SOL 1.1 C ØRDSET FIND PATSET P</pre>	03	c 🗶	THE NAME	OF A DATA	SET DEFIMED I	N DASDL, A	ND KEYR IS	THE KEY	NAME 0	THE
0:6 C# RETSET FIMO DATSET ROL 0:7 C DMKEY10 KEYR EQL 0:8 C RETSET FIMO DATSET MEXT RDL 0:9 C DMKEY10 KEYR EQL 1:0 C RETSET FIMO DATSET SDL 0:1 C# DMKEY10 KEYR EQL 0:1 C# ARTSET SDL SDL 0:1 C# DATSET SDL SDL 0:1 C# DATSET SDL SDL 0:1 C# DATSET SDL SDL 0:1 C# DATSET SDL SDL 0:1 C# DATSET SDL SDL 0:1 C# DATSET SDL SDL SDL 0:1 C# DATSET SDL SDL SDL 0:1 C# DATSET RDL SDL SDL 0:1 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET RDL SDL	04	c 🖌	RETRIEVAL	SET RETSE						
0:6 C RETSET FIND DATSET RD1 0:7 C DMKEY10 KEYR EQL 0:8 C RETSET FIND DATSET KEYR EQL 1:0 C RETSET FIND DATSET KEYR EQL 1:0 C RETSET FIND DATSET SD1 0:1 C RETSET FIND DATSET SD1 0:1 C RETSET FIND DATSET SD1 0:1 C RETSET FIND DATSET SD1 0:1 C RETSET FIND DATSET SD1 0:1 C RETSET FIND DATSET SD1 0:3 C THE NAME ØF AM ØRDERED SET DEFIMED IN DASPL, DATSET IS DATSET 0:4 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET RD1 0:5 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET RD1 0:6 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET RD1 0:7 D ATSET RD1 FIND DATSET 0:6 ØRDSET FIND DATSET RD1 FIND <t< td=""><td>0 5</td><td>i c</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	0 5	i c								
Image: Second Secon	06	с		RETSET	FIND DATSET		RD1			
0:8 C RETSET FINO DATSET MENT RD4 0:0 C DMKEY20 KEYR EGL 1:0 C RETSET FIND DATSET SD1 0:1 C# DMKEY20 KEYR EGL 0:1 C# DATSET SD1 SD1 0:2 C# DATSET FIND DATSET SD1 0:3 C# THE MAME ØF A. PATA SET DEFINED IM DASOL, AND KEYØ IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE 0:4 C# ØRDERED SET ØROSET. DMKEY10 0:5 C# OMKEY10 KEYØ EGL 0:6 ØRDSET FIND DATSET RD1 0:6 ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 0:7 ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 0:6 ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 0:7 ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 0:8 ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 0:9 ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 1:0 ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 1:1 ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 1:2 ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 0:	0 7	' C			DMKEY10	KEYR	EQL			
0.9 C DMKEY20 KEYR EQL 10 C RETSET FIND DATSET SD1 01 CM MRDSET EST FIND DATSET SD1 02 CM ØRDSET EST THE INDEX NAME ØF AN ØRDERED SET DEFIMED IM DASDL, DATSET DS1 03 CM THE NAME ØF A DATA SET DEFIMED IM DASDL, AND KEYØ IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE C 04 CM ØRDSET FIND DATSET RD1 05 CM ØRDSET FIND DATSET RD1 06 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET RD1 07 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET RQ1 07 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET RQ1 07 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET RQ1 07 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 10 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 11 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 13 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DA	0 8	B C	╂┼┼┼┼┼┼┼	RETSET	FIND DATSET	NEXT	RD1			
110 C RETSET FIMD DATSET SD1 01 CM PROSET IS THE INDEX NAME ØF AN ØRDERED SET DEFINED IN DASDL, DATSET IS 03 CM THE NAME ØF A DATA SET DEFINED IN DASOL, AND KEYØ IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE 04 CM ØRDERED SET ØRDSET 05 CM 06 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET 07 DMKEYIQ KEYØ 08 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET 09 C DMKEYIQ KEYØ 10 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET 11 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET 12 OMKEYIQ KEYØ 13 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET 13 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET 13 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET 14 C ØRDSET 14 C FIND DATSET 14 C FIND DATSET 14 C </td <td>0 9</td> <td>) C</td> <td>┨┥┥┥┥</td> <td>┟┼┼┼┟┟┟┟╎┼</td> <td>DMKEY20</td> <td>KEYR</td> <td>EQL</td> <td></td> <td><u> </u></td> <td>4444</td>	0 9) C	┨┥┥┥┥	┟┼┼┼┟┟┟┟╎┼	DMKEY20	KEYR	EQL		<u> </u>	4444
01 CM 02 CM ØRDSET TS. THE INDEX NAME ØF AN ØRDERED SET DEFIMED IM DASDL, DATSET IS. 03 CM THE NAME ØF A DATA SET DEFIMED IM DASDL, AND KEYØ IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE 04 CM ØRDERED SET ØRDERT. 05 CM 06 C ØRDSET 07 C DMKEY1Q 08 C ØRDSET 09 C DMKEY1Q 09 C DMKEY1Q 11 C ØRDSET 04 C ØRDSET 05 C ØRDSET 07 C DMKEY1Q 08 C ØRDSET 09 C DMKEY2Q 10 C ØRDSET 11 C ØRDSET 12 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 13 C ØRDSET 14 C ØRDSET 12 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 14 C ØRDSET 15 THE NAME ØF A DATA SET 14 C ØRDSET 15 </td <td>10</td> <td>C</td> <td></td> <td>RETSET</td> <td>FIND DATSET</td> <td></td> <td>SD1</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	10	C		RETSET	FIND DATSET		SD1			
02 C# ØRDSET IS THE INDEX NAME ØF AN ØRDERED SET DEFINED IN DASDL, DATSET IS 03 C# THE MAME ØF A DATA SET DEFINED IN DASDL, AND KEYØ IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE 04 C# ØRDERED SET ØROSET. 05 C# 06 C 07 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 08 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 09 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 09 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 09 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 09 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 10 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 11 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 12 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 13 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 14 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 15 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 16 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 17 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 18 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 19 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 10 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 11 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 12 ØRDSET FIND DATSET 13										
03 C# THE NAME ØF A DASOL, AND AKEYØ IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE 04 C# ØRDERED SET ØRDSET FIND DATSET RD1. 05 C# ØRDSET FIND DATSET RD1. IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE 06 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET RD1. IS </td <td>01</td> <td></td> <td>┨┤┝┼┝┝┝┝</td> <td>┟╁╆┟┼┟╎╷┝</td> <td>↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓</td> <td>╺┽┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td><u></u></td> <td></td>	01		┨┤┝┼┝┝┝┝	┟╁╆┟┼┟╎╷┝	↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓	╺┽┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼			<u></u>	
04 C# ØRDERED SET ØROSET. 06 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET RD1 07 C DMKEY1Q KEYØ 08 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT 09 C DMKEY2Q KEYØ 10 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 11 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 11 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 12 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 13 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 01 C# ØRTSET FIND DATSET SD1 03 C# FIND DATSET SD1 SD1 03 C# FIND DATSET SD1 SD1 04 C FIND DATSET SD1 SD1 05 C FIND DATSET SD1	0 1	C K	ORDSET IS	THE INDE	(NAME OF AN O	RDERED SET	DEFINED I	N DASDL,	DATSET	IS
015 C# 06 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET RD1 07 C DMKEY10 KEYØ EQL 08 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT RD1 09 C DMKEY20 KEYØ EQL C 10 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 11 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 12 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 13 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 01 C#	0 1		PROSET IS	THE INDEX	(NAME OF AN O Set defined I	RDERED SET M DASOL, AN	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS	N DASDL, The Key	DATSET VAME ØF	IS THE
06 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET RD1 07 C DMKEY10 KEYØ EGL 08 C ØRDSET FIND_DATSET NEXT RD1 08 C ØRDSET FIND_DATSET NEXT RD1 09 C ØRDSET FIND_DATSET NEXT RD1 10 C ØRDSET FIND_DATSET SD1 SD1 11 C ØRDSET FIND_DATSET SD1 SD1 12 C ØRDSET FIND_DATSET SD1 SD1 13 C ØRDSET FIND_DATSET SD1 SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND_DATSET SD1 SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND_DATSET SD1 SD1 01 CA FIND_DATSET SD1 SD1 SD1 03 CA ØRDSET FIND_DATSET SD1 SD1 04 C FIND_DATSET SD1 SD1 SD1 04 C FIND_DATSET SD1	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4		ORDSET IS The Mame ORDERED S	The Index OF A DATA ET ØRUSET	(NAME ØF AN Ø Set defined i	RDERED SET N DASOL , AT	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS	N DASDL, The key (DATSET VAME ØF	IS THE
07 C DMKEY10 KEYØ EGL 08 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT RD1 09 C DMKEY20 KEYØ EQL IIII 110 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 111 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 111 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 112 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 113 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 01 C#	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5		ORDSET IS The Mame Ordered S	THE INDEX ØF A DATA ET ØROSET	(NAME OF AN O Set Defined I	RDERED SET M DASOLJ AV	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS	N DASDL, The Key	DATSET VAME ØF	IS THE
0.8 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT RD1 0.9 C DMKEYQC KEYØ EQL 110 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 111 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 112 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET LAST SD2 113 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 114 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET LAST SD2 114 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 114 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD2 011 C# ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD2 021 ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD2 SD2 03 C# FIND DATSET SD2 04 C FIND DATSET SD2 SD2 05 C FIND DATSET SD2 SD2 <td>0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6</td> <td></td> <td>ØRDSET IS The Name Ørdered S</td> <td>The Index Øf a data Et Ørdset Ørdset</td> <td>(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET</td> <td>RDERED SET M DASOL, AY</td> <td>DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1</td> <td>N DASDL, The Key /</td> <td>DATSET VAME ØF</td> <td>IS THE</td>	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6		ØRDSET IS The Name Ørdered S	The Index Øf a data Et Ørdset Ørdset	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1	N DASDL, The Key /	DATSET VAME ØF	IS THE
09 C DMKEYQC KEYØ EQL 10 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 11 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD1 12 ØRDSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 13 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET ARIØR S01 01 CA FIND DATSET SD1 FIND FIND 02 CA ØRDSET FIND DATSET S01 FIND 03 CA FIND DATSET SD1 FIND FIND 04 C FIND DATSET SD1 FIND FIND FIND FIND 06 C FIND DATSET FIND	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7		ØROSET IS The Name Ørdered s	THE INDEX ØF A DATA ET ØRDSET ØRDSET	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL	n dasdl, The Key	DATSET VAME ØF	IS THE
10 C ØRDSET FIND ØRTSET SD1 11 C ØRDSET FIND ØRTSET SD2 12 C ØRDSET FIND ØRTSET LAST SD1 13 C ØRDSET FIND ØRTSET LAST SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 01 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET ARIØR SD1 02 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET SD2 03 C FIND DATSET SD2 04 C FIND DATSET SD2 04 C FIND DATSET SD2 05 C FIND DATSET SD2 06 C FIND DATSET LAST SD2 07 C FIND DATSET NEXT SD2 08 C FIND DATSET REXT	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7 0 8		ØRDSET IS The Name Ørdered S	THE INDEX ØF A DATA ET ØRQSET ØRDSET ØRDSET	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10 FIND DATSET	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY KEYØ NEXT	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL RD1	n dasol, i The Key (DATSET VAME ØF	IS THE
11 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET FIRST SD1 12 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 13 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET PRIØR SD1 01 CA ØRDSET FIND DATSET PRIØR SD1 02 CA ØRDSET FIND DATA SET DEFINED IN DASD4 03 CA FIND DATSET SD1 SD2 IN INSD4 044 C FIND DATSET SD1 IN INSD4 IN 056 C FIND DATSET FIRST SD1 IN	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7 0 8 0 9		ØRDSET IS The Name Ørdered S	THE INDEX ØF A DATA ET ØROSET ØRDSET ØRDSET	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10 FIND DATSET DMKEY20	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY KEYØ NEXT KEYØ	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL RD1 EQL	n dasol, The Key (DATSET NAME ØF	IS THE
12 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 13 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 01 CA ØRDSET FIND DATSET PALOR SO1 02 CA ØRDSET FIND DATASET DEFINED IN DASDL 03 CA FIND DATASET SO1 SO1 SO1 04 C FIND DATSET SO1 SO1 05 C FIND DATSET SO1 06 C FIND DATSET SO1 07 C FIND DATSET SO2 07 C FIND DATSET SO2 08 C FIND DATSET SO2 08 C FIND DATSET SD2	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7 0 8 0 9 1 0		ØROSET IS The Name Ørdered S	THE INDEX ØF A DATA ET ØROSET ØRDSET ØRDSET	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10 FIND DATSET DMKEY20 FIND DATSET	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY KEYØ NEXT KEYØ	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL RD1 EQL SD1	n dasol, The Key (DATSET VAME ØF	IS THE
13 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C ØRDSET FIND DATSET PRIØR SD1 01 CA ØRDSET FIND DATSET PRIØR SD1 02 CA ØRDSET FIND DATA SET DEFINE DASDL 03 CA FIND DATA SET DEFINE DATA SET 04 C FIND DATSET SD1 05 C FIND DATSET SD1 06 C FIND DATSET SD1 07 C FIND DATSET SD2 08 C FIND DATSET SD2	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7 0 8 0 9 1 0 1 1		ØROSET IS The Name Ørdered S	THE INDED ØF A DATA ET ØROSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10 FIND DATSET DMKEY20 FIND DATSET FIND DATSET	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY KEYØ NEXT KEYØ FIRST	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL RD1 EQL SD1 SD1	n dasol, i The Key (DATSET VAME ØF	
14 C ØRDSET FIND DATASET PRIØR SCL 01 CA A A A A A 02 CA PATSET IS THE NAME ØF A DATASET DATASET 03 CA FIND DATASET SDL DATASET SDL 04 C FIND DATSET SDL SDL 05 C FIND DATSET SDL 06 C FIND DATSET SDL 07 C FIND DATSET SDL 08 C FIND DATSET PRIØR	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7 0 8 0 9 1 0 1 1 1 2		ØROSET IS The Name Ørdered S	THE INDED ØF A DATA ET ØROSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10 FIND DATSET DMKEY20 FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY KEYØ NEXT KEYØ FIRST LAST	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL KD1 EQL SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1	N DASOL, The Key /	DATSET VAME ØF	IS THE
01 CM 02 CM 03 CM 04 C 05 FIND 06 FIND 06 FIND 07 C 08 FIND 08 C	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7 0 8 0 9 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 3		ØROSET IS The Name Ørdered S	THE INDED ØF A DATA ET ØROSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10 FIND DATSET DMKEY20 FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY KEYØ NEXT KEYØ FIRST LAST NEXT	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL KD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1	N DASOL, The Key /	DATSET VAME ØF	IS = THE
02 CH DATSET IS THE NAME OF A DATA SET DEFINED IN DASDL. 03 CH DATSET 04 C 05 FIND DATSET 06 FIND DATSET 06 FIND DATSET 07 FIND DATSET 08 FIND DATSET	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7 0 8 0 9 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 3 1 4		ØROSET IS The Name Ørdered S	THE INDED ØF A DATA ET ØROSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10 FIND DATSET DMKEY20 FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY NEXT NEXT KEYØ FIRST LAST NEXT ARIØR	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL KD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1	N DASOL, The Key /	DATSET VAME ØF	
03 C# 04 C 05 FIND 06 FIND 06 FIND 07 FIND 08 FIND 07 FIND 08 FIND 08 FIND	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7 0 8 0 9 0 9 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 3 1 4 0 1		ØROSET IS The Name Ørdered S	THE INDED ØF A DATA ET ØROSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10 FIND DATSET DMKEY20 FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY NEXT NEXT KEYØ FIRST LAST NEXT ARIØR	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL KD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1	N DASPL, The Key /	DATSET VAME ØF	
04 C FIND DATSET SD1 05 C FIND DATSET FIRST SD1 06 C FIND DATSET LAST SD2 07 C FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 08 C FIND DATSET PRLØR SD2	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7 0 8 0 9 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 3 1 3 1 4 0 1		ORDSET IS THE NAME ORDERED S	THE INDED ØF A DATA ET ØROSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10 FIND DATSET DMKEY20 FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY KEYØ NEXT KEYØ FIRST LAST NEXT PRIØR DEFINED I	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL KD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1	N DASPL, I	DATSET VAME ØF	
05 C FIND DATSET FIRST SOL 06 C FIND DATSET LAST SOL 07 C FIND DATSET NEXT SDL 08 C FIND DATSET PRLØR SDL	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7 0 8 0 9 1 1 1 1 1 3 1 4 0 1 1 0 1 4 0 1 0 2 0 3		ORDSET IS THE NAME ORDERED S	THE INDED ØF A DATA ET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10 FIND DATSET DMKEY20 FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY NEXT NEXT KEYØ FIRST LAST NEXT ARIØR OEFINE D II	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1	N DASPL, I	DATSET VAME ØF	
06 C FIND DATSET LAST SD2 07 C FIND DATSET NEXT SD2 08 C FIND DATSET PRIOR SD2	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7 0 8 0 9 1 1 1 1 1 3 1 4 0 1 1 0 1 4 0 1 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 4	C 2 C C <t< td=""><td>ORDSET IS THE NAME ORDERED S</td><td>THE INDED ØF A DATA ET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET THE NAME</td><td>(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10 FIND DATSET DMKEY20 FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET</td><td>RDERED SET M DASOL, AY NEXT NEXT KEYØ FIRST LAST NEXT ARIØR OEFINE D II</td><td>DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1</td><td>N DASPL, I</td><td>DATSET VAME ØF</td><td></td></t<>	ORDSET IS THE NAME ORDERED S	THE INDED ØF A DATA ET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET THE NAME	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10 FIND DATSET DMKEY20 FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY NEXT NEXT KEYØ FIRST LAST NEXT ARIØR OEFINE D II	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1	N DASPL, I	DATSET VAME ØF	
07 C 08 C FIND DATSET NEXT SDL 08 C FIND DATSET PRIOR SDL	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7 0 8 0 9 1 1 1 1 1 3 1 4 0 1 1 0 1 3 1 4 0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5		ORDSET IS THE NAME ORDERED S	THE INDED ØF A DATA ET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET THE NAME	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10 FIND DATSET DMKEY20 FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY NEXT NEXT KEYØ FIRST LAST NEXT ARIØR OEFINED I	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1	N DASPL, I	DATSET VAME ØF	
orial ici	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7 0 8 0 9 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 3 1 4 0 1 1 3 1 4 0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6		ORDSET IS THE NAME ORDERED S	THE INDED ØF A DATA ET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10 FIND DATSET DMKEY20 FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY NEXT NEXT KEYØ FIRST LAST NEXT ARIØR OEFINE D I FIRST	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1	N DASPL, I	DATSET VAME ØF	
	0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7 0 8 0 9 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 0 1 1 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 2 0 3 0 4 0 5 0 6 0 7		ORDSET IS THE NAME ORDERED S	THE INDED ØF A DATA ET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET ØRDSET THE NAME	(NAME OF AN O SET DEFINED I FIND DATSET DMKEY10 FIND DATSET DMKEY20 FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET FIND DATSET	RDERED SET M DASOL, AY NEXT KEYØ NEXT KEYØ FIRST LAST NEXT PRIØR OEFINED I FIRST LAST LAST NEXT	DEFINED I ND KEYØ IS RD1 EQL SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1		DATSET VAME ØF	

G12074/SHEET 1 OF 2

Figure 13-6. Methods of Coding the FIND Operation (Sheet 1 of 2)

Program Description CALCULATION SPECIFICATION Program Program Program g<	Progr	anine	r		-	-							-												E	հ	1	rı	r	יכ	u	ģ	h	S		RI	PC	;																				Da	ite.		_	_	_	
1 1 1 0 1 0 1 1 0 1	Progr	am I (-		-			-				-												с	Aι	CI	JL	AT	10	N	SPI	EÇI	FI	CA	TI	ON			_	-																	Pa	qe		(<u>,</u>	-	
 01 C# 02 C# MANSET IS THE NAME OF A MANUAL SUBSET DEFINED IM DASOL, OATSET IS THE 03 C# WAME OF A DATA SET DEFINED IN DASOL, AND KEYM IS THE KEY MAME OF THE 04 C# MANUAL SUBSET MANUET. 05 C# 06 C 07 C 07 C 08 C# MANSET FIND DATSET 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 ANSET FIND DATSET 00 ATSET FIND DATSET 00 ATSET FIND DATSET 01 C# 03 C# MANSET FIND DATSET 04 C# MANSET FIND DATSET 05 C# 09 C 09 C 09 C 00 ANSET FIND DATSET 00 ATSET SIDI 01 C# 01 C# 02 C# MANSET FIND DATSET 04 C# 04 C# 04 ANSET FIND DATSET 05 C# 04 C# 05 C# 05 C# 06 C 07 C 07 C 07 C 07 C 08 C 09 C 09 C 00 ATSET FIND DATSET 00 ANSET FIND DATSET 01 C# 01 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 C# 04 D# 04 D# 04 C# 04 C# 04 D# 04 C# 04 D# 04 C# 04 C# 04 D# 04 D# 04 C# 04 C# 04 D# 04 C# 04 C# 04 D# 04 C# 04 C# 04 D# 04 C# 04 D# 04 D# 05 D# 05 D# 05 D# 05 D# 05 D# 05 D#	Page 7	Pue Line	s Form Type	 Control Level 		A 10 1	ND N ION	13		D		18 1	9 20	F 0 21	act 72	25	1	:5 2	6.7	28	Ope	erat 30	ion 31		. * .	4,	F 5 31	ac	tor 	2	4(-	4] 4	4	44 ر	Fi 44	esul ield	τ.	48	K Field	Length	C Decimal Positions 0.9	C Half Adjust H/Edit Code	Piur Hig Tat Hig Cha S4	Res Indi Ariti S M Cor Loi Dieif	nme inus ow <2 oku	re Equine Equine Equine Equine Equine Equine Equine	aro 2 115 ual ad DF	6L E	. 6	ĥ		C.	0 m	mer 57	15						P, I	rog Ide	ram ht	9 80
02 CM MANNE OF A MANUAL SUBSET DEFINED IN PASDL, OATSET IS THE 03 CM MANUAL SUBSET DEFINED IN DASDL, AND KEYM IS THE KEY MAME OF THE 04 CM MANUAL SUBSET MANSET. 05 CM MANUAL SUBSET MANSET. 06 C MANUAL SUBSET MANSET. 07 C DATASET. 08 C MANSET. 09 C DATSET. 09 C DATSET. 09 C DATSET. 09 C DATSET. 100 MANSET. FIND DATSET. 110 MANSET. FIND DATSET. 120 MANSET. FIND DATSET. 130 MANSET. FIND DATSET. 14 C MANSET. 01 CA MANSET. 02 CA MANSET. 14 C MANSET. 02 CA MANSET. 03 CA MANSET. 04 CA MANSET. 15 CA MANSET. 16 CA MA	Π	0 1	С	×	Π		Τ	Π	Τ		Π	T	Τ	Γ	Π		Τ	Τ	Τ	Ι					T		Τ	Γ				T		Τ	Τ	Γ		Τ	Τ	Τ	Γ		Τ	T					1			Τ	T	I	T		1	T	Τ	Τ			Ι	Π
03 C# NAME OF A DATA SET DEFINED IN DASDL, AND KEYM IS THE KEY NAME OF THE 04 C# MANUAL SUBSET ANDSET. 05 C# 06 C 07 C 08 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 C 09 DMKEYLO 09 C 09 DMKEYLO 09 C 09 DMKEYLO 09 DMKEYLO 09 DMKEYLO 09 DMKEYLO 09 DMKEYLO 010 MANSET 12 MANSET 14 MANSET 15 C 16 MANSET 17 PIMO 18 C 19 MANSET 19 MANSET 10 C# 114 MANSET 12 MANSET 13 C <	Π	0 2	c	X	M	A)	IS	E	T	I	S	1	ГH	E		N	A I	MÉ		C	F		A	r	nI	AI	1	A	L		S	u	BS	5	1		D	E	FI	N	E	D].	E٧	1	D	A	s C	ZL	6		0	AT	r s	E	T	1	r	5	T	H	E		
0.4 C# MANUAL SUBSET MANSET. 0.5 C# 0.6 C 0.7 C 0.8 C 0.8 C 0.9 C 0.9 C 0.9 C 0.9 C 0.9 C 0.9 C 0.9 C 0.9 C 0.9 C 0.9 C 0.1 C 0.9 C 1.1 C 0.1 MANSET 1.1 C 0.1 C. MANSET FIMO 0.1 C. 0.1 C. MANSET FIMO 0.1 C. MANSET FIMO 0.1 C. 0.1 C. MANSET FIMO 0.1 C. 0.1 C. 0.2 C. MANSET FIMO MANSET	Π	0 3	С	ł	N	RN	NE		ØF	-	A	L	D A	Ť	R		s I	EII	-	D	E	F	I	N	: 1	D	1	N		D	A	S I	DI		Τ	A	N	D	K	E	Y	M		E S		T	H	E	K	E	y	7	NF	IN	E		Ø	F	T	H	Ε		Ι	Π
06 CM 06 C MAMSET FIMD DATSET RD1 07 C DMKEY10 KEYM EQL 08 C MAMSET FIND DATSET MEXT RQ1 08 C MAMSET FIND DATSET MEXT RQ1 10 C MAMSET FIND DATSET SD1 Image: Comparison of the set of		04	С	X	Μ	A A	lu	A	L	S	u	ß	SE	T		N	Ąr	2	: 6	7	1.													Γ				Ι		L	Γ							I	Ţ	Ì		Т	T	Ι				T		Ι				
06 C MANUSET FIND DATSET RD1 07 C DMKEYLO KEYM EQL 08 MANSET FIND DATSET KEYM EQL 09 C DMKEYLO KEYM EQL Image: Construction of the second of the		05	с	×										L					L																					L								Ì	1			-			Ĺ		_		ĺ					
07 C DMKEYLO KEYM EQL 08 C MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT ROL 10 C DMKEYLO KEYM EQL Image: Comparison of the set of		06	с									NF	N	S	E	Т				F	I	N	D	1	2	ПA	- 5	E	Т													R	Dź	L								i					1							
08 C MANSET FIND PATSET NEXT RO1 09 C DMKEYLO KEYM EQL Image: Sold 10 C MANSET FIND DATSET SOL 11 C MANSET FIND DATSET SOL 12 C MANSET FIND DATSET LAST 13 C MANSET FIND DATSET LAST 14 C MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT SDL 14 C MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT SDL 01 CA MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT SDL 01 CA MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT SDL 01 CA MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT SDL 01 CA MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT SDL 01 CA MUTSET LAST NEXT SDL Image: SDL 01 CA MUTSET <td< td=""><td></td><td>07</td><td>c</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>1</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>E</td><td>M</td><td>κ</td><td>ε</td><td>Y S</td><td>L</td><td>2</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>1</td><td>E</td><td>Y</td><td>M</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>Ļ</td><td>i I</td><td></td><td>E</td><td>2L</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td>Ĺ</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>j</td><td></td><td>L</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>		07	c									1								E	M	κ	ε	Y S	L	2							1	E	Y	M				Ļ	i I		E	2L									-	Ĺ				j		L				
09 C DMKEY2QO KEYM EQL 10 C MAMSET FIMD DATSET SD1 11 C MAMSET FIMD DATSET FERST SD1 12 C MAMSET FIMD DATSET LAST SD1 13 C MAMSET FIMD DATSET LAST SD1 14 C MAMSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 14 C MAMSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 14 C MAMSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 14 C MAMSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 14 C MAMSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 14 C MAMSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 14 C MAMSET FIND DATSET LAST LAST LAST 14 C AUTSET FIND DATSET RASP1 LAST LAST LAST		08	С						-	1)	W	N	s	E	T				F	1	N	D	1		91	S	E	T				r	E	X	T						R	0	L									-	+	-		:			L				
10 C MAMSET FIND DATSET SD1 11 C MANSET FIND DATSET FIRST SD1 12 C MANSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 13 C MANSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 14 C MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 01 CA MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 01 CA MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 01 CA MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 01 CA MATSET FIND DATSET PRIØR SD1 01 CA AUTSET FIND DATSET NDRSDL, AND KEYA ES 03 CA AUTØMATIC SUBSET NDRSDL, AND KEYA EQL DATSET 04 CA AUTØMATSET FIND DAT		09	С															1		۵	M	ĸ	E	<u>y</u> :	1	2							×	E	y	m				L	L	L	E	21											Ĺ			Ì		L				
11 C MANSET FIND DATSET FIRST SD1 12 C MANSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 13 C MANSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 14 C MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD2 01 C MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD2 02 CM MUTSET LS THE NAME ØF AN MUTØMATEC SUBSET LS 03 C THE <name< td=""> ØF AN MUTØMATEC SUBSET LS DATSET LS 03 C THE<name< td=""> ØF AN MUTØMATEC SUBSET LS DATSET LS 03 C THE<name< td=""> ØF AN MUTØMATEC SUBSET LS DATSET LS 04 C THE<name< td=""> ØF AN MUTØMATSET RND KEYA LS THE KEY MME ØF THE KEY NME ØF THE MME ØF THE MUTSET<td></td><td>10</td><td>c</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>4</td><td></td><td>)</td><td>WF</td><td>)N</td><td>S</td><td>E</td><td>T</td><td>_</td><td>1</td><td></td><td>F</td><td>I</td><td>N</td><td>D</td><td>1</td><td>21</td><td>A 1</td><td>S</td><td>E</td><td>Т</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>L</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>1</td><td></td><td>S</td><td>D):</td><td>L</td><td>1</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>4</td><td>i</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>Ц</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></name<></name<></name<></name<>		10	c						4)	WF)N	S	E	T	_	1		F	I	N	D	1	21	A 1	S	E	Т						L					1		S	D):	L	1								4	i							Ц			
12 C MANSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 13 C MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C MANSET FIND DATSET PRIØR SD1 01 CA MANSET FIND DATSET PRIØR SD1 02 CA AUTSET LS THE NAME ØF AN AUTØMATIC SUBSET DEFINED IN DASSET IS 03 CX THE NAME ØF AN AUTØMATIC SUBSET DEFINED IN DASSET IS 04 CX AUTØMATIC SUBSET AUTSET FIND DATSET IS IN DASSET AUD IS IN DASSET IS IS IN DASSET IS IN DASSET IS IN DASSET IS IS IS IN IS IS IS IS IS IS IS IS IS IS IS IS IS IS IS IS IS IS <td></td> <td>1 1</td> <td>с</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>İ</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>MF</td> <td>) N</td> <td>S</td> <td>Ε</td> <td>T</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>F</td> <td>I</td> <td>N</td> <td>D</td> <td>Į</td> <td>)/</td> <td>¥7</td> <td>2</td> <td>E</td> <td>T</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>F</td> <td>I</td> <td>R</td> <td>S</td> <td>T</td> <td>-</td> <td>\perp</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>S</td> <td>D</td> <td>L</td> <td>Ĺ</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>ĺ</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>\perp</td> <td>\perp</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>		1 1	с			İ						MF) N	S	Ε	T				F	I	N	D	Į)/	¥7	2	E	T				F	I	R	S	T	-	\perp			S	D	L	Ĺ			ĺ					\perp	\perp			-							
13 C MANSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C MANSET FIND DATSET PRDRR SD1 01 C4 MANSET FIND DATSET PRDRR SD1 02 C4 AUTSET LS THE NAME ØF AN AUTØMATEC SUBSET DEFINED IN DASDL DATSET IS 03 CX THE NAME ØF AN AUTØMATEC SUBSET DEFINED IN DASDL AND KEYA IS THE KEY MAME ØF THE IN DASDL AND KEYA IS THE KEY MAME ØF THE IN DASDL AND KEYA IS THE KEY MAME ØF THE IN DASDL AND KEYA IS THE KEYA IS IN IS IN IS IN IS IN IN IS IN IS IN IS IN IS IS IS IS		12	с			1			!		1	MF	NF	S	E	T				F	I	N	D	C	2	97	S	E	T				L	A	S	T				i	_	S.	01	L								1	:											
1 4 C MANSET FIND DATSET PRIØR SD1 0 1 C# SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 SD1 0 2 C# AUTSET LS THE NAME ØF AN AUTØMATIC SUBSET DEFINED IN DASDL, DATSET IS 0 3 C# THE NAME ØF AN AUTØMATIC SUBSET DEFINED IN DASDL, AND KEYA IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE OF THE KEY NAME ØF THE NAME ØF THE IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE IS IS IN DASDL, AND KEYA IS		13	С			1	-		1		4	MF	N	s	E	T	_	1	-	F	I	N	D	1	24	1	S	E	T				1	I E	X	T	_			1	Ĺ	S	D	L				į				-		\downarrow	L		ļ		1		Ц	_		Ш
0 1 C# 0 2 C# AUTSET LS THE NAME ØF AN AUTØMATIC SUBSET DEFINED IN DASDL, DATSET IS 0 3 C# THE NAME ØF DATA SET DEFINED IN DASDL, AND KEYA IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE NAME NAME		14	c	Ŀ	\square						1	MF	N	s	E	7				F	I	N	D	Ľ	≯	97	s	E	7				F	R	I	Ø	R					S	P	4						_	-		i											
0 2 C# AUTSET LS THE NAME ØF AU AUTØMATIC SUBSET DEFINED IN DASDL, DASDL, DATSET IS 0 3 C# THE NAME ØF DATA SET DEFINED IN DASDL, AND KEYA IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE AUTSET IN DASDL, AND KEYA IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE MATSET IN DASDL, AND KEYA IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE MATSET IN DASDL, AND KEYA IS THE KEY IN IN DASDL, IN <		01	с	×									L																																				-		Ţ		1				Ì	Ι		L				
03 C# THE NAME ØF A DATA SET DEFINED IN DASDL, AND KEYA IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE VAME ØF THE KEYA IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE KEYA IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE KEYA IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE KEYA IS THE KEY NAME ØF THE KEYA IS THE KEY IS		02	c	*	A	41	15	E	T_	I	S	1	T/H	Ε		N	٩r	AE		¢	F		A	N	1	7L	47	ø	Μ	Ą	T	C		s	u	8	S	E	r_	D	E	F	ĮΊ	٩E	D		Γļ	V	D	A	SI	D	L	\perp	D	A	T:	5 8	ŧΤ	Ĺ	I	S		\square
04 CX AuTømATIC SuBSET AuTSET SuBSET AuTSET RD1 06 C AuTSET FIND DATSET RD1 07 C DMKEY10 KEYA EQL 08 C AuTSET FIND DATSET RQ1 09 C DMKEY20 KEYA EQL 10 C AuTSET FIND DATSET RQ1 11 C AuTSET FIND DATSET SD1 11 C AuTSET FIND DATSET SD1 12 C AuTSET FIND DATSET SD1 13 C AuTSET FIND DATSET SD1 14 C AuTSET FIND DATSET SP1		03	С	X	7	HE		NI	An	ħΕ	4	ØF	1	A		D	91	F		s	E	Т		DE	ł	-11	C N	E	D		IJ	۷	C	A	S	D	L	۱	A	M	D		K١	٤V	A	Li	Ľ	S	T	H	E)	KE	٤Y	1	N	ĄI	nE		Ø	F		ΓI	IE
0 5 C # 0 6 C 0 7 C 0 8 C 0 9 C 0 9 C 1 0 C 9 8 C 1 0 C 9 9 C 1 1 C 9 8 C 1 1 C 1 2 C 1 3 C 1 4 C		04	С	X	A	uT	Ø	m	A T	I	C	S	u	ß	S	E	ή	F	łu	17	S	E	Т	•														Ì		:								1			1	!					÷					_		\square
0 6 C Autset FIND DATSET Rp1 0 7 C DMKEY10 KEYA EQL 0 8 C Autset FIND DATSET Retain 0 9 C DMKEY20 KEYA EQL 1 0 C Autset FIND DATSET Sp1 1 1 C Autset FIND DATSET FIRST Sp1 1 2 C Autset FIND DATSET LAST Sp1 1 3 C Autset FIND DATSET LAST Sp1 1 4 C Autset FIND DATSET FIRST Sp1		05	. c	×					\perp			1				\downarrow	1		1						1	\downarrow						1			L					L									1			i			L		1			L				\square
07 C DMKEY10 KEYR EQL 08 C AWTSET FIND DATSET RET 09 C DMKEY20 KEYR EQL 10 C DMKEY20 KEYR EQL 11 C PUTSET FIND DATSET FIRST 11 C PUTSET FIND DATSET FIRST SD1 11 C PUTSET FIND DATSET FIRST SD1 11 C PUTSET FIND DATSET FIRST SD1 12 C AUTSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 13 C AUTSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C AUTSET FIND DATSET PREV SP1		06	с					i			6	AL	4T	5	E	Т				F	I	N	D	I		7	2	E	T						L							R.	D	Ľ				1				ĺ				i				L				
08 C AWTSET FIND DATSET NEXT RD1 09 C DMKEY20 KEYA EQL 10 C AWTSET FIND DATSET SD1 11 C AWTSET FIND DATSET FIRST SD1 11 C AWTSET FIND DATSET FIRST SD1 12 C AWTSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 13 C AWTSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C AWTSET FIND DATSET PRIØR SP1		07	с		Ш															D	m	ĸ	E	Y 1	L	כ							K	E	Y	A	1	1 ~ +-		:		ļ	E	21													ì	İ						
0 9 C DMKEY20 KEYA EQL 1 0 C AUTSET FIND DATSET SD1 1 1 C AUTSET FIND DATSET FIRST SD1 1 2 C AUTSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 1 3 C AUTSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 1 4 C AUTSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1		08	с						1		F	ηı	AT	S	E	Т				F	I	N	D	[)F	łΠ	S	E	7				N	E	X	Τ		i -+-				R	DÍ	4							_	-	1			i				L				
10 C PUTSET FIND DATSET SD1 11 C PUTSET FIND DATSET FIRST SD1 12 C PUTSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 13 C PUTSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C PUTSET FIND DATSET PRIØR SP1	Ц.	09	с		\square							1								Þ	M	K	E	Y	20	2							K	E	Y	A		1					E	2L					L			 	1	1		4	+	1						\square
11 C RWTSET FIND DATSET FIRST SD1 12 C AUTSET FIND DATSET LAST SD1 13 C AUTSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C AUTSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1	Ц	10	с		\prod				-		F	910	AT	S	E	T				F	I	N	D	1	F)T	S	E	T									1		L	L	S	D				ſ	-			1	i	:	Ĺ							Ц			\square
12 C AUTSET FIND DATSET LAST SID1 13 C AUTSET FIND DATSET NEXT SD1 14 C AUTSET FIND DATSET PRIØR SP1	\square	1 1	с	\square	\square						F	15	T	S	E	T				F	I	N	D	1	21	A 1	15	E	7	•			F	I	R	S	T	-			1	S	D	Ĺ			1	1	1		1	-+	1				1			L	Ц			\square
13 C HUTSET FIND DATSET NEXT SDL 14 C AUTSET FIND DATSET PRIØR SPL		12	с	Ц	\square	ĺ					f	AL	AT	S	E	T		1		F	I	N	D	Ľ) (17	S	E	T			\downarrow	1	A	S	T		ļ	+	!	-	S	01								- +	; 	-	1		i			1	L	Ш			\square
	\square	13	с	\square	\square	-		ļ	_+_		F	ηı	4T	S	E	Т			L	F	Γ	N	D	C	f) I	S	E	Т		4	1	N	E	X	Г	1	1		1		SI	DI	4	L	\downarrow	+	+	+ +	-+			+	1		4	+	\downarrow		L	Ц			Ш
	ĽĹ.	14	С	\square	\square	1					F	Ψ	VT	S	E	Т		L		F	I	N	D	C	F	17	S	E	T		_	1	P	R	I	Ø	R	1				SI	P1			-	-	1	÷	-	-+	-+-	+	L	Ц	1	+			L	Ц			\square

G12074/SHEET 2 OF 2

Figure 13-6. Methods of Coding the FIND Operation (Sheet 2 of 2)

The FIND operation requires entries in the following fields:

- a. FIND operation code in columns 28-32.
- b. A valid data set name in FACTOR 2.
- c. The letter R or S in column 53. The letter R specifies random access of the data set. The letter S specifies sequential access of the data set.
- d. The D1 indicator or blanks in columns 54-55.

The FIND operation may also use the following entries:

- a. The contents of FACTOR 1 may specify the name of a retrieval set, ordered set, automatic subset, or manual subset. This index name must have been previously defined in DASDL.
- b. The RESULT FIELD may contain a selection expression. This selection expression specifies the record of a data set which is to be processed, relative to the last record accessed.

A FIND operation code with random access (the letter R in column 53 of the Calculation Specifications) must be immediately followed by appropriate DMKEY operation(s) to define the key condition(s) which must be satisfied.

The FIND operation prohibits entries in the following fields:

- a. RESULT FIELD LENGTH
- b. DECIMAL POSITIONS FIELD
- c. LOW and EQUAL RESULTING INDICATORS

Refer to the FIND operation in the B 1800/B 1700 Systems Data Management System (DMSII) Reference Manual, Form No. 1089794, for a functional description of the FIND operation code.

FREE

The FREE operation code unlocks the current locked record for this program and this data set. Figure 13-7 shows one method of coding the FREE operation.



G12075

Figure 13-7. One Method of Coding the FREE Operation

The FREE operation requires entries in the following fields:

a. FREE entered in columns 28-32.

b. A valid data set name in FACTOR 2.

c. D1 exception indicator or blanks in columns 54-55.

The FREE operation prohibits entries in the following fields:

- a. FACTOR 1
- b. RESULT FIELD
- c. RESULT FIELD LENGTH
- d. DECIMAL POSITIONS FIELD
- e. HALF ADJUST/ACCESS MODE FIELD
- f. LOW and EQUAL RESULTING INDICATORS

Refer to the FREE operation in the B 1800/B 1700 Systems Data Management System (DMSII) Reference Manual, Form No. 1089794, for a functional description of the FREE operation code.

INSRT

The INSRT operation code specifies the insertion of a record from a data set into a manual subset. Figure 13-8 shows one method of coding the INSRT operation.

Prog	ram	nmei	r						-																						1	B	ι	1	r	r	o	u	1	ġ	h	1	5		R	P	G																								;	Dat	:e _		-					-
Prog	ran	nIC				-			_							- 10-																C/	۱L	С	JL	<u>A</u>	TIC	0	I S	P	EC		=10	:A	т	0	N																								,	Paç)e _	-		01				
Page	2 3	- Line	5	o Form Type ∠ Control Level	COLOCIAN/OR/SR	N 10N 9 1	A			ato 4		D N ION		17	18	19	20	f 21	Fac 72	.10	, 1	4 7	5 26	5.2	122	Or 8 2	per	atı 30	101	32	33	34	34	1	-ac	:10	r 2 8 1'	94	. 4	1 4		43	44	Re Fi	su elc	11	1 48		6 Field	, Length		Uecimal Positions U.9	C Hall Adjust H/Edit Code	Plu Hig Ta Hig Cha	Re Inc Ari S A Co ble in S S	thm finition	tinc itor net us vare v E 2 1 up ttor v E	c 2 er 2 er 2 vis qua eor 8 5		61	6	f			Co		nen						. 4		F	ro Id	gra ent	im. :	80	
Π	C	01	Π	c 🗙	Τ	T	Τ	Τ	Τ	Τ	T	Τ	Τ	Τ	1				Γ	Γ	Τ	Τ	T	T	T	Τ	T	T	Ì			Γ	Ι	Γ	Τ	T	Τ	Τ	Τ	Τ	1					Γ	Τ	T	Τ	T	T	Τ	1	1	T	T	T	Τ	T		Ţ	Γ	1		Τ	T	Τ	Γ	Γ	1	1	Ι	Γ	Γ	Τ	T	T	Γ	Π	
H	C) 2		c 🗶		E)	(A	In	P	1	E	-	k	3	F		Т	H	ε	Ī	I		s	F	2	r	4	0	ρ	E	R	A	T	1	6	1	1.	T	T	-	1	A	N	s	E	7	T	1	r	s	ħ	rli	H	E	7	v	7	ηĒ	T	0	F	1	A		Ī	ήA	N	u	A	t.	t	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	П	l
H	T) 3	Π	c 🗶	T	SI	AB	S	E	1	r	1	5	E	F	I	H	E	0	,	I	N	Γ	C)6	9.9	S I	D	L		A	n	10	1	10	F	17	s	TE		Г		I	s		T	H	E	-	-	16	1	3	E		ØI	=	A	T	D	A	T	A	1	5	E	T	T	t	+	-	T	T	Γ	t	T	I	T	Π	
H	1) 4	T	c 🗶	1	Di	F	1	1	IE		5	1	C.	M		D	A	5	c	L		Γ	T	T	Ţ	1	1				1.		I	T	T	T	T	T	T	1			-		Ť	T	T	T	1	1	T	T	1	1	1	t	T	T	Ť	t	i	ſ	ļ	ţ	t	T	T	ţ	-	T	Γ	Ī	Γ	T	T	ļ	T	Π	l
H	C) 5		с 🖡	T	T	Ť	T	Ť	+	T	1	1	T	1				Γ	T	T	T	T	T	T	1	T	1	1			T	Γ	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	1						T	T	T	T	T	1	+	1	1	1	T	T	T	ī		1		1	1	T	T	T	ī	+	+	T	1	Γ	T	T	T	Γ	Π	l
Π	To) 6	ŀ	с	Τ			T	Ι	Ī	T	T		1	M	A	N	s	E	T	-	T	Γ	T	1	-	J	s	R	T	D	A	T	19	E	7	1	T	T	T							Γ	T	T	T	T	T	1	D	1	T	T	T	Ţ		Γ		Ī		1	T	T	Γ	T	-	+	T		Γ	Γ	Γ	T		Π	l
T	C) 7		с	T	T	T	Τ	T	T	T	T	T	1	1				Γ	Γ	T	T		T	T	T	T	T	1			T		Ι	T	T	T	T	T	T	1					1	T	T	T	1	T	+	T	1	1	T	T	T						1		Ī	I	Γ	1		i	Ì		Γ	Γ		Γ	Γ	Π	I
T	T	10			-	1	T	Т	Т	T	Ţ	1	1	1	1	_		_	Г	1	Т	Т	Г	T	T	T	-		-1		-	Г	1	Т	Т	T	Т	Т	T	T		~				1	Т	Т	T	1	T	1	1	1	1	+	T	T	T	T	1	1	T	,	1	1	Т	1	T	-	-	T	Г	Г	T	Т	T	1		i

G1**2076**

Figure 13-8. One Method of Coding the INSRT Operation

The INSRT operation requires entries in the following fields:

- a. The manual subset name in FACTOR 1. This manual subset must have been previously defined by DASDL, and must be one of the following:
 - 1. An item of a disjoint data set defined on the File Description Specifications.
 - 2. An item of an embedded data set which is embedded in a disjoint data set defined on the File Description Specifications.
- b. INSRT entered in columns 28-32.

- c. A data set name in FACTOR 2. This data set name must be a disjoint data set which has been defined on the File Description Specifications.
- d. The D1 exception indicator or blanks in columns 54-55.

The INSRT operation prohibits entries in the following fields:

- a. RESULT FIELD
- b. RESULT FIELD LENGTH
- c. DECIMAL POSITIONS FIELD
- d. HALF ADJUST/ACCESS MODE FIELD
- e. LOW and EQUAL RESULTING INDICATORS

The data set name must be the declared source of records for a manual subset. For example, the manual subset name S1 must be a manual subset of the data set D, as the following example illustrates.

Example:

DASDL: S1 SUBSET OF D RPG: S1 INSRT D (FACTOR 1) (OPERATION) (FACTOR 2)

Refer to the INSERT operation in the B 1800/B 1700 Systems Data Management System (DMSII) Reference Manual, Form No. 1089794, for a functional description of the INSRT operation code.

LOCK

The LOCK operation code locates a record in the specified data set, transfers the data to the record area as described in the Input Specifications, and locks the record to prevent concurrent modifications by another user. If the record is not found, a NOTFOUND exception condition results. Figure 13-9 shows methods of coding the LOCK operation.

The LOCK operation requires entries in the following fields:

- a. LOCK entered in columns 28-32.
- b. A valid data set name in FACTOR 2.
- c. The letter R or S in column 53. If the letter R is specified, the data set is processed randomly. If the letter S is specified, the data set is processed sequentially.
- d. The D1 exception indicator or blanks in columns 54-55.

In addition to the preceding required entries, the LOCK operation may use the following optional entries:

a. FACTOR 1 to specify the name of a retrieval set, ordered set, automatic subset, or manual subset. The index name must have been previously defined in DASDL.

Programmer	Burroughs RPG	L 116	
Program I D	CALCULATION SPECIFICATION	Page	°' –
Indicators		Result to 1 Udicators A timetic	
AND AND Factor 1	Operation Factor 2 Result C	1 5 1	Program Ident
B S E S E S E <the< th=""> <the< th=""> <the< th=""> <the< th=""></the<></the<></the<></the<>	26 // /29 70 (0 (3) 12)/ 4 (5 (6 (7 (8) (9 (14) 4) 4) 4) 44 (5 (6 (7 (8) (9 (14) 4) 4) 4) 4) (14) (14) (14) (14) (1	1≤ βn Low Equal ₹ [Chan Read hofe: E0F 54 ¹¹ hofe: 58 ⁻ 66, ξ, β, β, h -1 h - 5 h - 6	· 6 [·] 8 [·] 9 80
01 C#	┝┽╄┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼		
02 CH RETSET IS THE IND	EX NAME OF A RETRIEVAL SET	DEFINED IN DASDL,	┟┼┼┼┼┥
0 3 CX DATSET ES THE NAM	E OF A DATA SET DEFINED IN	DASPL, AND REYR IS THE	
	EIKIEVAL SEI KEISEII	<u>┥</u> ┍┥┽ <u>┥</u> ┟┼╺┍┍╼┥┍┝╎╒╶╸╸┥┝	┟┼┽┼┼┨
		enn	╏┊┊┊┊┤┤
			┠┼┼┼┼┤
	LOCK DATSET NEXT	801	┠┼┼┼┼┨
	DMKEV40 KEVR	EQL	
	JOCK DATSET	Son	╏┊┊╎┼┼┨
02 CH ORDSET IS THE IND	EX NAME OF AN ØRDERED SET D	EFINED IN DASPL.	[+ + + + +]
03 C* DATSET IS THE NAM	E &F A DATA SET DEFINED IN	DASDL, AND KEYS IS THE	
04 CX KEY NAME OF THE O	ROERED SET ØRDSET.		
05 C #			
06 C ORDSET	LOCK DATSET	R 01	
0 7 C	DMKEY30 KEYØ	EQL	
08 C ØRDSET	LOCK DATSET NEXT	RD1	
0 9 C	DMKEY40 KEY0	EQL	
10 C ORDSET	LØCK DATSET	S D1	
11 C ØRDSET	LØCK DATSET FIRST	S D1	
12 C ØRDSET	LOCK DATSET LAST	S 0 1	
1 3 C ØRDSET	LOCK DATSET NEXT	SD1	
14 C ØRDSET	LOCK DATSET PRIDR	S P1	
01 C#	┝┼╄┼┾┼┽╊╸┼┽┟┟┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼	┟┼┠╀┠┼┽┝┼┲┝┿┯┝┾┾┝┝┝┝	
02 CX DATSET IS THE NAM	E OF A DATA SET DEFINED IM	DASDL	↓↓↓↓↓↓
0 3 C 🗶	╶┽┽╪╤╌╤╌╪╼╧╧╴╧╧╸╴╴╴╴╴	┝╌┝╴┥╴┥╴┥╴┥╴┥╴┥╴┥	┞┊┼┼┼┨
			┠┼┼┼┼┨
	LEVICK DHISEI FIRSI		┠┾┿┽┼┨
			┠┼┼┼┼┨
			│
		<mark>┍╸┉┽┹╡┊╎┊┊╷┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊</mark>	┠┼┼┼┼┨

G12077/SHEET 1 OF 2

Figure 13-9. Methods of Coding the LOCK Operation (Sheet 1 of 2)

b. The RESULT FIELD may contain a selection expression. This selection expression specifies the record of the data set which is to be processed, relative to the last record accessed.

A LOCK operation code with random access (the letter R in column 53 of the Calculation Specifications) must be immediately followed by appropriate DMKEY operation(s) to define the key condition(s) which must be satisfied.

Programmer	Burroug	hs RPG	Date	
Program I D	CALCULATION SPE	CIFICATION	Page	- 01
andicators and AND AND Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 and Factor 1 an	Operation Factor 2	Result Result ing Plus Minus Zero 000 000 000 Compare High Low Equal 1 </td <td>Comments 1 626 sefensée serv , 113415</td> <td>Program Ident 6 77 78 79 80</td>	Comments 1 626 sefensée serv , 113415	Program Ident 6 77 78 79 80
				TTT
02 CX MANSET IS THE NAME	FA MANUAL SUB	SET DEFINED IN DASI	L, DATSET IS	
03 CX THE NAME OF A DATA	SET DEFINED IN	DASDL, AND KEYM IS	THE KEY NAME	
04 CX OF THE MANUAL SUBSE	T MANSET.			
0 5 C 🗶				
06 C MANSET	LOCK DATSET	RD1		
0 7 C	DMKEY30	KEYMEQL		
08 C MANSET	LOCK DATSET	NEXT RD1		·
0 9 C	DMKEV40	KEYM		
10 C MANSET	LOCK DATSET	SD1		
11 C MANSET	LOCK DATSET	FIRST SDL		
12 C MAMSET	LOCK DATSET	LAST SO1		
13 C MANSET	LOCK DATSET	NEXT SP1		
14 C MANSET	LOCK DATSET	PRIØR SD1		
0 1 C K				
02 C # AUTSET IS THE NAME	OF AN AUTOMATIC	SUBSET DEFINED IN	DASDL. DATSET	
03 CX IS THE NAME OF A DA	TA SET DEFINED	IN DASDL, AND KEYA	IS THE KEY	
04 CX NAME OF THE AUTOMAT	IC SUBSET AUTSE	Π.		
05 C#				
06 C AUTSET	LOCK DATSET	RD1		
0 7 C	DMKEY30	KEYA		
08 C AUTSET	LOCK DATSET	MEXT RD1		
0 9 C	DMKE Y40	KEYA EQL		
10 C AUTSET	LØCK DATSET	102		
11 C AUTSET	LOCK DATSET	FIRST SD1		
12 C AUTSET	LOCK DATSET	LAST SO1		
13 C AUTSET	LOCIS DATSET	MEXT SD1		
14 C AUTSET	LOCK DATSET	PRIØR SD1		
		<u>╷╷╷╷╷╷╷╷╷╷╷╷╷╷╷</u>	**************	1111

G12077/SHEET 2 OF 2

Figure 13-9. Methods of Coding the LOCK Operation (Sheet 2 of 2)

The LOCK operation prohibits entries in the following fields:

- a. RESULT FIELD LENGTH
- b. DECIMAL POSITIONS
- c. LOW and EQUAL RESULTING INDICATORS

Refer to the MODIFY operation in the B 1800/B 1700 Systems Data Management System (DMSII) Reference Manual, Form No. 1089794, for a functional description of the LOCK operation code.

REMOV -

The REMOV operation removes the current record from a manual subset. The record is not removed from the data set. Figure 13-10 shows one method of coding the REMOV operation.



G1**2078**

Figure 13-10. One Method of Coding the REMOV Operation

The REMOV operation requires entries in the following fields:

- a. A manual subset name in FACTOR 1. The manual subset must be one of the following:
 - 1. An item of a disjoint data set defined on the File Description Specifications.
 - 2. An item of an embedded data set which is embedded in a disjoint data set defined on the File Description Specifications.
- b. REMOV entered in columns 28-32.
- c. The D1 indicator or blanks in columns 54-55.

The REMOV operation prohibits entries in the following fields:

- a. FACTOR 2
- b. RESULT FIELD
- c. RESULT FIELD LENGTH
- d. DECIMAL POSITIONS
- e. HALF ADJUST/ACCESS MODE FIELD
- f. LOW and EQUAL RESULTING INDICATORS

Refer to the REMOVE operation in the B 1800/B 1700 Systems Data Management System (DMSII) Reference Manual, Form No. 1089794, for a functional description of the REMOV operation code.

STORE

The STORE operation provides a method of updating a record or adding a new record to a data set. Figure 13-11 shows one method of coding the STORE operation code.



Figure 13-11. One Method of Coding the STORE Operation Code

The STORE operation requires entries in the following fields:

a. STORE entered in columns 28-32.

b. A valid data set name in FACTOR 2.

c. The D1 exception indicator or blanks in columns 54-55.

The STORE operation prohibits entries in the following fields:

- a. FACTOR 1
- b. RESULT FIELD
- c. RESULT FIELD LENGTH
- d. DECIMAL POSITIONS
- e. HALF ADJUST/ACCESS MODE FIELD
- f. LOW and EQUAL RESULTING INDICATORS

The STORE operation uses Output-Format Specifications which contain:

a. The data set name in columns 7-14.

b. The letter S in column 15.

Refer to the STORE operation in the B 1800/B 1700 Systems Data Management System (DMSII) Reference Manual, Form No. 1089794, for a functional description of the STORE operation code.

DATA MANAGEMENT EXCEPTION HANDLING

An RPG program which uses DMS operations may encounter any one of many DMS exception conditions which prevent the operation from being performed as specified. If an exception condition occurs, the RPG program terminates unless one of the following conditions exists:

- a. Columns 54-55 of the Calculation Specifications for a DMS operation other than DMKEY contain the D1 indicator for the DMS operation which caused the exception condition.
- b. An exception handling routine exists in the Calculation Specifications for the cycle-driven file, demand file, or manual subset for which the exception condition occurred.

INPUT EXCEPTIONS FOR CYCLE-DRIVEN DATA MANAGEMENT FILES

If a cycle-driven DMS file is used and one of the following exception conditions occurs, the operator must respond appropriately. The exception conditions listed below result in the following run-time diagnostics for cycle-driven DMS files:

- a. DEADLOCK exception gives the operator the option to enter:
 - 1. <program job number>AXRETRY. Attempt the same operation again.
 - 2. <program job number>AXSTOP. Program performs an orderly termination.
- b. IOERROR exception gives the operator the option to enter:
 - 1. <program job number>AXRETRY. Attempt the same operation again.
 - 2. <program job number>AXSTOP. Program performs an orderly termination.
- c. SECURITYERROR exception only allows the operator to enter:
 - 1. <program job number>AXSTOP. Program performs an orderly termination.
- d. VERSIONERROR exception only allows the operator to enter:
 - 1. <program job number>AXSTOP. Program performs an orderly termination.

A NOTFOUND exception condition is treated as an end of file for cycle-driven DMS files.

ALL OTHER EXCEPTION CONDITIONS

An exception handling routine may be coded for one of the following:

- a. Those exceptions which occur as a result of an explicit data management operation other than DMKEY which does not have the indicator D1 entered in columns 54-55 for that operation.
- b. Those exceptions which may occur for primary or secondary DMS files exclusive of the exceptions previously listed under Input Exceptions for Cycle-Driven Data Management Files.

The exception handling routine operation codes are used only to delimit the beginning and end of an exception handling routine. Calculation Specification lines within an exception handling routine must contain the entries UR, OR, AN, or blank in columns 7-8, and all exception handling routines must be specified immediately before all Output-Format Specifications. Exception handling routines must not be nested in the RPG program.

EXCEPTION HANDLING OPERATION CODES

The exception handling operation codes are described in the following paragraphs.

BEGUR

This operation code indicates the start of an exception handling routine. FACTOR 2 must contain the name of the disjoint data set, embedded data set, or manual subset for which the exception handling routine is applicable. For the BEGUR operation, columns 9-27 and 43-59 must be blank.

ENDUR

This operation code indicates the end of an exception handling routine. FACTOR 1 may contain a label. This label is used as a tag, thus allowing exits from different points within the exception handling routine. Columns 9-27 and 33-59 must be blank for this exception handling operation code.

The following rules must be followed when coding an exception handling routine:

- a. Exactly one exception handling routine may be defined for:
 - 1. Each disjoint data set defined in the File Description Specifications.
 - 2. Each embedded data set which is embedded within a disjoint data set defined in the File Description Specifications.
 - 3. Each manual subset which is an item of a disjoint data set or an item of an embedded data set.

- b. The following operation codes must not appear within an exception handling routine:
 - 1. CHAIN
 - 2. DELET
 - 3. EXCPT
 - 4. EXSR
 - 5. FIND
 - 6. FORCE
 - 7. FREE
 - 8. INSRT
 - 9. LOCK
 - 10. READ
 - 11. RECV
 - 12. REMOV
 - 13. SEND
 - 14. STORE
 - 15. TRBEG
 - 16. TREND
- c. Branching into or out of a given exception handling routine is not allowed (for example, a branch such as a GOTO or EXSR operation).

Additionally, the following must be noted:

- a. The program aborts if an exception condition occurs and no exception handling routine is defined for at least one of the following:
 - 1. A cycle-driven DMS file.

- 2. A demand DMS file which does not have the D1 indicator coded in columns 54-55 of the Calculation Specifications for a DMS operation code other than DMKEY.
- 3. A manual subset which does not have the D1 indicator coded in columns 54-55 of the Calculation Specifications for the DMS operations INSRT or REMOV.

b. If the exception condition occurs during detail or total output, the operation continues with the next detail or total output line after exiting the exception handling routine.

If an exception condition occurs as a result of an EXCPT or STORE operation code, the operation continues with the next output line which contains the letter E (if the operation was an EXCEPT) or the letter S (if the operation was a STORE) in column 15 of the Output-Format Specification or the next calculation operation in the Calculation Specifications after exiting the exception handling routine.

Figures 13-12 and 13-13 illustrate a method of retrying an output operation when an exception condition is reported for a DMS operation. Figure 13-12 shows a method of retrying when cycle-driven DMS files are specified. Figure 13-13 shows a method of retrying the output operation following an exception condition when the EXCPT operation code is specified in the Calculation Specifications.

Prog	r ar	nπ	ner																						ł	31	u	r 1	°C	νU	ıġ	h	19		RI	PC	;																		1	Date					_
Proç	gra	m I	D																						I)A'I	'A	BA	SE.	S	PE	CI	FI	CA	TI	ON																			1	Page		0	d		
Dace	1997		Line	Form Type		Da	ite N	ı E lan	Bas	se			I	Lo at	gi a Na	Ba	al aso	e			A	cc	es	s I	Mo	de]									No	ot	U	se	d																		P	rogr Iden	əm t	
1	2	3	4 5	6	1	8	9 11	D 11	12	13 1	4.15	5 16	17	8 19	20	21	22 3	23 24	25	26	27 2	8 2	9 3O	31	32 3	3 34	35	36 3	7 38	39	40 4	11 43	2 43	44 4	45 46	647	48	49.5	0 51	52	53 5	4 55	56	57 5	8 59	60	61.6	52 63	3 64	65	666	7 68	69	70	11 72	73	74 75	76	11 1	879	80
Π				D	P	A	(1	20	L	L	Τ				Τ						u	Τ			Τ	Τ												T	Τ					i	T						1				T	Π				Π	
Π	Τ		T	Π		Τ	Τ	Τ					Π		T			T	Τ	T		Τ	Τ	Π		Τ	Π	T	Τ	Τ		Τ			Τ		Π					T	Ţ	Π	T	Τ	11	Τ	Τ					Π							Π





G12080/SHEET 1 OF 2

Figure 13-12. Program Example of Retrying a Write after Exiting Exception Routine with Cycle-Driven Processing (Sheet 1 of 2)



G12080/SHEET 2 OF 2

1 1 0



In both figures, the data base PAYROLL is opened update. The file MASTER, defined in DASDL as a disjoint data set, is an update primary DMS file with additions specified (an A in column 66 of the File Description Specifications), and is accessed by way of the index DEPEND. When a record from MASTER is read, the record identifying indicator 01 is turned on, and the value from the DASDLdefined location DUPKEY is loaded to the program-defined variable DUPKEY. Also, both examples use the same exception handling routine, delimited by the BEGUR and ENDUR operations in the Calculation Specifications.



Figure 13-13. Program Example of Retrying a Write after Exiting Exception Routine with Exception Output Handling

In figure 13-12, a record is read and an attempt is made to add a record with the same key as was read by means of the RPG cycle. In figure 13-13, the first EXCPT operation in the Calculation Specifications attempts to add a record which has the same key as an existing record. In both examples, a DUPLICATES exception condition is reported and the exception condition indicators D1 and DB are set ON. Each program then branches to the exception handling routine, denoted by the BEGUR operation in the Calculation Specifications. Here, the literal NEWVALUE is moved into the key field DUPKEY and processing continues. In figure 13-12, the processing continues at the second output record specified on the Output-Format Specifications, and in figure 13-13, processing continues with the second EXCPT in the Calculation Specifications. Both methods achieve the same results.

It is recommended that writing to DMS files be done using the EXCPT and STORE operation codes. This insures timely identification and handling of exception conditions.

DATA MANAGEMENT OUTPUT-FORMAT SPECIFICATIONS

The entries defined in the Output-Format Specifications for DMS files are divided into the following two sections:

- a. Record description section.
- b. Field description section.

RECORD DESCRIPTION SECTION

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

This field must contain the letter O.

7-14 FILE NAME

The file specified must be one of two types:

- a. A disjoint data set previously described on the File Description Specifications as:
 - 1. Input with ADD
 - 2. Input with DELETE
 - 3. Input with ADD/DELETE
 - 4. Update
 - 5. Update with ADD
 - 6. Update with DELETE
 - 7. Update with ADD/DELETE
 - 8. Output with ADD
- b. An embedded data set which is embedded in a disjoint data set defined on the File Description Specifications.

15 TYPE

The letter entries H, D, E, and T are all valid. Also valid is the DMS letter entry S.

Enter the letter S in this field when this record is to be written as a result of a STORE operation in the Calculation Specifications.

16-18 RECORD ADDITION/DELETION

A record can be added to an existing DMS file if the following conditions are met.

- a. The file is defined in a File Description Specification as an input or update primary or secondary file with an index specified, an input or update demand file, or an output file.
- b. Column 66 of the File Description Specification has the letter A or B.
- c. DMS is entered in the DEVICE FIELD on the File Description Specifications.
- d. ADD is entered in the Output-Format Specification in columns 16-18. ADD is implied for files declared as Input with ADD or Output with ADD.
- e. ADD must not be specified on AND or OR lines of the Output-Format Specifications.

Also, a record can be added to a DMS file if the following conditions are met.

- a. The file is an embedded data set.
- b. ADD is entered in the Output-Format Specifications in columns 16-18.
- c. ADD must not be specified in AND or OR lines of the Output-Format Specifications.

A record can be deleted from an existing DMS file only if:

- a. The file is defined in the File Description Specification as an input or update primary or secondary file.
- b. The letter D or B is entered in column 66 on the File Description Specifications.
- c. DMS is entered in the DEVICE FIELD on the File Description Specifications.

- d. DEL is entered in columns 16-18 in the Output-Format Specifications.
- e. DEL must not be specified in AND or OR lines of the Output-Format Specifications.
- f. No field description lines may appear with a DEL record description line.

Deletion of records in embedded data sets or demand disjoint data sets is accomplished with the DELET operation code. This does not reference Output-Format Specifications.

23-31 OUTPUT INDICATORS

Besides the indicators normally allowed for these fields, any of the DMS exception condition indicators (D1, DA-DH, DJ-DS) may also be used, but only if DMS files are specified in the File Description Specifications.

32-74 These fields must be blank for record description lines except for variable format data sets.

VARIABLE FORMAT RECORDS

When Variable Format Records are specified for a data set in the DASDL specifications, the RPG compiler requires certain record-type specifications in the Output-Format Specifications for added records to that data set.

The following example shows a DASDL source where Variable Format Records are specified:

Example:

DEPT DATA	SET (
DEPNUM	NUI	MBEF	8 (5	5);	
DEPNAM	AL	PHA	(1	LO);	
RECKEY	RECORD '	ГҮРЕ	E NU	JMBER (S	52);),
	-1:	(A B	ALPHA ALPHA	(3); (4)),
	2:	(C D	ALPHA NUMBER	(7); (6)•),

MAXRECORDS = 100;

The following should be noted about the records in the DEPT data set:

- a. Every record has a fixed portion and a variable portion which depends on the value of RECKEY.
- b. The fixed portion of the record consists of the items:

DEPNUM
DEPNAM
RECKEY

- c. When records are added to the DEPT data set, DMS uses RECKEY to determine which of two possible formats to assign to the variable portion of the record.
 - 1. If RECKEY = -1, the variable portion consists of items A and B.
 - 2. If RECKEY = 2, the variable portion consists of items C and D.
 - 3. If RECKEY = 0 or the value defined in DASDL as the FIXEDFORMATVALUE, this record has only the fixed portion.
 - 4. If RECKEY = any other value, a DATAERROR exception condition occurs when adding the record.
- d. When variable format records are updated, the control item for the record type must not be changed. If a change is attempted, a DATAERROR exception condition results.

If a record is added to a data set with variable formatting, the first record line(s) of the Output-Format Specifications for the data set must specify the value to be assigned to the record-type. The follow-ing entries are required in the Output-Format Specifications:

- a. Columns 32-37 must specify a field name or columns 45-70 must specify a constant. If a constant is specified, the constant must be formatted according to the rules for output of constants to data sets on the Output-Format Specifications. Specifying a field name in columns 32-37 and a constant in columns 45-70 is not allowed. Decimal alignment is performed when the record is written. Data truncation is not allowed.
- b. If columns 14-16 contain the entry AND, columns 32-37 and columns 45-70 must be blank.
- c. If columns 15-16 contain the entry OR, columns 32-37 and columns 45-70 may be blank. If columns 32-37 and columns 45-70 are blank, the field name or constant from the last specified OR line or the first record line is used. If the field name or constant position is not blank, the specified value as given applies. Figure 13-14 illustrates this possibility.

If indicators 01 and 02 are ON, FIELD contains the value for RECKEY.

- If indicator 03 is ON, FIELD contains the value for RECKEY.
- If indicator 04 is ON, FIELD contains the value for RECKEY.
- If indicator 05 is ON, +2 is the value for RECKEY.
- If indicator O6 is ON, +2 is the value for RECKEY.
- If indicator 07 is ON, 0 is the value for RECKEY.



G12082

Figure 13-14. Example of Variable Format Records Coding

75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

FIELD DEFINITIONS FOR FIELD DESCRIPTION LINES

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

This field must contain the letter O.

- 7-16 These fields must be left blank for field description lines.
- 17-22 DMS OUTPUT LOCATION

This field is used in the Field Description line to indicate the output location and format of the variable name entered in columns 32-37 or the constant entered in column 45. The entry in this field must be a field name which has been previously defined in the specified data set in DASDL or may be blank if the variable name in the VARIABLE NAME field is a DASDL-defined name. An entry in this field must not be a subscripted vector. This is the only case of a field description line having entries in columns 17-22.

If the entry in this field is defined in DASDL as unsigned numeric, all signs are stripped off before the variable or constant is written.

23-31 OUTPUT INDICATORS

Besides the indicators normally allowed for these fields, any of the DMS exception condition indicators (D1, DA-DH, DJ-DS) can also be used, but only if DMS files are specified in the File Description Specifications.

32-37 VARIABLE NAME

This field is used to identify an output data field. The identifier used must have been previously defined in the Input Specifications, Extension Specifications, or Calculation Specifications. For DMS files, the entry may be the same as the entry made in the DMS output location (columns 17-22 on the Output-Format Specifications). The following conditions must be satisfied.

- a. If the variable is numeric, the DASDL definition must be numeric. Decimal point alignment is automatically performed.
- b. If the variable is alphanumeric, the DASDL definition must be alphanumeric. The data is stored left-justified with blank fill if required.

Truncation of data is not allowed.

Table 13-2 illustrates the various combinations of DMS OUTPUT LOCATION and VARIABLE NAME fields and the action taken.

38 EDIT CODES

This field must be blank for DMS files.

40-43 END POSITION

This field must be blank for DMS files.

44 PACKED

This field must be blank for DMS files.

45-70 CONSTANT

Edit words must not be entered in this field for DMS files.

The following rules must be observed when forming constants with DMS files:

- a. The VARIABLE NAME field entry must be blank.
- b. The value of any constant must be numeric if the DMS OUTPUT LOCATION entry is numeric and alphanumeric if the DMS OUTPUT LOCATION entry (columns 17-22) is alphanumeric.
- c. If the DMS OUTPUT LOCATION entry (columns 17-22) is numeric, column 45 must contain:
 - 1. + for positive values.
 - 2. for negative values.
 - 3. A digit (0-9) to imply positive.
- d. Decimal point alignment is performed on the entry.
- e. Sign characters and decimal points are not included in the size of the literal.

OUTPUT LOCATION Columns 17 - 22	VARIABLE NAME Columns 32 - 37	Program Action	
Vector	Array	Write the contents of the whole Array to the location of the DASDL-defined Vector.	
Vector	Array,J	Write the contents of Array,J to the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Vector,J.	
Vector	Table,J	Write the contents of Table,J to the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Vector,J.	
Vector	Array,3	Write the contents of Array,3 to the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Vector,3.	
Vector	Table,3	Write the contents of Table,3 to the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Vector,3.	
Vector	Table	Not allowed.	
Vector	Field Name	Not allowed.	
Field Name	Array	Not allowed.	1
Field Name	Array,J	Write the contents of Array,J to the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Field Name.	Ĺ
Field Name	Table,J	Write the contents of Table,J to the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Field Name.	
Field Name	Array,3	Write the contents of Array,3 to the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Field Name.	
Field Name	Table,3	Write the contents of Table,3 to the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Field Name.	
Field Name	Field Name	Write the contents of the Field Name in col- umns 32-37 to the location of the DASDL- defined Field Name in columns 17-22.	
Field Name	Table	Not allowed.	
Blank	Array	Write the contents of the whole Array to the location of the DASDL-defined Vector. The definition used for columns 17-22 defaults to the DASDL-defined name in columns 32-37.	
Blank	Array,J	Write the contents of Array,J to the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Vector,J. The definition used for columns 17-22 defaults to the DASDL-defined name in columns 32-37.	(*

Table 13-2. Combinations of DMS OUTPUT LOCATION and VARIABLE NAME Fields in the Output-Format Specifications Table 13-2. Combinations of DMS OUTPUT LOCATION and VARIABLE NAME Fields in the Output-Format Specifications (cont)

OUTPUT LOCATION Columns 17 - 22	VARIABLE NAME Columns 32 - 37	Program Action
Blank	Array,3	Write the contents of Array,3 to the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Vector,3. The definition used for columns 17-22 defaults to the DASDL-defined name in columns 32-37.
Blank	Table	Not Allowed.
Blank	Table,J	Write the contents of Table,J to the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Vector,J. The definition used for columns 17-22 defaults to the DASDL-defined name in columns 32-37.
Blank	Table,3	Write the contents of Table,3 to the loca- tion of the DASDL-defined Vector,3. The definition used for columns 17-22 defaults to the DASDL-defined name in columns 32-37.
Blank	Field Name	Write the contents of Field Name to the location of the DASDL-defined Field Name. The definition used for columns 17-22 defaults to the DASDL-defined name in columns 32-37.

f. The DASDL definition must be at least as long as the constant after decimal point alignment has been performed.

If the DMS OUTPUT LOCATION entry is numeric, embedded blanks must not appear in the constant field.

- g. If the DMS OUTPUT LOCATION field (columns 17-22) is alphanumeric, then:
 - 1. The DASDL definition must be at least as long as the constant.
 - 2. Data is left-justified with blank fill, if necessary.

71-74 These columns must be blank.

75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

Figure 13-15 shows coding examples for data management files in the Output-Format Specifications.

Progra	ammei			Burro	oughs	RPG		Date _	
Progra	am I D			OUTPUT FOR	MAT SPECIF	ICATION		Page	of
			Space Skip Output Indicators			<u> </u>	dit Codes (Column 38)		
			Blank or	7		Commas Balance	No Sign Cr - Plus	sign	
				Field	Evelo	Yes Yes		a Field	1 1
				Name (Variable	End 1	No Yes	3 C L Z=Zero	Not Used	Program Ident
1	1	1 L		Name)	Position a	No No	4 D M Supp	press	
a a	6	E		dr O	cke		Constant or Edit Word		1
1	تر. ا	L.		μ μ		1,2 3 4 5 6 7 8	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 1 7 18 19 20 21 22	23 24	
	3 4		7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 2 28 24 10	3132 .1 .4 .5 36 37 38 3	9 10 51 42 43 44 44	1 46 1 48 49 50 51 52 53	54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 67 63 64 65 66 67	68 69 1 1 2 73 74	75 °6 77 78 79 80
-				╺╉┽┾┿┾┿┿	┼┼┼┼┼	┽┽┼┼┽╾┞ _{╋╴}	┍╆╆┾┿┲┼┽┯╆┼┯┿┍┥	╶┼┼╺╸┥┤┦	┟┽╍┽┽┽┫
	02	0	* ADDING A RECORD TO THE	DINS FILE	NAMEI	D MASTER.	┊╪╪╪┊┊╎╎╎╎╎	+++++	┝┼╧┼┵┼┫
	0 3	0	╡ ┼╂╂╂╂╪╞╋╋╋╝╴	╺┫┥┥┥┥┥┥	+++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	┊┊┊┊┊┊┊╡┊┥┫┥╸╿╴┊		┟┼╍┼┼┼┩
4	04	0	MASTER DADD 01	┛┨┥┥┥┥┥	┥┥┥┥	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++			┝┷╾┼┿┽┫
4	0 5	0	DmSIT1	FIELD1		++++++++			
	06	0	*						
	0 7	0	* DELETING A RECORD FROM	THE DMS	FILE J	NAMED MAS	TER		
T	0 8	0							
Π	0 9	0	MASTER DDEL 02						
Π	10	0	*						
Γ	1 1	0	A WPDATING A RECORD IN T	HE DMS FI	LE WAR	NED MASTE	R.		
1	1 2	0	****			*****		+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	+++++
T	1 3	0	MASTER S 03						+++++
H	1 4	о	DMSELD	FIFLD1					+++++
H	1 5	0	Dens T11			•2		++++++	+++++
H	16	0	DMS TT2	-† †††††††		ALPHA CO	NSTANT'	++++++	
H	1 7	ю		DMSTT2	*****			++++++	+++++
H	1 8	0	<u><u></u><u></u><u></u></u>	Pristi S	┝┼┼┼┞┼	*******	╺╇╅┽╪┿╍╍╺╋┫╸╸╸	+++++	+++++
H	19	0	AUTOUT ITNE AN MOTTES		CTE!	A TO THE	INCATTAN DEETA	ED DY	+++++
H	20	6		In DACELD	(ALA				+++++
┢┷					Ĭ<u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u>	╅╄╋╋┺╋╋	╾┽╄┾┊┑ゃ┊╾╂┨┊┶┽┵	┼┼╸╸┼┞┨	┽┽╇┿┽┨
	0 2			TUC MAINAGO	TP Ca	ICTONT 11	TA THE LACOTT		-+++++
	0 2			THE MUMER	The day	SIMPI IA	IP INE LUCHIL	PP	┽┼┼┼┨
<u> </u>				ECTUKED N	UMERIC	FIELD D	MSL/12	-+- <u>+</u> -+++- }	
ļ.	04				+++++				┿┿┿┽┥
 	0 5		A QUITPUT LINE 16 WRITES	THE ALPHA	NUMERI	IC CONSTA	MI IO THE LOCA	(FØN	
	06	0	A DEFINED BY THE PASDL-D	ECLARED A	LPHANL	MERIC FI	ELD DMSITZ.	+++++++	
L.	0 7	0	┩┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼		++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	╺┽┿╪┽╧╧┊┾┨┥┥┥╸╸	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	
L-	08	0	* OUTPUT LINE 17 WRITES	THE FLELD	DMSI	T3 TO THE	LOCATION DEFIN	ED BY	
	09	0	THE DASDL-DECLARED FIE	LD DMSITS	(DMS	QUTPUT L	OCATION IS IMPL	LEED).	i-i-i-i-i-i-i-i-i-i-i-i-i-i-i-i-i-i
1	1110	101			11111			1	

G12083

Figure 13-15. Output-Format Specifications for DMS Files

DATA MANAGEMENT AUDIT/RECOVERY

A processing failure can interrupt a logical update to a data base. For example, a data record may have been inserted into a data set but not into one of its automatic sets. To recover data base integrity after such a failure, it is necessary to preserve the "before" images so that partial operations can be removed from the data base. Storage failures can occur requiring "after" images to restore data base integrity. In order to recover the data base, an audit trail must be maintained by DMSII.

If the AUDIT option is set in DASDL, an audit trail is maintained by DMS. This audit trail can be stored on tape or disk. If disk is specified, use a disk pack other than the disk pack which contains the data base. If the audit trail and data base are maintained on the same disk pack, and an irrecoverable disk failure occurs, the data base can only be recovered to the point where the data base was dumped to tape or another disk pack. Maintaining separate disk packs for the audit trail and data base makes recovery of the data base faster.

When a data base is audited (AUDIT option set in DASDL), all changes to the data base are written sequentially to the audit file. If a processing failure occurs, this audit file contains each change so that they can be reapplied to the data base by the DMS recovery routines. All logically incomplete transactions are removed from the data base.

The DASDL source for an audited data base includes a RESTART DATA SET declaration. This restart data set holds the necessary information so that a program can realign itself with the last good transaction prior to the processing failure. When DMS recovers the data base following a processing failure, the DMS recovery routines store each program's restart information (based on the contents of the audit trail) into the restart data set. Since the restart data set is part of the data base, RPG programs can conveniently retrieve the restart information from this data set to reinitialize themselves after completion of the recovery process.

All updating to an audited data base must be done within transaction state. There are two operation codes in RPG which delimit transaction state for an RPG program. They are TRBEG and TREND. TRBEG specifies the beginning of transaction state and TREND specifies the end of transaction state. These are explicit operations and are not required for RPG cycle-driven file processing.

Cycle-driven DMS files generate TRBEG and TREND operation codes implicitly. This occurs when:

- a. A restart data set is specified in the File Description Specifications.
- b. One or more cycle-driven DMS files are specified in the File Description Specifications.
- c. The data base is opened update.

A TRBEG operation is generated by the RPG compiler after the record identifying indicator is set ON for the cycle-driven DMS file. One other TRBEG operation is generated when end of file (the LR indicator ON) is reached for cycle-driven DMS files just prior to end-of-job totals. Figure H-1 in Appendix H shows the implicit TRBEG and TREND operations performed on cycle-driven files in relation to the RPG cycle.

A TREND operation with audit and no syncpoint is generated by the RPG compiler following detail output except when the 1P indicator is ON. One other TREND operation with no audit and syncpoint is generated after end-of-job totals and before all files are closed.

The DMS recovery routines are transaction-oriented and always recover to a time when no partial transactions are reflected in the data base.

A transaction consists of a sequence of DMS operations grouped together in an RPG program. These DMS operations constitute a logical change to the data base. The DMS operations which actually change the data base, (STORE, DELET, INSRT, REMOV) must be performed within a transaction state; otherwise, an AUDITERROR exception condition occurs. Other operations such as the FIND operation can be performed either in or out of a transaction state since the operation does not change any item in the data base.

Following the recovery of a data base, the RPG program must reprocess any transactions which were interrupted due to the processing failure. To assist the RPG program in restarting, restart information must be stored in the restart data set. If a processing failure occurs, the recovery routines insure that the information corresponding to the last good transaction is in the restart data set. Using this information, the program can restart at the point where the data base was recovered.

If a data base is opened update (the letter U in column 27 of the Data Base Specification) and the data base is being audited, the restart data set defined in DASDL must be defined in the File Description Specifications in the RPG program. If a data base is opened input only (the letter I in column 27 of the Data Base Specifications), the RPG program must not specify a File Description Specification for a restart data set.

RESTART DATA SET FILE DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATION

Every restart data set to be used by an RPG program must be described to the RPG compiler in the File Description Specifications. The restart data set must be specified and the AUDIT option must be set in the DASDL source program.

FIELD DEFINITIONS

1-2 PAGE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

3-5 LINE

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

6 FORM TYPE

This field must contain the letter F.

7-14 DATA SET NAME

This field must contain the name of the restart data set which is specified in DASDL.

15 FILE TYPE

For a restart data set, this field must contain the letter R.

- 16-39 These fields must be blank for a restart data set.
- 40-46 DEVICE

For a restart data set, this field must contain the entry DMS.

47-65 For a restart data set, these fields must be blank.

66 FILE ADDITION/UNORDERED/DELETION

For a restart data set, all entries for this field which are valid for demand files with device type DMS are also valid for a restart data set. Valid entries for this field are:

Entry	Definition				
А	Records may be added to this file.				
Blank	Records may not be added to this file.				

For a restart data set, these fields must be blank.

75-80 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION

Refer to Section 2 for a complete description.

RESTART DATA SET INPUT SPECIFICATIONS

The Input Specifications for a restart data set are identical to those specifications for any demand-driven file whose device type is DMS. Input Specifications for a restart data set are required only if the program has FIND or LOCK operations applied to it.

RESTART DATA SET CALCULATION SPECIFICATIONS

All DMS operations which are valid for demand DMS data sets are also valid for the restart data set. Specifically, restart data sets are essentially update, demand DMS files. However, no operations which alter the restart data set, for example STORE, are allowed outside of a transaction state. If such an operation is attempted, an AUDITERROR exception condition occurs.

For 71-74 - see page 13-9.

Two additional operation codes are needed to explicitly define a transaction to DMS for an audited data base. These are the TRBEG and TREND operations. The use of these operation codes is defined as follows.

TRBEG

Initiates transaction state for this program. TRBEG must be entered in columns 28-32 of the Calculation Specifications. The Dl exception condition indicator may be entered in columns 54-55. All other fields must be blank. No record is written to the restart data set as a result of execution of the TRBEG operation.

TREND

Ends transaction state for this program. The FACTOR 2 field may contain the entry NOAUDIT, and the RESULT FIELD may contain the entry SYNCPT. The D1 exception condition indicator may be entered in columns 54-55.

If the FACTOR 2 field contains the entry NOAUDIT, no information is written to the restart data set. If the FACTOR 2 field is left blank, a STORE operation is performed on the restart record defined with the letter R in column 15 of the Output-Format Specifications.

If the RESULT FIELD contains the entry SYNCPT, a syncpoint is forced by DMS prior to returning control back to this program. The SYNCPT option ensures that all transactions performed prior to this TREND operation with syncpoint are reflected in the data base. If the RESULT FIELD is left blank, no syncpoint is forced.

It is recommended that the D1 exception condition indicator be entered in columns 54-55 of the Calculation Specifications for the TRBEG and TREND operations. If columns 54-55 are left blank for a TRBEG or TREND operation and an exception condition occurs, the exception handling routine for the restart data set is entered. Refer to the subsection titled Data Management Exception Handling in this section for more information. If no exception handling routine exists, the program aborts.

The ABORT exception condition can occur on a TRBEG operation or on a TREND with syncpoint operation. Any exception condition which can occur on a STORE operation can also occur on a TREND with audit operation.

Exception conditions can occur on the implicitly generated transaction operations, just as they can occur when TRBEG and TREND operations are specified in the Calculation Specifications. However, the D1 indicator cannot be specified for use on the implicitly generated transactions operations.

If an exception condition occurs on an implicitly generated TRBEG or TREND operation, the exception handling routine for the restart data set is entered. If no such routine exists and an exception condition occurs, the program aborts.

The implicit TREND operation generates an end transaction with audit and no syncpoint, except when the LR indicator is ON in which case the implicit TREND operation is generated with no audit syncpoint. This guarantees that if this operation is successful, no data base operations for this program are backed out on a program abort or CLEAR/START.

Table 13-3 lists the RPG coding options available for the TRBEG and TREND operations.

Operation Code	Factor 2	Result Field	Columns 54 - 55	Description	
TRBEG Blank Blank D1		D1	Beginning of a transaction state.		
TREND Blank Blank D1		D1	A STORE is performed by the RPG program to the restart data set. An Output- Format Specifications record is required which contains an R in column 15.		
TREND	NOAUDIT	Blank	D1	A STORE operation is not performed to the restart data set.	
TREND	Blank	SYNCPT	D1	Syncpoint is forced for auditing prior to returning control back to the program.	
TREND	NOAUDIT	SYNCPT	D1	A STORE operation is not performed by the RPG program to the restart data set. Syncpoint is forced for auditing prior to returning control back to the program.	

Table 13-3. TRBEG and TREND Operation Coding Options

RESTART DATA SET OUTPUT-FORMAT SPECIFICATIONS

All allowable Output-Format Specifications entries for DMS files are also applicable to the restart data set. Also required are special Output-Format Specifications for the implicit or explicit TREND operations. These are defined as follows.

7-14 DATA SET NAME

This field must contain the name of the restart data set which is defined in the File Description Specifications.

15 TYPE

This field must contain the letter R whenever a TREND with audit is generated implicitly or explicitly.

The following rules apply when coding type R Output-Format Specifications for the TREND operation:

- a. Only type R Output-Format Specifications are used for a TREND with audit operation.
- b. If more than one type R output record is eligible for output at the time of the TREND operation, an AUDITERROR exception condition occurs. This is due to the fact that all writing to a restart data set must be done within a transaction. Once one STORE operation has been performed against the restart data set, the transaction ends until the next TRBEG operation.

c. If no type R records are eligible for output at the time of the TREND operation, an AUDITERROR exception condition occurs when the next TRBEG operation is performed. The AUDITERROR exception condition results from consecutive TRBEG operations because the first transaction state did not end with an implicit or explicit TREND operation.

The recovery record(s) contained in the restart data set may contain a programmatically defined key. In the case of two or more copies of the same RPG program running concurrently in the mix, the restart data set can contain unique keys (for example a batch ticket).

The effective restart of a program implies that the RPG program must have saved enough information in the restart data set to be able to commence processing as though no interruption had occurred. This includes the ability to reposition all non-DMS files to a point where integrity is assured. This requires RPG source code in each RPG program which is auditing the data base to read from the restart data set and use this information to realign the RPG program relative to the last good transaction.

Figure 13-16 is an example of one technique illustrating audit and recovery. The RPG program's function is to read records from a disk file and then apply these records (additions, changes, and deletions) to a DMS master file. The recovery method utilized needs the following information:

- a. A data item, STATUS, which contains a value of C or I. If STATUS is equal to C, this run is complete. If STATUS is equal to I, this run is incomplete.
- b. A data item, RRNUM, which contains the value of the last successfully processed relative record number in the input file.
- c. Since there is only one restart data set for all programs using a data base, and each program needs its own restart record within the restart data set, there must be a "key" within each record of the restart data set which uniquely identifies that record as belonging to this program. In this example, the "key" is the program name, SAMPLE.

In a non-DMS environment, this program would read one record per cycle, increment a counter according to the record type, "chain" to the "master" file, and perform detail or exception output to the "master" file.

Figure 13-16 follows a similar pattern when a data set named MASTER and index named MSTKEY are substituted for the non-DMS indexed disk file in the situation described above.

The actual file maintenance occurs in one of three subroutines (ADD, CHANGE, or DELETE) dependent upon input record types. Prior to each STORE operation, transaction state must be entered using the TRBEG operation. The STORE operation is then performed followed by the TREND operation to end the transaction state. When the TREND operation is used, the program looks for a type R output record which is properly conditioned by indicators. In this case, it is the second output record for the data set RESTART of the Output-Format Specifications. The restart record is updated with the current relative record number and status.

Programmer	Burroughs RPG	Date_	
Program I D	DATA BASE SPECIFICATION	Page	01
3 Logical 00 0 0 00 0 0 00 0 0 00 0 0 00 0 0 01 0 0 02 1 0 03 0 0 04 0 0 05 0 0 04 0 0 05 0 0 04 0 0 05 0 0 05 0 0 05 0 0 05 0 0 05 0 0 05 0 0 05 0 0 05 0 0 05 0 0 05 0 0 05 0 0 05 0 0 05 0	Access Mode Not Used 77 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 47 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 50 61 52 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70) 71 72 13 14	Program ident
DIDEMAND			
		\square	
		1111	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++





G12084/SHEET 1 OF 4

Figure 13-16. Program Example of Restart with a Demand DMS File (Sheet 1 of 4)

This process continues until the End of File is reached on the primary file. When the LR indicator is on, the restart status field named STATUS must be reset to C to indicate completion of the run. By entering and exiting transaction state (by performing the TRBEG and TREND operations respectively), an update is made to the restart record to reflect STATUS = C (the last output record for the data set RESTART of Output-Format Specifications in figure 13-16). By including SYNCPT on the TREND operation, a syncpoint is forced on DMS. Thus, if the TREND operation is successful, the program is assured that all of its previous activity is protected by the recovery mechanism of DMS. That is, if the system fails after the TREND and before end of job, all of the program's updates are reflected in the data base.

Program CALCULATION SPECIFICATION Provide Image: 10 Image: 10 Image: 10 Image: 10 Image: 10 Image: 10 Image: 10 Image: 10 Image: 10 Image: 10 Image: 10 Image: 10 Image: 10 Image: 10 Image: 10 Image: 10 Im	Programmer Burroughs RPG						
Industrie Industrie <t< th=""><th colspan="7">Program I D CALCULATION SPECIFICATION Page</th></t<>	Program I D CALCULATION SPECIFICATION Page						
011 cA 02 cA 03 cA 04 cA 05 cA 06 cA 06 cA 06 cA 06 cA 07 cA 08 cA 09 cA 06 cA 06 cA 07 cA 08 cA 09 cC 09 cC 09 cC 09 cC 09 cC 09 cC 04 cA 05 cA 10 cA 11 cA 12 cA 13 cA 14 c 15 cA 16 cA 17 cA 18 cA 19 cA 10 cA 11 SETØF 12 MØVE		vr 1 Operation Factor 2	Result Field Field Result Field Fi	ero uuat Comments 2 15 15 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16	Program Ident		
02 CA CHECK, RESTART STATUS FERST TIME ØMAY 04 C MAO 05 CA EXSR RESTRT 06 CA FERST RT 06 CA HUMAYS CØUMT THE NUMBER ØF REGØRDS RERO 07 CA ADD 08 C OA 09 C OA 09 C OA 100 C OA 11 C OA 12 CØR 02 13 CØR 03 14 C 15 CØR 03 16 C 17 CØR 03 18 C 19 CØR 03 110 CØR 12 CØR 03 13 CØR 03 14 C 15 K 16 C 17 CM 18 C 19 CM 10 CM 11 SETØF 12 OS 13							
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	02 CH CHECK RESTART	TATUS FERST TEME	ØNLV	<u>┝╫╫╫╫╫╫</u>	$\left\{ \begin{array}{c} \\ \end{array}\right\}$		
0:4 C N4.0 EXSR RESTRT 0:6 CA HUMAYS CØUNT THE MUMBER ØF RECØRDS READ 0:7 CA ADD NUMADD NUMADD 3C 0:8 C 04 1 ADD NUMADD 3C 0:8 C 04 1 ADD NUMADD 3C 0:8 C 04 1 ADD NUMADD 3C 0:9 C 04 1 ADD NUMADD 3C 0:9 C 03 1 ADD NUMADEL 3C 1:1 C 03 CØR 03 1 ADD MUMREC MUMREC 4C 1:1 C 05 NUMREC COM 11 11 11 1:6 C 1 SETØF 05 11 11 11 1:6 C 11 SETØF 05 11 11 11 1:6 C 11 SETØF 05 11 11 11 11 11 <td< td=""><td>03 C 4</td><td></td><td></td><td>┝╋╋╋╋╋</td><td></td></td<>	03 C 4			┝╋╋╋╋╋			
0:5 C.M. 0:6 C.K. 0:7 C.M. 0:8 C. 0:9 C. 0:9 C. 0:9 C. 0:9 C. 0:1 C. 0:1 C. 0:1 C. 0:1 C. 0:1 C. 0:1 C. 0:1 C. 0:1 C. 0:1 C. 0:1 C. 0:1 C. 0:1 C. 0:1 C. 0:1 C. 0:1 C. 0:1 C. 1:1 C. 0:1 C. 0:2 MumREC 0:3 C. 1:4 C. 1:5 C. 1:6 C. 1:1 SETØF 1:1 SETØF 1:1 SETØF 1:1 MSG 0:2 C. <th>04 C NLO</th> <th>EXSR RESTRT</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th>	04 C NLO	EXSR RESTRT					
06 CK PLWAYS CØUNT THE NUMBER ØF RECØRDS READ 08 C O2 1 ADD NUMADO 3C 08 C O2 1 ADD NUMADO 3C 09 C O2 1 ADD NUMADO 3C 10 C O3 1 ADD NUMADEL NUMADEL 3C 111 C O1	05 C X						
$ \begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	06 CK ALWAYS COUNT TH	LE NUMBER OF RECO	RDS READ				
0:8 C 04 1 ADD NUMADD 3C 0:9 C 02 1 ADD NUMADD 3C 1:0 C 03 1 ADD NUMADD 3C 1:1 C 03 1 ADD NUMADEL NUMDEL 3C 1:2 C&R 02	07C X						
0.9 C 0.2 1 ADD NUMCH6 3:0 1.0 C 0.3 1 ADD NUMDEL NUMDEL 3:0 1.1 C 0.1 C 0.3 1 ADD NUMDEL NUMDEL 3:0 1.2 CØR 0.2	08 C 01 1	ADD NUMADD	NUMADO 30				
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	09 C 02 1	ADD NUMCHG	NUMCHE 30				
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	10 C O3 . 1	ADD NUMDEL	NUMDEL 30				
112 CØR 02 13 CØR 03 1 ADD MUMREC NUMREC NUMREC 14 C 05 MUMREC COMP RRNUM 11 15 CM Image: Comp RRNUM 11 16 CM READY TØ PRØCESS AGATA 17 CM Image: Comp RRNUM 11 18 C 11 SETØF 05 19 C 05 GØTØ Image: Comp 20 C 11 SETØF 05 20 C 11 MØVE COM ALETE MS6 01 C 11 MSG DSPLIYSFØ 02 11 EXSR ADD 03 C 01 EXSR ADD 03 C 02 EXSR ADD 04 C 02 EXSR ADD 06 C ENO TAG Image: Comp 08 C ENO TAG Image: Comp Image:	11 C 01						
13 CØR 03 1 ADD NUMREC NUMREC 40 14 C 05 NUMREC COMP RRNUM 11 16 CK 16 CK 11 11 11 16 CK RADD RRNUM 11 11 16 CK RADD RRNUM 11 17 CK RADD SETØF 05 18 C 11 SETØF 05 19 C 025 GØTØ END 20 C 11 MSG DSPLYSPO 01 C 11 MSG DSPLYSPO 02 11 KSG DSPLYSPO 11 03 C 01 EXSR ADD 04 C 02 EXSR DELETE 11 06 C END TRBEG 11 11 07 CM TRBEG 11 11 11 08 CLR TRBEG 11 11 110	12 COR 02						
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	1 3 COR 03 1	ADD NUMREC	NUMRER 40				
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	14 C D5 NUMREC	COMP RRNUM	11				
116 C# READY TØ PRØCESS AGAIM 17 C#	1 5 C X	↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓↓			┟┼┼┼┼┤		
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	16 CK READY TO PROCES	s again	╶┼╅╄╋╋╋╋╋╋╋		╏┼┼┼┼┼┨		
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	1 7 C X		┼┼┽┽┼┼┼┼┼┼┼╶╧╧┼╶┥		┟┼┼┼┼┨		
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	18 C 11	SETØF		-+	┟┼┼┼┼┤		
210 C 211 MØVEL CØMARLETE MSG 011 C 11 MSG DSPLYSRØ 022 C 11 SETØF 12 03 C 01 EXSR ADD 04 C 02 EXSR ADD 04 C 02 EXSR CHANGE 05 C 03 EXSR CHANGE 06 C EXSR DELETE Image: Comparison of the second		GOTO END	<u><u></u></u>	-++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	╏┝┝┝┝┝┝		
011 C 11 MS/G DSPLYSP0 022 C 11 SETØF 12 03 C 01 EXSR ADD 04 C 02 EXSR CHANGE 05 C 03 EXSR CHANGE 06 C EXSR DELETE 06 C EMO TAG 07 CM TRBEG Image: Comparison of the second of the s		MOVE COMPLET	TE MSG	╺╆╅┼┽┽┼┿┽┼┼┽┽┽╇╇╋	┟┼┼┼┼┨		
02 C 11 SETØF 11 03 C 01 EXSR ADD 04 C 02 EXSR CHANGE 05 C 03 EXSR DELETE 06 C EXSR DELETE Image: Constraint of the second	01 C 22 MSG	DSPLYSPO	┼┽┼┼┾┾┼┼┽┼┼┾┝┝┽┤┼┥	-+-++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	┟┊┽┼┽┦┨		
03 C 02 EXSR HDD 04 C 02 EXSR CHANGE 05 C 03 EXSR DELETE 06 C EMD TAG 07 CM TRBEG Image: Comparison of the comparis		SETØF	<u>+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++</u>	╶┼┼┽┽┼┊┽┼┟┝┝┝┝	╏┼┼┼┼┼┨		
0.4 C D2 EXSR CHAMOGE 0.6 C D3 EXSR DELETE 0.6 C EMO TAG 0.7 CM TRBEG Image: Comparison of the compar		EXSRADD	╋╋╡╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋	╶┼┼┼┼┼┼┽┽┼┼┼	┟┼┼┼┼┨		
0 5 C 03 EXSIC DELLITE 0 6 C END TAG 0 7 CM TRBES		EXSR CHANGE	┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼		┟┼┼┟┼┽┨		
0 % C EMD TH6 0 7 CM TRBEG		EXSK DELETE	┼┼┼┽╎┼┥┢┊┊╎╷╷╷	╶┼┽┟┼┊┟┊╎┼╷╷╸┊┑┼╸	┠┼┽┽┽┽┦		
0/7 CM TRREEG 0/8 CLR TRRENO 0/9 CLR TRENO 1/0 CM Image: CSR 1/1 CSR MDD 1/2 CSR MSTREY 1/3 CSR DMREYKEYWUM 1/4 CSR TRREEG		/ / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / /	┽┽╆╫╆╋╋╋┼┿┽┿┷┿┿╋╇	╶╁╁┟┠┠┝┝╺┝┝┝╺┝┝	┠┽┿┾┽┽┫		
0 % CLR TREND SUNCPT 1 % CK TREND SUNCPT 1 % CSR MDD BEGSR 1 2 CSR MSTKEY FEND MASTER 1 3 CSR DMKEYKEYWUM KEYMST 1 4 CSR TRBEG		TOPC	╏╽╞╽╞╞╞┊┊┊┊ ╸╸┥╎ <u>╞</u> ┊┊╞┥	╶ ┊┊╞┊┊┊┊ ┊╡┥┥╸╸┥┥╴	┠┼┼┼┼┨		
0 % C LK I K E M U SYN CP I 1 0 CM				╶╁┼┼┽┽╍╍┽┥┥╸	┠┼┼┼┼┨		
1 cSR MDD BEGSR 12 cSR MSTKEY FEND MASTER 13 cSR DMKEYKEYWW KEYMST 14 cSR TRBEG				╶ ╸╡┊╻┊┍╸╸┊╏┊┍╸┥┥	┠┼┼┼┼┦		
12 CSR MSTKEY FIND MRSTER RD1 13 CSR DMKEYKEYWUM KEYMST EQL 14 CSR TRBEG			╊╀┨╊╋┽┿┿┽┿┿┿┼┶┊┙┍╈╡	╶ ╷╎╎┊╷┊╸┊╸┊╎┊╵┊┥	┠┼┼┼┼ ┨		
$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $				╶┟┥┥┥┥┙┍╷┥┥┥┊┊╡┥	┠┼┽┼┼┨		
$\frac{1}{4} csR$		DMKEVKEV	KEVAACT EQU	┼┯┶┶┶┶┾┼┼┲┿┼┼	┠┼┼┼┼┨		
		TRREA			┠┾┽┽┾┼┨		
		STOPEMAKTED	╶┨╏┫┫╔╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗╗	╶╉┊┊┍┼╺╁┊┦┥┥┥╋	┠┼┼┼┼┨		
		TREND	╡┫╏╡┥╞╞╞╎┥╎┥┥┥┥┥	╶╉┊╧┼╌╾╾┼┼┼┾┾┾┾┾	╏┼┼┼┼┨		
		ENDSP	┨╏╏╏╏╏╏╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹╹	╶╉┶┶┶┶┊┨┊┥┥┥┥╸	╏┼┼┼┼┨		
			╊╊╊╊╊╊╊╋╋╋	╶┨╹╹╹╹┊┊╡╡╡╡╡┥╵┊╡╡	╏┼┼┼┼┨		

G12084/SHEET 2 OF 4

Figure 13-16. Program Example of Restart with a Demand DMS File (Sheet 2 of 4)

In the event of a system failure, the operator must recover the data base. After the data base is recovered, the operator may re-execute any programs which were running at the time of the failure.

Programmer		Burroug	hs RPG		Care	
Program I D		CALCULATION SP	ECIFICATION	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Page	
Page Bage	Factor 1	Operation Factor 2	Result Field	несції на поскато з	Comments	Program Ident
			4 43 44 45 46 47 48	49.2011 13/14 13/16 138 4 60		8 980
0 2 C SR	CHANGE	BEGSR				
0 3 C SR	MSTKEY	LOCK MASTER		RD1		
04 CSR	╶ ╽┥┊╞┊╞┊╞┊╞┥┥	DMKEYKEYWUM	KEYMST	EQL		
05 CSRND1		TRBEG	++++++		┝╅┽┾┾┿┾┾┼┼┯┊┽┽╴	
0 6 C SRND1	┼┽┼┼┼┼┼	STOREMASTER			╷┽┿┽┽┽╅╉┽╸╸┥┥┥╸	┠┊┾┼┼┼┨
	╶┼┼┼┼┼┼┼	FREE MASTER	+++++	┝╅┽┽┾┼┾┽┾╋┾┼┥	╺┽┽╅╅┽┟╿┨┨╻╸┥	┠┼┼┼┼┤
	+++++++++	ENDER	++++++	╺╋╋╋╋╋╋	┥╻╽╻╷	┠┼┼┼┼┨
	┽┧┼┟┼┼┼┼		┼┼┼┼┼	╶╊╄╊╊╋╋╋	╶┧┥┥╻╹┙╎┥┥┥	┠┼┼┼┼┦
	DELETE	REGSR	+++++	╶╀┼╀┦┹┥┵╅╂╅╉╡	╶┼╺┎┥┍╷┥┥┥┥	╏┼┼┼┼┼┤
12 CSR	NSTKEY	FIND MASTER		RD1	-++-++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	╏┼┼┼┼┨
1 3 C.S.R		DMKEYKEYNUM	KEVMST	EQL		
14 CSRWD1		TRBE6				
15 CSRND1	┽┽┽┽┽┽┽┽	DELETMASTER	++++++	-++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++		
	+++++++++	TREND	┽┼┼┼┼┤	╶╁┽┾┽┼┼┼┼┼┼┼	╺┽┽┽┼┼┼┼┼┼┿╇╇┩	┠┼┼┼┼┨
	┽┾┿┼┾┼┽┽┼╸	EMOSR	╺╊╌╁╌╁╌╁╶╉	╶┼┽┾┾┶╎╆┆┼┼ ┿┪	╶ ╷╽╎╎╎╎╎╎╎╎┥┥┥┥	╏┼┼┼┽┥
			┽┼┼┼┼┤	╺┼┽┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼	╺╋╋╋┿┿┿┿┿┿┿┿┿┿	┠┼┼┼┼┨
		CETAN	┼┼┼┼┼┼	4	╺╋╋╋┿┿╋╋╋╋	┟┼┽┼┼┨
	┿╈┽┾┾┼┼┼┼┼	MAVE ICAMOLE'	KEVRES		╺╡┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊ ╡	┠┼┼┼┼┨
05 CSR	RESKEY	LOCK RESTART		RD1		╏┼┼┼┼┨
06 C SR		DMKEY SAMPLE	KEYRES	EQL		
0 7. C 🗶						
08 CH IF RESTAR	T RECORD T	HERE AND LAST	run cøm	PLETE, THEN	RESET AND	
09 CX GET OUT.	++++++++++		++++++	╶┽┽┼┼┼┵┼┆┼┼┽┤		+ ∔ ∔ ∔ ↓ ↓ ↓
	┽┽╅┿┞┊┼┼┼			<u> </u>	╶┧┊╒╽╺┎┊╞┇┊╡┍╏╿	┝┾┿┿┿┥
	┼┼┼┼┼┼┼	MOVE I	SIRIUS		┥┼┊┥┥┊┊┊┊┊┊┊ ┥	┠┼┿┽┼┥
	┼┼┼┼┼┼		┽╁╆┽┼┼╽	╶┥╽┥┊╡╡┊╎┊┊┊ ╡	····	┠┼┼┼┼┨
14 CR TE RESTAR	RECORD N	OT THERE. THEN	CREATE	IT AND GET	dut.	
1 5 CX						
16 CSR DA		MOVE 'I'	STATUS			
17 CSR DA		SETON		12	╺╺╶┥┥┥┥┥┥┥┥	
1 B CSR DA	+++++++++++	TRBEG	╅┽┽┽┽┽	++++++++++++		┠┼┼┼┽┦
	↓↓↓↓↓↓↓		++++++	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	╾┽┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼	┠┼┼┼┼┨
	┼┼┼┼┼┼	CATA ENORES	┽┽┼┼┼┼		╺╾┶╶┾┊┼┼┼┼┼┶┾┼╊┩	┠┼┼┼┼┥
	┪╅╅╪┢╞╡╡╡		╋╋╋╋	┿┽┽┼┼┼┼┼┼	╺╪╪┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊	┡┾┿┼┾┼┪
02 CA HAUF TO DA	A RESTAD	T. ENDECATAD A	5 00 11	TTL RECOURDE		┠┼┼┼┼┨
0 3 C 4					╤╪┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┤	╏┼┼┼┼┨
04 CSR 05		MOVEL'RECOVERY	msb	16		
0 5 CSR 05		MOVE 'STARTED'	MSG			
06 CSR 05	nsie	DSPLYSPØ				
07 CSR	NDRES	ENDSR	┼┼┼┼┼	╶┼┽┽┽┽╃┾┾┾┾┾	<u></u>	┟╎╷╷╷╽
312004/3MEE1 3 UF 4						

Figure 13-16. Program Example of Restart with a Demand DMS File(Sheet 3 of 4)
Progra	mmer		Burre	ough	s RPG	,				Date	
Progra	m ID _		OUTPUT FO	RMAT SPEC	FICATION	N				Page	of
		Space Skip Output Indicators				E	dit Codes (Colu	(mn 38)			
		Blank or	-		Commas	Balance	No Sign	Cr -	X = Remove Plus sign		
			Field	- Eveld	Yes	Yes	1	A J	Y = Date Field		
		Filename	Name	End	No No	Yes	3	C L	Edit Z = Zero	Not	Program
			Name) 👸	Position	No	No	4	DM	Suppress	0.00	
ð	e		o tp	ank			Constant or Ed	Word			
å	<u>د</u>			80	2 1 2 3	415 617 8	9 10,11 12 13 1	4115116117118 1	9 20 21 22 23 24		
<u></u> ⊢∔	3 4 5	6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 21 28 24 35 16 17 18 2	2 57 14 35 36 37 38	39 40 41 42 43	14 45 46 47 48	49 50 51 -2 53	54 55 56 57 58 5	9 60 61 62 63 6	4 65 66 6 68 69 10	1 72 73 74	75 16 77 78 79 80
	0 1		+++++	┙┙┙	++++	+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	-+++++	┼┼╷┼┼		++++	+
Li	0 2	OF MASTER ADDITIONS									
	03										
	04	MASTER SADD OL									
	05	0 MSTREC D	ECORD			****		Tiili			
	0 6							*****	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++		
+	0 7	ON MASTER CHANGES				 . 1	+++++	*****			+++++
H	0 8							****			+++++
	0 9	omaster s 02									
	10	o mstrec r	RECORD								
	1 1	o #									
	12	ON CREATE RESTART RECORD IF	NOT F	OUND .					****		
	1 3										
	14	ORESTART RADD 12									
	1 5	o status s	TATUS				<u>ilili</u>				
L	16	o KEYRES K	EYRES								
	17	o RRNum			+000	0					
	01	0									
	0 2	VPDATE RESTART RECORD AF	TER EA	CH TRI	INSAC	TION.					
	03	X									
	04	ORESTART R NA 2NLR									
	05	o status s	TATUS								
	0 6	RRNUM	INMREC							1.	
	0 7	•				+ + - + - + - + - + - +				I I I	
	08	OX CHANGE STATUS TO C AT EN	D OF J	ØB.					+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++		
	0 9	o ₩							\downarrow		
	10	ORESTART R LR							+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++		
L	1 1	O STATUS			<u>`C'</u>				+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++		<u></u>
			1 1 1 1 1 1	1111	1.11.		1111	1111		1	1.11.11

G12084/SHEET 4 OF 4

Figure 13-16. Program Example of Restart with a Demand DMS File (Sheet 4 of 4)

The first thing that the RPG program in figure 13-16 does is branch to the subroutine RESTART. This subroutine attempts to locate its restart record in the restart data set using its key SAMPLE. If the record is found and the STATUS = C designating complete, the STATUS field is updated with I, designating incomplete, for the current run. Processing continues with the next instruction following EXSR RESTART in the Calculation Specifications.

If the restart record is not found, the indicators D1 and DA are set ON indicating that this is the first time this program has been run. In this case, the restart record must be initialized and added to the restart data set. The addition is accomplished by the TRBEG and TREND operations. The record is added by the first RESTART output record of the Output-Format Specifications in figure 13-16. The STATUS then equals I, incomplete, for the current run, and processing begins.

If the restart record is found and STATUS equals I, the program aborted during its last execution and special action must be taken by the program. The field RRNUM contains the number of input records which were successfully processed during the previous run. This means that records must be skipped for this run. As long as indicator 05 is on and STATUS equals I, all updating activity is bypassed. When the number of records read during this execution exceeds the number of successfully processed records during the previous run, indicator 05 is set OFF and normal processing resumes.

Figure 13-17 is an example of a cycle-driven DMS file and a different method than illustrated in figure 13-16 for audit and recovery. The function of this RPG program is to sequentially read an entire data set and update one of its fields. The field CURR is added to the field OVRDUE and the new value of OVRDUE is stored in the data set record (first ACCTREC output record of the Output-Format Specifications, figure 13-17). In the event of a failure, the program must know which records have been updated and which have not, so that the updating process can continue at the correct point. Updating the same record twice results in an incorrect value for the field OVRDUE.



Figure 13-17. Program Example of Restart with a Primary DMS File (Sheet 1 of 2)

Pr	gra	nmer			Burrough	s RPG	C ste	
Pr	ogra	mID			CALCULATION SPEC	IFICATION	Page o	·
	⁷ age	تن ریان ۲ م	Indicators	Factor 1 18 19 70 21 72 23 24 75 36 77 27	Operation Factor 2	Presult Presult <t< td=""><td>Comments Pr It 5. 5. 6. 54 m 56 m 56 m - 4 11 6</td><td>ogram dent 1 28 29 80</td></t<>	Comments Pr It 5. 5. 6. 54 m 56 m 56 m - 4 11 6	ogram dent 1 28 29 80
Γ	Π	0 1	c 🗶					ТП
Γ	Ħ	0 2	CHECK FOR	RESTART RE	ECORD.			
F	11	0 3	c x					
F	Ħ	04	CKR	RESTRE	REGSR		***	++++
F	Ħ	0 5			SETON	10		
F	Ħ	0 6	ccp	PECKEV	ACK RESTART	PD4		1111
\vdash	H	0 7	cco		MEN' CAMOLA'	KEVPES FOI	╶┟┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊╸┊┊╸	+++1
F	H	0 8		└┼┼┼┼┼ ┍			╺╄┽╇╄┽┼┼┼┼┍┾┼╂┲┽	+++
F	H	0 9		CADD TS NAT	GOUND THEN CO	FATE DESTORT DECO	00.	++++
F	H	10		CFILO ZD FIFI			**+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	++++
\vdash	H	11			CTAN		╶┼┭┼┼╾┼┼┟┟┟╹┆┤╊┼┥	+++
\vdash	++	1 2			TADEDECTODT	+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++	╶┼┼┊┾┊┽╿╏╏╡┍╿┨╽┫	+++4
\vdash	H	13			ETAE		╶┵┵┾╼┶┯╅╀╋╇┿	+++4
\vdash	+	1 4		***********		┽┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┍ ┷┲ ╕╷╸┼╸	╺╸╸┊╸╵┊╞╏╞┥┥	+++1
+	┼┼	1 5		TUCH THE C		T THOTATAO AT THE		┽╀┼┨
\vdash	H	1 6	CH DECAUEDY			CI THDTCHIMK OF TO	- WW UNITEL	+++1
\vdash	$\left \right $	1 7		LA LEMPLE/E	╕┽┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼┼	╄╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╋╹	╶╸╸┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊┊╸╸	┽┽┼┨
\vdash	H	1		┝╶┥╞┥┥┥┥┥┥		┨╏╿╿╏╡╞╞╞┊┊┊┊┊╞┊	╶╸┥┥┥┥┥┥┥┥┥┥┥┥┥┥╸	┽┼┼┨
+	$\left \right $	1 0		┝ ╷╷╷╷╷╷ ╞		╆╏╎╎╞┇╞╞╞╞┊┊┊┊ ╸╸╸ ╿ ╸	╶┼┼┼┼┼╞╞╋╋╋	+++1



G12085/SHEET 2 OF 2

Figure 13-17. Program Example of Restart with a Primary DMS File (Sheet 2 of 2)

Instead of a STATUS field, as in figure 13-16, the restart data set named RESTART in this example uses a different method for determining whether or not a failure occurred. If the restart record is present at the beginning of job, then the previous run aborted. If the restart record is not present at the beginning of job, then the previous run was successful. The program adds the restart record to the restart data set named RESTART which has an initial RRNUM value of zero (first output record of the Output-Format Specifications for the restart data set named RESTART, figure 13-17).

As each record is updated, the value of NUMREC is incremented by 1 and stored in the RRNUM field of the restart record (third output record of the Output-Format Specifications, for the restart data name RESTART, figure 13-17). At the End of Job, the entire restart record is deleted.

At beginning-of-job, the RPG program checks for a restart record. This is performed by the subroutine RESTRT. If the restart record is not found, indicators D1 and DA are set ON and the restart record is initialized and added. If the restart record is found, the previous run has aborted and the restart record is required to realign the files. The record identifying indicator 02 is set ON when the restart record is read. As long as indicator 02 remains ON, the only action taken is to add 1 to the counter for each input record, NUMREC, and compare it to RRNUM in the restart record. If NUMREC exceeds RRNUM, indicator 02 is set OFF and normal processing continues.

The RPG compiler generates an implied TRBEG operation at the beginning of each cycle and an implied TREND operation at the end of each cycle. The implied TREND operation uses the Output-Format Specification line with the letter R in column 15 for the data set (third output record of the Output-Format Specifications, for the restart data set named RESTART, figure 13-17).

DASDL INFORMATION AND SUGGESTIONS

The following information and suggestions can be used when compiling the DASDL source program with the DASDL compiler.

. a. Include a \$ RPGLIB DASDL compiler dollar sign option when compiling the DASDL source statements. This option informs the DASDL compiler to create RPG library files to be used by the RPG compiler. These library files reside on disk with the following naming convention:

&<data base name>/<filename>

The ampersand (&) appears before the data base name portion of the two-name filename. The ampersand designates the file as an RPG library file. There is one library file created on disk for each disjoint data set declared in the DASDL source statements.

- b. Include a \$ RPG DASDL compiler dollar sign option when compiling the DASDL source statements. This option informs the DASDL compiler to check for RPG syntax. For example, all data names declared cannot exceed six characters in length.
- c. All annehic htems, declared, in the DASIN sonred model of the provide the the share unequine the name of the number of the second of the provide the second of the seco
- d. If a restart data set is specified in the RPG program, the DASDL source program must specify the same restart data set, and the AUDIT option must be specified.

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED DATA MANAGEMENT TERMS

Refer to the B 1800/B 1700 Systems Data Management System (DMSII) Reference Manual, Form No. 1089794, for a complete description of the following data management terms.

ABORT Exception

An ABORT exception is returned to a program when another program aborts or goes to end of job while in transaction state. At this point, the DMS recovery routines may have backed out some of the program's transactions. The program must be restarted in order to recover the backed out transactions.

AUDITERROR Exception

An AUDITERROR exception occurs when any of the following occur:

- a. A program attempts an invalid sequence of begin or end transaction operations. That is, two begin transactions or two end transactions in a row.
- b. A program attempts a begin or end transaction when the AUDIT option is not set in the data base.
- c. A program attempts to update a data base outside of transaction state.
- d. A program attempts to close the data base while in transaction state.

CLOSEERROR Exception

A CLOSEERROR exception occurs when a program attempts to close a data base which is not open.

Contention Limit

Contention limit is the amount of time that a program attempting to lock a record waits on another program which has that record locked. If that amount of time is exceeded, a DEADLOCK condition results.

DASDL

DASDL is an acronym for Data And Structure Definition Language. Compilation of a DASDL source deck with the DASDL compiler defines the structure and type of data allowed in a data base.

DATAERROR Exception

A DATAERROR exception occurs when any of the following occur:

- a. A program attempts to store a record with a null key or null required item.
- b. A program attempts to store a null record.
- c. A program attempts to store a record and a DASDL verify condition is not met.

Data Set

A data set is a collection of related records. Only data sets and embedded data sets have records.

DEADLOCK Exception

A DEADLOCK exception is returned to a program following resolution of a deadly embrace. DMS automatically performs a FREE operation on all locked records for the program.

Deadly Embrace

A deadly embrace occurs when all of the following occur:

- a. Two or more programs are accessing the same structure(s).
- b. Each program owns a set of locked records.
- c. Each program requests access to a record locked by one of the other programs.

When a deadly embrace occurs, a DEADLOCK exception is returned to the lowest priority program involved in the embrace.

Defined State

A pointer is in a defined state when it refers to a valid record or path.

Disjoint Data Set

A disjoint data set is a data set which is not an item within another data set. Disjoint sets can only refer to disjoint data sets.

DUPLICATES Exception

A DUPLICATES exception occurs when duplicate records are not allowed in a set or manual subset and one of the following occurs:

a. A program attempts to store a duplicate record in a set.

b. A program attempts to insert a duplicate record in a manual subset.

Embedded Data Set

An embedded data set is a data set which is an item within a data set. An embedded data set can only be referenced by an embedded set on the same level.

Index

An index is a table of pointers to a data set which provides a specified access to a data set.

INUSE Exception

An INUSE exception occurs when a program attempts to delete a record with a non-null embedded structure.

1

IOERROR Exception

An IOERROR exception occurs when a parity error (I/O error) occurred while trying to read from the data base.

Key

A key is a value used to locate specific records in a data set spanned by a set or referenced by a subset.

KEYCHANGED Exception

A KEYCHANGED exception occurs when a program attempts to store a record when the value of the item used as a key in the set is illegally changed (duplicates not allowed or embedded set).

LIMITERROR Exception

A LIMITERROR exception occurs when a program attempts to store a record in a structure, and the amount of data in the structure exceeds its physical size.

Master Record

A master record is a data set record which has dependent data sets. A master can itself be a record in an embedded data set. An embedded data set cannot be accessed without accessing the master.

NORECORD Exception

A NORECORD exception occurs when any of the following occur:

- a. A current record pointer is not valid for an INSRT operation.
- b. A current record pointer is not valid for a FIND operation on a manual subset.
- c. A current record of master record is not valid.

NOTFOUND Exception

A NOTFOUND exception occurs when any of the following occur:

- a. There is no record which satisfies the selection expression for a LOCK or FIND operation.
- b. The key value in the record does not match the key of a manual subset.
- c. The requested record does not exist in the data set (previously deleted).
- d. The current record pointer is undefined.
- e. The embedded structure is empty.

NOTLOCKED Exception

A NOTLOCKED exception occurs when a STORE operation is not preceded by a LOCK or another STORE operation.

OPENERROR Exception

An OPENERROR exception occurs when any of the following occur:

- a. A program attempts to open a data base which is not initialized.
- b. A program attempts to open a data base which is already open.
- c. A program attempts to open a data base, and the data base is not the proper level.
- d. The data base is not open prior to the first DMS operation.

Path

A path is an access to a data set record. A set is an index of paths. The current path pointer associated with every set and subset (but not data set) refers to the last record accessed by way of that set or subset. Each current path pointer retains its reference until explicitly changed or until the record referenced by the current path pointer is deleted from the data base.

READONLY Exception

A READONLY exception occurs when a program opens a data base as input only, and either a STORE, DELET, INSRT, or REMOV operation is attempted.

Record

A record contains all the information that pertains to an entity. A record is considered to be the current record of a data set if the appropriate current record pointer refers to an existing record in the data base. The current record pointer for a data set is changed by any operation which causes a new record to be written to the data base or read from the data base. Changing the current record pointer automatically unlocks any previously locked record and, if required, locks the new one.

SECURITYERROR Exception

A SECURITYERROR exception occurs when a usercode does not satisfy the usercode requirements of the data base.

Set

A set is an index of paths to a data set with a pointer to each record of that data set.

Subset

~

A subset is an index to records of a data set. If a manual subset exists in a data base, the specified records of the data set to be referenced must be programmatically inserted into the subset. If an automatic subset exists in a data base, the condition is evaluated at each STORE operation, and if satisfied, DMS does the insertion.

SYSTEMERROR Exception

A SYSTEMERROR exception occurs when too many data bases are open at the same time. The maximum number of data bases which can open at the same time is six.

VERSIONERROR Exception

A VERSIONERROR exception occurs when a program attempts to open a data base, and the program was compiled against a different version of the data base other than the version currently maintained in the DASDL dictionary.

APPENDIX A

B 1800/B 1700 CARD CODES

Figure A-1 shows the zone and digit portions of an 80-column card. The zone for character A is 12, and the digit is 1. The zone for character R is 11, and the digit 9.



Figure A-1. Zone and Digit Portions of an 80-Column Card

Figure A-2 shows the zone and digit portions of a 96-column card. The zones 12, 11, and 0 on a 96-column card are BA, B, and A, respectively.

Table A-1 lists the 80-column and 96-column card codes for the complete B 1800/B 1700 character set.



Figure A-2. Zone and Digit Portions of a 96-Column Card

Character	EBCDIC 80-Column Card Code	BCL 96-Column Card Code	Character	EBCDIC 80-Column Card Code	BCL 96-Column Card Code
blank	no punches	no punches	F	12-6	B-A-4-2
[12-8-2	B-A-8-2	G	12-7	B-A-4-2-1
•	12-8-3	B-A-8-2-1	н	12-8	B-A-8
<	12-8-4	B-A-8-4	I	12-9	B-A-8-1
(12-8-5	B-A-8-4-1	J	11-1	B-1
+	12-8-6	B-A-8-4-2	К	11-2	B-2
	12-8-7	B-A-8-4-2-1	L	11-3	B-2-1
&	12	в-А	М	11-4	B-4
]	11-8-2	B-8-2	N	11-5	B-4-1
\$	11-8-3	B-8-2-1	О	11-6	B-4-2
*	11-8-4	B-8-4	Р	11-7	B-4-2-1
)	11-8-5	B-8-4-1	Q	11-8	в-8
;	11-8-6	B-8-4-2	R	11-9	B-8-1
-	11-8-7	B-8-4-2-1	S	0-2	A-2
-	11	В	Т	0-3	A-2-1
1	0-1	A-1	U	0-4	A-4
,	0-8-3	A-8-2-1	v	0-5	A-4-1
%	0-8-4	A-8-4	w	0-6	A-4-2
_	0-8-5	A-8-4-1	х	0-7	A-4-2-1
>	0-8-6	A-8-4-2	Y	0-8	A-8
?	0-8-7	A-8-4-2-1	Z	0-9	A-8-1
:	8-2	8-2	1	1	1
#	8-3	8-2-1	2	2	2
@	8-4	8-4	3	3	2-1
T	8-5	8-4-1	4	4	4
=	8-6	8-4-2	5	5	4-1
**	8-7	8-4-2-1	6	6	4-2
А	12-1	B-A-1	7	7	4-2-1
В	12-2	B-A-2	8	8	8
С	12-3	B-A-2-1	9	9	8-1
D	12-4	B-A-4	0	0	А
E	12-5	B-A-4-1			

Table A-1. Punch Card Codes for the B 1800/B 1700 Character Set

APPENDIX B

HEXADECIMAL VALUES FOR THE B 1800/B 1700 CHARACTER SET

Table B-1 presents the RPG collating sequence, and table B-2 may be used in converting hexadecimal digits to binary code. In table B-1, the zone portion of a character is represented by the first hex digit, and the digit portion of the character is represented by the second hex digit.

Character	Hexadecimal Equivalent		Character	Hexadecimal Equivalent	
blank	40		,	7D	
[4A		=	7E	
	4B		•	7 F	
<	4C	•	A	C1	
(4D	Ascending	В	C2	Ascending
 +	4 E	Order	С	C3	Order
1	4 F		D	C4	
 &	50		E	C5	
]	5A		F	C6	
 \$	5B		G	C7	
*	5C		н	C8	
)	5D		I	C9	
 • 7	5E		:	DO	
	5F		J	D1	
 -	60		К	D2	
 /	6A		L	D3	
,	6B		M	D4	
 %	6C		N	D5	
_	6D		0	D6	
>	6E		P	D7	
?	6 F		Q	D8	
:	7A		R	D9	
#	7B		s	E2	
@	7C	▼	Т	E3	V V
	1	1	1	ſ	1

Table B-1. B 1800/B 1700 RPG Collating Sequence

Character	Hexadecimal Equivalent		Character	Hexadecimal Equivalent	
U	E4	Ascending	2	F2	Ascending
v	E5	Order	3	F3	Order
W	E6		4	F4	
Х	E7		5	F5	
Y	E8		6	F6	
\mathbf{Z}	E9		7	F7	
0	FO		8	F8	
1	Fl	♥	9	F9	*
	1	1			

Table B-1. B 1800/B 1700 RPG Collating Sequence (Cont)

Table B-2. Hex to Binary Conversion Table

Hex Digit	Binary Equivalent
1	0001
2	0010
3	0011
4	0100
5	0101
6	0110
7	0111
8	1000
9	1001
A	1010
В	1011
С	1100
D	1101
E	1110
F	1111

ĺ

APPENDIX C

BURROUGHS INDICATOR SUMMARY FORM

The RPG Indicator Summary Form, illustrated in figure C-1 is used strictly for documentational purposes. Its function is to provide an accurate record of the indicators that are used and the function of those indicators in the RPG Program.



G14095

Figure C-1. Burroughs Indicator Summary Form

The indicator Summary Form fields and their content are:

<u>Column</u>

<u>Content</u>

Form type (optional predefined F).
Asterisk required - causes complete card to be commented.

<u>Column</u>	Content
8-10	Record identifying indicator.
11-13	Input field indicators.
14-16	Calculation resulting indicators.
17-19	Matching and chaining indicators.
20-22	Control level, Overflow, Halt, and User indicators.
23-74	Function of the indicators described in columns $8-22$.
75-80	Program ID.

•

APPENDIX D

COMPILE-TIME ERROR AND DIAGNOSTIC MESSAGES

GENERAL

- G085 FILE NAME NEVER DEFINED A file name has been referenced that has never been defined in File Specification.
- G095 INVALID AND/OR LINE SPECIFICATION
- G304 U1 U8 MAY BE SET EXTERNALLY ONLY These external indicators may not be set programmatically and should only be used to indicate at execution time whether or not the file is to be used by the program.
- G306 INDICATOR NEVER DEFINED This message is caused by an indicator being tested that has never been set.
- G315 FIELD NAME NEVER DEFINED This message is caused by an undefined variable name being referenced.
- G524 CHAINING KEY LENGTH NOT EQUAL CHAINED FILE KEY LENGTH This message indicates that the key length specified on the File Specification does not agree with the variable used to initiate chaining.
- G999 DATA NOT NEEDED/EXPECTED IN THIS CARD

FILE DESCRIPTION SPECIFICATIONS

Refer to Section 4 for further information.

F023 - INVALID FILE NAME

The message is caused by an invalid file name in columns 7-14. A file name must be unique in the first seven characters.

F024 - REDEFINED FILE NAME The file name specified in columns 7-14 does not contain a unique name in the first seven characters.

F026 - INVALID FILE TYPE This message is caused by an illegal entry in column 15 of the File Specification form. Valid entries are I, O, U, C, and D.

- F028 INVALID FILE DESIGNATION
 This message is caused by an illegal entry in column 16 of the File Specification form. Blank must be used for output files; otherwise one of the following entries are required: P, S, C, T, or D.
- F033 NO SEQUENTIAL INPUT FILE FOUND A primary or secondary file is required.
- F036 INVALID END OF FILE ENTRY This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 17. Valid entries are blank or E.
- F039 INVALID SEQUENCE ENTRY This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 18. Valid entries are A, D, or blank.
- F042 INVALID BLOCK-RECORD LENGTH When the Block and Record length contain blanks, a default of 132 is assumed for print files, and 80 for all other devices. When the block length is blank, it will assume the record length. When the block and record length contain valid numbers, the block length must be an integral part of the record length.
- F044 MULTI BUFFERS AND STACKER SELECTION ON SAME FILE Stacker selection may not be used when multiple buffers are specified, owing to the processing of the records from the buffer areas.
- F044 INVALID ENTRY TYPE OF ORGANIZATION This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 32. Valid entries must contain I, 1-9, or blank.
- F046 INVALID ENTRY ADDITION-UNORDERED This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 66. Valid entries are U, A, or blank.
- F049 INVALID/MISSING EXTENSION CODE This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 39. Valid entries are blank or E for table files; L may be specified for print files.
- F052 INVALID DEVICE This message is caused by an invalid device specified in columns 40-46. Valid entries are READER, MFCU1, PUNCH, PRINTER, PRINTR2, TAPE, DISK, SPO, or CONSOLE.
- F056 INVALID FILE FORMAT/FILE CLOSE This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 19. Valid entries are F, V, or blank.
- F057 INVALID INDICATOR MUST BE U1-U8 This message is caused by an invalid entry in columns 71-72. Valid entries are U1-U8 or blank.

- F400 INVALID ENTRY MODE This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 28. This field must contain R or blank.
- F404 INVALID ENTRY ADDRESS TYPE This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 31.
 Valid entries are A, K, P, N, or blank. On indexed files, this field specifies the format of the key; it must be left blank if the file is not indexed.
- F407 INVALID ENTRY ADDITION-UNORDERED
- F543 INVALID KEY LENGTH ENTRY The key length is required when using indexed processing. When used, this field (columns 29-30) must contain a valid number from 1-99, and the key length plus the key start location must not exceed the record length.
- F549 INVALID KEY START LOCATION The key start location field is required when using indexed processing. This field (columns 35-38) must contain a valid number, and the key start location plus the key length must not exceed the record length.
- F553 INVALID KEYS IN CORE ENTRY The keys in core entry (columns 60-65) must contain a valid number not exceeding 9,999.

EXTENSION SPECIFICATIONS

Refer to Section 5 for further information.

- E061 CHAINING FIELD FOR THIS LEVEL NOT DEFINED ON INPUT This message indicates that automatic chaining has been specified, and the corresponding level has not been specified on input.
- E062 INVALID FROM FILE NAME ENTRY This message is caused by an invalid entry in columns 11-18. It is used as the file name of every execution-time vector, but must be left blank if the vector is to be loaded at compile time or via Input or Calculation Specifications.
- E063 INVALID TO FILE NAME ENTRY This message is caused by an invalid entry in columns 19-26. It is used as the file name of a vector file that is to be written or punched. A valid file name must be used as well as being previously defined on the File Description Specification form.
- E067 INVALID VECTOR NAME This message is caused by an invalid table or array name in column 27-32. Valid vector names cannot exceed six characters and must be unique. Table names must begin with the letters TAB.

- E068 INVALID ENTRY NUMBER OF ENTRIES PER RECORD This message is caused by an invalid entry in columns 33-35. This field must contain a valid number. This entry times the length of Vector A plus the length of Vector B (if applicable) must not be greater than the From File length or (if applicable) 96.
- E070 INVALID ENTRY NUMBER OF ENTRIES PER VECTOR This message is caused by an invalid entry in columns 36-39. This entry must be a valid number limited only to the size of the field.
- E072 INVALID ENTRY LENGTH OF ENTRY This message is caused by an invalid entry in columns 40-42/ 52-54. This entry must be a valid number specifying the length of the entry of the vector. Alpha entries must not exceed 511 and numeric entries 31.
- E074 INVALID ENTRY PACKED This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 43/55. Valid entries are blank and P. P is only allowed on numeric fields.
- E076 INVALID DECIMAL POSITIONS This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 44/56. Valid entries are 0-9 or blank.
- E077 INVALID SEQUENCE ENTRY This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 45/57. Valid entries are A, D, or blank.
- E079 INVALID ALTERNATE VECTOR NAME This message is caused by an invalid table or array name in columns 46-51. Valid vector names cannot exceed six characters and must be unique. Table names must begin with the letters TAB.
- E122 REDEFINED VECTOR NAME This message is caused by a vector name that has been redefined. Vector names must be redefined using the same length, type, and decimal positions as used on the first definition.
- E228 INVALID/OUT OF BOUNDS LITERAL -- VECTOR, LITERAL --Literals must contain digits 0-9 and cannot exceed the size of the vector.
- E315 INVALID/UNDEFINED FIELD NAME -- VECTOR, FIELD NAME --This message is caused by an illegal field name or a field name that has not been defined.

LINE COUNTER SPECIFICATIONS

Refer to Section 6 for further information.

LO85 - INVALID FILE NAME OR FILE TYPE This message indicates that a file name in columns 7-14 is not valid or has not been assigned to a print file. The file name must also have been previously defined on the File Specification.

D-4

LO88 - WHEN DEFINED -FL- MUST BE IN COL 18-19

- L090 INVALID CHANNEL ENTRY This message is caused by an illegal channel entry. Valid entries are 01-12, OL, or FL.
- L091 INVALID LINE ENTRY EXCEEDS FORM LENGTH OR 112 The line position entry must not exceed the form length or 112.

INPUT SPECIFICATIONS

Refer to Section 8 for further information.

1084 - RECORD LINE ASSUMED 43-70 TREATED AS BLANK

- IO92 INVALID FILE NAME This message indicates that the file name in columns 7-14 is not valid or has not been assigned to an input file. The file name must also have been previously defined on the File Specifications.
- 1092 FILE NOT DEFINED AS INPUT The file type in column 15 of the File Specification form has not been specified as I, U, C, or D.
- 1093 FIELD LINE ASSUMED 7-42 TREATED AS BLANK
- 1094 RECORD LINE WITH FILE MUST BE FIRST INPUT SPEC The first Input Specification must contain a file name.
- 1097 NO FIELDS DEFINED IN LAST RECORD
- II01 SEQUENCE FIELD SPECIFICATION This message is caused by an invalid entry in columns 15-16. It must contain a valid sequence entry, either 2 alpha characters other than ND or Rb, or a numeric entry from 01-99 in ascending order within the file.
- II02 INVALID ENTRY -NUMBER-The number position entry in column 17 must contain 1 or N if the sequence entry is numeric, or blank if alphabetic.

I103 - INVALID ENTRY -OPTION-This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 18. Valid entries are 0 and blank. The 0 may only be used on numerical entries, and one numerical entry should be nonoptional.

- II07 INVALID RECORD ID CODE This message is caused by an invalid entry between 21-41. The position entry must fall within the record length.
- II09 INVALID ENTRY -STACKER-This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 42. Valid entries are blank and 1-6 on card files.

- IIII INVALID PACKED ENTRY This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 43. Valid entries are P or blank. P may be specified only on numeric field lines, and if specified, column 52 (decimal positions) must not be blank.
- III3 INVALID FROM TO ENTRY The FROM and TO entries must be valid numbers and cannot exceed the record length. Numeric fields must not exceed 31. Alpha fields must not exceed 511. Vector load elements must be the same length as the element defined on the Extension Specifications, and the entire array load must not be greater than the array length and modulo the element length.
- I118 INVALID FIELD NAME This message is caused by an invalid field name in columns 53-58.
- II19 INVALID CONTROL LEVEL INDICATOR This message is caused by an invalid entry in columns 59-60. Valid entries are blank and level indicators L1-L9.
- I120 INVALID ENTRY MATCHING-CHAINING FIELD This message is caused by an invalid entry in columns 61-62. Valid entries are blank, M1-M9, and C1-C9.
- I122 REDEFINED FIELD NAME LOOKAHEAD A look-ahead field name must be unique.
- I122 REDEFINED FIELD NAME When used, a duplicate field name must contain the same length and decimal positions entry as the original.
- I159 INVALID RECORD INDICATOR This message occurs when columns 19-20 do not contain a valid indicator or look-ahead.
- I166 INVALID FIELD RESULTING INDICATOR This message occurs when columns 65-70 do not contain blanks or a valid indicator.
- I170 INVALID ENTRY FOR CHAIN OR DEMAND FILE Chain or demand files may not contain control levels or matching fields.
- I172 INPUT FILE ORDER IS DIFFERENT FROM FILE SPEC The input files must be in the same order as defined on the File Specifications.
- I181 REDEFINED LENGTH OF MATCHING-CHAINING FIELD REDEFINED LENGTH OF CONTROL FIELD. This message indicates that the total length of a given level on the current record is not identical to the total length of the same level of a previous record.

- I188 INVALID RECORD RELATION INDICATOR This message is caused by an invalid entry in columns 63-64. This field must contain a valid indicator or blank.
- I226 INVALID ENTRY DECIMAL POSITIONS The decimal positions entry in column 52 must contain a blank or 0-9. On vector loads, the decimal positions entry must be the same as the defined element.
- 1575 UNREFERENCED OR MISGROUPED REFERENCE OF FILE NAME This message indicates that an Input Specification has been referenced that has not been declared in the File Specification, or that the file names appear more than once and not consecutively, or that it does not appear in the same order as the File Specification.

CALCULATION SPECIFICATIONS

Refer to Section 9 for further information.

- C122 REDEFINED FIELD NAME This message indicates that the name defined in the result field has been previously defined with different length and decimal positions.
- C122 REDEFINED FIELD NAME LOOKAHEAD This message indicates that the name defined in the result field has been previously defined as a look-ahead field with different length and decimal positions.
- C123 INVALID CONTROL LEVEL INDICATOR This message is caused by an invalid entry in columns 7-8. Valid entries are LO-L9, LR, AN, OR, and, when in a subroutine, SR.
- C125 INVALID FACTOR 1 The field in columns 18-27 containing Factor 1 must be present if required, or absent if not required as specified by the Operation Code. When present, it must be a legal variable.
- C128 INVALID OPERATION CODE The operation code specified in columns 28-32 is not legal.
- C131 INVALID FACTOR 2 The field in columns 33-42 containing Factor 2 must be present if required, or absent if not required as specified by the operation code. When present, it must be a legal variable.
- C135 INVALID RESULT FIELD The field in columns 43-48 containing the result field must be present if required, or absent if not required as specified by the operation code. When present, it must be a legal variable but may not contain a literal.
- C135 INVALID RESULT FIELD NAME

- C137 INVALID RESULT FIELD LENGTH This message is caused by an invalid entry in columns 49-51. The result field length must contain a valid number between 1-31 for numeric fields or between 1-511 for alpha fields.
- C138 INVALID DECIMAL POSITIONS This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 52. Valid entries are blank and 0-9.
- C140 INVALID ENTRY HALF ADJUST This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 53. Valid entries are blank and H. H may only be used with arithmetic operators.
- C190 INVALID BEGSR/ENDSR RELATIONSHIP This message is used in conjunction with subroutines. Each subroutine must begin with a BEGSR and end with an ENDSR, and may not contain another subroutine.
- C200 INVALID RESULTING INDICATOR This message is caused by an invalid indicator or one that should not have been specified.
- C207 INVALID ALPHA LITERAL Alpha literals must be contained in apostrophes and must follow the rules for forming literals.
- C207 INVALID NUMERIC LITERAL This message is caused by an invalid numeric literal. Numeric literals start with +, -, ., or 0-9 and may contain only one comma or one decimal point, with no embedded blanks, and only digits 0-9.
- C214 INVALID GOTO TAG OR EXSR BEGSR RELATIONSHIP GOTO operations are valid only in conjunction with TAG and ENDSR labels. EXSR operators must be associated with a BEGSR.
- C215 FACTOR 1 AND FACTOR 2 BOTH LITERALS It is illegal to have literals in both Factor 1 and Factor 2.
- C221 RESULT FIELD MAY NOT BE LARGE ENOUGH This warning occurs when an overflow condition is likely to occur, which would cause high order digits to be lost.
- C232 INVALID OR DUPLICATE TAG, BEGSR, OR ENDSR NAME

- m - m -

- C304 INVALID INDICATOR A conditioning indicator must be specified on AND/OR lines and must be a valid indicator.
- C519 INVALID AN OR ENTRY This message is caused by an illegal entry. The last of a series of AND/OR lines must contain a calculation operation.

- _- _-

OUTPUT-FORMAT SPECIFICATIONS

Refer to Section 10 for further information.

0097 - NO FIELDS OR LITERALS DEFINED IN LAST RECORD

- 0142 RECORD LINE ASSUMED 32-70 TREATED AS BLANK
- 0143 INVALID OUTPUT RECORD TYPE This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 15. Valid entries are H, D, T, or E. This entry may also contain an N or R on AND/OR lines.
- 0146 INVALID FILE NAME This message indicates that the file in columns 7-14 is not valid or that it has not been previously defined on the File Description Specifications as an output file.
- Ol48 INVALID FIELD NAME This message is caused by an invalid entry in columns 32-37. A field name previously defined on Input, Extension, or Calculations Specification may be used, or one of the special reserved words may be used.
- O150 INVALID BLANK AFTER ENTRY The blank after entry in column 39 must contain a blank or B.
- 0151 INVALID ENDING POSITION This message is caused by an invalid entry in columns 40-43. This entry must contain a valid number that must not exceed the record length of the file, and the length of the field must not underflow the record. This must also include the size of the editing symbols when used.
- 0152 INVALID PACKED ENTRY This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 44. Valid entries are blank or P. When P is specified, a numeric variable must be described in columns 32-37.
- 0154 RECORD LINE WITH FILE MUST BE FIRST OUTPUT SPEC The first Output Specification must be a record line containing a file specification.
- 0154 FIELD LINE ASSUMED 7-22 TREATED AS BLANK
- 0212 EXCPT CALC WITHOUT EXCEPTION OUTPUT RECORD TYPE The EXCPT operation code has been used when no Exception output records have been defined.
- O256 INVALID STACKER/FETCH ENTRY This message is caused by an invalid entry in column 16. Valid entries on punch files are 1-6, and on Print files, are F or blank.

- O258 INVALID SPACE/SKIP ENTRY This message is caused by an invalid entry in columns 17-18 or 19-22. Valid entries for Spacing are blank, 0, or 1-9; for Skipping, 0-99, AO-A9, or BO-B2; and must only be used on Print files.
- 0273 INVALID OUTPUT INDICATOR The output indicators in columns 23-31 must contain a blank or a valid indicator. Valid indicators are 01-99, LO-L9, LR, MR, H0, H9, U1-U8, OA-OG, OV, or 1P.
- O276 INVALID EDIT CODE Column 38 must contain a blank if the field name field contains an alpha variable or literal; when numeric, it may contain a blank, 1-4, A-B-C-D, J-K-L-M, or X-Y-Z.
- 0277 INVALID EDIT WORD The number of replaceable characters in the edit word (columns 45-70) must be equal to or greater in length than the length of the field to be edited.
- 0279 INVALID CONSTANT SIZE
- 0283 INVALID FILE TYPE FOR OUTPUT RECORD The file type has not been defined as 0, U, C, or an input/ add file.
- 0289 *PLACE OR *PRINT PRECEDES ALL FIELDS AND CONSTANTS
- O548 INVALID FILE ADDITION The file referenced has not been declared as an add file but ADD was specified. ADD will be assumed.
- O554 ADD NOT SPECIFIED ASSUME -ADD-All files, except update files, using "A" in column 66 in the File Specifications should have "ADD" in columns 16-18 of each record in the output of the corresponding file.
- 0998 EDIT TO BE PERFORMED ON ALPHANUMERIC FIELD Only numeric items may be edited.
- 0999 BLANK AFTER INVALID FOR OUTPUT LITERAL Blank after may not be used after an output literal.

DOLLAR CARD SPECIFICATIONS

Refer to Section 11 for further information.

- DOL1 INVALID ENTRY -NEGATE-This message is caused by an invalid or illegal entry in column 8. Valid entries are blank or N; however, on some Dollar Card Specifications, it is illegal to use the Not option.
- DOL2 INVALID ENTRY -KEYWORD-This message is caused by the keyword entry not containing a valid option.

DOL3 - INVALID ENTRY -VALUE-

This message is caused by an illegal entry in the value field of the \$ option. Alpha entries must contain a character from A to Z in column 15, and numeric entries must contain blanks or zeroes in columns 15 and 16.

APPENDIX E

EXECUTION-TIME ERROR MESSAGES

Certain conditions may arise during program execution which require operator notification and, in most cases, acknowledgment. Some program errors are recoverable, and some are not. For more information, refer to B 1800/B 1700 Systems, System Software Operational Guide, Form No. 1068731.

INPUT ERROR MESSAGES

The following messages all denote error conditions arising during input, and all are recoverable. For each error condition, the program requests a reply from the operator. A GO response, <program job number>AXGO, causes the program to ignore the erroneous record and read the next record from the same file. A STOP response, <program job number>AXSTOP, causes the program to ignore the erroneous record, set the LR indicator on, and perform all final detail output, total calculations, and total output.

IDENT HALT

The occurrence of the following message results from reading an unidentifiable input record (that is, none of the designated Record Identification Codes for the file could be found in the record read):

rogram-name> = <program job number> : IDENT

MSEQ HALT

The occurrence of the following message results from reading a record that is out of sequence when matching records are specified (the indicators M1-M9 in columns 61-62 of the Input Specifications). All records in matching files must be in either ascending or descending sequence.

<program-name> = <program job number> : MSEQ

SEQ HALT

The occurrence of the following message results from reading a record which is out of sequence, as specified by the entries in columns 15-18 of the Input Specifications:

<program-name> = <program job number> : SEQ

REOF HALT

The occurrence of the following message results from reading a demand file which is at End-of-File and no indicator is specified in columns 58-59 of the Calculation Specifications:

<program-name> = <program job number> : REOF

READ ERROR HALT

The occurrence of the following message results from reading a file that contains an error (for example, a parity error):

<program-name> = <program job number> : READ ERROR

PROGRAMMED HALTS

The following message is displayed at the end of a program cycle if any of the halt indicators (HO-H9) are set. Each n is either blank (indicator not set) or a number 0-9 (indicator set).

<program-name> = <program job number> : HALT nnnnnnnnn

If the HO, H3, H4, H7, and H9 indicators are set, the following message appears:

<program-name> = <program job number> : HALT 0..34..7.9

Following this message, the program requests a reply from the operator. A GO response, <program job number>AXGO, turns off all halt indicators and the program continues processing. A STOP response, <program job number>AXSTOP, sets the LR indicator on and the program performs all total calculations and output. If the LR indicator is on when a halt occurs, the program displays the halt message and continues without waiting for an operator response.

FORMS POSITIONING

The following message is displayed after all output lines conditioned by the 1P indicator are printed and FORMS POSITIONING is specified (the number 1 in column 41 of the Control Specification):

<program-mix> = <program job number> : AGAIN?

After the message is displayed, the program requests a reply from the operator. A YES response, <program job number>AXYES, causes all output lines conditioned by the 1P indicator to be printed again, and the message is repeated.

A NO response, <program job number>AXNO, causes normal processing to continue.

Printing of all output lines conditioned by the 1P indicator can be requested as many times as necessary in order to align the forms properly. Requests for forms positioning occurs only when the file writes directly to the line printer.

ARITHMETIC ERRORS

DIVIDE BY ZERO HALT

The occurrence of the following message results from an attempt to perform a DIV (divide) operation using a divisor of zero. The MCP automatically discontinues (DS-ED) the program.

<program-name> = <program job number> : DIVIDE BY ZERO

SQRT HALT

The occurrence of the following message results from an attempt to perform a SQRT (square root) operation on a negative argument:

<program-name> = <program job number> : SQRT

Following the message, the program requests a reply from the operator. A GO response, <program job number>AXGO, sets the value contained in the RESULT FIELD to zero, and the program continues processing. A STOP response, <program job number>AXSTOP, sets the LR indicator on, and the program performs all final detail, total calculation, and total output.

VECTOR (ARRAY, TABLE) ELEMENT ERRORS - INVALID SUBSCRIPT HALT

The occurrence of the following message results from an attempt to reference a vector element that is out of bounds, that is, an index value less than or equal to zero, or greater than the maximum size of the array as specified in columns 36-39 of the Extension Specifications. The MCP automatically discontinues (DS-ED) the program.

<program-name> = <program job number> : INVALID SUBSCRIPT

PRE-EXECUTION TIME VECTOR - VSEQ HALT

The occurrence of the following message results from reading a pre-execution time vector record which is out of sequence as specified by the contents of the SEQUENCE fields in the Extension Specifications. Any response causes the program to terminate.

<program-name> = <program job number> : VSEQ

SEQUENCE ERROR - KEYSEQ HALT

The occurrence of the following message indicates that the indexed data file has a key which is out of sequence. Any response forces end-of-job. The program's data file requires resorting or the program loading the file or updating the file requires reworking.

cprogram-name> = program job number> : KEYSEQ FOR FILE = <filename>

LIMITS FILE - LIMITS PAIR ERROR

When processing a file within limits by means of a limits file and the low record key is greater in value than the high record key, the following message occurs:

<program name> = <program job number> : LIMITS PAIR

MUST BE IGNORED FOR FILE = <filename>

LOW KEY GREATER THAN HIGH KEY

If the limits pairs are entered through the console, then the program waits for the operator to re-enter the correct limits pair before processing continues. If the limits pairs are not entered through the console, the program ignores the erroneous limits pair and reads the limits file for the next limits pair.

INVALID TAG FILE/DATA FILE MESSAGES

The following message occurs when a tag file contains a record which is out-of-bounds:

<program name> = <program job number> FILE = <filename>, TAGFILE

POINTS TO INVALID DATA RECORD (KEY = 0 OR KEY GTR EOF)

The program terminates with the following response:

<program job number>AX

APPENDIX F

RPG/BTF PROGRAM

RPG/BTF (Build Tag File) is a utility program which creates a tag file from an existing indexed sequential data file on disk.

RPG/BTF RULES

The following rules apply to RPG/BTF:

- a. The data file is not required to be in key sequence order. The tag file is built in the proper sequence.
- b. When a duplicate key is encountered in a data file, an error message on the line printer specifies the relative record numbers of both records. In addition, the tag file is not entered in the disk directory.
- c. The RPG/BTF program can handle key fields up to 29 bytes in length for indexed files and 99 bytes for B-indexed files. If column 31, RECORD ADDRESS TYPE, of the File Description Specification is left blank, then alphanumeric keys are assumed.

RPG/BTF INPUT

Input to RPG/BTF can consist of the entire RPG source program; however, RPG/BTF ignores all but the following cards:

- a. The Control Card Specifications with an "R" or "L" (blank) in column 17. The default is "L" when the Control Card Specifications are not included in the input to RPG/BTF.
- b. The \$ RSIGN dollar option card. This dollar option must appear prior to each File Description Specification when the indexed data file is right-signed and "R" is not specified in column 17 of the Control Card Specifications. \$ RSIGN/\$NRSIGN can be used when selected files are right-signed and others are left-signed.
- c. The \$ PACKID, \$ FAMILY, and \$ FILEID dollar option card. These dollar options must be correctly related to each indexed file's File Description Specification when the external file name is different from the internal file name.
- d. File Description Specifications for each tag file to be built. Tag files are created for File Description Specifications that are declared as input, update, or output with additions. Each File Description Specification describes the indexed data file to the RPG/BTF program. This gives the RPG/BTF program the following information:
 - 1. Key length in bytes.
- 2. Key type (alphanumeric, numeric, or packed).
- 3. Key field starting location of each record in the data file.

All other source cards are ignored.

RPG/BTF FUNCTIONS

The following functions are performed by the RPG/BTF program:

- a. First, the RPG/BTF program reads from a card file called RPG/CARD. This card file may contain the entire RPG source program. The information required to build the tag file is obtained from each File Description Specification in the RPG source program that defines an indexed file. Files must be declared input, update, or output with additions.
- b. Next, the RPG/BTF program locates each indexed data file on disk in the order in which they appear in the File Description Specifications section of the RPG program. If a data file is not on disk, the RPG/BTF program continues with the next indexed data file described in the RPG source program; the message "FILE NOT ON DISK" appears in the printer error file called TAGFILE/INFO.
- c. A tag file is then created for each indexed data file located on disk. Each tag file contains the keys and relative record numbers of each record in its corresponding indexed data file. The keys in the new tag file remain unchanged from the keys in the data file. The relative record number, which is the position number of the record in the data file, also remains unchanged.
- d. After the tag file is created, RPG/BTF invokes the SORT/VSORT utility which sorts the tag file records by key in ascending order.
- e. After sorting, the RPG/BTF program locks the tag file in the Disk Directory and returns to step a. When the input card file, RPG/CARD, is exhausted, the RPG/BTF program goes to End-of-Job.

Table F-1 illustrates the internal and external file-names of the tag file.

Data File	Data File	Tag File	Tag File
Internal	External	Internal	External
File Name	File Name	File Name	File Name
DISK DISKIN DISK DISK DISK	A/ABCDEFGHIJ CCC/A/B A/ABCDEFGHIJ A/B/	TAGDISK TAGDISKIN TAGDISK TAGDISK TAGDISK	A/TAGABCDEFG DISKIN/TAG CCC/A/TAGB A/TAGABCDEFG A/B/TAG

Table F-1. Internal and External File Names of the Tag File and Data File

Table F-2 shows the internal and external file names, associated devices, and functions of the files used by the RPG/BTF program.

Internal File Name	Device	External File Name	Function or Description
LINE	Printer	TAGFILE/INFO	Error listing for RPG/BTF.
CARDS	Card	RPG/CARD	Input file for RPG/BTF.
DATA.FILE	Disk	BOBB/DATA.FILE	Workfile used to input data file.
TAG.FILE	Disk	BOBB/TAG.FILE	Workfile used to build and sort tag file.

Table F-2. Internal and External File Names of RPG/BTF

The following example illustrates the cards necessary to build tag files for indexed files INDEX and USER/RPG/TEST.

Example:

? EXECUTE RPG/BTF ? DATA RPG/CARD H (optional) FINDEX IPE F 180 60 5PI 10 DISK \$ PACKIDUSER \$ FAMILYRPG \$ FILEIDTEST FTEST IS F 180 180 30AI 125 DISK (Remainder of RPG source deck is not required)

?END

.

APPENDIX G

TAGSORT WITH RPG

TAGSORT is a method of sorting records in an input file by creating a tag file by which the input file is sorted. The tag file is placed on disk and may be referenced by any RPG program which contains the original input file for which the tag file was created.

The method for creating a tag file is discussed in the <u>B 1800/B 1700 System</u> <u>Software Operational Guide</u>, Form No. 1068731.

Basically, the tag file is created by a TAGSORT program which goes through the input file, extracting the key field(s) from the record, and adding the position of the record, relative to the first record in the file. The tag file is then sorted, using the regular sort concept, and leaving a file of relative record numbers (4 bytes in length) sorted in the specified sequence. The original input file remains unchanged.

The record address file (TAGFILE) created by the TAGSORT program can be used in an RPG program to perform record address (ADDROUT) processing. For detailed information, refer to the subsection titled Random Processing -Addrout Files in Section 4.

In the example shown in table G-1, the input file DISKFI is used to build a tag file called TAGFILE. Refer to the <u>B 1800/B 1700 System Software Operational Guide</u>, Form No. 1068731.

Contents of DISKFI	TAGSORT Program	Contents of TAGFILE
RECD NO		
00001 456 2222	FILE IN DISKFI (DISK (100) 180 1) OUT TAGFILE (DISK (270) 4 45) KEY (1 3 A A)	00000002
00002 123 0000		00000005
00003 879 1111	TAGSORT	0000008
00004 653 3333		00000001
00005 258 4444		00000007
00006 785 5555		00000004
00007 551 6666		00000006
00008 327 7777		0000003
00009 965 8888		00000009

Table G-1. Building a Tag File

The contents of DISKFI consists of nine records. The first three digits comprise the key field, the last four comprise the data field.

Since DISKFI was sorted by key in ascending order and record number 2 has the lowest key value, record 2 is placed in the first position of the tag file. Record 5 has the second smallest key (258), so 5 is placed in the second position of the tag file, etc.

APPENDIX H

RPG PROGRAM CYCLE

For each record from a primary or secondary file that is processed, the RPG object program goes through the same general cycle of operations. After a record is read, there are two different instances in time when calculation operations are performed and records written out. First, all total calculation tion operations (those conditioned by control level indicators in columns 7-8) and all total output operations are done. Second, all detail calculation operations and all detail output operations are done.

Total calculations are performed before the information on the record selected for processing is made available. Detail calculations are performed after the information on the selected record is made available. The following discussion describes this concept in more detail.

Whenever a record is read, a check is made to determine if information in a control field (when one has been specified) is different from the control field information on the previous card. A change in the control field information indicates that all records from a particular control group have been read and a new group is starting. When all records from a group have been read (indicated by control level indicators being set ON), operations may be done using information accumulated from all records in that group. It is at this time that all calculations conditioned by control level indicators in columns 7-8 are done. Total output operations are also performed immediately after all total calculation operations are completed. Information on the record read at the beginning of the program cycle is not used in these operations; only information from records in the previous control group is used.

Detail calculations occur after the information on the selected record has been made available. Detail calculations are used to calculate values needed each time a record is processed. They are also used to calculate totals for the current control group (if control fields are specified). Immediately after detail calculation operations are completed, detail output operations are performed.

The specific steps taken in one program cycle are shown in figure H-1. The item numbers in the following description refer to the number in the figure. A program cycle begins with step 3 and continues through step 39.

- 1. Initialization:
 - a. Data fields and indicators may have been preset to their initial values by the compiler; if not they must be initialized now:
 - 1) All data fields and vectors are initialized to zero (if numeric) or blank (if alphanumeric).
 - 2) All match fields are initialized to high (if descending sequence) or low (ascending) collating values.

16.

Appendix

Н

(Cont)



i 🖌

- 3) All control field storage areas are initialized to hexadecimal zeroes.
- 4) Indicators LO and 1P are set ON, all other indicators are set OFF. Under the RPG1 dialect any indicators from 01-99 used as zero/blank indicators will be set ON, unless also used as record identifying indicators.
- b. UDATE, UDAY, UMONTH, UYEAR fields are set.
- c. External indicators are set.
- d. Files are opened (unless files are to be opened automatically when first accessed).
- e. The first-control-cycle switch is set on. This is an internal switch used to determine when to suppress total time.
- 2. Pre-execution time vectors are loaded (if specified).
- 3. Detail Output. All heading and detail output operations whose indicator conditions are met are performed (this will not include output conditioned on overflow indicators). On the very first cycle, the option for forms alignment may have been specified. If so, step 3 (detail output) is repeated as many times as the operator requires. Generally, the programmer will control the heading output required on the first cycle by conditioning it on the indicator 1P (which will be off for all cycles except the first).
- 4. All overflow indicators are set OFF. If any printer file is on the overflow line or between the overflow line and the end of the page, any overflow indicator associated with that file is set on.
- 5. If any of the halt indicators H0 H9 are on, the program branches to step 6; otherwise, to step 7.
- 6. A message is displayed indicating which halt indicators are on. The operator has 2 options:
 - a. STOP. Program branches to step 13. After performing "last record," total calculations, and total output, the program will terminate.
 - b. GO. The program continues at step 7.
- 7. All record identifying indicators are set OFF. 1P, L1-L9 and H0-H9 are set OFF. L0 is set ON. Under the RPG1 dialect LR is also set OFF.
- 8. Under the RPG1 dialect, the program will always continue at step 9; otherwise, LR is tested. If LR is ON, the program branches to step 11; otherwise, to step 9.
- 9. The next input record is read. On the first cycle, one record is read from each primary and secondary file. On all subsequent cycles, the record is read from the file that was processed last. For an input (not update or combined) file with look-ahead fields, the record will already have been read at step 38 of the previous cycle.

- 10. A test is performed to determine whether the file just read is at End-of-File or is conditioned by an external indicator which is OFF (on the first cycle, the test is whether any of the files read satisfy this condition). If yes, the program branches to step 11; otherwise, to step 14.
- 11. If this program has a primary file and at least one secondary file (i.e., the program performs multifile processing), the program branches to step 12, otherwise, to step 13.
- 12. If all required files are at End-of-File (as specified in column 17 of the File Specifications), the program branches to step 13; otherwise, to step 17.
- 13. Indicators LR and L1-L9 are set ON.
- 14. The record (or in the case of the first cycle, all the records) read at step 9 is identified (but the record identifying indicator is not yet set ON). A test is performed to determine whether the input records are in the sequence specified on the Input Specifications. If the record type sequence is incorrect (or if sequenced records are specified but the current record cannot be identified), the program branches to step 15; otherwise, to step 17.
- 15. The record type sequence error causes the program to halt after displaying an appropriate message to the operator.
- 16. The operator may order the program to resume. In which case, the out of sequence record is ignored and the next record is read by branching to step 9.
- 17. If multiple input files are specified, the program branches to step 18 in order to select the next record to be processed. If no secondary files are specified, the program continues at step 21.
- 18. If the FORCE opcode was performed during the previous program cycle, the forced file is selected for processing and the program branches to step 24.
- 19. The current records from each primary and secondary file are inspected in the order that the files were specified on File Specifications. The first record that has no match fields is selected and the program branches to step 24. If all records have match fields, the program branches to step 20.
- 20. The record with the highest priority matching field value (highest collating value for descending matching sequence, lowest collating value for ascending sequence) is selected to be processed next. If two or more files have equal and highest priority matching field values, the one with highest priority is selected (priority corresponds to the order in which files were specified on File Specifications).
- 21. As there are no secondary files, record selection is unnecessary. If the current record from the primary file has match fields, the program branches to step 22 to perform matching sequence checking.

- 22. The match field value of the selected record is compared to the match field value of the previous record processed. If it is in sequence, the program continues at step 24. If the match field value is out of sequence, the program branches to step 23.
- 23. The program halts after displaying a message to the operator indicating that a match field sequence error has occurred.
- 24. The program sets ON the record identifying indicator specified for the selected record. However, data from this record is not available for processing until step 37. If look-ahead fields are specified for update or combined files, they are extracted at this point (all other look-ahead fields are not extracted until step 38).
- 25. If the selected record has control fields, a test is performed to see if the contents are equal to the contents of the control field storage area. If the contents are unequal, a control break has occurred; the appropriate control level indicators are set ON and the new control field contents are stored in the control field storage area. Note that until the first control break occurs, the control field storage area contains its initial value of hexadecimal zeros.
- 26. If the first-control-cycle switch is ON, the program branches to step 29; otherwise, to step 27.
- 27. Total calculations (calculations conditioned by control level indicators LO-L9 in columns 7-8) are performed.
- 28. Total output that is not conditioned by an overflow indicator is performed. When this output is complete, the program tests to see if the overflow condition has occurred. If any printer file is on the overflow line or between the overflow line and the end of the page, any overflow indicator associated with that file is set ON.
- 29. If control fields were specified in this program, the program branches to step 30; otherwise, to step 31.
- 30. If a control break occurred on this cycle (at step 25), the program branches to step 31; otherwise, to step 32.
- 31. The first-control-cycle switch is set OFF. Total Calculations and Total Output will be performed on all subsequent cycles (if no control break occurs, only LO operations will be performed).
- 32. If indicator LR is ON, the program branches to step 33.
- 33. End-of-Job routine.
 - a. Output any vectors specified with a TO FILENAME on the Extensions Specifications.
 - b. Perform any file maintenance e.g., sorting an indexed file if unordered or if additions have been made.
 - c. Close all files.

34. Overflow output is performed for each printer file on which overflow & has occurred on this cycle. The test and the output performed take

35. one of two forms. If an overflow indicator is assigned to the file on File Specifications or if overflow output is specified on Output Specifications for the file, the test is whether the overflow indicator for that file is ON (it may have been set ON by SETON; it may also have been set OFF if overflow output has been Fetched). If so, any Total and then any Detail output for that file which is conditioned on the overflow indicator is performed (if none is specified, no overflow output will be performed). The overflow indicator is then set OFF.

If no overflow indicator is assigned and no overflow output is specified for the file, the test is whether the overflow condition was satisfied in steps 4 or 28. If overflow did occur and has not been Fetched, the object program automatically generates a skip to line 1 of a new page.

- 36. The matching record indicator MR is set ON or OFF. MR is set ON if a match has occurred (i.e., if selected record has a match field and the current match field value was originally selected from a primary record).
- 37. Data is extracted from the current record and made available for processing. Any field indicators specified are set ON or OFF to reflect the status of the data fields.
- 38. If the current record is from an input (not update or combined) file which has look-ahead fields, the next record from that file is read, and the look-ahead fields are extracted and made available to the program.

Note that look-ahead fields from an update and combined file are made available at step 24.

39. Detail time calculations are performed. Processing continues with step 3.

INDEX

AAOPEN dollar option, 11-5 ACCESS MODE field, 13-3 ACCEPT message, 9-46 add a record (ADD Output Specifications), 10-5, 13-8, 13-9 ADD operation code, 9-13 adding records to files, 4-31, 4-32, 10-5, 13-8, 13-9 coding options, 4-32 direct, sequential, indexed, B-indexed, 4-31 DMS, 13-8, 13-9, 13-42, 13-43 File Description entry, 4-31 additional input/output area, 4-10, 4-11 ADDROUT coding options, 4-43 examples of, 4-43 File Description entries (file organization, col 32), 4-10, 4-11 File Description entries (mode of processing col 28), 4-9 File Description entries (record address type col 31), 4-10 ADDROUT files, 4-9 thru 4-11, 4-22 4-22 advantages of using, 4-22 adjusting results. See HALF ADJUST alignment of printer forms, 3-4 alphanumeric characters (definition), 2-1 fields (definition), 2-2moving alphanumeric fields (MOVE), 9-18, 9-20 definition of, 2-1 alphanumeric literal, 2-3, 2-4 ampersand in edit words, 10-30, 10-35, 10-36 AN/OR entries, 9-5, 9-9, 9-42 DMKEY statement, 13-24 Input Specifications, 8-3 Output Specifications, 10-16, 10-17 AND relationship Calculation Specifications, 9-5, 9-6 Calculation Specifications (AN), 9-5, 9-42 DMKEY statement, 13-24 AREAS dollar option, 11-4

arithmetic errors, E-2 arithmetic operations, 9-13 thru 9-19 ADD, 9-13 DIV, 9-15 length of fields, 9-10 MULT, 9-13 MVR, 9-15 SQRT, 9-17 SUB, 9-13 XFOOT, 9-17 Z-ADD, 9-19 Z-SUB, 9-19 arrays compilation time, 5-4, 5-9, 5-10 creating input records, 5-9 thru 5 - 11decimal positions, 5-5, 5-6 defining arrays (Extension Specifications), 5-7 differences between tables and arrays, 5-7 edit codes, 10-22 thru 10-24 error messages, E-3 examples, 5-10 thru 5-13 execution time, 5-11 thru 5-13 Extension Specifications, 5-1 thru 5-15 Extension Specifications Summary Sheet, 5-3file designation entry, 4-5 length of entry, 5-4, 5-5loading (compilation time), 5-9, 5 - 10loading (examples), 5-10 thru 5-13 loading (execution time), 5-11, 5 - 12loading (placement in source deck), 5-9 loading (pre-execution time), 5-10, 5-11 loading (via Calculation Specifications), 5-13 loading (via Input Specifications), 5-12, 5-13 LOKUP. See LOKUP operation code maximum number of, 5-4name, 5-3, 5-6, 5-7 name (File Description Specifications), 4-5

sala an imi

number of entries per array, 5-4 output (via Extension Specifications), 5-1, 5-3 output (via Output Specifications), 5-1, 5-3 packed, 5-5 pre-execution time, 5-10, 5-11 referencing arrays in Calculations Specifications, 9-8, 9-9 sample specifications, 5-10 thru 5 - 12searching arrays. See LOKUP operation sequence (Extension Specifications), 5-6 sequence definition, 5-6 sequence of, 5-6summary sheet, 5-2XFOOT operation, 9-17 ascending sequence, 4-7, B-1asterisk (*) comment line, 2-6, 5-7, 9-11, 11-8A asterisk fill, 10-33 examples, 10-33 Audit/Recovery, 13-51 thru 13-64 B 1800/B 1700 card codes, A-1 thru A-3 B 1800/B 1700 Standard Label, 4-29 B-INDEXED files, 3-1, 4-13 BAZBON dollar option, 11-7 BCL card codes, A-3 BEGSR operation code, 9-42 BEGUR operation code, 13-36 binary field Input Specifications, 8-20, 8-22 thru 8-24, 10-2, 10-27 Output Specifications, 10-27 binary field operations, 9-34 BITOF, 9-34 BITON, 9-33 TESTB, 9-34 binary format, 8-20, 8-22 thru 8-24, 10-2, 10-27rules for, 8-22 thru 8-24 binary to hexadecimal conversion, B-2 BITOF operation code, 9-34 bit operation codes, 9-33, 9-34 bit testing (TESTB), 9-34 use of indicators, 9-34 BITON operation code, 9-33 BLANK AFTER field, 10-25 blanks in edit words, 10-30, 10-31 BLOCK LENGTH field, 4-8, 4-9 defaults, 4-9

values, 4-8 branching operations, 9-35 BSCA, 4-29, 7-1 BTF, F-1 thru F-3 buffers, 4-10 C/Z/Dcoding of, 8-17 thru 8-19 $C/{\rm Z}/D$ field, 8-17 thru 8-19 Calculation Specifications, 9-1 field definitions, 9-1 thru 9-11 operations. See operation codes Calculation-time exception records, 10-4, 10-5 calculations controlling, 9-3, 9-4 DMS, 13-16 thru 13-22 factors (FACTOR 1), 9-8 factors (FACTOR 2), 9-9 indicators in AND relationship, 9-5 operations (conditioning), 9-3 thru 9-8 operations (controlling), 9-3, 9-4 operations (DMS), 13-23 thru 13-34 operations (order of specification), 9-9 operations (summary sheet), 9-14 specification sheet, 9-2subroutines in, 9-42, 9-43total time, H-1 thru H-6 user routines (UR entry), 13-36 thru 13-41 card arrangement in source deck, 1-3 card code (80-column card), A-3 card code (96-column card), A-3 cards, punching and printing on, 10-19, 10-20 CASSET dollar option, 11-6 CHAIN operation code, 9-44 thru 9-46 chained file, 4-4 device assignment of, 4-27 changing contents of tables and arrays, 5-11 CHANNEL, 6-1 CHANNEL NUMBER field, 6-1, 6-3, 6-4 character alphanumeric, 2-3, 2-4 collating sequence, B-1

table of maximum and minimum

٦

the second secon

EBCDIC extended binary-codeddecimal interchange code, A-3 hexadecimal equivalents, B-1 numeric, 2-3 printable, 3-3, 3-4 replacement, 10-30special, 2-1, 2-2 CHARACTER field, 8-19, 8-20, 13-12 DMS, 13-12 character set, 2-1, A-3, B-1 numeric portion, 8-17 thru 8-19, A-3 used for names, 2-1used in editing, 2-2, 10-30zone portion, 8-17 thru 8-19 CHECK dollar option, 11-6 checking sequence. See sequence checking CLOSE dollar option, 11-5 closing of tape files, 4-32, 4-33 code 80-column card, A-3 96-column card, A-3 BCL, A-3 EBCDIC extended binary-codeddecimal interchange code, A-3 edit codes, 10-21 thru 10-24 record identification, 8-16 thru 8-20 operation. See operation codes collating sequence, B-1 combined files, 4-3 device assignment of, 4-27file type entry (File Description column 15), 4-3stacker select on Input Specifications, 8-20 stacker select on Output-Format Specifications, 10-6 commas in edit words, 10-30, 10-32 comments, 2-6Calculation Specifications, 9-11 Dollar Card Specifications, 11-8A Extension Specifications, 5-7 use of asterisk (*), 2-6 common entries on specifications sheets, 2-4, 2-5 COMP operation code alphanumeric fields, 9-31 numeric fields, 9-31 compare and testing operations, 9-31, 9-32 compare operation, 9-31

COMP, 9-31 TESTN, 9-31 thru 9-32A TESTZ, 9-32Acompatibility with other RPG systems, 1-3 compilation, 1-1 thru 1-3 compilation of source program, 1-1 thru 1-3 compilation time of tables and arrays, 5-1, 5-4, 5-7, 5-9, 5-10 compile statement, 12-2 compile-time vectors, 4-5, 5-7, 5-9, 5-10, 12-3 loading, 5-9, 5-10 output, 5-14 compiler file names, 12-4 compiler operation, 12-1 compiler program, 1-1 compiler-directing options \$ options, 11-7 thru 11-8A conditioning files File Description Specification entry, 4-34, 4-35 conditions tested by resulting indicators (calculations), 9-11 consecutive processing of a file, 4-9 CONSOLE device, 4-26File Description Specification entry, 4-26, 4-27 console messages during program halts, 4-7, E-1 thru E-3A constant. See edit word; literal definition of, 10-28 example coding of, 10-29 Output-Format Specifications, 10-28 rules for forming, 10-29 thru 10-31 CONSTANT OR EDIT WORD field, 10-29 thru 10-31 DMS, 13-47, 13-49 constants, 10-28 DMS, 13-47, 13-49 constants in edit words, 10-28 DMS, 13-47, 13-49 continue halt recovery, E-1 thru E-3A control break. See control fields; control level first cycle difference, 8-29 general description, 8-28 thru 8-30 DMS, 13-15

split control fields, 8-30 thru 8-32 unwanted, 8-30 thru 8-32 Control Card Specifications field definitions, 3-1 thru 3-4 Control Card Specifications syntax, 3-1 thru 3-4 control fields assigning on input, 8-28 thru 8-32 DMS, 13-15 examples, 8-30, 8-31 general description, 8-28 thru 8-32 DMS, 13-15 rules for using, 8-29, 8-30 split fields, 8-30 split fields (rules for using), 8-30 thru 8-32 See control fields; control group. control level control level Calculation Specifications entry, 9-3 DMS, 13-15, 13-16 example of, 9-4 Input Specifications entry, 8-28 thru 8-30, 13-25 CONTROL LEVEL field Calculation Specifications, 9-2 Input Specifications, 8-28 DMS, 13-15, 13-27 control level indicator Calculation Specification entry, 9-3 example of, 9-4general information, 9-3 Input Specifications entry, 8-28, 13-15 normal uses, 8-28 Output-Format Specifications entry, 10-12 thru 10-15 relation between calculation entries, 9-3 control level indicators (LO-L9) with overflow indicators, 10-15 conversion of fields during MOVE operations, 9-18 core index allocation of storage, 4-29, 4-30 example, 4-30CORE INDEX field, 4-29, 4-30 CR (negative balance symbol), 10-22 thru 10-24, 10-28, 10-34

cross foot operation (XFOOT), 9-17 CRP20 device, 4-27CRP device, 4-27 cycle detail description of, H-1 thru H-6 flowchart of RPG cycle, H-2 RPG, H-1 Dl indicator, 13-18, 13-22 D indicators, 13-18, 13-22 DA-DH, DJ-DS indicators, 13-18, 13-22 DASDL, 13-1DASDL Information and Suggestions, 13-65 data base, 13-1, 13-3 data base dictionary, 13-1 DATA BASE NAME field, 13-3 Data Base Specifications, 13-2, 13-3 ACCESS MODE field, 13-3 DATA BASE NAME field, 13-3 LOGICAL DATA BASE field, 13-3 data set name, 13-6, 13-11, 13-42 data sets, 13-1 DATA96 device, 4-27 data communications files, 7-1 data formats. See PACKED or BINARY field DATACOM Telecommunications Card Specifications, 7-1 thru 7-4 DATACOM files, 4-29, 7-1, 7-3 data fields, 10-18A DEADLOCK exception, 13-35 DEBUG example of output listing of, 9-54 DEBUG field, 3-1 DEBUG operation code, 9-53 Control Card entry, 3-1 DEBUG, 9-53 example output, 9-54 format of debug records, 9-53 decimal data format. See also PACKED and BINARY fields packed, 8-20, 8-22 thru 8-24 unpacked, 8-21 decimal places. See decimal positions decimal point in edit words, 10-28, 10-30, 10-32 DECIMAL POSITIONS field Calculation Specifications, 9-10, 13-21 DMS, 13-14, 13-21

Extension Specifications, 5-5, 5-6 Input Specifications, 8-25, 13-14 with move remainder (MVR), 9-15 decimal positions with square root operation (SQRT), 9-17 defining a field in calculations (RESULT FIELD), 9-9 definition of names, 2-2 delete a record, 13-8, 13-9, 13-43, 13 - 44DELET operation code, 13-23, 13-24, 13-35, 13-36 demand file, 4-5 demand file. See also READ operation code device assignment of, 4-27 File Description Specifications entry, 4-5demand file with external indicators (U1-U8), 9-49descending sequence, 4-7, B-1, B-2 detail calculations, 9-1 detail calculations time, H-1 detail calculations time. See also RPG cycle detail lines, 6-4, 10-4 during overflow, 10-5, 10-6 detail output record Output-Format Specifications entry, 10-2detail output record with control level as output indicator, 10-12, 10-13 detail output time, H-1 detail records, 10-4 detail time, H-1 detailed object program logic, H-1 device Field Description Specifications entry, 4-26 device assignment table, 4-27 DEVICE field, 4-26 thru 4-29 DMS, 13-7, 13-8, 13-53 digit character grouping by zone and digit, 8-22 digit portion of characters, 8-17, 8-22, A-1 thru A-3 hexadecimal representation, B-1, B-2 digit portion of characters with packed decimal format, 8-21 DIGIT8 dollar option, 11-6A

direct file adding records, 9-45 creating a direct file, 9-46 File Description Specifications entry, 4-11 organization example, 4-13 processing methods, 4-10 direct files, 4-13 accessing of, 4-13chaining of, 9-45, 9-46organization of, 4-13 disjoint data set, 13-1, 13-2 disjoint set, 13-1 DISK11 device, 4-27 DISK11F device, 4-27 DISK45 device, 4-27 DISK device, 4-26 disk file. See also direct file; index file; sequential files block and record length entry, 4-8 device entry (File Description entry), 4-26 File Description Specifications Summary Sheet, 4-2 organization. See file organization processing. See processing modes DISKID dollar option, 11-3, 13-3 display (DSPLY) operation data entry during program execution, 9-46, 9-47 example, 9-47display files, 4-4 device assignment, 4-26 DIV operation code, 9-15 divide by zero (halt recovery), E-2 DMKEY statement, 13-24 thru 13-26 DMSNAM dollar option, 11-6A DMS Calculation Specifications, 13-16 thru 13-34, 13-53 thru 13 - 55D indicators, 13-17, 13-19, 13 - 22Data Base Specifications, 13-2, 13-3 DA-DH, DJ-DS indicators, 13-18, 13-19, 13-22 DEADLOCK exception, 13-35 DECIMAL POSITIONS field, 13-21 DELET operation code, 13-23, 13-24

disjoint data set, 13-1, 13-23 DMKEY statement, 13-24 thru 13-26 embedded data set, 13-11, 13-23 ENDUR operation code, 13-36 exception conditions, 13-36, 13-37 exception handling, 13-35 thru 13-41 Extension Specifications, 13-9 FACTOR 1 field, 13-19 FACTOR 2 field, 13-20 FIELD INDICATORS field, 13-16 FIELD LENGTH field, 13-21 File Description Specifications, 13-5 thru 13-9 FIND operation code, 13-26 thru 13-28 FREE operation code, 13-28, 13-29 HALF ADJUST field, 13-21 INDICATORS field, 13-18, 13-19 input exceptions, 13-35 Input Specifications, 13-11 thru 13-16 INSRT operation code, 13-29, 13-30 IOERROR exception, 13-35 key relationships on DMKEY statement, 13-24, 13-25 LOCK operation code, 13-30 thru 13-32 manual subset, 13-30, 13-32, 13-33 on exception indicator, 13-18, 13-22 operation codes, 13-23 thru 13-34 OPERATION field, 13-20 Output-Format Specifications, 13-41 thru 13-50, 13-55, 13-56 program aborts, 13-37, 13-38 random access, 13-21REMOV operation code, 13-32, 13-33 restart data set, 13-51 thru 13-64 RESULT FIELD field, 13-20, 13-21 RESULTING INDICATOR field, 13-22 run-time error handling, 13-36 thru[.] 13-41 run-time errors on DMS file, 13-36 SECURITYERROR exception, 13-35 selection expressions, 13-20, 13-21 sequential access, 13-21

setting indicators, 13-22 STORE operation code, 13-33, 13-34 user routines (UR entry), 13-36, 13-38 variable format records, 13-44 thru 13-46 valid data set, 13-23 VERSIONERROR exception, 13-35 DMS Calculation Specifications, 13-16 thru 13-34, 13-53 thru 13-55 ACCESS METHOD, 13-21 DMS File Description Specifications DEVICE field, 13-7, 13-53 END OF FILE field, 13-6 FILE ADDITIONS field, 13-8, 13-9, 13-53 FILE DELETIONS field, 13-8, 13 - 9FILE DESIGNATION field, 13-6 FILE FORMAT field, 13-7 FILE NAME field, 13-6 FILE TYPE field, 13-6, 13-53 INDEX NAME field, 13-8 SEQUENCE field, 13-7 DMS Input Specifications, 13-11 thru 13-16, 13-53 CHARACTER field, 13-12 CONTROL LEVEL field, 13-15 DECIMAL POSITIONS field, 13-14 DIGIT field, 13-12 field definitions for field descriptions, 13-13 thru 13-16 Field Descriptions, 13-13 thru 13-16 FIELD LOCATIONS field, 13-13 FIELD NAME field, 13-14, 13-15 FIELD RECORD RELATIONS field, 13-15, 13-16 MATCHING FIELDS field, 13-15, 13-16 PACKED field, 13-13 POSITIONS field, 13-14 RECORD IDENTIFYING CODES field, 13-12 RECORD IDENTIFYING INDICATOR field, 13-11 Record Type Descriptions, 13-11 thru 13-13 restart data set, 13-53 SEQUENCE field, 13-11 SIGN field, 13-12

STACKER SELECT field, 13-12 ZONE field, 13-12 DMS Output-Format Specifications, 13-41 thru 13-50, 13-55, 13-56 adding records, 13-43 CONSTANT field, 13-47 deleting records, 13-43, 13-44 EDIT CODES field, 13-47 END POSITION field, 13-47 Field Definition Line, 13-46 thru 13-49 OUTPUT INDICATORS field, 13-44, 13-46 OUTPUT LOCATION field, 13-46 PACKED field, 13-47 RECORD ADDITION field, 13-43 RECORD DELETION field, 13-43, 13-44 Record Description Line, 13-41 thru 13-46 restart data set, 13-55, 13-56 TYPE field, 13-43, 13-55, 13-56 Variable Format Records, 13-44 thru 13-46 VARIABLE NAME field, 13-47 DMS exception handling, 13-35 thru 13-41 DMS exception indicators, 13-18, 13-19, 13-22 DMS file DMS files primary, 13-6 secondary, 13-6 DMS general, 13-1, 13-2 DMS glossary of commonly used terms, 13-66 thru 13-70 DMS indicators, 13-18, 13-19, 13-22 DMS library files, 13-64 DMS operation codes, 13-23 thru 13-34 DMS OUTPUT LOCATION field, 13-46 DMS selection expressions, 13-20, 13-21 DNAME dollar option, 11-6 Dollar Card Specifications, 11-1 AAOPEN, 11-5AREAS, 11-4 BAZBON, 11-7 CASSET, 11-6A CHECK, 11-6 compiler, 11-6 CLOSE, 11-5CYL, 11-5 DIGIT8, 11-6A DISKID, 11-3 DMSNAM, 11-6A

DNAME, 11-6 DRIVE, 11-5 FAMILY, 11-3 FILEID, 11-3 field definitions, ll-l thru 11-8 file identification extensions, 11-3 LIBR, 11-8 LIST, 11-7 LOGIC, 11-7 MAP, 11-7 MERGE, 11-6, 11-6A NAMES, 11-7NEW, 11-6A NEWID, 11-8 ONEPAK, 11-5 OPEN, 11-5 options, 11-3 PACKID, 11-3 PAGE, 11-8 PARMAP, 11-8 PTAPE, 11-6A REFORM, 11-5 REORG, 11-6RPERA, 11-5 RPG extensions, 11-4 RPGLIB, 13-65 RSIGN, 11-6 SECURE, 11-6A SEQ, 11-6A STACK, 11-8 SUPR, 11-8 TAPE7, 11-6A TAPE9, 11-6A VOID, 11-8 XMAP, 11-8 XREF, 11-8 ZBINIT, 11-7 dollar sign option, 11-1 dollar signs in edit words, 10-30, 10-33 domestic format, 3-3, 3-4, 10-24 double buffering (I/O areas), 4-10,4-11 DRIVE dollar option, 11-5 DSPLY operation code, 9-9, 9-46, 9-47 dynamic/execution-time vectors, 5-11 thru 5-14 Loading of, 5-11 Loading of Calculation Specs, 5-13 Loading of Input Specifications, 5 - 12

...

EBCDIC character set, A-3 edit code arrays, 10-22 thru 10-24 DMS fields on output, 13-47 effect on end position, 10-22Leading zero suppression, 10-24 Output-Format Specifications entry, 10-21 thru 10-24 rules, 10-22 thru 10-24 summary table, 10-24 zero balances, 10-24 edit code with array, 10-22 thru 10-24edit code with edit word, 10-22 edit code with inverted print specified, 10-24 EDIT CODES field, 10-21, 13-47 Edit Words ampersand, 10-30, 10-33 asterisk, 10-30, 10-33 asterisk with comma, 10-30 asterisk with credit symbol (CR), 10-30, 10-33 asterisk with decimal point, 10-30 asterisk with dollar sign (\$), 10-30, 10-33 asterisk with minus sign (-), 10-30, 10-33 asterisk with zero, 10-30, 10-31 asterisk with blank, 10-30 constant in, 10-36 DMS on output, 13-47, 13-49 editing and constants, 10-36 editing negative numbers, 10-34 editing to remove the sign, 10-35 editing with a floating dollar sign, 10-33 editing with a slash, 10-34 editing with asterisk, 10-33 examples of, 10-37 thru 10-47 full zero suppression, 10-31 limited zero suppression, 10-32 no editing, 10-31 no zero suppression, 10-31 replacement characters, 10-30 sections of, 10-24 special character with ampersand, 10-30, 10-35 special characters, 2-2, 10-30 zero suppression, 10-31 editing characters, 2-2, 10-28 embedded data set, 13-1, 13-11, 13-23 end-of-file File Description Specifications entry, 4-6

END POSITION field, 10-26, 13-47 end position in output record Output-Format Specification entry, 10-26, 13-47 End-of-File condition, 4-6 END-OF-FILE field, 4-6, 13-6 End-of-File with matching records, 4-6, 8-37 End-of-Job, 4-6, 10-11 ENDSR operation code, 9-42, 9-43 ENDUR operation code, 13-36 ENTRIES PER RECORD field, 5-4 ENTRIES PER VECTOR field, 5-4 error messages execution time, E-1 halts, E-2 thru E-3A error sequence recovery from record type sequence error, E-1 recovery from file sequence halt, E-1 exception conditions, 13-17, 13-19, 13-37, 13-38 exception handling routine, 13-36 thru 13-38 exception indicators, 13-18, 13-19 exception lines, 10-8 exception records, 10-4, 10-5 Output-Format Specifications entry, 10-4, 10-5 overflow printing, 10-55, 10-56 EXCPT operation code, 9-47 execution halts, E-1 thru E-3A execution-time array definition, 5-11 Extension Specification Sheet, 5-2 loading, 5-11 thru 5-14 execution-time arrays, 5-11 thru 5 - 14execution-time error messages, E-1, E-3A execution-time vectors, 5-11 thru 5 - 14EXSR (execute subroutine) operation, 9-43 EXSR operation code, 9-43 EXTENSION CODE field, 4-26 Extension Specifications, 5-1 thru 5-15, 13-9 EXTENSION CODE field (File Description entry), 4-26 field definitions, 5-1, 13-9

.....

FROM FILENAME and TO FILENAME field, 5-1, 13-16 external file names definition of, 11-3, 11-4 external indicators (Ul-U8), 4-34, 4-35, 8-42, 8-43, 9-8, 10-11, 10-13 assigning on File Description Specification, 4-34, 4-35 external indicators as output indicators, 10-11, 10-13 FACTOR 1 field, 9-8, 13-19 FACTOR 2 field, 9-9, 13-20 FAMILY dollar option, 11-3 FETCH OVERFLOW field, 10-6 thru 10-8, 10-55, 10-56 FETCH OVERFLOW field at exception time, 10-8 FETCH OVERFLOW field with skipping specified, 10-7 field alphanumeric, 2-3 binary (Input Specifications), 8-20, 8-22 thru 8-24 binary (Output Specifications), 10-27 look-ahead, 8-8F thru 8-11 matching, 8-32 thru 8-39 numeric, 2-3 packed, 8-20 result, 9-9 field description line - DMS output, 13-46 thru 13-50 field definitions. 2-4 Calculation Specifications, 9-1 thru 9-10, 13-16 thru 13-22 Calculation Specifications Summary Sheet, 9-2 Control Card Specifications, 3-1 thru 3-4 Control Card Specifications Summary Sheet, 3-2 Data Base Specifications, 13-3 Dollar Card Specifications, 11-1 thru 11-8A Dollar Card Specifications Summary Sheet, 11-2 Extension Specifications, 5-1 thru 5-7, 13-9 Extension Specifications Summary Sheet, 5-2 File Description Specifications, 4-1 thru 4-35, 13-6 thru 13-9, 13-52, 13-53

File Description Specifications Summary Sheet, 4-2 Input Specifications, 8-1 thru 8-44, 13-11 thru 13-16 Input Specifications Summary Sheet, 8-2Output-Format Specifications, 10-1 thru 10-58, 13-40 thru 13-48, 13-55 Output-Format Specifications Summary Sheet, 10-3 Telecommunications Card Specifications, 7-2 thru 7-4 Telecommunications Card Summary Sheet, 7-3, 7-4 field definitions common to all specifications, 2-5, 2-6 field indicators (01-99), 8-43, 9-6, 9-7, 10-12, 13-16 thru 13-19, 13-44, 13-46 FIELD INDICATORS field, 8-43, 13-16 MINUS field, 8-43 PLUS field, 8-43 ZERO or BLANK field, 8-43 FIELD LENGTH field, 9-10, 13-20 FIELD LOCATION field, 8-24, 8-25, 13-13 FIELD NAME field Input Specifications, 8-26, 13-14, 13-15 Output Specifications, 10-17 thru 10-20, 13-47 Output Specifications *PLACE Specification, 10-19 Output Specifications *PRINT Specification, 10-20 Output Specifications Date fields, 10-18 Output Specifications Page fields, 10-19 field names, 2-2FIELD RECORD RELATION field, 8-39 thru 8-43, 13-15, 13-16 file ADDROUT, 4-5, 4-10, 4-24 B-indexed, 4-13 chain, 4-4 combined, 4-3 demand, 4-5 direct, 4-13 display, 4-4 DMS, 13-6 end of, 4-6indexed, 4-10, 4-12, 4-16

input, 4-3 limits, 4-10, 4-14, 4-15, 4-18 limits with SETLL, 4-19 output, 4-3 primary, 4-4 record address, 4-5 secondary, 4-4 table, 4-5 update, 4-3 file accessing methods, 4-10 file addition coding options, 4-32, 13-8, 13-9, 13 - 53File Description Specifications entry, 4-31, 13-8, 13-9, 13-53 FILE ADDITION/UNORDERED/DELETION field, 4-31, 13-8, 13-9, 13-53 FILE ADDITION/UNORDERED field with ADD, 4-31 file condition File Description entry, 4-34, 4-35 FILE CONDITION field, 4-34, 4-35 File Description Specifications, 4-1 field definitions, 4-2 thru 4-35, 13-6 thru 13-9, 13-52, 13-53 FILENAME field, 4-1, 13-6 FILE DESIGNATION field, 4-4, 13-6 file format, 4-7, 13-19 FILE FORMAT field, 4-7, 13-19 file identification dollar options \$ DISKID, 11-3, 13-3
\$ FAMILY, 11-3
\$ FILEID, 11-3
\$ PACKID, 11-3, 13-3 file name CHAIN (Calculations entry), 9-44 DEBUG (Calculation Specifications entry), 9-53 DSPLY (Calculations Specifications entry), 9-46 File Description Specifications entry, 4-1, 13-6, 13-53 FROM FILENAME (Extension Specifications entry), 5-1 Input Specifications entry, 8-1, 8-3, 13-11 Line Counter Specifications entry, 6-3 Output-Format Specifications entry, 10-2, 10-4, 13-41, 13-43, 13-55 **READ** (Calculations Specifications entry), 9-48 RECV (Calculations Specifications entry), 9-49

SEND (Calculations Specifications entry), 9-51 SETLL (Calculation Specifications entry), 9-52 Telecommunication Card Specifications entry, 7-2TO FILENAME (Extension Specifications entry), 5-1 FILE NAME field. See file name file name length, 2-2file names external and internal, 11-3, 11-4 file organization, 4-11 thru 4-25 FILE ORGANIZATION TYPE field, 4-10 file processing consecutive, 4-14 DMS, 13-1 random, 4-21, 4-22 sequential by key, 4-14 sequential within limits, 4-14 valid combinations of, 4-25 file sequence ascending, 4-7, 13-7 descending, 4-7, 13-7 FILE statement, 12-4 FILE TYPE field, 4-3, 4-4, 13-6, 13-53 FILEID dollar option, 11-3 filenames, 2-2FIND operation code, 13-26 thru 13-28 first page (1P) indicator Control Card Specifications entry, 3-4Output-Format Specifications entry, 10-16, 10-17 first page indicator (1P), 3-4, 10-16, 10-17, E-2 fixed dollar sign, 10-32 fixed-length format, 4-7 fixed-length records, 4-7 FL, 6-1, 6-3 floating dollar sign, 10-33 flowchart RPG cycle, H-2 RPG cycle descriptions, H-1, H-3 thru H-6 FORCE operation code, 9-47, 9-48 form length, 6-1, 6-3 Line Counter Specifications entry, 6-1, 6-3, 6-4 FORM TYPE field, 2-5 formatting edit words

examples, 10-37 thru 10-47 FORMS POSITIONING field, 3-4, E-2 FREE operation code, 13-28, 13-29 FROM FILENAME field, 5-1, 13-9 general RPG program cycle, H-1 thru H-6 glossary of commonly used DMS terms, 13-65 thru 13-69 GOTO operation code, 2-2, 9-9, 9-35 HALF ADJUST field, 9-10, 9-11, 13-20 halt indicators (HO-H9), 8-8F, 9-8, 9-11, 10-13, E-2 assigning on Input Specifications, 8-8F calculations (conditioning indicators), 9-8 calculations (resulting indicators), 9-11 example of Calculation Specifications, 9-12 halt recovery, E-2 header card (Control Card Specifications), 3-1 thru 3-4 heading lines, 10-4, 10-5heading lines during overflow, 10-7 heading records, 10-4 hexadecimal to binary conversion, B-2 index buffers (I/O buffer areas), 4-10,4-11 core, 4-29, 4-30 File Description Specifications entry, 4-10, 4-11 index buffers (I/O buffer areas), 4-10, 4-11 index file addition of records, 4-31, 4-32, 10-5 B-indexed, 3-1, 4-13 consecutive, 4-14 File Description Specifications Summary Sheet, 4-2 file processing, 4-14 key field starting location, 4-26 key length, 4-9 organization, 4-11, 4-12 random, 4-21, 4-22 sequential by key, 4-14 sequential within limits, 4-14 thru 4-16 unordered addition, 4-31, 4-32

INDEX NAME field, 13-8 index order, 13-8, 13-9 indexed files, 4-12, 4-13 accessing of, 4-12 CHAIN operation code, 9-44 thru 9-46 CORE INDEX field, 4-29, 4-30 space/time trade-offs, 4-30 index random, 13-2 index sequential, 13-2indicator Summary Form, C-1, C-2 indicators, 8-8E, 8-8F, 8-41 thru 8-43, 9-3 thru 9-8, 10-11 thru 10-17 control level indicators (LO-L9), 8-8E, 8-41, 8-42, 9-3, 9-4, 9-6, 9-7, 9-11, 10-11 thru 10-13, 13-15, 13-16 DMS (D1, DA-DH, DJ-DS), 13-18, 13-19 external indicators (U1-U8), 4-34, 4-35, 8-42, 8-43, 9-8, 10-13 field indicators (01-99), 8-8F, 8-41, 9-6, 9-11, 10-12 first page indicator (1P), 3-4, 10-16, 10-17, E-2 halt indicators (H1-H9), 8-8F, 8-43, 9-6, 9-8, 10-11, 10-13 last record indicator (LR), 4-6, 8-8E, 8-8F, 9-3, 9-4, 9-11, 10-11, 10-13 matching record indicator (MR), 8-32 thru 8-39, 8-41, 8-42, 9-6, 10-11, 10-13 overflow indicators (OA-OG, OV), 4-25, 9-6, 9-8, 10-6 thru 10-8, 10-11, 10-13 thru 10-15 record identifying indicators (01-99), 8-8E, 8-8F, 8-41, 9-6, 9-7, 9-9, 9-10, 10-11, 10-12 setting indicators operation code, 9-35, 13-22 INDICATORS field Calculation Specifications, 9-6 thru 9-8, 13-18, 13-19. Calculation Specifications (NOT field), 9-6 DMS, 13-18, 13-19 input exceptions, 13-34 input error messages execution-time, E-1 thru E-3A input files, 4-3

chained, 4-4, 9-45, 9-46 conditioned by external indicators, 4-34, 4-35 device assignment of, 4-26, 4-27 DMS, 13-6 Input Specifications, 8-1 thru 8-44, 13-11 thru 13-16, 13-53 field definitions, 8-1 thru 8-44, 13-11 thru 13-16 FILENAME field, 8-1, 8-3, 13-11 input/output (I/O) area File Description Specifications entry, 4-10, 4-11 insert, 13-29, 13-30 inserting new records, 4-31, 4-32 INSRT operation code, 13-29, 13-30 internal file names definition of, 11-3 compiler, 12-4inverted print specifications, 2-3, 3-3, 3-4 table of, 3-4IOERROR exception, 13-35 JDATE special word, 2-4 key index key length, 4-9 index random, 4-21 index sequential by key, 4-14 index starting location (File Description entry), 4-26 index type, 4-10, 4-11 key field length, 4-9 starting location (File Description entry), 4-26 KEY FIELD STARTING LOCATION field, 4-26 key relationships on DMKEY statement, 13-24 KEY WORD field, 11-3 L0Calculation Specifications entry, 9-3, 9-4, 9-6, 9-7 L1-L9 Calculation Specifications entry, 9-3, 9-4, 9-6, 9-7 Input Specifications entry, 8-8F **Output-Format Specifications** entry, 10-11, 10-12 Label Equation Card, 12-3, 12-4 Labels, 2-2 LABELS field, 4-29

LABELS field B 1800/B 1700 Standard Label, 4-29 last record indicator (LR), 4-6, 8-8E, 8-8F, 9-2, 9-4, 9-6, 9-7, 9-11, 10-11, 10-13 leading zero suppression, 10-31 length B-indexed file key length, 4-9 block, 4-8, 4-9 decimal positions (Calculation Specifications), 9-10 Extension Specifications (length of entry field), 5-4, 5-6field location (Input Specifications), 8-24, 8-25 field names, 2-2filenames, 2-2 indexed files key length, 4-9 labels, 2-2Line Counter Specifications (forms length), 6-3 record, 4-8, 4-9 record address field, 4-9 vector names, 2-2level zero indicator (L0), 9-3, 9-4, 9-6, 9-7, H-3 level, control. See control level LIBR dollar option, 11-8 library files DMS, 13-3, 13-9, 13-64 limits file, 4-14 thru 4-18C Line Counter Specifications, 6-1 thru 6-6 EXTENSION CODE field, 4-26 field definitions, 6-1 thru 6-4 FILENAME field, 6-3 LINE field, 2-5 LINE NUMBER field, 6-3, 6-4 line-channel equations, 6-1 LIST dollar option, 11-7 literals definition of, 2-3literals as constant on output, 10-28 loading arrays, 5-9 thru 5-14 compile time, 5-9, 5-10 dynamic/execution time, 5-11 thru 5-13 pre-execution time, 5-10, 5-11 loading files (file creation) examples of, 4-45LOCK operation code, 13-30 thru 13-32 LOGIC dollar option, 11-7 logic of RPG program cycle, H-1 thru H-6

ŧ

logical data base, 13-3 LOGICAL DATA BASE field, 13-3 LOKUP indicator assignment, 9-38 referencing subscripted table entries, 9-40 referencing unsubscripted table entries, 9-40 resulting indicators, 9-38 rules for, 9-38, 9-39 search word, 9-36, 9-37 single table, 9-39 two table, 9-39, 9-40 LOKUP algorithm (table), 9-42 LOKUP operation code, 5-6, 9-36 thru 9-42 single vector, 9-39 two vector, 9-39, 9-40 LOKUP with a array, 9-40 thru 9-42 look-ahead field (**), 8-8E thru 8-11 lookup operations LOKUP, 5-6, 9-36 thru 9-42 LOKUP (single vector), 9-39 LOKUP (two vector), 9-39, 9-40 LR (last record) indicator calculations entry, 9-3, 9-4, 9-6, 9-7 Input Specifications entry, 8-8E, 8-8F Output-Format Specifications entry, 10-11, 10-13 magnetic tape block and record length, 4-8 device assignment, 4-26, 4-27 TAPE REWIND field, 4-32 thru 4-34 magnetic tape file input, 4-33 output, 4-33 manual subset, 13-1, 13-2, 13-29, 13-30, 13-32, 13-33 MAP dollar option, 11-7 mask. See edit word MATCHING FIELDS field, 8-32 thru 8-39, 13-15 rules for matching fields, 8-32, 8-33 rules for sequence checking, 8-39 MATCHING FIELDS field for matching fields, 4-8, 8-32 thru 8-38 MATCHING FIELDS field for sequence checking, 8-39 matching record indicator (MR), 8-32 thru 8-38, 9-7, 10-11, 10-13

matching records at End-of-File, 4-6, 8-37 MCP Disk Directory, 4-34 MERGE dollar option, 11-6, 11-7 messages during program execution, E-1 thru E-3A method (mode) of processing, 4-9 MFCM1 device, 4-27MFCM2 device, 4-27MFCUl device, 4-26, 4-27 MFCU2 device, 4-26, 4-27 MHHZO operation code, 9-29 MHLZO operation code, 9-29 MLHZO operation code, 9-29 MLLZO operation code, 9-30 mode of processing (File Description Specifications entry), 4-9 MOVE operation code, 9-20 MOVE operations, 9-18 thru 9-30 MOVE, 9-20 MOVEA, 9-22 thru 9-26 MOVEL, 9-20 thru 9-22 move remainder (MVR) operation, 9-15, 9-17 move zone operations, 9-27 thru 9-30 MHHZO, 9-29 MHLZO, 9-29 MLHZO, 9-29 MLLZO, 9-30 MOVEL operation code, 9-20 thru 9-22 MULT operation code, 9-13, 9-15, 9-16 multi-file processing with CHAIN, 9 - 44multi-file processing with FORCE, 9-47, 9-48 multi-file processing with matching records, 8-32 thru 8-39multi-file processing with READ, 9-48, 9-49 multiple I/O areas, 4-10, 4-11 multiple I/O buffer areas (File Description Specifications entry), 4-10, 4-11 MVR operation code, 9-15, 9-17 See record identification N (not). codes names definition of, 2-2type of, 2-2NAMES dollar option, 11-7 negative balance symbol (CR). See edit words, 10-28, 10-30, 10-34

negative signs in edit words, 10-28, 10-30, 10-34 negative square root halt (recovery options), E-2 NEW dollar option, 11-6A NEWID dollar option, 11-8 non-compatibility with other RPG systems, 1-3 normal collating sequence, B-1, B-2 NOT field, Calculation Specifications, 9-6 Dollar Card Specifications, 11-1 OUTPUT INDICATORS field, 10-11 RECORD IDENTIFICATION CODES field, 8-16 number (Input Specifications entry), 8 - 5NUMBER field, 8-5 number lines on coding sheets, 2-5 number of entries per record (Extension Specifications entry), 5-4 number of entries per vector (Extension Specifications entry), 5-4 numbering report pages Calculation Specifications (PAGE), 9-8 Input Specifications (PAGE), 8-26 Output-Format Specifications (PAGE), 10-17, 10-18 numeric character (numeric literals), 2-3 numeric fields comparing, 9-31 moving operations, 9-18 thru 9-30 testing, 9-31 thru 9-32A numeric literal, 2-3 numeric portion of characters, 8-17 thru 8-19 OA-OG, OV (overflow indicators) Calculation Specification entry, 9-6, 9-8 File Description Specifications, 4-25 Output-Format Specifications, 10-11, 10-13 thru 10-15 OCCURS clause, 13-9 OL, 6-1, 6-3 on exception indicator - D1, 13-18, 13-22 ONEPAK dollar option, 11-5 OPEN dollar option, 11-5

operations arithmetic ADD (add), 9-13 arithmetic DIV (divide), 9-14 arithmetic MULT (multiplication), 9-13, 9-15, 9-16 arithmetic MVR (move remainder), 9-15, 9-17 arithmetic SQRT (square root), 9-17, 9-18 arithmetic SUB (subtraction), 9-13 arithmetic XFOOT (cross foot), 9-17 arithmetic Z-ADD (zero and add), 9 - 19arithmetic Z-SUB (zero and subtract), 9-19 binary BITOF, 9-34 binary BITON, 9-33 binary TESTB, 9-34 compare COMP, 9-31 compare TESTN, 9-31 thru 9-32A Compare TESTZ, 9-32A debug DEBUG, 9-53, 9-54 DMS BEGUR, 13-36 DMS DELET, 13-23, 13-24 DMS DMKEY, 13-24 thru 13-26 DMS ENDUR, 13-36 DMS FIND, 13-26 thru 13-28 DMS FREE. 13-28, 13-29 compare TESTZ, 9-32A DMS FREE, 13-28, 13-29 DMS INSRT, 13-29, 13-30 DMS LOCK, 13-30 thru 13-32 DMS REMOV, 13-32, 13-33 DMS STORE, 13-33, 13-34 DMS TRBEG, 13-54, 13-55 DMS TREND, 13-54, 13-55 lookup LOKUP, 9-36 thru 9-42 move MOVE, 9-20, 9-21 move MOVEA (move array), 9-22 thru 9-26 move MOVEL, 9-20 thru 9-22move zone MHHZO, 9-28, 9-29 move zone MHLZO, 9-28, 9-29 move zone MLHZO, 9-28, 9-29 move zone MLLZO, 9-28, 9-30 program branching GOTO, 9-35 program branching TAG, 9-35 programmed control of input/ output CHAIN, 9-44 thru 9-46 programmed control of input/ output DSPLY, 9-46, 9-47 programmed control of input/ output EXCPT, 9-47

programmed control of input/ output FORCE, 9-47, 9-48 programmed control of input/ output READ, 9-48, 9-49 programmed control of input/ output RECV, 9-49 thru 9-51 programmed control of input/ output SEND, 9-51, 9-52 programmed control of input/ output SETLL, 9-52 setting indicators SETOF, 9-35 setting indicators SETON, 9-35 subroutines BEGSR, 9-42subroutines ENDSR, 9-42, 9-43 subroutines EXSR, 9-43 time TIME, 9-53, 9-55 transfer control ZIP, 9-36 operation codes, 2-4, 9-11 thru 9-55, 13-23 thru 13-34, 13-36, 13-54, 13-55 OPERATION field, 9-9, 13-20 operator option for halt recovery, E-1 thru E-3A OPTION field, 8-7 thru 8-8E, 11-1 OR line Input Specifications, 8-3 Output-Format Specifications, 10-17 OR relationship, 8-26, 8-41 Calculation Specifications, 9-3, 9-5, 13-24 Input Specifications, 8-26, 8-27 order indexed, 13-8 physical, 13-8 ordered set, 13-8 output detail, 10-4 exception, 9-47, 10-4, 10-5 heading, 10-4total, 10-4, 10-5 output fields, 10-17 thru 10-20 *PLACE, 10-19, 10-20 *PRINT, 10-20, 10-21 JDATE, 10-18A PAGE, 10-18 PAGEn, 10-18 UDATE, 10-18A UDAY, 10-18A UMONTH, 10-18A UYEAR, 10-18A output files, 4-3chained, 9-45, 9-46 conditioned by external indicator, 4-34, 4-35

device assignment of, 4-26 thru 4-29 output indicators 01-99, 10-11, 10-12 1P, 10-11, 10-16, 10-17 AND/OR, 10-17D1, DA-DH, DJ-DS, 13-18, 13-19 НО-Н9, 10-11, 10-13 LO-L9, 10-11, 10-12 LR, 10-11, 10-13 MR, 10-11, 10-13 OA-OG, OV, 10-11, 10-13 thru 10-15 U1-U8, 10-11, 10-13 OUTPUT INDICATORS field, 10-11 thru 10-17, 13-46 Output-Format Specifications, 10-1 thru 10-58, 13-41 thru 13-49, 13-55, 13-56 asterisk in column 40, 10-26 field definitions, 10-1 thru 10-37, 13-41 thru 13-49, 13-55, 13-56 FILENAME field, 10-1, 13-41, 13-43 OVERFLOW INDICATOR field, 4-25 overflow indicators (OA-OG, OV), 4-25, 9-6, 9-8, 10-11, 10-13 thru 10 - 15FETCH OVERFLOW field, 10-6 thru 10-9 overflow indicators (OA-OG, OV) with control level indicators, 10-15 overflow line, 4-25, 6-1, 6-5, 10-6 thru 10-9, 10-13 thru 10-15 PACKED decimal format, 5-5, 8-20, 8-22 thru 8-24, 10-27 PACKED decimal format in vectors, 5 - 5PACKED field Extension Specifications, 5-5 Input Specifications, 8-20, 8-22 thru 8-24 Output-Format Specifications, 10-27 PACKID dollar option, 11-3, 13-3, 13-9 PAGE dollar option, 11-8A PAGE field, 2-5 page fields, 8-26, 10-17 page numbering, 2-4, 2-5, 8-26, 9-8, 10-17 PAGE special word, 2-4, 8-2, 8-26, 8-28, 9-8, 10-18

PAGEn special word, 2-4, 8-26, 9-8, 9-9, 10-18 PARMAP dollar option, 11-8 paths, 13-68 physical data base, 13-3 physical order, 13-8 PLACE (*PLACE) special word, 2-4, 10-19, 10-20 POSITIONS field, 13-12 pre-execution-time vectors, 5-1, 5-10, 5-11 loading, 5-10, 5-11 output, 5-14 table files, 4-5 primary file, 4-4 available look-ahead fields, 8-8E thru 8-11 device assignment of, 4-26, 4-27 DMS, 13-6 File Description entry, 4-5 matching field selection of, 8-34 thru 8-38 PRINT (*PRINT) special word, 2-4, 10-20, 10-21 printer block and record length, 4-8, 4-9 device assignment, 4-26, 4-27 printer channel skipping, 10-47 PRINTER device, 4-26, 4-27 printer file handling, 10-47 printer/keyboard CONSOLE, 4-26, 4-27 display file, 4-4 printing on cards MFCU1; MFCU2, 4-26, 4-27 PRINTLF device, 4-27PRINTR2 device, 4-26, 4-27 PRINTUF device, 4-27 processing methods ADDROUT, 4-9, 4-22 thru 4-24 B-indexed files, 3-1, 4-13 consecutive, 4-14 direct files, 4-13, 4-14 DMS, 13-1 thru 13-70 indexed files, 4-12, 4-13 multifile, 8-32 random, 4-21, 4-22 random (ADDROUT), 4-22 random (indexed), 4-22random (sequential and direct), 4-22 sequential by key, 4-14 sequential within limits, 4-14 thru 4-21

SETLL, 4-19 thru 4-21, 9-52 PROCESSING MODE field, 4-9 program aborts, 13-35 program branching operations, 9-35 GOTO, 9-35 TAG, 9-35 PROGRAM IDENTIFICATION field, 2-6 program logic RPG cycle detailed, H-1 thru H-6 RPG cycle flowchart, H-2 programmed control of input and output, 9-44 thru 9-52 CHAIN, 9-44 thru 9-46 DSPLY, 9-46, 9-47 EXCPT, 9-47, 10-4, 10-5 FIND, 13-26 thru 13-28 FORCE, 9-47 FREE, 13-28, 13-29 INSRT, 13-29, 13-30 LOCK, 13-30 thru 13-32 READ, 9-48, 9-49 REMOV, 13-32, 13-33 STORE, 13-33, 13-34 programmed halts, E-1 thru E-3A PTAPE dollar option, 11-6A PUNCH20 device, 4-27 PUNCH42 device, 4-27PUNCH device, 4-26, 4-27 purge field, 4-32 random access - DMS, 13-32, 13-33 random processing, 4-14, 4-21 ADDROUT, 4-22indexed, 4-22sequential and direct, 4-22 random processing using CHAIN operation, 9-44 thru 9-46 READO1 device, 4-27 READ20 device, 4-27 READ40 device, 4-27 READ42 device, 4-27 READ operation code, 9-48, 9-49 READER device, 4-26, 4-27RECORD ADDITION field, 4-31, 4-32, 10-5, 13-43, 13-44 RECORD ADDRESS FIELD LENGTH field, 4-9 record address files, 4-5 RECORD ADDRESS TYPE field, 4-10 RECORD DELETION field, 13-8, 13-9, 13-43, 13-44 record description line, 13-11 thru 13-13, 13-40 thru 13-45

RECORD IDENTIFICATION CODES field, 8-16 thru 8-20 additional record identification, 8-19, 8-20 C/Z/D field, 8-17 thru 8-19 CHARACTER field, 8-19 DMS, 13-12NOT field, 8-16 POSITION field, 8-16 RECORD IDENTIFYING INDICATOR field, 8-8E thru 8-15 record identifying indicators (01-99), 8-8E, 8-8F, 8-41, 9-6, 9-7, 10-11, 10-12 record key index key length, 4-9 index key type, 4-10 RECORD LENGTH field, 4-8, 4-9 defaults, 4-9 table of maximum and minimum value, 4-8 RECV operation code, 9-49 thru 9-51 REFORM dollar option, 11-5 relative record processing, 4-13, 4-14 remainder. See MVR operation code REMOTE files, 4-5, 4-28, 7-1, 7-2 RECV operation code, 9-49 thru 9-51 SEND operation code, 7-1, 9-51, 9-52, 10-4 REMOV operation code, 13-32, 13-33 REORG dollar option, 11-6 replacement characters, 10-30 reserved words definition of, 2-4restart data set, 13-51 thru 13-56 RESULT FIELD field, 9-9, 9-10, 13-20, 13-21 RESULTING INDICATORS field, 9-11, 13-22 resulting indicators with CHAIN, 9-44 resulting indicators with LOKUP, 9-38 resulting indicators with READ, 9-48, 9-49 resulting indicators with RECV, 9-49 thru 9-51 resulting indicators with SEND, 9-51 rounding numbers in RESULT FIELD (half adjust), 9-10, 9-11 RPERA dollar option, 11-5 RPG cycle - DMS, 13-8, H-1 thru H-6 RPG extensions \$ options, ll-4 thru ll-6A RPG I explanation, 1-3, 3-4 RPG II differences in coding, 3-4, 8-44, 10-25

RPG II explanation, 1-3 RPG differences in coding, 3-4 8-44, 10-25 RPG library files - DMS, 13-3, 13-64 RPG operation, 1-1 RPG program cycle, H-1 thru H-6 flow chart, H-2 RPG source program, 1-1 illustration of, 1-3 order of specifications, 1-1 RPGLIB, 13-64 RPG/BTF, F-1 thru F-3 functions, F-2input, F-1, F-2 rules, F-1 RSIGN dollar option, 5-5, 11-6 run-time error handling - DMS, 13-35 thru 13-41 search word LOKUP operation, 9-36 thru 9-42 secondary files, 4-4 available look-ahead fields, 8-11, 8-12 device assignment, 4-26, 4-27 DMS, 13-6 matching field selection of, 8-32 thru 8-39 SECURE dollar option, 11-6A SECURITYERROR exception, 13-35 selection expressions, 13-20, 13-21 selection of records on input (multifile processing), 8-32 thru 8-36 selection of stackers (Input Specifications), 8-20 selection of stackers (Output-Format Specifications), 10-6 SEND operation code, 9-51, 9-52 SEQ dollar option, 11-6A sequence checking of input records, 4-7, 13-7 sequence checking of matching fields, 8-39 sequence error, E-3 SEQUENCE field DMS, 13-7, 13-11 Extension Specifications, 5-6 File Description Specifications, 4 - 7Input Specifications, 8-3 thru 8-5 sequential access - DMS, 13-21 sequential files, 4-11 accessing methods of, 4-10, 4-11 organization of, 4-11, 4-12

sequential processing by key, 4-14 sequential processing using SETLL, 4-19 thru 4-21 sequential processing within limits, 4-14 thru 4-18C SETLL operation code, 9-52 SETOF operation code, 9-35 SETON operation code, 9-35 SETON operation code to force overflow, 10-8, 10-14 sets, 13-1 setting indicators, 9-35 calculations (CHAIN operation), 9-44, 9-45 calculations (COMP operation), 9-31 calculations (LOKUP operation), 9-36 thru 9-42 calculations (READ operation), 9-48, 9-49 calculations (RECV operation), 9-49 thru 9-51 calculations (resulting indicators), 9-11, 13-22 calculations (SEND operation), 9-51, 9-52 calculations (SETOF operation), 9-35 calculations (SETON operation), 9-35 calculations (TESTB operation), 9-34 calculations (TESTN operation), 9-31 thru 9-32A calculations (TESTZ operation), 9-32A D1, DA-DH, DJ-DS, 13-18, 13-19 DMS, 13-22 File Description entry, 4-25 Input Specifications (control level), 8-28 thru 8-32 Input Specifications (matching records), 8-28 thru 8-39 Input Specifications (record identification), 8-8E, 8-8F SETOF, 9-35SETON, 9-35 sign position, 3-3, 13-12 SKIP field, 10-10 RPG II, 10-10 SKIP field used with overflow indicator, 10-8 SORT MEMORY SIZE, 3-3 source input, 12-1

SPACE field, 10-9 special words, 2-4 *PLACE, 10-19, 10-20 *PRINT, 10-20, 10-21 JDATE, 10-18A PAGE, 8-26, 10-17, 10-18 PAGEn, 8-26, 10-17 UDATE, 10-18A UDAY, 10-18A UMONTH, 10-18A UYEAR, 10-18A Specifications Calculations, 9-1 thru 9-55 Control Card, 3-1 thru 3-4 Data Base, 13-2, 13-3 Dollar options, 11-1 thru 11-8A File Description, 4-1 thru 4-45 Input, 8-1 thru 8-44 Line Counter, 6-1 thru 6-6 Output-Format, 10-1 thru 10-58 Telecommunications, 7-1 thru 7-9 Vector and Extension, 5-1 thru 5 - 15split control fields, 8-30 thru 8-32 SPO device, 4-27spread cards, 8-12 thru 8-15 processing, 8-15 rules for, 8-15 SQRT operation code, 9-17, 9-18 negative root halt recovery, E-3 SR. See subroutines SR entry, 9-5 STACK dollar option, 11-8 STACKER SELECT field, 8-20, 10-6, 13-12 STORE operation code, 13-33, 13-34 structures, 13-1 SUB operation code, 9-13 subroutines, 9-1, 9-42, 9-43 AN/OR, 9-3, 9-5, 9-42 BEGSR, 9-42ENDSR, 9-42, 9-43 EXSR, 9-43 SR entry, 9-3, 9-42 UR entry, 13-36 subsets, 13-1 SUPR dollar option, 11-8 TAB (table name), 5-3 table element, 5-1 error messages, E-3

maximum number of, 5-4

sequence of, 5-6 table files, 4-4, 5-3 device assignment of, 4-27 tables comment line coding, 5-6 decimal positions of fields, 5-5, 5-6 describing second vector, 5-6 differences between array and table, 5-7 entries per record, 5-4 entries per table, 5-4 example of compile-time load, 5-10 example of dynamic/execution load, 5-12 example of pre-execution load, 5-11 Extension Specifications, 5-1 thru 5-15 Extension Specifications Summary Sheet, 5-2 FROM FILENAME, 5-1 general, 5-7 input (FROM FILENAME), 5-1 length of entry, 5-4, 5-5 LOKUP operation, 9-36 thru 9-42 MOVEA operation, 9-22 thru 9-26 name, 5-3, 5-4 output (TO FILENAME), 5-1 output via File Description Specifications, 4-5 packed fields, 5-5 referencing in calculations, 9-36 thru 9-42 related or alternating format, 5-6, 5-7 See LOKUP operation searching. sequence field, 5-6 summary sheet, 5-2TO FILENAME, 5-1 XFOOT operation, 9-17 TAG operation code, 9-35, 9-36 TAGSORT with RPG, G-1, G-2 TAPE7 dollar option, 11-6A TAPE9 dollar option, 11-6A TAPE device, 4-26 TAPE REWIND field, 4-32 thru 4-34 effect on card input, 4-32 effect on card output, 4-33 effect on disk files, 4-34 effect on printer output, 4-33 effect on tape input, 4-33 effect on tape output, 4-33 Telecommunications Card Specifications, 7-1 thru 7-9

.

field definitions, 7-2 thru 7-4 FILENAME field, 7-2, 7-4 Telecommunications file, 4-28, 7-1 TESTB operation code, 9-34 testing fields. See field indicators testing results of calculations. See resulting indicators TESTN operation code, 9-31 thru 9-32A TESTZ operation code, 9-32A time of day TIME operation, 2-4, 9-53 TO FILENAME field, 5-1 total calculations, 8-29, 9-1 total lines, 6-4, 10-5 total lines during overflow, 10-6, 10-7 total records, 10-4 total time RPG cycle, H-1 thru H-6 ZIP, 9-36 transaction state, 13-51, 13-52 transfer of control function, 9-36 TRBEG operation code, 13-54 TREND operation code, 13-54 TYPE field, 10-4, 10-5, 13-43, 13-53 UDATE special word, 2-4, 9-9, 10-18A UDAY special word, 2-4, 9-9, 10-18A UMONTH special word, 2-4, 9-9, 10-18A unpacked decimal format, 8-21 update files, 4-3 available look-ahead fields, 8-11, 8-12 chained, 9-45, 9-46 conditioned by external indicators, 4-34, 4-35 device assignment of, 4-26, 4-27 UR entry, 13-36 user routines, 13-36 UYEAR special word, 2-4, 9-9, 10-18A valid data set, 13-23 VALUE field, 11-8 variable length records, 1-4 variable format records, 13-44 thru 13-46 VARIABLE NAME field DMS, 13-47 Input Specifications, 8-26 Output Specifications, 10-17 vector element, 5-4 alphanumeric, 5-5, 5-6 error messages, E-3 maximum number of, 5-4 numeric, 5-4, 5-5

numeric decimal positions, 5-5, 5 - 6sequence of, 5-6vector file input, 12-3 vector loading, 5-1, 5-7 thru 5-14 VECTOR NAME field, 5-3, 5-4, 5-6 vector names, 2-2 vector output, 5-14 VERSIONERROR exception, 13-35 VOID dollar option, 11-8 XFOOT operation code, 9-17 XMAP dollar option, 11-8 XREF dollar option, 11-8 ZADD operation code, 9-19 ZBINIT dollar option, 11-7 zero suppression, 10-31, 10-32 zeros in edit words, 10-30 thru 10-32 ZIP operation code, 9-36 zone portion of characters, 8-17, 8-18, A-1 thru A-3 hexadecimal representation, B-1, B-2 zone portion of characters with packed decimal format, 8-20 thru 8-22 ZSUB operation code, 9-19 01-99 indicators Input Specifications use, 8-8E, 8-8F

Output Specifications use, 10-12 resulting in calculations, 9-11 01-99 indicators conditioning calculations, 9-6, 9-7

1P (first page) indicator Control Card Specifications, 3-4 forms positioning, 3-4 Output-Format Specification use, 10-16

& (ampersand) use in edit words, 10-30, 10-35 & (dollar sign options), ll-1 thru 11**-8**A \$ (fixed or floating dollar sign), 10-30, 10-33 * (asterisk, star), 10-30, 10-33 * comment line, 2-6, 5-7, 9-11, 11-8A *printing on cards (Output Specifications column 40), 10-20, 10-21 ** (look-ahead fields), 8-8F thru 8-11 **PLACE conditioning fields, 10-19, 10-20 end position in output record, 10-26 example of, 10-19 overlapping fields, 10-20 *PLACE special word, 2-4, 10-19, 10-20 *PRINT example of, 10-20, 10-21 *PRINT special word, 2-4, 10-20, 10-21